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One. A Message to Shareholders 

In the face of a challenging business environment, and with the efforts of all colleagues, the 
Company's consolidated net operating revenue in 2023 amounted to NT$3,702,071 thousand, 
representing a decrease of 3.2% from NT$3,823,400 thousand in 2022. Additionally, the rising 
stock prices of our short-term investment targets and an increase in the valuation of market 
multipliers for long-term investments contributed to a net non-operating income of NT$241,280 
thousand, marking a significant increase of 76.1% from 2022. Net income for the current period 
was NT$422,512 thousand, showing an increase of approximately 13.6% from NT$372,015 
thousand in 2022, with basic earnings per share of NT$6.52. 

I. 2023 Business Results 

(I) Business plan implementation results 

Unit: NT$ thousand 

Item 2023 2022 
Increase 

(decrease) in 
amount 

Increase 
(decrease) %

Operating revenue 3,702,071 3,823,400 (121,329) (3.2) 
Gross profit 551,291 650,284 (98,993) (15.2) 
Gross profit margin (%) 15.0 17.0 (2.0) (11.8) 
Operating expenses 306,306 327,043 (20,737) (6.3) 
Operating income 244,985 323,241 (78,256) (24.2) 
Non-operating revenue 
(expense) 

241,280 136,976 104,304 76.1 

Net profit before tax 486,265 460,217 26,048 5.7 
Current net income 422,512 372,015 50,497 13.6 
Net income attributable to 
owners of the parent 

271,466 175,259 96,207 54.9 

Basic EPS NT$6.52 NT$4.22 NT$2.30 54.5 

(II) Budget implementation status: Not applicable, as the Company didn’t disclose its financial 
forecast in 2023. 
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(III) Analysis on financial revenue & expense and profitability  

Item 2023 2022 

Financial 
structure 

Liability to asset ratio (%) 46.4 50.1

Ratio of long-term capital to property, plant and 
equipment (%) 

280.9 267.1

Solvency 

Current ratio (%) 128.8 138.3

Quick ratio (%) 80.5 81.4

Interest coverage ratio 2,597.3 4,549.6

Profitability 

ROA (%) 8.8 8.4

ROE (%) 16.3 15.4

Net operating profit to paid-in capital ratio (%) 58.9 77.7

Net profit before tax to paid-in capital ratio (%) 116.9 110.6

Net profit margin (%) 11.4 9.7

Basic EPS (NT$) 6.52 4.22

(IV) R&D results  
1. Successfully developed the force balance accelerometer FA135. 
2. Successfully developed the distributed high-speed synchronization signal datalogger 

DATUM EF410 for application in the bridge safety monitoring system. 
3. Successfully developed the SS300 earthquake switch for application in the elevator 

emergency shutdowns during earthquakes. 
4. Successfully developed the TILTdot tiltmeter with NB-IoT transmission function. 
5. Completes the Sanlien dot cloud service, providing users with real-time monitoring of 

current data, historical curves and reports on the dot cloud. 
II. Outline of 2024 Business Plan 

Automatic Monitoring Core Business: 

The Company aims to “help the human beings understand the nature and working environment” 
as its mission. In the future, the Company will continue striving to secure a safe environment 
for all human beings as the focus of its business development. In addition to continuing to 
invest the environmental monitoring, the Company will also promote the IoT real-time 
monitoring and smart city disaster prevention monitoring programs as its core business, in 
response to the Industry 4.0 and Internet trends. 

The Company will proceed to transform itself based on innovative thoughts and through 
continuous improvement, and use its best effort to provide the omnibearing environmental 
monitoring and sensing system integration services by virtue of “hardware with software”, in 
order to become a practitioner dedicated to constructing smart cities and helping national 
disaster prevention programs. Adopt the following strategies to achieve the goals: 

1. Continue to internalize the core technology and practice the consolidated effects through 
the management by department, based on the professional division of labor by "Technology 
Department"; 
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2. Continue to invest in smart manufacturing equipment and plan for the complete automation 
of production for pipes and tubes at the Kaohsiung Plant, advancing towards the goal of a 
dark factory. 

3. Expand the application of the existing products to different fields and develop and 
manufacture our own products, with the goal of its operation contributing NT$1 to EPS in 
the next two years. 

4. Enhance the visibility of our brand through the production of marketing videos, exhibitions 
at home and abroad, adjustments to the structure of the Chinese and English official 
websites, and optimization of webpage contents. 

5. Continue to develop the earthquake testing instrument and peripheral application systems, 
and develop earthquake early warning and disaster prevention and relief markets. 

6. The ESG Committee continues to implement corporate social responsibility, enhance 
corporate governance systems, and promote environmental sustainability practices. In 2023, 
the third phase of solar energy equipment was installed at the Kaohsiung Plant. This new 
installation is anticipated to commence power generation in the second quarter of 2024, 
providing green energy to our Southern Office. 

7. The subsidiary RIFT SYSTEMS INC. promotes seismometers, meteorological equipment, 
and bridge inspection to the U.S. 

Electronic materials operations: 
At present, some products are still in the final stage of inventory adjustment, and it is expected 
that the semiconductor industry will not rebound significantly until the second half of 2024. 
Looking ahead to 2024, with the rapid increase in demand for artificial intelligence (AI) and 
high-performance computing (HPC), combined with the gradual recovery of demand for smart 
phones, personal computers, automobiles, and other terminals, it is expected that the 
semiconductor sales market will once again grow, ushering in a new wave of expansion. 

The Company has entered the advanced process semiconductor market with success following 
a number of years of active deployment. In view of the trend of wafer foundry customers' 
continuous fab expansion, the Company not only maintained its existing production capacity 
but also commenced planning for the expansion of additional production lines since 2022, in 
response to the robust demand for advanced manufacturing processes from customers. At the 
same time, the Company also completed the setup of a new cleanroom for high-purity product 
testing in 2023. Additionally, the new production line will start production in 2024, which is 
expected to drive a wave of revenue growth in the future. 

III. The Company's future development strategy, and the effect of external competition, legal environment, 
and overall business environment. 

(I) Future development strategy 

The Company aims to “help the human beings understand the nature and working 
environment” as its mission and also strives to become the top 1 brand for environmental 
monitoring, micro-vibration sensing technology and system integration services. In the 
recent years, various disasters have occurred constantly all over the world. Therefore, 
multiple urban construction projects have included the disaster prevention system with IoT 
functions and land monitoring system as the major work items. The Company utilizes the 
informatization technology to establish the IoT comprehensively, optimize the 
environmental monitoring system’s performance, and combine the earthquake detection, 
automated monitoring and structural health checkup with the AIoT technology integration 
system products to develop seismographs and vibration measurement products successfully, 
in order to provide the global customers with solutions in line with the international 
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vibration standards and norms. In the future, the Company will continue to promote the 
product carbon footprint verification and reduction management system. 

Looking forward to the future, the Company will insist on “focus on its core profession, 
forward-looking investment, rolling planning-based management and continuous transformation” 
as its basic policy to accelerate upgrading of R&D, strengthen the production and 
marketing layout, develop its business domain and pursue stable growth. 

(II) The effect of external competition, legal environment, and overall business environment 

The economic growth for 2024 will still be affected by uncertainties such as the sluggish 
economy in China, the slowdown of the US economy, interest rate cuts implemented by 
central banks worldwide, escalating geopolitical risks, the intensifying US-China 
technology rivalry, extreme climate events, and the development of artificial intelligence. 
Overall, it is expected that exports and capital investment will return to positive growth in 
2024. The Company's management will focus on collection terms from customers, regular 
tracking of collection status, inventory depletion, and cost down to control the Company's 
cash flow. In addition, the Company’s management team will keep paying attention to 
material impacts brought by the delivery issues from suppliers, foreign exchange rates, 
information security management, and the countermeasures thereof. 

All of the Company’s operations strictly comply with the existing laws and regulations 
applicable domestically and in foreign countries where the Company makes investments. 
The management team will keep observing any changes in policies and laws that might 
affect the Company’s business and finance. All of these practices pose positive effects to 
the Company’s business. The Company will keep upholding its management philosophy, 
“Witness Technology and Write History for Industry.” The Company has involved in 
multiple monitoring engineering projects about infrastructure domestically (e.g. 
high-speed rail, MRT, reservoir and bridge, et al.). Meanwhile, the Company will use the 
best to lay more solid foundation for automation in the railcar testing industry. Automation 
Business Dept. will develop new technologies and apply them to develop its business 
domain (e.g. earthquake early warning device and structural health diagnosis system, etc.), 
in order to generate stable profit. 

Finally, I would like to extend my sincere appreciation to all shareholders, investors and employees 
for their supports, and also hope that all of you may continue to give encouragement and advice. We 
will keep growing stably and successfully and share with you our business achievements. Wish all 
of you 
 

health and success! 
 

Chairman Lin Ta-Chun 
 

 
General Manager Lin Chia-Ching 

 
 

Accounting Manager Huang I-Chen 
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Two. Company Profile 

I. Date of Establishment: February 20, 1967 

II. Company History: 

1967~1971 
 The Company was established on February 20, 1967. 
 Engaged in manufacturing and constructing electrical equipment for factories and 

automatic control panels. 
 Introduce civil engineering monitoring instrumentation and undertake safety monitoring 

system of reservoirs and dams domestically. 
 
1972~1981 
 Establishment of the switchboard factories. 
 Undertake high voltage substation equipment and power equipment engineering project. 
 Introduce the automobile engine analysis table and production technology from a 

foreign country and invested in Trisco to proceed with the production. 
 Tseng-Wen Power Plant hydro-generator installation engineering project (Mitsubishi 

Electric Turnkey served as the director of the construction work office). 
 Establishment of Gee Lien Resource Development Corp. (1980) 
 
1982~1991 
 Undertake safety monitoring system engineering for domestic construction projects: 

Taipei Feitsui Reservoir (1982), Underground Railway Project (1983), Minghu Power 
Station (1986), and CPC LNG storage tank (1986). 

 Introduce the first semiconductor wafer etching equipment domestically (1991) ─ 
Electronic Research and Service Organization in the Industry Technology Research 
Institute (8 inches), and TSMC (6 inches). 

 Promote computer-aided design CAD and computer-aided production CAM (1991). 
 
1992~2001 
 Undertake the civil engineering safety monitoring system for the highest building 

domestically, namely 85 Sky Tower in Kaohsiung (1994). 
 Undertake the very first cap beam crack reinforcement project safety monitoring 

system of MRT - Muzha Line (1995). 
 Received the 4th National Award of Enterprise from Small and Medium Enterprise 

Administration, MOEA (1995). 
 Received certification from CNLA Linear Calibration Laboratory (1996, changed to 

TAF Linear Calibration Laboratory in 2005). 
 Received certification from CNLA Electrical Capacity Calibration Laboratory (1999, 

changed to TAF Electrical Capacity Calibration Laboratory in 2006). 
 Received ISO9002 QA certification (1997). 
 Undertake the first-ever vessel traffic management system for Formosa Plastic 

Corporation - Formosa Plastics Corp's (FPC) sixth naphtha cracker complex, Mailiao 
Harbor (1997). 

 Undertake thee first-ever, large-scale civil engineering safety automatic alarm signboard 
in Taiwan- The Fuxing N. Road Tunnel project crossing beneath Songshan Airport 
(1997).  

 Invest in Kemitek Industrial Corp. to launch into the electronic materials supply industry 
(1997). 

 Complete the supplementary procedures for public offering under the approval letter 
No. (86) Tai-Cai-Zheng (1) No. 53093 dated July 3, 1997. 

 Establish Xindian Logistic Center and Sanlien Industrial Classroom (1998). 
 Kemitek Industrial Corp. passed ISO14001 certification (1999). 
 Introduce the first 12-inch semiconductor etching equipment domestically - TSMC 

Fab 6 and UMC Fab 12A in Taiwan Science Park (2000). 
 Establish SANTEK Technology, Inc. in Hong Kong to boost the Company’s market in 
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China (2000). 
 Pass the review of securities listings under the approval letter (89) Zheng-Gui-Shang-Zi 

No. 45736 on December 7, 2000 and Securities and Future Bureau’s approval letter 
(89) Tai-Cai-Zheng No. 103343 on December 26, 2000 (2000).  

 Kemitek Industrial Corp. received 1st Industrial Elite Award from MOEA (2000). 
 Listed on TPEx on May 3, 2001 (2001). 
 Establish brand offices in Southern China and Eastern China (2001). 
 Complete the development of GPS vehicle management system (2001).  
 
2002~2011 
 Establish Sanlien Educational Foundation (2002). 
 Received ISO9001 QA certification (2002). 
 Invest in ZHUHAI TRiTEK ELECTRONIC CO., LTD. via Sanlien B.V.I. (2002).  
 Promote the rail industry testing instruments and equipment, and establish the 

first-ever static testing platform for light rail transit bogie in Taiwan (2002). 
 Kemitek Industrial Corp. developer solution received the certificate from TSMC Ship 

to Stock (2002). 
 Sanlien B.V.I jointed ventured with NISHIMURA CHEMITECH CO., LTD., TAMA 

Chemicals CO. and Hermes-Epitek Corp. to establish Singapore Agnos Chemicals in 
order to develop the semiconductor and chemical consumables for TFT-LCD locally 
(2003). 

 As a sole proprietorship, SANTEK Technology, Inc. invested in the establishment of 
Timlien Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. primarily engaged in the business lines including 
hardware & electrical appliances, electronic products, electronic components, sensors, 
instruments, electric tools, electromechanical equipment, mechanical equipment and 
accessories, wholesale, import/export and commission agency of geotechnical construction 
safety equipment and materials (excluding auction) for provision of related alternate 
services(2004).  

 Invest in MinMaxTech Samoa via Sanlien B.V.I. (2005).  
 Kemitek Industrial Corp. passed ISO14001 certification (2005). 
 Establish KaiCheng Construction (2006). 
 Kemitek Industrial Corp. received the ISO/IEC 17025:2005 chemical laboratory 

certification (2007). 
 Kemitek Industrial Corp. received OHSAS 18001:1999 occupational safety and health 

management system certification (2007). 
 Establish brand offices in Northern China and Central China via SANTEK Technology, 

Inc. in Hong Kong (2008). 
 Honored as an A+ TPEx-listed company in the “6th~9th Information Disclosure 

System Evaluation for TWSE/TPEx-Listed Companies” (2008~2012). 
 Establish TAF Vibration Calibration Laboratory (2011). 
 Granted the right to act as the agent of UK-based GURALP seismographs (2011). 
 Complete the implementation of the Company’s mobile office Push Mail and 

implementation of the mobile final approval via smart device(2011). 
 Due to the reorganization, Sanlien B.V.I. completed the liquidation and wind-up. 

Instead, SANTEK Technology, Inc. invested in ZHUHAI TRiTEK ELECTRONIC 
CO., LTD. via MinMaxTech Samoa (2011). 

 
2012~2021 
 Received "A+" ratings from the 10th to 12th Information Disclosure Evaluations for TWSE 

and TPEX listed companies. (2013 ~ 2015) 
 Obtained the TAF Vibration (2012) and Strength (2013) Laboratory Certifications. 
 Won the Manager's Monthly CSR Award - First Prize in Workplace Environment and 

Talent Development (2012). 
 Won the TTQS Training Quality Bronze Medal from the Workforce Development 

Agency, Ministry of Labor, Executive Yuan (2013). 
 Won the "Taiwan Integrity Builder" excellent brand certification (2013). 
 Established the Kaohsiung Benzhou R&D Center (2013). 
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 Established Hong Kong AWM LIMITED through a joint venture between Hong Kong 
Santek Company Limited and RUN PARTICIPATIONSS.A. (2013). 

 Won the "Architecture Golden Lion Award" and the "National Golden Award for 
Architecture - Design and Planning Category - First Prize" (2014).   

 Won the "Taiwan Integrity Builder" Excellent Brand Certification (2014) 
 Kemitek won the Merck (AZ) Supplier Award (2014, 2016). 
 Kemitek won the Inotera Memories, Inc. No. 1 Chemicals Category Supplier Award 

(2014). 
 Established Shenzhen AWM LIMITED through Hong Kong AWM LIMITED (2014). 
 Ranked Among the Top 20 Companies by the 1st Corporate Governance Ranking 

(2015). 
 Won Silver Medal from the TTQS Talent Quality Management System (2015). 
 Completed the early warning system construction for 85 campuses in New Taipei City, 

thereby expanding the earthquake early warning market (2015). 
 Enable the WEB version of the Cloud engineering monitoring software (2015). 
 Successfully developed and applied CCTV water level identification and alarm system, 

and enabled real-time data collection and transmission system function (2015). 
 Strategic Investment Easy Entry Co., Ltd. (2015).  
 Won the National Talent Development Award (2016). 
 Won the 29th Taiwan Continuous Improvement Award by the Industrial Development 

Bureau, Ministry of Economic Affairs (2016). 
 Combined length and vibration laboratory into the TAF 0307 instrument calibration 

laboratory (2016). 
 Received certification for the first domestic TAF large force calibration laboratory of 

over 200t (2016). 
 Obtained and completed the Singapore high-precision 1000t large force laboratory 

equipment construction project (2016). 
 Obtained and completed the construction of land subsidence monitoring equipment 

for Formosa Ha Tinh Steel (2016). 
 Completed the early earthquake monitoring and warning network system with up to 

610 stations throughout Taiwan (2016). 
 Donated the "Composite Earthquake Early Warning System" to Tainan City and built 

20 earthquake-proof campuses to give back to society (2016). 
 Won the 1st and 2nd Disaster Prevention Technology Application Quality Awards 

(2016, 2017). 
 Won the 20th Rising Star Award from the MOEA (2017). 
 Won the 2nd and 4th Taiwan i Sport Certification (2017, 2019) and won the outstanding 

enterprise trophy through the "Enterprise Employment Sports Instructor Subsidy 
Program" (2019). 

 Ranked among the top 6%~20% TPEx-listed companies by the 3rd~7th Corporate 
Governance Ranking. (2017 ~ 2021) 

 Passed the ISO9001: 2015 Quality Management System (2017). 
 Incorporated VMS for engineering vibration monitoring and developed the vibration 

monitoring market (2017). 
 Jointly acquired 100% equity of "SIAP + Micros" with OSMOS to provide globally 

integrated monitoring solution services (2018). 
 Proprietary vibration products have successfully entered the international market and 

are sold to the Philippines, New Zealand, Mexico, Greece, South Korea, Singapore, 
Indonesia, India, etc. (2018). 

 TAF vibration laboratory added vertical vibration correction equipment to provide 
more comprehensive vibration calibration services (2018). 

 Established the Building Materials Department and promoted the SHM Structure 
Health Measurement System (2018).  
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 Kemitek won the D&B TOP 1000 Elite SME Award (2019). 
 Won the Disaster Prevention Product Certification Mark (2020). 
 Won the Learning Highlight Enterprise "Academic Performance Award" from the 

Small and Medium Enterprise Administration, MOEA (2021).   
 

2022 
 Ranked among the top 6%~20% TPEx-listed companies by the 8th Corporate Governance 

Ranking. 
 Received the 7th Taiwan i Sports certification from the Sports Administration. 
 Established subsidiary DFOST, which engages in the development and sales of optical 

fiber sensor monitors. 
 

2023 
 Ranked among the top 6%~20% TPEx-listed companies by the 9th Corporate Governance 

Ranking. 
 Established subsidiary Rift Holdings Inc. and sub-subsidiary Rift Systems Inc. in the 

United States. The main business is sales of equipment (sensors), electrical materials, 
etc. 
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Three. Corporate Governance Report 

I. Organizational System 

(I) Organizational Structure  
 

 
 Organization effective from January 1, 2024 

 

Board of 
Directors
Chairman

Secretariat

General 
Manager 

Audit Office

General 
Manager 

Office 

4th 
Business 

Dept. 

Administrat
ive Service 

Dept. 

Asia-Pacifi
c Logistics 

Dept. 
R&D Dept. 

2nd 
Business 

Dept. 

3rd 
Business 

Dept. 

Technology 
Dept. 

1st 
Business 

Dept. 
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(II) Business operations by major departments  

Department Operations 

General 
Manager Office  

Determination and planning of management systems, analysis on operating 
results, overall planning about public relations, and control over investees, 
and development and evaluation of various new investment opportunities. 

Audit Office 

Audit on and suggestions for improvement of the Company’s business 
overview. 
Determination of and audit, followup and improvement on the annual 
internal audit plan. 

Secretariat 
Communication for and processing of Board of Directors’ meeting and 
shareholders’ meeting affairs. 

Administrative 
Service Dept. 

1. Determination, planning, announcement and execution of personnel 
systems, management of and appraisal on personnel information, 
education & training and payment of salary, and employees’ insurance. 

2. Management of incoming and outgoing goods and raw materials & 
supplies. Procurement, management and disposal of assets, office 
equipment and appliances. 

3. Financial allocation, cost analysis, accounting, and preparation of 
financial reports. 

Asia-Pacific 
Logistics Dept. 

Overseas subsidiaries’ business / financial operations management, and 
new subsidiaries’ preparation management. 

R&D Dept. 

1.R&D and commercialization of new products or technology. 
2. Product planning and application, marketing strategies, competitive 

industry and environment analysis. 
3. Office automation system, automated software system construction and 

integration, and customized software development. 

Technology 
Dept. 

1. Production of geotechnical products and various departments’ technical 
support and assistance. 

2. TAF laboratory calibration business, length, electricity and vibration 
weights and measures calibration services. 

1st Business 
Dept. 

1. Plant and equipment automation and control 
2. Vibration and earthquake monitoring. 
3. Professional technology for IC and LED packaging process equipment 

installation, adjustment, maintenance and repair, and remodeling of used 
machines, etc. 

4. Professional technology for adjustment, maintenance and care of 
semiconductor wafer cleaning equipment. 

5. Geotechnical product sales and import & export. 
2nd Business 
Dept. 

Plane material automated and semi-automated processing production and 
testing equipment. 

3rd Business 
Dept. 

Development of various physical sensors and measuring instrument control 
systems, PCB industry testing instruments, track and bridge industry 
testing instruments and equipment, optoelectronic and imaging systems, 
power quality monitoring systems, special purpose sensors for industry, 
and structural health diagnosis. 

4th Business 
Dept.  

1. Public works, geotechnical engineering and urban civil engineering 
construction safety monitoring 

2. Tunnel/bridge/dam/landslide real-time automated warning system. 
3. Natural disaster pre-warning and post-hoc analysis. 
4. Old structural and bridge enforcement and monitoring 
5. Pile test: load test and completeness test 
6. Plant and equipment automation and control 
7. Vibration and earthquake monitoring 
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Table 1: Major Shareholders of Juristic Person Shareholders 
March 31, 2024 

Name of Juristic-Person 
Shareholder 

Major Shareholder of Juristic-Person Shareholder 

Multiple Investment Corp. 

Jie Shi Lin Investment Co. Ltd. (22.0%), Trisco Technology Corporation 
(18.0%), Lin Ting-Hsiang (11.5%), Lin Ting-Fung (9.5%), Rui Hua 
Investment Co., Ltd. (5.0%), Lin Ta-Wei (4.6%), Lin Ta-Cheng (4.6%), Lin 
Ta-Chun (4.5%), Lin Ta-Hsun (4.5%), Lin Huan-Ju (4.2%) 

Sanlien Educational Foundation 
Multiple Investment Corp. (40.0%), Trisco Technology Corporation (20.0%), 
Sanlien Technology Corp. (20.0%), Lin Jung-Chu (Deceased) (10.0%), Lin 
Ting-Fung (10.0%) 

Rui Hua Investment Co., Ltd. 
Huang Yi-Chun (39.9%), Lin Ta-Chun (31.8%), Lin Ta-Hsun (14.0%), Lucent
Source., Ltd. (11.0%), Lin Ting-Fung (3.3%) 

Table 2: Major Shareholders of Major Shareholders in Table 1 Who are Juristic Persons 
March 31, 2024 

Name of Major Shareholder Major Shareholder of Juristic Person 

Jie Shi Lin Investment Co., Ltd. 
Lin Ta-Cheng (25.0%), Lin Ta-Wei (22.92%), Lin Ting-Hsiang (18.75%), Lin 
Huan-Ju (18.75%), Chen Shu-Hua (14.58%) 

Trisco Technology Corporation 

Sanlien Technology Corp. (22.5%), Multiple Investment Corp. (13.7%), Mega 
Bank (9.2%), Lin Ting-Hsiang (5.6%), Jie Shi Lin Investment Co., Ltd. 
(5.3%), San Long Assets Management Co., Ltd. (4.1%), Cheng Li-Hsiung 
(3.9%), Lin Ting-Fung (3.4%), Lin Pi-Yung (2.7%), Lin Li-Hsueh (2.7%) 

Rui Hua Investment Co., Ltd. 
Huang Yi-Chun (39.9%), Lin Ta-Chun (31.8%), Lin Ta-Hsun (14.0%), Lucent
Source., Ltd. (11.0%), Lin Ting-Fung (3.3%) 

Multiple Investment Corp. 

Jie Shi Lin Investment Co. Ltd. (22.0%), Trisco Technology Corporation
(18.0%), Lin Ting-Hsiang (11.5%), Lin Ting-Fung (9.5%), Rui Hua 
Investment Co., Ltd. (5.0%), Lin Ta-Wei (4.6%), Lin Ta-Cheng (4.6%), Lin 
Ta-Chun (4.5%), Lin Ta-Hsun (4.5%), Lin Huan-Ju (4.2%) 

Lucent Source., Ltd. Huang Yi-Chun (54.7%), Lin Ta-Hsun (23.9%), Lin Ta-Chun (10.2%), Lin 
Ting-Fung (6.3%), Huang Wen-zi(3.5%), Huang Ju-xiu(1.4%)  

Information on directors (including independent directors) (II) 
I. Information on directors and independence of independent directors:  March 31, 2024 

Qualifications
 
 
 
 

Name 

Professional qualification and 
experience (Note 1) 

Independence (Note 2) 

Number of other 
public companies in 

which the independent 
director concurrently 

serves as an 
independent director

Chairman: Lin 
Ta-Chun 

Knowledge of the industry and 
international market perspective; No 
the circumstances referred to in 
Article 30 of the Company Act are 
met. 

N/A None 

Director: Chen 
Chin-Ying 

Ability to conduct management 
administration and crisis 
management.; No the circumstances 
referred to in Article 30 of the 
Company Act are met. 

N/A None 

Director: Chuang 
Chu-Wei 

Knowledge of the industry and 
international market perspective; No 
the circumstances referred to in 
Article 30 of the Company Act are 
met. 

N/A 1 

Director: Chen 
Shu-Hua 

Ability to make operational 
judgments and conduct management 
administration; No the circumstances 
referred to in Article 30 of the 
Company Act are met. 

N/A None 
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Qualifications
 
 
 
 

Name 

Professional qualification and 
experience (Note 1) 

Independence (Note 2) 

Number of other 
public companies in 

which the independent 
director concurrently 

serves as an 
independent director

Independent 
Director: Ke 

Yen-Huei 

Master of Accounting, Soochow 
University. Used to be Assistant 
Professor-level Technical Expert, 
Adjunct Lecturer, Department of 
Accounting, Soochow University. 
Specializing in financial accounting 
and corporate sustainability. No the 
circumstances referred to in Article 
30 of the Company Act are met. 

Including but not limited to, they or 
their spouses or relatives within a 
2nd degree of kinship do not serve as 
directors, supervisors or employees 
in the Company or any of its 
affiliates; they do not hold the 
Company's shares, but 66,740 shares 
(0.16%) are held in the name of their 
spouses or relatives within a 2nd 
degree of kinship (or proxy 
shareholder); they do not serve as 
directors, supervisors, or employees 
in any entity that has certain 
relationship with the Company; they 
have not provided commercial, legal, 
financial, accounting or other 
professional services to the Company 
and its affiliates in the most recent 
two years. 

2 

Independent 
Director: Lin 
Ching-Rong 

Academic expertise related to the 
environment areas of company's 
business, and management 
experience in university colleges; No 
the circumstances referred to in 
Article 30 of the Company Act are 
met. 

Including but not limited to, they or 
their spouses or relatives within a 
2nd degree of kinship do not serve as 
directors, supervisors or employees 
in the Company or any of its 
affiliates; they do not hold the 
Company's shares, but 57,484 shares 
(0.14%) are held in the name of their 
spouses or relatives within a 2nd 
degree of kinship (or proxy 
shareholder); they do not serve as 
directors, supervisors, or employees 
in any entity that has certain 
relationship with the Company; they 
have not provided commercial, legal, 
financial, accounting or other 
professional services to the Company 
and its affiliates in the most recent 
two years. 

None 

Independent 
Director: Liao 

Shian-Yao 

Organization leadership, strategic 
management and Industry relevant 
experience; No the circumstances 
referred to in Article 30 of the 
Company Act are met. 

Including but not limited to, they or 
their spouses or relatives within a 
2nd degree of kinship do not serve as 
directors, supervisors or employees 
in the Company or any of its 
affiliates; none of the Company’s 
shares is held in the name of them or 
their spouses or relatives within a 
2nd degree of kinship; they do not 
serve as directors, supervisors, or 
employees in any entity that has 
certain relationship with the 
Company; they have not provided 
commercial, legal, financial, 
accounting or other professional 
services to the Company and its 
affiliates in the most recent two 
years. 

None 
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Note 1: Professional qualification and experience: Please specify the individual directors’/supervisor’s 
professional qualification and experience. In the case of an Audit Committee member specialized in 
accounting or finance, please specify his/her educational background and work experience in 
accounting or finance, and whether he/she meets the circumstances referred to in Article 30 of the 
Company Act. 

Note 2: Compliance of independence: Please specify the independent directors’ compliance of independence, 
including but not limited to, whether they or their spouses or relatives within a 2nd degree of kinship 
serve as directors, supervisors or employees in the Company or any of its affiliates; the number and 
percentage of the Company's shares held in their own names or names of the spouses or relatives 
within a 2nd degree of kinship (or proxy shareholder); whether they serve as directors, supervisors, 
or employees in any entity that has certain relationship with the Company (please refer to the 
subparagraphs 5~8, Paragraph 1, Article 3 of the Regulations Governing the Appointment and 
Exercise of Powers by the Remuneration Committee of a Company Whose Stock is Listed on the 
Taiwan Stock Exchange or the Taipei Exchange); and the amount of remuneration received in the 
last two years for providing commercial, legal, financial, accounting or other professional services to 
the Company and its affiliates. 

 
II. Diversity and Independence of Board of Directors: 

(I) Diversity of the Board of Directors: 
The Company has adopted the “Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles.” Article 
20 thereof expressly states the Board members’ diversity policy. The existing Board 
members have different professional backgrounds, skills and experience covering sales, 
computer, electronic engineering, electrical engineering, civil engineering, finance & 
accounting and management that satisfy the Company’s Board member diversity policy 
with respect to gender, age, professionalism, knowledge, skills and experience. Among 
the Company’s 7 Board members, consisting of 3 independent directors and 4 directors, 
Chen Chin-Ying and Chen Shu-Hua are specialized in leadership, business judgment, 
business administration and crisis management, Lin Ta-Chun and Chuang Chu-Wei 
possess the industrial knowledge and international market prospective, Independent 
Director Ke Yen-Hui is specialized in finance and accounting, and Lin Ching-Rong and 
Liao Shian-Yao are specialized in environmental sustainability and business 
administration. No directors are also employees of the Company, independent directors 
account for 43%, and more than half of independent directors hold the term of office less 
than 3 years. 2 directors at the age less than 40 years old, 1 director at the age of 51~60 
years old, and 4 directors at the age more than 60 years old.  The Company values the 
gender equality in the composition of the Board members, 3 more female directors were 
added in the 2023 re-election and Female directors account for 43%. 

 
(II) Independence of the Board of Directors: 

The Company’s Board of Directors consists of 7 directors, including 3 independent 
directors, accounting for more than one-thirds of the whole directors. None of the 
directors (including independent directors) meets the circumstances referred to in 
Paragraph 3 and Paragraph 4, Article 26-3 of the Securities and Exchange Act. 
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an
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su
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l i
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e 
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te
d 
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 c
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ns
at
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os
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f 
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er
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R
en

te
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V
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 P

le
as

e 
di

sc
lo

se
 th

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
 r

em
un

er
at

io
n 

pa
id

 to
 G

en
er

al
 M

an
ag

er
 a

nd
 V

ic
e 

G
en

er
al

 M
an

ag
er

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
by

 th
e 

B
oa

rd
 o

f 
D

ir
ec

to
rs

 in
 th

e 
m

os
t r

ec
en

t y
ea

r 
(i

nc
lu

di
ng

 s
to

ck
s 

an
d 

ca
sh

).
 I

f 
it

 is
 im

po
ss

ib
le

 to
 im

pu
te

 th
e 

sa
m

e,
 th

e 
am

ou
nt

 to
 b

e 
di

st
ri

bu
te

d 
th

is
 y

ea
r 

sh
al

l b
e 

ba
se

d 
on

 th
at

 d
is

tr
ib

ut
ed

 a
ct

ua
ll

y 
la

st
 y

ea
r, 

an
d 

pl
ea

se
 a

ls
o 

co
m

pl
et

e 
Ta

bl
e 

1-
3.

 
N

ot
e 

5:
 P

le
as

e 
di

sc
lo

se
 t

he
 t

ot
al

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
pa

id
 b

y 
al

l 
co

m
pa

ni
es

 i
nc

lu
de

d 
in

 t
he

 c
on

so
li

da
te

d 
fi

na
nc

ia
l 

st
at

em
en

ts
 (

in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
C

om
pa

ny
) 

to
 t

he
 C

om
pa

ny
’s

 
ge

ne
ra

l m
an

ag
er

 a
nd

 v
ic

e 
ge

ne
ra

l m
an

ag
er

. 
N

ot
e 

6:
 T

he
 a

gg
re

ga
te

 o
f 

th
e 

co
m

pe
ns

at
io

n 
to

 G
en

er
al

 M
an

ag
er

 a
nd

 V
ic

e 
G

en
er

al
 M

an
ag

er
 b

y 
th

e 
C

om
pa

ny
, 

an
d 

th
e 

na
m

es
 o

f 
su

ch
 G

en
er

al
 M

an
ag

er
 a

nd
 V

ic
e 

G
en

er
al

 M
an

ag
er

, s
ho

ul
d 

be
 d

is
cl

os
ed

 in
 th

e 
re

le
va

nt
 s

pa
ce

 o
f 

th
e 

ta
bl

e.
 

N
ot

e 
7:

 P
le

as
e 

di
sc

lo
se

 t
he

 a
gg

re
ga

te
 o

f 
th

e 
co

m
pe

ns
at

io
n 

pa
id

 b
y 

al
l 

co
m

pa
ni

es
 i

nc
lu

de
d 

in
 th

e 
co

ns
ol

id
at

ed
 f

in
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 (
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

C
om

pa
ny

) 
to

 e
ac

h 
ge

ne
ra

l 
m

an
ag

er
 a

nd
 v

ic
e 

ge
ne

ra
l 

m
an

ag
er

 o
f 

th
e 

C
om

pa
ny

, w
hi

ch
 s

ha
ll

 i
nc

lu
de

 t
he

 g
en

er
al

 m
an

ag
er

’s
 a

nd
 v

ic
e 

ge
ne

ra
l 

m
an

ag
er

’s
 n

am
es

 d
is

cl
os

ed
 i

n 
th

e 
re

le
va

nt
 s

pa
ce

 o
f 

th
e 

ta
bl

e.
 

N
ot

e 
8:

 T
he

 n
et

 p
ro

fi
t a

ft
er

 ta
x 

re
fe

rs
 to

 th
at

 s
ho

w
n 

in
 th

e 
m

os
t r

ec
en

t p
ar

en
t c

om
pa

ny
 o

nl
y 

or
 s

ep
ar

at
e 

re
po

rt
. 

N
ot

e 
9:

 a
. T

hi
s 

fi
el

d 
re

pr
es

en
ts

 a
ll

 f
or

m
s 

of
 c

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

th
e 

C
om

pa
ny

’s
 g

en
er

al
 m

an
ag

er
 a

nd
 v

ic
e 

ge
ne

ra
l 

m
an

ag
er

 h
av

e 
re

ce
iv

ed
 f

ro
m

 t
he

 C
om

pa
ny

’s
 i

nv
es

te
d 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
 o

th
er

 th
an

 s
ub

si
di

ar
ie

s,
 o

r 
fr

om
 th

e 
pa

re
nt

 c
om

pa
ny

. (
If

 n
on

e,
 p

le
as

e 
sp

ec
if

y 
“N

on
e”

.)
. 

b.
 F

or
 th

e 
C

om
pa

ny
’s

 g
en

er
al

 m
an

ag
er

 a
nd

 v
ic

e 
ge

ne
ra

l m
an

ag
er

 w
ho

 r
ec

ei
ve

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
fr

om
 in

ve
st

ed
 b

us
in

es
se

s 
ot

he
r 

th
an

 s
ub

si
di

ar
ie

s,
 o

r 
fr

om
 th

e 
pa

re
nt

 c
om

pa
ny

, a
m

ou
nt

s 
re

ce
iv

ed
 f

ro
m

 th
es

e 
in

ve
st

ed
 b

us
in

es
se

s 
sh

al
l b

e 
ad

de
d 

to
 c

ol
um

n 
E

 o
f 

th
e 

C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
S

ca
le

 T
ab

le
, i

n 
w

hi
ch

 c
as

e,
 c

ol
um

n 
E

 w
il

l b
e 

re
na

m
ed

 "
th

e 
pa

re
nt

 c
om

pa
ny

 a
nd

 a
ll

 in
ve

st
ed

 b
us

in
es

se
s.

” 
c.

 T
he

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
re

fe
rs

 t
o 

an
y 

re
m

un
er

at
io

n 
or

 r
et

ur
n 

(i
nc

lu
di

ng
 c

om
pe

ns
at

io
ns

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
as

 a
n 

em
pl

oy
ee

, 
di

re
ct

or
 a

nd
 s

up
er

vi
so

r)
 a

nd
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l 

pr
ac

ti
ce

 f
ee

s 
w

hi
ch

 t
he

 C
om

pa
ny

's
 G

en
er

al
 M

an
ag

er
 a

nd
 V

ic
e 

G
en

er
al

 M
an

ag
er

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
fo

r 
se

rv
in

g 
as

 d
ir

ec
to

rs
, s

up
er

vi
so

rs
 o

r 
m

an
ag

er
s 

in
 i

nv
es

te
d 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
 o

th
er

 th
an

 s
ub

si
di

ar
ie

s 
or

 in
 p

ar
en

t c
om

pa
ny

. 
 * 

T
he

 b
as

is
 o

f 
co

m
pe

ns
at

io
n 

di
sc

lo
se

d 
ab

ov
e 

is
 d

if
fe

re
nt

 a
cc

or
di

ng
 t

o 
th

e 
ba

si
s 

of
 t

he
 I

nc
om

e 
Ta

x 
A

ct
; 

he
nc

e,
 t

he
 a

bo
ve

 t
ab

le
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 s
ol

el
y 

fo
r 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

di
sc

lo
su

re
 a

nd
 n

ot
 f

or
 ta

x 
pu

rp
os

es
. 
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N

am
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 o
f 

m
an

ag
er

s 
en
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tl

ed
 to

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 r

em
un

er
at

io
n 

an
d 

am
ou

nt
 e

nt
it

le
d:

 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

02
3;

 U
ni

t:
 N

T
$ 

 
Jo

b 
T

it
le

 
(N

ot
e 

1)
 

N
am

e 
(N

ot
e 

1)
 

A
m

ou
nt

 in
 s

to
ck

A
m

ou
nt

 in
 

ca
sh

 
To

ta
l 

A
s 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
ne

t p
ro

fi
t a

ft
er

 ta
x 

(%
) 

Manager 

G
en

er
al

 M
an

ag
er

 
L

in
 C

hi
a-

C
hi

ng

0  
1,

18
6,

44
0 

(N
ot

e)
 

1,
18

6,
44

0 
 

0.
44

%
 

 

A
ss

is
ta

nt
 V

ic
e 

P
re

si
de

nt
 

P
en

g 
C

hi
-H

ui

A
ss

is
ta

nt
 V

ic
e 

P
re

si
de

nt
/C

F
O

 
C

he
n 

H
si

u-
H

ui

A
ss

is
ta

nt
 V

ic
e 

P
re

si
de

nt
 

C
he

n 
H

ua
ng

-C
hi

A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

M
an

ag
er

 
H

ua
ng

 Y
i-

C
he

n

C
hi

ef
 I

nt
er

na
l 

A
ud

it
or

 
S

hi
h 

W
en

-L
in

g

(N
ot

e)
 T

he
 d

is
tr

ib
ut

ed
 a

m
ou

nt
 in

 2
02

3 
is

 s
im

pl
y 

an
 e

st
im

at
ed

 f
ig

ur
e 

(e
st

im
at

ed
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

ra
ti

o 
in

 2
02

2)
. 

N
ot

e 
1:

 
T

he
 C

om
pa

ny
 s

ha
ll

 d
is

cl
os

e 
in

di
vi

du
al

 n
am

es
 a

nd
 j

ob
 t

itl
es

, 
bu

t 
m

ay
 o

pt
 t

o 
di

sc
lo

se
 t

he
 a

ll
oc

at
io

n 
of

 e
ar

ni
ng

s 
un

de
r 

ag
gr

eg
at

e 
di

sc
lo

su
re

 
m

et
ho

d.
 

N
ot

e 
2:

 
P

le
as

e 
di

sc
lo

se
 t

he
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

 r
em

un
er

at
io

n 
pa

id
 t

o 
m

an
ag

er
s 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

B
oa

rd
 o

f 
D

ir
ec

to
rs

 i
n 

th
e 

m
os

t 
re

ce
nt

 y
ea

r 
(i

nc
lu

di
ng

 s
to

ck
s 

an
d 

ca
sh

).
 I

f 
it

 is
 im

po
ss

ib
le

 to
 im

pu
te

 th
e 

sa
m

e,
 th

e 
am

ou
nt

 to
 b

e 
di

st
ri

bu
te

d 
th

is
 y

ea
r 

sh
al

l b
e 

ba
se

d 
on

 th
at

 d
is

tr
ib

ut
ed

 a
ct

ua
ll

y 
la

st
 y

ea
r. 

T
he

 
ne

t p
ro

fi
t a

ft
er

 ta
x 

re
fe

rs
 to

 th
at

 f
or

 th
e 

m
os

t r
ec

en
t y

ea
r. 

W
he

re
 th

e 
C

om
pa

ny
 h

as
 a

do
pt

ed
 I

F
R

s,
 it

 s
ha

ll
 r

ef
er

 to
 th

at
 s

ho
w

n 
in

 th
e 

m
os

t r
ec

en
t 

pa
re

nt
 c

om
pa

ny
 o

nl
y 

or
 s

ep
ar

at
e 

re
po

rt
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ot
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T
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 a
pp

li
ca

bl
e 

de
fi

ni
ti

on
 o

f 
m

an
ag

er
s 

re
fe

rs
 t

o 
th

e 
fo

ll
ow

in
g,

 p
er

 t
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 l
et

te
r 

of
 S

ec
ur

it
ie

s 
an

d 
F

ut
ur

es
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ur
ea

u 
un

de
r 

Ta
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C
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-Z
he

ng
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-Z
i 

N
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00
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(1

) 
G

en
er

al
 m

an
ag

er
 a

nd
 e

qu
iv

al
en

ts
; 

(2
) 

V
ic

e 
ge

ne
ra

l 
m

an
ag

er
 a

nd
 e

qu
iv

al
en

ts
; 

(3
) 

A
ss

is
ta

nt
 v

ic
e 

pr
es

id
en

t 
an

d 
eq

ui
va

le
nt

s;
 (

4)
 F

in
an

ci
al

 
m

an
ag

er
s;

 (
5)

 A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

m
an

ag
er

s;
 (

6)
 A

ny
 o

th
er

 p
er

so
ns

 e
m

po
w

er
ed

 to
 m

an
ag

e 
af

fa
ir

s 
an

d 
en

te
r 

si
gn

at
ur

e 
on

 b
eh

al
f 

of
 th

e 
co

m
pa

ny
. 

N
ot

e 
4:

 
If

 a
ny

 d
ir

ec
to

r, 
ge

ne
ra

l 
m

an
ag

er
 o

r 
vi

ce
 g

en
er

al
 m

an
ag

er
 r

ec
ei

ve
s 

th
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

 r
em

un
er

at
io

n 
(i

nc
lu

di
ng

 s
to

ck
 a

nd
 c

as
h)

, 
pl
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se
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o 
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m
pl

et
e 
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is
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e,
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iti
on

 to
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le
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(V
) 

T
he

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
pa

id
 b

y 
th

e 
C

om
pa

ny
 a

nd
 a

ll
 c

om
pa

ni
es

 i
nc

lu
de

d 
in

 th
e 

co
ns

ol
id

at
ed

 f
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 to

 t
he

 d
ir

ec
to

rs
, s

up
er

vi
so

rs
, 

ge
ne

ra
l 

m
an

ag
er

 a
nd

 v
ic

e 
ge

ne
ra

l 
m

an
ag

er
 i

n 
th

e 
m

os
t 

re
ce

nt
 t

w
o 

ye
ar

s,
 th

e 
an

al
ys

is
 o

f 
th

e 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f 

to
ta

l c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
to

 n
et

 p
ro

fi
t 

af
te

r 
ta

x 
in

 t
he

 p
ar

en
t 

co
m

pa
ny

 o
nl

y 
fi

na
nc

ia
l 

re
po

rt
s 

or
 s

ep
ar

at
e 

fi
na

nc
ia

l 
re

po
rt

s,
 t

he
 p

ol
ic

y,
 s

ta
nd

ar
d 

an
d 

pa
ck

ag
e 

of
 c

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

pa
ym

en
t, 

th
e 

pr
oc

ed
ur

e 
fo

r 
de

te
rm

in
at

io
n 

of
 c

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

an
d 

th
e 

co
nn

ec
ti

on
 w

it
h 

th
e 

op
er

at
in

g 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 a

nd
 f

ut
ur

e 
ri

sk
. 

1.
 

T
he

 p
ol

ic
y,

 s
ta

nd
ar

d 
an

d 
pa

ck
ag

e 
of

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
pa

ym
en

t, 
th

e 
pr

oc
ed

ur
e 

fo
r 

de
te

rm
in

at
io

n 
of

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
an

d 
th

e 
co

nn
ec

ti
on

 w
it

h 
th

e 
op

er
at

in
g 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 a
nd

 f
ut

ur
e 

ri
sk

. 
(1

) 
D

ir
ec

to
rs

 a
nd

 s
up

er
vi

so
rs

: 
T

he
 c

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

pa
ck

ag
e 

pa
id

 b
y 

th
e 

C
om

pa
ny

 t
o 

di
re

ct
or

s 
in

 2
02

3 
co

ns
is

ts
 o

f 
th

e 
re

tu
rn

, 
re

m
un

er
at

io
n 

an
d 

tr
an

sp
or

ta
ti

on
 a

ll
ow

an
ce

 t
o 

th
e 

di
re

ct
or

s.
 N

o 
su

pe
rv

is
or

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

ap
po

in
te

d 
si

nc
e 

th
e 

in
de

pe
nd

en
t 

di
re

ct
or

s 
w

er
e 

el
ec

te
d 

at
 th

e 
sh

ar
eh

ol
de

rs
’ 

m
ee

ti
ng

 o
n 

Ju
ne

 1
5,

 2
01

7.
 F

or
 t

he
 r

at
io

 o
f 

re
m

un
er

at
io

n 
di

st
ri

bu
te

d 
to

 d
ir

ec
to

rs
 a

nd
 in

de
pe

nd
en

t 
di

re
ct

or
s,

 a
cc

or
di

ng
 to

 A
rt

ic
le

 1
8 

of
 th

e 
A

rt
ic

le
s 

of
 I

nc
or

po
ra

ti
on

, n
o 

m
or

e 
th

an
 5

%
 o

f 
th

e 
ea

rn
in

gs
 g

ai
ne

d 
in

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
t y

ea
r 

sh
al

l 
be

 d
is

tr
ib

ut
ed

 a
s 

th
e 

re
m

un
er

at
io

n 
to

 d
ir

ec
to

rs
. M

ea
nw

hi
le

, t
he

 C
om

pa
ny

’s
 R

em
un

er
at

io
n 

C
om

m
it

te
e 

w
il

l 
co

ns
id

er
 t

he
 d

ir
ec

to
rs

’ 
co

nt
ri

bu
ti

on
 to

 th
e 

C
om

pa
ny

’s
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
, a

ss
es

s 
an

d 
pr

op
os

e 
th

e 
sa

la
ry

 a
nd

 r
em

un
er

at
io

n 
pe

ri
od

ic
al

ly
, a

nd
 s

ub
m

it
 th

e 
pr

op
os

al
 

to
 th

e 
B

oa
rd

 o
f 

D
ir

ec
to

rs
 f

or
 a

pp
ro

va
l. 

 
(2

) 
G

en
er

al
 M

an
ag

er
 a

nd
 V
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IV. Corporate Governance Status 
(I) Operations of Board of Directors 

(1) Information about operations of Board of Directors 
The Board held 7 (A) meetings in 2023. The attendance of directors is summarized 
as follows: 

Job Title Name (Note 1) 
Count of actual 

presence (in 
attendance) B 

Count of 
presence by 

proxy 

Actual presence 
(in attendance) 

rate (%)  
【B/A】(Note 2) 

Remark 
Reelected on 

May 24, 
2023 

Chairman 

Rui Hua Investment 
Co., Ltd. 
Representative: Lin 
Ta-Chun 

7 0 100.0% Reelected 

Director 

Multiple Investment 
Corp. 
Representative: Chen 
Shu-Hua 

3 0 100.0% 
Newly 
elected 

Director 

Sanlien Educational 
Foundation 
Representative: Chen 
Chin-Ying 

3 0 100.0% 
Newly 
elected 

Director Chuang Chu-Wei 3 0 100.0% 
Newly 
elected 

Independent 
Director 

Ke Yen-Huei 7 0 100.0% Reelected 

Independent 
Director 

Lin Chin-Rong 3 0 100.0% 
Newly 
elected 

Independent 
Director 

Liao Shian-Yao 3 0 100.0% 
Newly 
elected 

Director 
Multiple Investment 
Corp.: Lin 
Ting-Hsiang 

4 0 100.0% Former term

Director 

Sanlien Educational 
Foundation 
Representative: Kao 
Chu-Min 

4 0 100.0% Former term

Director Hsieh Ming-Yuan 4 0 100.0% Former term
Independent 

Director 
Lin Chin-Yuan 4 0 100.0% Former term

Independent 
Director 

Li Ming-Kuei 4 0 100.0% Former term

Other disclosures to be noted: 
I. For Board of Directors meetings that meet any of the following descriptions, state the date, session, 

contents of the motions, independent directors' opinions and how the Company has responded to 
such opinions: 
(I) Any conditions referred to in Article 14-3 of the Securities and Exchange Act met by the 

Company were passed per resolution by the Board of Directors, and independent directors 
have no opinion. 

(II) Any other resolution(s) by the Board of Directors meetings passed but with independent 
directors voicing opposing or qualified opinions on the record or in writing: None. 

II. For directors’ avoidance of motions which involves conflict of interest, the names of directors, 
contents of the motions, reasons of the recusal for conflict of interest, and participation in voting 
must be disclosed: 
1. Name of the director: Chairman, Lin Ta-Chun (Rui Hua Investment Co., Ltd.) and Director Kao 

Chu-Min (Sanlien Educational Foundation) 
Motion: 1st meeting of the Board of Directors in 2023 (January 17)- Proposal for payment of 

bonus to the Chairman and managers in 2022. 
Reasons of the recusal for conflict of interest, and participation in voting: Chairman, Lin Ta-Chun, 
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and Director Kao Chu-Min recused themselves from discussion and 
voting as the stakeholders to the proposal. 

2. Name of the director: Director Kao Chu-Min (Sanlien Educational Foundation) 
Motion: 1st meeting of the Board of Directors in 2023 (January 17)- Proposal for Companys 

donation to Sanlien Educational Fundation in 2023. 
Reasons of the recusal for conflict of interest, and participation in voting: Director Kao Chu-Min 

recused himself from discussion and voting as the stakeholders to the 
proposal. 

3. Name of the director: Chairman, Lin Ta-Chun (Rui Hua Investment Co., Ltd.) 
Motion: 2nd meeting of the Board of Directors in 2023 (February 24)- Proposal for remuneration 

adjustment to the Chairman and general manager. 
Reasons of the recusal for conflict of interest, and participation in voting: Chairman, Lin 

Ta-Chun recused himself from discussion and voting as the stakeholders 
to the proposal. 

III. The evaluation cycle and period, scope of evaluation, method and contents of evaluation about the 
Board of Directors’ self (or peer) performance evaluation shall be disclosed in the status of evaluation 
conducted by the Board of Directors in Table (2). 

IV. Enhancement of the functionality of the Board of Directors in the current and the most recent year 
(e.g. the establishment of an Audit Committee, the improvement of information transparency, etc.) 
and the respective progress reports:  
Enhancement of the functionality of the Board of Directors: 
1. In order to practice the corporate governance and improve the information transparency effectively, 

the Company discloses the full information about its operation and finance in the annual report 
and on the Company’s website and MOPS, and also disclose the individual director’s name and 
remuneration in the annual report and the complete Board meeting minute on the Company’s 
website voluntarily. 

2. In 2022, the Board of Directors approved the amendments to “Corporate Governance Best Practice 
Principles,” “Sustainable Development Best Practice Principles,” and “Rules of Procedure for 
Shareholders Meetings.” 

3. The directors attend various corporate governance courses to enhance the functionality of the 
Board of Directors. 

Respective progress reports: 
1. Participated in 9th Corporate Governance Evaluation 2022 and honored one of Top 6~20% TPEx-listed 

companies in 2023. 
2. The appraisal on performance of the Board of Directors was completed in 2023, and the 

appraisal result was reported to the Board of Directors and also disclosed on the Company’s 
website. Meanwhile, the ethical corporate management promotion taskforce submitted the 
promotion work report 2023. 

3. All directors have satisfied the continuing education hours for new or reelected directors, 
totaling 74 hours/26 persons in 2023. 

Note 1: The name and representative of the juristic-person shareholder of any director who is a 
juristic person, if any, shall be disclosed. 

Note 2: (1) Before the end of the year, if a director resigns from his/her position, the resignation 
date should be marked in the remarks column. The actual presence rate (%) should 
be calculated based on how often the Board of Directors meeting was convened 
(times) and his/her actual presence (times) during his/her term of office. 

(2) If a re-election of directors had taken place prior to the close of the financial year, 
old and new directors are listed, in which case, the remarks column would specify 
whether they are former, newly elected or re-elected directors, and the date of the 
reelection. The actual presence rate (%) will be calculated based on how often the 
Board of Directors meeting was convened (times) and his/her actual presence 
(attendance) (times) during his/her term of office. 
 

(2) Status of evaluation conducted by the Board of Directors 
Evaluation cycle Evaluation 

period 
Scope of 
evaluation 

Method Contents of evaluation 

Once per year The 
performance 
evaluation on 

Performance 
evaluation on 
the Board of 

Performance 
evaluation 
conduced in the 

(1) Performance evaluation on the 
Board of Directors: 
Engagement in the Company’s 
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the Board of 
Directors 
was 
conducted 
from January 
1, 2023 to 
December 
31, 2023. 

Directors, 
individual 
Board members 
and functional 
committees 
(Remuneration 
Committee and 
Audit 
Committee) 

form of the Board 
of Directors’ 
self-evaluation, 
Board member’s 
self-evaluation 
and peer 
evaluation 

operation, Board 
decision-making quality, 
composition and structure of 
the Board, election and 
continuing education of 
directors and internal controls, 
etc. 

(2) Performance evaluation on 
individual Board members: 
Alignment with the goals and 
mission of the Company, 
knowledge of directors’ 
duties, engagement in the 
Company’s operations, 
management of internal 
relationship and 
communication, 
professionalism and 
continuing education of 
directors, and internal 
controls, etc. 

(3) Performance evaluation 
functional committees: 
Engagement in the Company’s 
operation, knowledge of the 
functional committee’s duties, 
the functional committee’s 
decision-making quality, 
composition and election of 
members of the functional 
committee, and internal 
controls, etc. 

 
(II) Operation of the Audit Committee 

The Audit Committee held 4 (A) meetings in 2023. The attendance of independent 
directors is summarized as follows: 

Job Title 
Name (Note 

1) 

Count of actual 
presence (in 

attendance) B 

Count of 
presence by 

proxy 

Actual presence 
(in attendance) 

rate (%)  
【Ｂ/Ａ】(Notes 

1 and 2) 

Remark 
Elected on 
May 24, 

2023 

Independent 
Director 

Ke 
Yen-Huei 

4 0 100.0 % Reelected 

Independent 
Director 

Lin 
Chin-Rong 

2 0 100.0 % 
Newly 
elected 

Independent 
Director 

Liao 
Shian-Yao 

2 0 100.0 % 
Newly 
elected 

Independent 
Director 

Lin 
Chin-Yuan 

2 0 100.0 % Former term

Independent 
Director 

Li 
Ming-Kuei 

2 0 100.0 % Former term

For the professional qualification and experience of the Audit Committee members, please 
refer to Attachment 1. Information On Directors (Independent Directors) (II) on Page 13-14 for 
details. 
Other disclosures to be noted: 
I. For the Audit Committee meetings that meet any of the following descriptions, state the date, 

session, contents of motions, independent directors' dissenting opinions, qualified opinions 
or important suggestions, Audit Committee meeting resolution, and how the Company has 
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responded to the Audit Committee’s opinions:  
(I) Conditions described in Article 14-5 of the Securities and Exchange Act.   
(II) Other than those described above, any resolutions unapproved by the Audit 

Committee but passed by more than two-thirds of directors:    
1. Highlights of annual work of the Audit Committee in 2023: 

(1) Adoption of or amendments to the internal control system and internal audit 
operations. 

(2) Amendments to the Company’s related regulations: Rules of Procedure for Board 
of Directors Meetings  

(3) Review on annual financial reports, and semi-annual and quarterly financial reports
(4) Appointment of the Information Security Officer and Information Security personnel.
(5) Independence and competence evaluation of CPAs 
(6) Annual earnings distribution 
(7) Renewal of an addition to the facilities granted by banks 
(8) Annual internal audit plan 
(9) Legal compliance 

2. Voting: A total of 4 Audit Committee meetings were held in 2023. Any conditions 
referred to in Article 14-5 of the Securities and Exchange Act met by the Company 
were approved by a majority of the Audit Committee members, and submitted to the 
Board of Directors for resolution. 

II. For independent directors’ avoidance of motions which involves conflict of interest, the 
names of directors, contents of the motions, reasons of the recusal for conflict of interest, 
and participation in voting must be disclosed: None 

III. Communication between independent directors and chief internal auditor/external auditors: 
The internal audit report for the previous month will be provided to each independent 
director for review by the end of each month. The chief internal auditor will attend the 
Audit Committee meeting regularly and also explain the internal audit report at the Board 
of Directors meeting. External auditors will also attend the meeting to explain the audit on 
financial statements or audit results. 

Note 1: Before the end of the year, if an independent director resigns from his/her position, the 
resignation date should be marked in the remarks column. The actual presence rate (%) 
should be calculated based on how often the Audit Committee meeting was convened 
(times) and his/her actual presence (times) during his/her term of office.  

Note 2: If a re-election of independent directors had taken place prior to the close of the 
financial year, old and new independent directors are listed, in which case, the remarks 
column would specify whether they are former, newly elected or re-elected directors, 
and the date of the reelection. The actual presence rate (%) will be calculated based on 
how often the Audit Committee meeting was convened (times) and his/her actual 
presence (attendance) (times) during his/her term of office. 

Note 3: The Company’s Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee both consists of all 
independent directors  
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 d
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 c
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 b
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 b
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 d
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 c
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 b
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 c
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at
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ra
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 c
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 p
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(IV) Composition and operation of Remuneration Committee: 
 

1. Information about the Remuneration Committee members 

Identity 
(Note 1) 

Qualifications 
 

 
 
 

Name 

Professional 
qualification and 

experience 
(Note 2) 

Independence (Note 3) 

Number of other 
public companies in 
which the member 
concurrently serves 
as a remuneration 

committee member
Independent 
Director 
and 
Convener 

Ke Yen-Huei Financial 
accounting and 
business 
sustainability 

Including but not limited to, they or their spouses or 
relatives within a 2nd degree of kinship do not serve as 
directors, supervisors or employees in the Company or 
any of its affiliates; they do not hold the Company's 
shares, but 66,740 shares (0.16%) are held in the name 
of their spouses or relatives within a 2nd degree of 
kinship (or proxy shareholder); they do not serve as 
directors, supervisors, or employees in any entity that 
has certain relationship with the Company; they have 
not provided commercial, legal, financial, accounting 
or other professional services to the Company and its 
affiliates in the most recent two years. 

2 

Independent 
Director 

Lin Ching-Rong Academic 
expertise related 
to the company's 
business 
environment and 
management 
experience in 
university colleges

Including but not limited to, they or their spouses or 
relatives within a 2nd degree of kinship do not serve as 
directors, supervisors or employees in the Company or 
any of its affiliates; they hold the Company's shares 
57,484 shares (0.14%), but are not held in the name of 
their spouses or relatives within a 2nd degree of kinship 
(or proxy shareholder); they do not serve as directors, 
supervisors, or employees in any entity that has certain 
relationship with the Company; they have not provided 
commercial, legal, financial, accounting or other 
professional services to the Company and its affiliates 
in the most recent two years. 

None 

Independent 
Director 

Liao Shian-Yao Organization 
leadership, 
strategic 
management and 
Industry relevant 
experience 

Including but not limited to, they or their spouses or 
relatives within a 2nd degree of kinship do not serve 
as directors, supervisors or employees in the 
Company or any of its affiliates; they, their spouses or 
relatives within a 2nd degree of kinship do not hold 
the Company's shares; they do not serve as directors, 
supervisors, or employees in any entity that has 
certain relationship with the Company; they have not 
provided commercial, legal, financial, accounting or 
other professional services to the Company and its 
affiliates in the most recent two years. 

None 

Note 1: Please specify the related seniority, professional qualification & experience, and independence of each 
Remuneration Committee member in the Table. For members who are also independent directors, references 
have been made to Attachment 1 - Information on Directors and Supervisors (I) on page OO. Please describe 
the party's identity as director, or others (with additional remark for the role of convener, if any). 

Note 2: Professional qualification and experience: Please specify the professional qualification and experience of 
the Remuneration Committee members individually. 

Note 3: Compliance of independence: Please specify the Remuneration Committee members’ compliance of 
independence, including but not limited to, whether they or their spouses or relatives within a 2nd degree of 
kinship serve as directors, supervisors or employees in the Company or any of its affiliates; the number and 
percentage of the Company's shares held in their own names or names of the spouses or relatives within a 
2nd degree of kinship (or proxy shareholder); whether they serve as directors, supervisors, or employees in 
any entity that has certain relationship with the Company (please refer to the subparagraphs 5~8, Paragraph 
1, Article 6 of the Regulations Governing the Appointment and Exercise of Powers by the Remuneration 
Committee of a Company Whose Stock is Listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange or the Taipei Exchange); 
and the amount of remuneration received in the last two years for providing commercial, legal, financial, 
accounting or other professional services to the Company and its affiliates. 
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2.Information about operations of Remuneration Committee 
(1) The Company’s Remuneration Committee consists of 3 members. 
(2) The current members’ term of office: The term of office commences from August 11, 2023 

until May 23, 2026. A total of 3 (A) Remuneration Committee meetings were convened in 
the most recent year. Below are the members’ qualifications and attendance records: 

Job Title Name  
Count of actual 

presence (in 
attendance) (B) 

Count of 
presence by 

proxy 

Actual presence 
ratio (%) 

(B/A) (Note) 

Remark 
Reelected on August 

11, 2023 
Convener Lin Ching-Rong  0 0 0 Newly elected  

Member Ke Yen-Huei 3 0 100% Reelected 

Member Liao Shian-Yao 0 0 0 Newly elected 

Member Li Ming-Kuei 3 0 100% Former term 

Member Lin Chin-Yuan 3 0 100% Former term 

Other disclosures to be noted: 
I. Should the Board rejects or modifies the suggestions from the Remuneration Committee, state the date, 

session, contents of the motions, resolution made by Board meeting and results thereof, and how the 
Company has responded to Remuneration Committee’s opinions (describe the differences and reasons, if 
any, should the Board of Directors approve a solution that was more favorable than the one proposed by 
the Remuneration Committee): None. 

II. Should any resolution(s) by the Remuneration Committee be passed but with member voicing opposing or 
qualified opinions on the record or in writing, please describe the date and session of the meeting, contents 
of the motion, the entire members' opinions, and how their opinions are addressed:  
1. 1st meeting of the Remuneration Committee in 2023 (January 17) 

Present members: Ke Yen-Huei, Lin Chin-Yuan, Li Ming-Kuei 
Motion: (1) Proposal for payment of bonus to the Company’s Chairman and managers in 2022. 
Voting counts: The motion was approved by all of the present members unanimously upon inquiry by 

the chairperson. 
The Company’s handling of the members’ opinions: Proposed to the Board of Directors meeting and 
then approved by all directors present at the meeting. 
Motion: (2) Proposal for amendment to regulations on the remuneration of the directors (including 

independent directors) and managers  
Voting counts: The motion was approved by all of the present members unanimously upon inquiry by 

the chairperson. 
The Company’s handling of the members’ opinions: Proposed to the Board of Directors meeting and 
then approved by all directors present at the meeting. 

2. 2nd meeting of the Remuneration Committee in 2023 (February 24) 
Present members: Ke Yen-Huei, Lin Chin-Yuan, Li Ming-Kuei 
Motion: Proposal for remuneration adjustment to the Chairman and general manager. 
Voting counts: The motion was approved by all of the present members unanimously upon inquiry by 

the chairperson. 
The Company’s handling of the members’ opinions: Proposed to the Board of Directors meeting and 
then approved by all directors present at the meeting. 

3. 3nd meeting of the Remuneration Committee in 2023 (March 29) 
Present members: Ke Yen-Huei, Lin Chin-Yuan, Li Ming-Kuei 
Motion: (1) Proposal for remuneration to employees and directors in 2022. 
Voting counts: The motion was approved by all of the present members unanimously upon inquiry by 

the chairperson. 
The Company’s handling of the members’ opinions: Proposed to the Board of Directors meeting and 
then approved by all directors present at the meeting. 
Motion: (2) Proposal for amendment to regulations on the remuneration of the general directors.  
Voting counts: The motion was approved by all of the present members unanimously upon inquiry by 

the chairperson. 
The Company’s handling of the members’ opinions: Proposed to the Board of Directors meeting and 
then approved by all directors present at the meeting. 

Note 1: Before the end of the year, if a Remuneration Committee member resigns from his/her position, the resignation date should be marked in 
the remarks column. The actual presence rate (%) should be calculated based on how often the Remuneration Committee meeting was 
convened (times) and his/her actual presence (times) during his/her term of office.  

Note 2: If a re-election of Remuneration Committee members had taken place prior to the close of the financial year, old and new Remuneration 
Committee members are listed, in which case, the remarks column would specify whether they are former, newly elected or re-elected 
directors, and the date of the reelection. The actual presence rate (%) will be calculated based on how often the Remuneration Committee 
meeting was convened (times) and his/her actual presence (attendance) (times) during his/her term of office. 
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 p
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 o
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 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

of
 th

e 
di

sa
st

er
 

pr
ev

en
tio

n 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

an
d 

ea
rt

hq
ua

ke
 e
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 f
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 b
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; p
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at
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ra
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 p
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 c
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at
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at
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r 

ot
he

r 
w

as
te

s?
 

V
 

V
 

V
 

pa
ss

ed
 I

S
O

14
00

1 
ce

rt
if

ic
at

io
n 

on
 M

ay
 2

9,
 2

02
2.

 T
he

 
ce

rt
if

ic
at

io
n 

is
 e

ff
ec

tiv
e 

un
til

 M
ay

 2
8,

 2
02

5.
 

(I
I)

 T
he

 C
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l p
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 c
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 c
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at
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ra
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w
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ra
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ra
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ce
" 

pr
og

ra
m

, 
ho

pi
ng

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 w
el

l-
be

in
g 

an
d 

he
lp

 
m

iti
ga

te
 th

e 
lo

w
-b

ir
th

 s
oc

ie
ty

 tr
en

d.
 I

n 
20

23
, a

 to
ta

l o
f 

8 
em

pl
oy

ee
s 

an
d 

8 
ch

ild
re

n 
w

er
e 

be
ne

fi
te

d.
 T

he
 C

om
pa

ny
 

al
so

 a
do

pt
s 

th
e”

 E
m

pl
oy

m
en

t P
ro

m
ot

io
n 

A
llo

w
an

ce
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
Pr

og
ra

m
” 
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 f
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ta
te

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 f

or
 th

e 
in

di
ge

no
us

 p
eo

pl
e 

an
d 

ph
ys

ic
al

ly
 a

nd
 

m
en

ta
lly

 d
is

ab
le

d.
 T

he
 C

om
pa

ny
 a

ls
o 

ad
op

ts
 th

e 
“S

an
lie

n 
R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 f

or
 A

pp
re

nt
ic

es
hi

p 
of

 Y
ou

ng
 T

ec
hn

ol
og

y 
T

al
en

ts
 in

 W
or

kp
la

ce
.”

 I
n 

20
23

, 5
 s

tu
de

nt
s 

of
 N

at
io

na
l 

Ta
iw

an
 U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 o
f 

Sc
ie

nc
e 

an
d 

Te
ch

no
lo

gy
 h

ad
 th

e 
ch

an
ce

 to
 a

tte
nd

 th
e 

ap
pr

en
tic

es
hi

p 
pl

an
 a

nd
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
ho

w
 a

n 
en

te
rp

ri
se

 o
pe

ra
te

s,
 s

o 
as

 to
 p

ra
ct

ic
in

g 
th

ei
r 

le
ar

ni
n g

 r
es

ul
ts

, p
ro

m
ot

e 
th

e 
in

du
st

ry
-a

ca
de

m
ia
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ta
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D
ev

el
op

m
en

t B
es

t P
ra

ct
ic

e 
P

ri
nc

ip
le

s 
fo

r 
T

W
S

E
/T

PE
x-

L
is

te
d 

C
om

pa
ni

es
 

an
d 

ca
us

es
 th

er
eo

f 
Y

es
N

o
S

um
m

ar
y 

(I
II

) 
D

oe
s 

th
e 

C
om

pa
ny

 p
ro

vi
de

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

w
ith

 a
 s

af
e 

an
d 

he
al

th
y 

w
or

k 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t, 
an

d 
pr

ov
id

e 
sa

fe
ty

 
an

d 
he

al
th

 e
du

ca
ti

on
 to

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

re
gu

la
rl

y?
 

(I
V

) 
D

oe
s 

th
e 

C
om

pa
ny

 h
av

e 
an

 e
ff

ec
ti

ve
 c

ar
ee

r 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 

V
 

V

co
op

er
at

io
n,

 p
ro

vi
de

 th
e 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 w
ith

 a
 n

ew
 c

ha
nn

el
 

to
 c

on
ne

ct
 w

ith
 th

e 
w

or
kp

la
ce

 e
ar

lie
r,

 a
nd

 h
el

p 
in

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
’s

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t r
at

e.
 R

es
pe

ct
 in

te
rn

at
io

na
lly

 
re

co
gn

iz
ed

 f
un

da
m

en
ta

l h
um

an
 r

ig
ht

s 
an

d 
cr

ea
te

 a
 d

iv
er

se
 

an
d 

in
cl

us
iv

e 
w

or
kp

la
ce

. T
he

re
 is

 n
o 

di
ff

er
en

tia
l t

re
at

m
en

t 
an

d 
ri

gh
t t

o 
w

or
k 

du
e 

to
 g

en
de

r,
 r

ac
e,

 a
ge

, m
ar

ri
ag

e,
 

po
lit

ic
al

 p
os

iti
on

, r
el

ig
io

us
 b

el
ie

f,
 n

at
io

na
lit

y,
 e

tc
., 

an
d 

“t
he

 
or

ig
in

al
 n

at
iv

e 
pl

an
” 

an
d 

th
e 

pl
an

 f
or

 “
bu

ild
in

g 
ne

st
s 

an
d 

at
tr

ac
tin

g 
ph

oe
ni

xe
s”

 a
re

 b
ei

ng
 im

pl
em

en
te

d 
su

cc
es

si
ve

ly
 

to
 w

el
co

m
e 

in
te

rn
at

io
na

l o
ut

st
an

di
ng

 ta
le

nt
s 

to
 jo

in
 

Sa
nl

ia
n.

 A
 to

ta
l o

f 
4 

fo
re

ig
n 

co
ns

ul
ta

nt
s 

or
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s 
ar

e 
em

pl
oy

ed
 in

 th
e 

gr
ou

p.
 T

he
 C

om
pa

ny
 a

ls
o 

ad
op

ts
 th

e 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 g
ov

er
ni

ng
 “

Sa
nl

ie
n 

V
ita

lit
y 

B
on

us
 P

oi
nt

” 
to

 
en

co
ur

ag
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
to

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
e 

in
 s

oc
ia

l c
ha

ri
ty

 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 o

r s
er

ve
 a

s 
vo

lu
nt

ee
r w

or
ke

rs
. T

he
 C

om
pa

ny
 

w
ou

ld
 o

rg
an

iz
e 

th
e 

ch
ar

ity
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

, s
uc

h 
as

 m
ou

nt
ai

n 
cl

ea
ni

ng
, b

ea
ch

 c
le

an
in

g,
 a

nd
 d

on
at

io
n 

of
 b

lo
od

 a
nd

 
m

at
er

ia
ls

, v
ia

 th
e 

W
or

ke
r W

el
fa

re
 C

om
m

itt
ee

. A
t t

he
 e

nd
 o

f 
M

ar
ch

, 2
02

4 
an

d 
20

23
, a

 to
ta

l o
f 6

7 
pe

rs
on

s 
at

te
nd

ed
 th

e 
ac

tiv
iti

es
. T

he
 C

om
pa

ny
 a

ls
o 

va
lu

es
 th

e 
ge

nd
er

 e
qu

al
ity

. T
he

 
C

om
pa

ny
’s

 fe
m

al
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
ac

co
un

te
d 

fo
r 3

6%
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 
th

e 
fe

m
al

e 
m

an
ag

er
s 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
fo

r 3
5%

, i
n 

20
23

. 
(I

II
) T

he
 C

om
pa

ny
 s

et
s 

up
 A

E
D

 a
t t

he
 o

ff
ic

e 
pr

em
is

es
 a

nd
 

or
ga

ni
ze

s 
fi

rs
t-

ai
d 

ed
uc

at
io

n 
an

d 
tr

ai
ni

ng
, i

n 
or

de
r 

to
 

pr
ov

id
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
w

it
h 

a 
sa

fe
 w

or
ki

ng
 e

nv
ir

on
m

en
t. 

T
he

 
C

om
pa

ny
 a

ls
o 

pr
ov

id
es

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

w
ith

 h
ea

lth
 c

he
ck

up
 

an
d 

he
al

th
 &

 s
af

et
y 

ed
uc

at
io

na
l p

ro
m

ot
io

na
l p

ro
gr

am
s 

w
it

ho
ut

 c
ha

rg
e 

ea
ch

 y
ea

r,
 a

nd
 a

ls
o 

or
ga

ni
ze

s 
th

e 
fi

tn
es

s 
to

 
en

co
ur

ag
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
to

 k
ee

p 
fi

t w
hi

le
 w

or
ki

ng
 to

 c
ar

e 
th

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 p
hy

si
ca

l a
nd

 m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

. 
 T

he
 E

H
S

 
C

om
m

it
te

e 
ha

s 
en

ga
ge

d 
in

 p
ro

m
ot

in
g 

th
e 

ba
la

nc
ed

 w
or

k 
an

d 
li

fe
 p

ro
je

ct
 s

in
ce

 2
01

6,
 a

nd
 e

xe
cu

te
d 

va
ri

ou
s 

em
pl

oy
ee

 c
ar

e 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t c
ou

rs
es

, e
m

pl
oy

ee
 p

re
ss

ur
e 

re
li

ef
 c

ou
rs

es
, f

am
il

y-
fr

ie
nd

ly
 m

ea
su

re
s,

 a
nd

 a
ss

is
ta

nc
e 

m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 s
pe

ci
fi

c 
em

pl
oy

ee
s,

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 

co
ns

tr
uc

t a
 f

ri
en

dl
y 

an
d 

he
al

th
y 

w
or

ki
ng

 e
nv

ir
on

m
en

t. 
N

it
he

r 
oc

cu
pa

ti
on

al
 a

cc
id

en
ts

 n
or

 f
ir

e 
ac

ci
de

nt
s 

ha
ve

 
oc

cu
rr

ed
 to

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

in
 2

02
3.

 T
he

 C
om

pa
ny

 h
as

 
re

ce
iv

ed
 th

e 
E

xe
rc

is
e 

E
nt

er
pr

is
e 

C
er

ti
fi

ca
ti

on
 f

ro
m

 S
po

rt
s 

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n 

fr
om

 2
01

8 
to

 2
02

2 
co

ns
ec

ut
iv

el
y.

 
(I

V
)T

he
 C

om
pa

ny
 e

st
ab

lis
he

s 
th

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

ca
re

er
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

an
d 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 p
la

n 
fo

r 
em

pl
oy

ee
s,

 p
ro

m
ot

es
 th

e 
Sa

nl
ie

n 
A

ca
de

m
y 

pl
an

 a
nd

 in
te

rd
is

ci
pl

in
ar

y 
le

ar
ni

ng
 g

ro
up

 p
ro

je
ct

 

(I
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) 
N

on
e.

 

(I
V
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N
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P
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L
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C
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o
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ar
y 

(V
) 

D
oe

s 
th

e 
C

om
pa

ny
 c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 la

w
s 

an
d 

in
te

rn
at

io
na

l s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 w

ith
 r

es
pe

ct
 to

 c
us

to
m

er
s'

 
he

al
th

, s
af

et
y,

 a
nd

 p
ri

va
cy

, m
ar

ke
tin

g 
an

d 
la

be
lin

g 
in

 
al

l p
ro

du
ct

s 
an

d 
se

rv
ic

es
 o

ff
er

ed
, a

nd
 im

pl
em

en
t 

co
ns

um
er

 o
r 

cu
st

om
er

 in
te

re
st

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

po
lic

ie
s 

an
d 

gr
ie

va
nc

e 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

? 

(V
I)

 
D

oe
s 

th
e 

C
om

pa
ny

 a
do

pt
 a

ny
 s

pe
ci

fi
c 

su
pp

lie
r 

m
an

ag
em

en
t p

ol
ic

y 
de

m
an

di
ng

 th
at

 th
e 

su
pp

lie
rs

 
sh

ou
ld

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
la

te
d 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
 g

ov
er

ni
ng

 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l p

ro
te

ct
io

n,
 o

cc
up

at
io

na
l s

af
et

y 
an

d 
he

al
th

 o
r 

la
bo

rs
’ 

hu
m

an
 r

ig
ht

s,
 a

nd
 h

ow
 th

e 
po

lic
y 

is
 

im
pl

em
en

te
d?

  

V
 

V
 

an
d 

de
pa

rt
m

e n
t’

s 
le

ar
ni

ng
 c

on
ce

pt
, p

ro
vi

de
s 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
w

ith
 d

iv
er

si
fi

ed
 le

ar
ni

ng
 a

nd
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t s

ta
ge

s 
to

 h
el

p 
th

em
 p

la
n 

th
e 

co
m

pe
te

nc
e-

or
ie

nt
at

io
n 

ca
re

er
 m

ap
 a

nd
 

ca
re

er
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t t

o 
pr

ac
tic

e 
th

e 
lif

et
im

e 
le

ar
ni

ng
 ta

rg
et

s.
(V

) 
A

ll 
of

 th
e 

pr
od

uc
ts

 m
an

ag
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

C
om

pa
ny

 s
at

is
fy

 
R

oH
S.

 T
he

 C
om

pa
ny

 a
ls

o 
ha

s 
se

t u
p 

th
e 

T
A

F 
B

io
sa

fe
ty

 
L

ev
el

 2
 L

ab
or

at
or

y 
eq

ui
pp

ed
 w

ith
 th

e 
in

te
rn

at
io

na
l 

re
co

gn
iz

ed
 c

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

sy
st

em
, i

n 
or

de
r 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 

cu
st

om
er

s 
w

ith
 f

ai
r,

 o
bj

ec
tiv

e 
an

d 
in

de
pe

nd
en

t t
hi

rd
-p

ar
ty

 
la

bo
ra

to
ry

 c
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
se

rv
ic

es
. T

he
 C

om
pa

ny
 a

ls
o 

ad
op

ts
 

th
e 

cu
st

om
er

 m
an

ag
em

en
t p

ro
ce

du
re

, a
nd

 a
ls

o 
se

ts
 u

p 
th

e 
st

ak
eh

ol
de

r 
se

ct
io

n 
an

d 
co

nt
ac

t w
in

do
w

 o
n 

its
 w

eb
si

te
 to

 
pr

ov
id

e 
cu

st
om

er
s 

w
ith

 th
e 

ch
an

ne
ls

 to
 r

ai
se

 q
ue

st
io

ns
 a

nd
 

fe
ed

 b
ac

k 
op

in
io

n.
 M

ea
nw

hi
le

, t
he

 C
om

pa
ny

 w
ill

 r
es

po
nd

 
to

, p
ro

ce
ss

, i
m

pr
ov

e 
an

d 
fo

llo
w

 u
p 

th
es

e 
qu

es
tio

ns
 in

 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 th
e 

co
rr

ec
tio

n 
an

d 
pr

ev
en

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
an

d 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

. 
(V

I)
 T

he
 C

om
pa

ny
 a

do
pt

s 
th

e 
su

pp
lie

r 
m

an
ag

em
en

t p
ol

ic
y 

to
 

co
nd

uc
t e

va
lu

at
io

n 
on

 s
up

pl
ie

rs
 p

er
io

di
ca

lly
, p

ay
s 

th
e 

on
-s

ite
 v

is
it 

to
 s

up
pl

ie
rs

’ p
re

m
is

es
 to

 v
er

if
y 

th
e 

su
pp

lie
rs

’ 
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

ca
pa

ci
ty

, q
ua

lit
y 

sy
st

em
 a

nd
 R

&
D

 a
bi

lit
ie

s,
 

de
m

an
ds

 th
at

 s
up

pl
ie

rs
 s

ho
ul

d 
sa

tis
fy

 th
e 

la
bo

r 
st

an
da

rd
s 

an
d 

re
qu

ir
em

en
ts

 f
or

 p
ro

hi
bi

tio
n 

of
 f

or
ce

d 
la

bo
rs

, 
oc

cu
pa

tio
na

l h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 s

af
et

y,
 a

nd
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t l
aw

s 
an

d 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 a
nd

 a
ls

o 
va

lu
e 

th
e 

E
SG

 p
ra

ct
ic

es
 to

 e
nh

an
ce

 th
e 

co
rp

or
at

e 
so

ci
al

 r
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 a

nd
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t, 

in
 o

rd
er

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
C

SR
 a

nd
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

lto
ge

th
er

. 

(V
) 

N
on

e.
 

(V
I)

 N
on

e.
 

V
. 

D
oe

s 
th

e 
C

om
pa

ny
 p
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pa

re
 th

e 
E

S
G

 r
ep

or
t o

r 
an

y 
re

po
rt

 o
f 

no
n-

fi
na

nc
ia

l i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
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se
d 

on
 in

te
rn

at
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na
l r

ep
or

tin
g 

st
an

da
rd

s 
or

 g
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de
lin

es
? 

D
oe

s 
sa

id
 r

ep
or

t h
av

e 
be

en
 a

ss
ur

ed
 

or
 g

ua
ra

nt
ee

d 
by

 a
 th

ir
d 

pa
rt

y 
ce

rt
if

ic
at

io
n 

un
it?

V
N

ot
 y

et
. S

o 
fa

r,
no

 n
on

-f
in

an
ci

al
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ha
s 

be
en

 d
is

cl
os

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
C

om
pa

ny
’s

 w
eb

si
te

. 

V
I.

If
 th

e 
C

om
pa

ny
 h
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 e

st
ab

li
sh

ed
 s

us
ta

in
ab

ili
ty

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith
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S

us
ta

in
ab

le
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t B

es
t P

ra
ct

ic
e 

P
ri

nc
ip

le
s 

fo
r 

T
W

S
E

/T
P

E
x-

L
is

te
d 

C
om

pa
ni

es
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 p
le
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e

de
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ri
be

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
t p

ra
ct

ic
es
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(X) Status of Internal Control System 
1. Declaration for Statement of Internal Control 

 

Sanlien Technology Corp. 
Declaration for Statement of Internal Control 

 

Date: March 15, 2024 
The following declaration was made based on the 2023 self-inspection of the Company’s 

internal control system: 
I. The Company acknowledges and understands that the establishment, implementation and 

maintenance of the internal control system are the responsibility of the Company’s Board 
of Directors and managers, and that such a system has been implemented within the Company. 
The purpose of this system is to provide reasonable assurance over the effectiveness and 
efficiency of business operations (including profitability, performance, security of assets etc), 
reliable, timely and transparent financial reporting, and regulatory compliance. 

II. The internal control system is designed with inherent limitations. No matter how perfect 
the internal control system is, it can only provide a reasonable assurance to the fulfillment 
of the three objectives referred to above. Moreover, the effectiveness of the internal 
control system could be affected by the changes of environment and circumstances. 
However, a self-monitor mechanism is installed in the internal control system of the 
Company. The Company will make corrections once the deficiencies are identified. 

III. The Company has assessed the effectiveness of the internal control system design and 
implementation in accordance with the criteria provided in the “Regulations Governing 
the Establishment of Internal Control Systems by Public Companies” (hereinafter referred 
to as “the Regulations”). The criteria introduced by the Regulations consisted of five 
major elements, each representing a different stage of internal control: 1. Control 
environment; 2. Risk assessment; 3. Control activities; 4. Information and communication; 
and 5. Monitoring activities. Each element further encompasses several sub-elements. 
Please refer to “the Regulations” for details. 

IV. The Company has adopted said criteria to validate the effectiveness of its internal control 
system design and execution thereof. 

V.  Based on the assessment result referred to in the preceding paragraph, the Company 
believes that the design and implementation of the internal control system (including 
monitoring and management on subsidiaries) as of December 31, 2023, including the 
achievement rate of effectiveness and efficiency of operations and reliability, timeliness, 
transparency, and regulatory compliance of reporting, as well as the compliance with 
applicable laws, regulations, and bylaws, are effective and may reasonably ensure the 
achievement of aforementioned goals. 

VI. The Declaration will be the major contents of the annual report and prospectus of the 
Company and to be publicly disclosed. Any illegalities such as misrepresentations or 
concealments in the published contents mentioned above will be considered a breach of 
Articles 20, 32, 171, and 174 of the Securities and Exchange Act and incur legal liability. 

VII. The Declaration was passed unanimously without objection by all 7 directors present at 
the Board meeting dated March 15, 2024. 

Sanlien Technology Corp. 
 
Chairman:  (seal) 

 
General Manager:  (seal) 
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2. The external auditor's report issued by the CPA commissioned to conduct an internal 
control audit, if any:  

  No CPA was commissioned to conduct the internal control audit. 
(XI) Punishments received by the Company and its internal personnel pursuant to laws and 

punitive actions issued by the Company against its internal employees in violation of the 
internal control system provisions from 2023 until March 31, 2024, that may significantly 
impact shareholders' interest or security price, and major deficiency and correction 
status: None. 

(XII) Important resolution of the shareholders’ meeting and Board of Directors meeting from 
2023 until March 31, 2024 
1. Important resolution of the Board of Directors meetings:  
Year Date Important resolution   

2023 
1st 

January 17, 
2023 

1. Approved the new appointment of Company’s general manager.
2. Approved the proposal for payment of bonus to the Company’s 

Chairman and managers in 2022. 
3. Approved the proposal for remuneration to the Company’s Directors 

and managers. 
4. Approved the Companys donation to Sanlien Technology Foundation. 

2023 
2nd 

February 24, 
2023 

1. Approved the proposal for remuneration adjustment to Chairman and 
general manager. 

2. Approved the period and place for the 2023 Annual General Meeting 
to accept the nomination of directors (including independent 
directors). 

3. Approved the list of directors and independent director candidates 
nominated by the board of directors. 

4. Approved the non-competition restrictions for new directors. 
5. Approved the proposal for the Company’s 2023 Annual General 

Meeting.

2023 
3rd 

March 29, 
2023 

1. Approved the proposal for renewal of the Bank’s facilities granted by 
banks. 

2. Approved the Company’s 2022 payment of remuneration to 
employees and directors. 

3. Approved the amendment to regulations on the remuneration of the 
directors 

4. Approved the Company’s 2022 business report, parent company only 
and consolidated financial statements. 

5. Approved the Company’s 2022 earnings distribution plan. 
6. Approved 2022 Declaration for Statement of Internal Control. 
7. Approved the appointment of the Company’s 2023 external auditors, 

and evaluation on independence and competence of the external 
auditors. 

8.Approved the pre-approval, certified accountants, their firms and 
firm-affiliated companies may provide non-assurance services to the 
company and its subsidiaries.  

9. Approved the list of director candidates nominated by shareholders 
for the Company’s 2023 Annual General Meeting.  

10. Approved the non-competition restrictions for new directors 
nominated by the company’s shareholders. 

2023 
4th May 12, 2023 1. Approved the Company’s 2023 Q1 consolidated financial statements.

2023 
5th May 24, 2023 1. Approved the Chairman election. 

2023 
6th 

August 11, 
2023 

1. Approved the Company’s 2023 Q2 consolidated financial statements.
2. Approved the appointment of Company’s member of Remuneration 

Committee. 
3. Approved the amendments to the Company’s “Related party, specific 

company and group enterprise transaction processing operations.” 
4. Approved the new addition of the quota for issuance of commercial 
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Year Date Important resolution   
promissory notes guaranteed by Mega Bill Co., Ltd.  

2023 
7th 

November 
13, 2023 

1. Approved the Company’s 2023 Q3 consolidated financial statements.
2. Approved the Company’s 2024 internal audit plan. 
3. Approved the Company’s 1H 2023 earnings distribution plan. 
4. Approved the amendments to the Company’s relevant regulations. 

(1) Information security inspection operations and internal audit. 
(2) Remuneration Committee Charter and internal audit. 

5. Approved the appointment of Information Security officer and 
Information Securtiy personnel. 

6. Approved the replacement of the Company’s seal custodian.

2024 
1st 

January 30, 
2024 

1. Approved the proposal for 2023 remuneration to the Company’s 
Directors and managers. 

2. Approved the Companys donation to Sanlien Technology Foundation.
3. Approved the proposal for the Company’s 2024 Annual General 

Meeting. 
4. Approved the new appointment of Company’s vice president.

2024 
2nd 

March 15, 
2024 

1. Approved the proposal for renewal of the Bank’s facilities granted by 
banks. 

2. Approved the Company’s 2023 payment of remuneration to 
employees and directors. 

3. Approved the amendments to the Company’s relevant regulations. 
  (1) Rules of Procedure for Board of Directors Meetings 
  (2) Audit Committee Charter  
4. Approved the Company’s 2023 business report, parent company only 

and consolidated financial statements. 
5. Approved the Company’s 2023 earnings distribution plan.  
6. Approved issuance of new shares through capital increase from 

earnings. 
7. Approved 2023 Declaration for Statement of Internal Control. 
8. Approved the appointment of the Company’s 2024 external auditors, 

and evaluation on independence and competence of the external 
auditors. 

9. Approved the proposal for the Company’s 2024 Annual General 
Meeting. (Modification and new matters)

2. Review on important resolutions of shareholders’ meetings and execution in 2023. 

Date Important resolution and execution thereof 

May 24, 2023
Annual 
General 
Meeting 

Acknowledgement matters: 
1. Acknowledged the Company’s 2022 Business Report and Financial 

Statements. 
2. Acknowledged the Company’s 2022 earnings distribution plan. 
  Execution status: Chairman set June 4, 2023 as the ex-dividend in accordance

with the authorization of the board of directors on March 29, 
2023, and completed the allocation of cash dividends, 
NT$116,504,682, on June 28, 2023. 

Election matters: 
1. Re-election of Directors 

Execution status: The change of registration was approved by the Taipei City 
Government on June 9, 2023 and the reelection result is published on the 
Company’s website. 

Discussion matters: 
1. Approved the non-competition restrictions for new directors. 

Execution status: Published on the Company’s website and the MOPS on May 
24, 2023. 

(XIII) The main contents of important resolutions of the Board passed but with directors or 
supervisors voicing opposing opinions on the record or in writing from 2023 until 
March 31, 2024: None. 
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(XIV) Summary of resignation/dismissal of the Company's Chairman, President, accounting 
manager, financial manager chief internal auditor, chief corporate governance officer 
or chief R&D officer from 2023 until March 31, 2024:  

Job Title Name Date of 
onboard Date of discharge Cause of resignation or 

discharge
General 
Manager 

Lin 
Ting-Fung July 1, 2011 January 1, 2023 Retirement 

Vice 
General 
Manager 

Kao 
Chu-Min July 1, 2011 September 1, 

2023 Retirement 

 
V. Information about CPA’s Audit Fees: Unit: NT$ Thousand 

Name of 
CPA Firm 

Name 
of CPA 

Audit 
Period 

Audit fees Non-audit fees Remark 

PwC 
Taiwan 

Gregory 
Kuo  

2023 2,810 1,043 

For the profit-seeking income 
tax return audit and 
certification, preparation of 
E-filing forms, and 
consultation of investment 
plan NT$1,043 thousand. 

Tsai 
Yi-Tai 

(I) If a change of CPA firm results in a lower audit fee for that year compared to the 
previous year: None. 

(II) If the audit fee was reduced by more than 10% from the previous year: None. 
 

VI. Information about replacement of CPAs: In accordance with the internal organizational 
adjustment of PwC Taiwan, with effect from the audit of the financial statements for Q1, 
2023, the certified public accountants would be changed from Tsai Yi-Tai, CPA and Thomas 
Lee, CPA to Gregory Kuo, CPA and Tsai Yi-Tai, CPA.  

VII. Disclosure of any of the Company’s Chairman, General Manager, or managers responsible 
for financial or accounting matters being employed by the auditor’s firm or any of its 
affiliated company in the last year: None. 

VIII. Any transfer of equity interests and pledge of or change in equity interests by a director, 
supervisor, manager, or shareholder with a stake of more than ten percent from 2023 until 
March 31, 2024. 
(I) Changes of the equity of directors, supervisor, managers and major shareholders: 

   Unit: Share 

Job Title (Note 1) Name 

2023 
January 1~March 31, 
2024 

Increase 
(decrease) 
in shares 

held 

Increase 
(decrease) 
in shares 
pledged 

Increase 
(decrease) 
in shares 

held 

Increase 
(decrease) 
in shares 
pledged 

Chairman 
Representative of Rui Hua 
Investment Co., Ltd.: Lin Ta-Chun 

4,000 0 
 

20,000 
  

0
(300,000)

Director 
Representative of Sanlien Educational 
Foundation: Chen Chin-Ying 

70,000 0 0 0

Director 
Representative of Multiple 
Investment Corp.: Chen Shu-Hua 

0 0 0 0

Director 
Chuang Chu-Wei 
(Newly elected on May 24, 2023) 0 0 0 0

Independent 
Director 

Ke Yen-Huei 0 0 0 0

Independent 
Director 

Lin Ching-Rong 
(Newly elected on May 24, 2023) 

0 0 0 0
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   Unit: Share 

Job Title (Note 1) Name 

2023 
January 1~March 31, 
2024 

Increase 
(decrease) 
in shares 

held 

Increase 
(decrease) 
in shares 
pledged 

Increase 
(decrease) 
in shares 

held 

Increase 
(decrease) 
in shares 
pledged 

Independent 
Director 

Liao Shian-Yao 
(Newly elected on May 24, 2023) 

0 0 0 0

General Manager 
Lin Chia-Ching 
(Promoted on January 17, 2023) 

0 0 0 0

Vice President 
Chen Hsiu-Hui 
(Promoted on March 8, 2024) 

0 0 0 0

Assistant Vice 
President 

Peng Chi-Hui 0 0 0 0

Assistant Vice 
President 

Chen Huang-Chi 0 0 0 0

Accounting 
Manager 

Huang Yi-Chen 0 0 
0 

(1,000) 
0

Chief Internal 
Auditor 

Shih Wen-Ling 
0 0 

 

0 

(5,000) 
0

Director 
Hsieh Ming-Yuan 
(Date of dismissal: May 24, 2023) 0 0 - -

Independent 
Director 

Lin Chin-Yuan 
(Date of dismissal: May 24, 2023) 0 0 - -

Independent 
Director 

Li Ming-Kuei 
(Date of dismissal: May 24, 2023) 0 0 - -

General Manager 
Lin Ting-Fung 
(Date of dismissal: January 1, 2023) 

0 0 - -

Vice General 
Manager 

Kao Chu-Min 
(Date of dismissal: September 1, 
2023) 

0

(13,000)
0 - -

Note 1: Shareholders holding more than 1% ownership interest in the Company shall be noted as major 
shareholders and listed separately. 

Note 2: If the counterpart of transfer or pledge of shares is a related party, it shall be specified in the following 
table. 

 
 (II) Information about transfer of equity: 

Name (Note 1) 

Cause of 
transfer of 

equity 
(Note 2) 

Trading 
date 

Trading 
counterpart

Relationship between the 
trading counterpart and the 

Company’s directors, 
supervisors, managers and 

shareholders with more than 
10% shareholding 

Quantity 
of 

shares

Trading 
price

Sanlien 
Educational 
Foundation 

Endowment 
February
1, 2023

Lin Ting-Fung
Within the second degree of 
kinship with Chainman, Lin 

Ta-Chun 
40,000 N/A

Sanlien 
Educational 
Foundation 

Endowment 
June 8, 
2023 

Lin Ta-Chun
Representative of the 

juristic-person shareholder, 
Rui Hua Investment Co., Ltd. 

20,000 N/A

Sanlien 
Educational 
Foundation 

Endowment 
June 8, 
2023 

Lin Ta-Hsun
Within the second degree of 
kinship with Chainman, Lin 

Ta-Chun 
10,000 N/A

Note 1: Names of the trading counterpart and the Company’s directors, supervisors, managers and shareholders 
with more than 10% shareholding 

Note 2: Please specify acquisition or disposal. 
 
(III) Information about changes in the pledge of equity: N/A 
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IX. Disclosure of relationship among the top ten shareholders including related parties, spouses 
and relatives within the second degree of kinship 

March 31, 2024; Unit: Shares 

Name (Note 1) 

Shares held on own 
name 

Shares held by spouse 
and underage children

Total shares held 
in the names of 

others 

If there is relationship, such as related 
party, spouse, or relative within the 

second degree of kinship, among the top 
ten shareholders, please disclose the 

designation or name and relationship. 
(Note 3) 

R
em

ar
k 

Quantity 
of shares

Shareholdi
ng  

Quantity 
of shares

Shareholdi
ng  

Quantity 
of shares

Sharehol
ding 

Name Relationship 

Multiple 
Investment Corp. 

3,230,779 7.76% 0 0% 0 0% None None 

Representative of 
Multiple 
Investment Corp.: 
Chen Shu-Hua 

103,559 0.25% 682,936 1.64% 0 0% None None 

Rui Hua 
Investment Co., 
Ltd. 

2,714,264 6.52% 0 0% 0 0% Lin Ta Chun 

The shareholder is 
representative of Rui 
Hua Investment Co., 

Ltd. 
Representative of 
Rui Hua 
Investment Co., 
Ltd.: Lin Ta-Chun 

810,000 1.95% 0 0% 0 0% None None 

Lucent Source, 
Ltd. 

2,492,464 5.99% 0 0% 0 0% None None 

Representative f 
Lucent Source, 
Ltd.: Huang 
Wen-Tzu 

0 0% 0 0% 0 0% None None 

Chanitex Co., 
Ltd. 

2,079,000 5.00% 0 0% 0 0% None None 

Representative of 
Chanitex Co., 
Ltd.: Chen 
Chun-An 

0 0 817,000 1.96% 0 0%
Chuang 
Chu-Wei 

Spouse 

Dian Jiang Jia 
Investment Co., 
Ltd. 

1,237,700 2.97% 0 0% 0 0%
Chen 

Ching-Song 

The shareholder is 
representative of Dian 
Jiang Jia Investment 

Co., Ltd. 
Representative of 
Dian Jiang Jia 
Investment Co., 
Ltd.: Chen 
Ching-Song 

970,000 2.33% 0 0% 0 0% None None 

Hsieh Ming-Yuan 1,000,000 2.40% 300,000 0.72% 0 0% Hsieh Yi-Ping 
Relative within the 
second degree of 

kinship 

Hsieh Yi-Ping 1,000,000 2.40% 0 0% 0 0%
Hsieh 

Ming-Yuan 

Relative within the 
second degree of 

kinship 

Chen Ching-Song 970,000 2.33% 0 0% 0 0%
Dian Jiang Jia 

Investment 
Co., Ltd. 

The shareholder is 
representative of Dian 
Jiang Jia Investment 

Co., Ltd. 

Chuang Chu-Wei 817,000 1.96% 0 0% 0 0%
Chen 

Chun-An 

The shareholder is 
spouse of representative 

of Chanitex Co., Ltd.

Lin Ta Chun 810,000 1.95% 0 0% 0 0%
Rui Hua 

Investment 
Co., Ltd. 

The shareholder is 
representative of Rui 
Hua Investment Co., 

Ltd. 
Note 1: All top-10 shareholders shall be listed. The name of any juristic-person shareholder and the name of its representative 

are shown separately. 
Note 2: The percentage of shares held under own name, spouse’s name, underage children’s names, and proxy shareholders’ 

names are calculated separately. 
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Note 3: Relations among said shareholders (including juristic-person and natural-person shareholders) shall be disclosed in 
accordance with Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers. 

 
X. Number of shares held by the Company, and the Company's directors, supervisors and managers, 

and the entities directly or indirectly controlled by the Company in a single investee, and 
consolidated shareholding percentage of the above categories 

  December 31, 2023; Unit: Shares 

Investee 
(Note) 

Investment by the 
Company 

Investment by directors, 
supervisors, managers 

and enterprises controlled 
either directly or 
indirectly by the 

Company 

Comprehensive 
investment 

Quantity 
of Shares

Shareholding Quantity of 
Shares

Shareholding Quantity of 
Shares 

Shareholding

Kemitek Industrial Corp. 25,490,748 37.24% 439,435 0.64% 25,930,183 37.88%

SANTEK Technology, Inc. 5,520,420 100.00% 0 0.00% 5,520,420 100.00%

Gee Lien Resource 
Development Corp. 

600,000 60.00% 0 0.00% 600,000 60.00%

DFOST Corp. 2,550,000 51.00% 0 0.00% 2,550,000 51.00%

RIFT Holdings Inc. 950,000 100.00% 0 0.00% 950,000 100.00%

Siap+Micros Holdings S. r. l - 49.00% 0 0.00% - 49.00%

Trisco Technology Corp. 3,640,295 22.53% 2,211,104 13.68% 5,851,399 36.21%

Note: The Company’s investment under equity method. 
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Attachment: Sanlien Educational Foundation’s 2023 work report 

Activity Time Venue Content of Implementation/Activity Introduction 
Budget 

account titles 
Expenditure

Number 
of 

participan
ts or 

beneficiar
ies 

Promote or 
sponsor 
cultural 

exchange and 
educational 

events 

January~ 
December 

Taipei  
Zhongli  
Hsinchu  
Taichung 

【Donations designated by charity projects】 
1. Family with Special Child Support and Research Center Foundation (Chung 

Yuan Christian University)   
2. Bo-Yo Social Welfare Foundation  
3. Taichung Municipal Taichung First Senior High School - Construction of 

smart blackboard teaching equipment 
4. National Taiwan University - Centennial Fund-raising project 
5. Taichung Municipal Taichung Second Senior High School - Social 

activities and curriculum fund 
6. National Chengchi University - Bachelor's degree in sports industry and 

culture 
7. Chinese Taipei Olympians Association - Development of national sports  

Expenditure 
in donation 

$1,250,000  - 

Organize or 
sponsor 
seminars, 
trainings, and 
special 
publications 
for the 
development 
of high-tech 
and 
humanistic 
education, 
and combine 
technology 
and 
knowledge 
management 
to promote 
and enhance 
diverse 
technical and 
vocational 
education. 

January~ 
December 

Taipei 

[Popular science publications for succession of technology and digital 
diffusion] 
1. Sanlien Technology Publications (Quarterly): Issues 127~130, with a total 

print volume of 8,000 copies. 
  - Issue 127 - Structural safety diagnosis development and smart disaster 

prevention monitoring technology 
  - Issue 128 - Bridge health diagnosis and maintenance management 
  - Issue 129 - Application of geodetic monitor detection technology  
  - Issue 130 - World of sensors 
2. Video marketing about the advancement of Sanlien technologies: 471 times 

(YouTube tutorials, digital sharing of e-journal) 
3. Number of views on the digital platform of Sanlien Technology: 803 times 

(Hyweb Technology, Airiti Library) 
4 Number of uses of the popular science e-books platform: 156 times (Hyweb 

Technology, Airiti Library, Yuan-Liou Digital)  
5 Hong-Ya Publication distribution (San Min): 20 copies    
6. Sanlien Technology subscriptions increased by 5 (2 paper/ physical and 3 

for digital) 

Expenses in 
self-organized 
activities 

 $669,606 
 9,455/
person 

Promote or 
sponsor 
cultural 

exchange and 
educational 

events 

January~ 
December 

Taipei 

[Promotion of Arts and Literature. Social Care] 
1. Department of Foreign Languages and Literatures of National Taiwan 

University, 277 persons in 3 graduation performances   
2. Nan Art Space - The Sky of France special exhibition of Chen-Nan Chu's 

creations: 2,069 persons  
3. Wenshan School of Special Education charity performance - Shuiyuan 

Village Theater Troupe on public welfare tour for 150 persons        
4 Charity Garden Party organized by Love and Sunshine Angels for 250 

people                                            

Expenses in 
co-organized 
activities 

 $622,000 
2,746/
person

Promotion or 
sponsorship 

for the 
lifetime 

education 
benefiting 
individual, 

family, 
community 

and enterprise 

January~ 
December 

Taipei 
Yilan  

Taichung 
Kaohsiung 

【Goodhealth Sports for All】 
1. Community fitness class: Shu-Ling Chang - Taipei City Gymnasium, 44 

games with 823 participants 
2. Hiking and mountaineering / Chinese Taipei Alpine Association  
- In January, the IVV Kaohsiung International Citizens Hiking Conference 

(Chinese Taipei Alpine Association) had 1,872 participants. 
- April IML Hiking Conference (Chinese Taipei Alpine Association) had 

5,426 participants 
- October 2023 National Climbing Day (Sports Administration): 5,139 

persons 
- November IML Hiking Conference (Chinese Taipei Alpine Association) 

had about 7,000 participants  
【Technology Transfer Environmental Protection] 
1. Taiwan Climbing and Mountaineering Alliance Seed Program: 15 training 

categories, 29 sessions, 442 participants 
2. Plant trees to protect the earth - Protect water and forests, 120 participants 

Planted 1,000 trees in the Dashou River catchment area of Datong 
Township, Yilan County, is expected to increase the carbon sink by 3,415 
kg. 

3. Taiwan Disaster Prevention Industry Association  
- Disaster prevention and environmental education board game tour for 220 

persons 
- Disaster prevention seminar tour - Disaster Prevention in Reality from the 

Perspective of Science Fiction, 160 persons 

Expenses in 
co-organized 
activities 

 $531,336 
21,202/
person  
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Activity Time Venue Content of Implementation/Activity Introduction 
Budget 

account titles 
Expenditure

Number 
of 

participan
ts or 

beneficiar
ies 

Organize or 
sponsor 

seminars, 
trainings, and 

special 
publications 

for the 
development 
of high-tech 

and 
humanistic 
education, 

and combine 
technology 

and 
knowledge 

management 
to promote 

and enhance 
diverse 

technical and 
vocational 
education. 

January~ 
December 

Taipei 
Taoyuan 
Hsinchu 
Hualien 
Tainan 

Kaohsiung 

【Technology Transfer Promotion of Popular Science] 
1. National Science and Technology Museum 
- Popular science seminar, 56 persons (The geology, resources and disaster 

prevention of sea island - Kaohsiung; artificial satellites and their unknown 
secrets) 

- 3,994 persons for disaster prevention activities (6 sessions of Hello Disaster 
Prevention Education interactive learning experience events; 8 sessions of 
DIY classroom)  

2. High school popular science camp - Exploring the world of biomechanics 
through artistic creation and programmatic experience - Hualien Girls' High 
School (78 students) 

3. Neihu Vocational High School - Sanlien Science and Technology Teaching 
Laboratory: 389 persons 

4. Neihu Vocational High School - Construction of 20 sets of automation 
training course facilities 

5. Popular science project of the basic application of strain gauge and software 
integration, 167 persons in 10 sessions. 

6. 2023 Seminar on Smart Monitoring and Maintenance Management for 
Disaster Prevention on Slopes: 255 persons 

7. Research and application project of SmartRock2 concrete strength tester: 
Donated 120 units 

8. Awards for outstanding land science teachers to go abroad for training 
(Meteorological Application and Development Foundation), 6 persons 

Expenses in 
co-organized 
activities 

$1,711,167 
 4,945/
person 
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Four. Status of Fund Raising 

I. Capital and Outstanding Shares 

(1) Source of Capital Stock 

1. Types of stock 
March 31, 2024 

Types of stock 
Authorized capital 

Remark 
Issued shares Unissued shares Total 

Registered 
common shares 41,608,815 shares 63,391,185 shares 105,000,000 shares Stocks traded on 

TPEx 

2. Formation of capital 
Unit: Share/NT$ 

Year 
/Month 

Issue 
Price 

Authorized Capital Stock Paid-in Capital Stock Remark 

Shares Amount Shares Amount Source of Capital Stock 

Offset by 
any assets
other than 

cash 

Others

February 
1967 

10 20,000 200,000 20,000 200,000 Venture capital None  

July 1969 10 60,000 600,000 60,000 600,000 Capital increase NT$400,000 by cash None  

December 
1970 

10 120,000 1,200,000 120,000 1,200,000 Capital increase NT$600,000 by cash None  

August 
1975 

10 300,000 3,000,000 300,000 3,000,000 Capital increase NT$1,800,000 by cash None  

June 1980 10 600,000 6,000,000 600,000 6,000,000 Capital increase NT$3,000,000 by cash None  

May 1981 10 1,200,000 12,000,000 1,200,000 12,000,000 Capital increase NT$6,000,000 by cash None  

July 1986 10 1,660,000 16,600,000 1,660,000 16,600,000 Capital increase NT$4,600,000 by cash None  

November 
1987 

10 2,080,000 20,800,000 2,080,000 20,800,000 Capital increase NT$4,200,000 by cash None  

June 1990 10 2,980,000 29,800,000 2,980,000 29,800,000
Capital increase NT$4,840,000 by cash 

Capital increase NT$4,160,000 by 
capital reserve  

None  

July 1991 10 3,384,000 33,840,000 3,384,000 33,840,000 Capital increase NT$4,040,000 by cash None  

October 
1991 

10 3,980,000 39,800,000 3,980,000 39,800,000 Capital increase NT$5,960,000 by cash None  

June 1993 10 5,200,000 52,000,000 5,200,000 52,000,000
Capital increase NT$2,250,000 by cash 

Capital increase NT$9,950,000 by 
capital reserve 

None  

May 1996 10 12,000,000 120,000,000 8,000,000 80,000,000

Capital increase NT$12,400,000 by 
cash 

Capital increase NT$15,600,000 by 
earnings 

None  

May 1996 10 15,200,000 152,000,000 15,200,000 152,000,000

Capital increase NT$40,000,000 by 
cash 

Capital increase NT$16,000,000 by 
earnings 

Capital increase NT$16,000,000 by 
capital reserve 

None  

June 1998 10 21,100,000 211,000,000 21,100,000 211,000,000

Capital increase NT$38,000,000 by 
earnings 

Capital increase NT$2,760,000 by 
employee bonus 

Capital increase NT$18,240,000 by 
capital reserve 

None  

June 1999 10 23,800,000 238,000,000 23,800,000 238,000,000

Capital increase NT$15,825,000 by 
earnings 

Capital increase NT$1,680,000 by 
employee bonus 

Capital increase NT$9,495,000 by 
capital reserve 

None Note 1
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Year 
/Month 

Issue 
Price 

Authorized Capital Stock Paid-in Capital Stock Remark 

Shares Amount Shares Amount Source of Capital Stock 

Offset by 
any assets
other than 

cash 

Others

July 2000 10 27,800,000 278,000,000 27,800,000 278,000,000

Capital increase NT$28,560,000 by 
earnings 

Capital increase NT$1,920,000 by 
employee bonus 

Capital increase NT$9,520,000 by 
capital reserve 

None Note 2

July 2001 10 105,000,000 1,050,000,000 33,600,000 336,000,000

Capital increase NT$55,600,000 by 
earnings 

Capital increase NT$2,400,000 by 
employee bonus 

None Note 3

August 
2002 

10 105,000,000 1,050,000,000 37,993,000 379,930,000

Capital increase NT$40,320,000 by 
earnings 

Capital increase NT$3,610,000 by 
employee bonus 

None Note 4

August 
2003 

10 105,000,000 1,050,000,000 38,732,860 387,328,600
Capital increase NT$7,398,600 by 
earnings 

None Note 5

March 2005 10 105,000,000 1,050,000,000 37,812,860 378,128,600
Cancellation of treasury shares 
NT$9,200,000 

None Note 6

July 2005 10 105,000,000 1,050,000,000 37,687,860 376,878,600
Cancellation of treasury shares 
NT$1,250,000 

None Note 7

April 2006 10 105,000,000 1,050,000,000 37,543,820 375,438,200
Cancellation of treasury shares 
NT$1,440,400 

None Note 8

May 2007 10 105,000,000 1,050,000,000 36,834,820 368,348,200
Cancellation of treasury shares 
NT$7,090,000 

None Note 9

August 
2007 

10 105,000,000 1,050,000,000 38,087,342 380,873,420
Corporate bonds conversion 
NT$12,525,220 

None 
Note 
10 

December 
2007 

10 105,000,000 1,050,000,000 38,102,493 381,024,930
Corporate bonds conversion 
NT$151,510 

None 
Note 
11 

November 
2008 

10 105,000,000 1,050,000,000 38,304,513 383,045,130
Corporate bonds conversion 
NT$2,020,200 

None 
Note 
12 

September 
2013 

10 105,000,000 1,050,000,000 41,368,874 413,688,740
Capital increase NT$30,643,610 by 
earnings 

None 
Note 
13 

August 
2015 

10 105,000,000 1,050,000,000 44,264,695 442,646,950
Capital increase NT$28,958,210 by 
earnings 

None 
Note 
14 

October 
2020 

10 105,000,000 1,050,000,000 41,608,815 416,088,150
Capital decrease NT$26,558,800 by 
cash 

None 
Note 

15 

Note 1: Approval letter (88) Tai-Cai-Zheng (1) No. 47744 of Securities and Future Bureau, Ministry of Finance dated May 21, 1999 

Note 2: Approval letter (89) Tai-Cai-Zheng (1) No. 56787 of Securities and Future Bureau, Ministry of Finance dated June 30, 2000 

Note 3: Approval letter (90) Tai-Cai-Zheng (1) No. 142210 of Securities and Future Bureau, Ministry of Finance dated July 2, 2001 

Note 4: Approval letter (91) Tai-Cai-Zheng (1) No. 0910136793 of Securities and Future Bureau, Ministry of Finance dated July 4, 2002 

Note 5: Approval letter (92) Tai-Cai-Zheng (1) No. 0920130441 of Securities and Future Bureau, Ministry of Finance dated July 8, 2003 

Note 6: Approval letter Jin-Guan-Zheng-3-Zi No. 0930160121 of FSC, Executive Yuan dated January 4, 2005 

Note 7: Approval letter Jin-Guan-Zheng-3-Zi No. 0940112124 of FSC, Executive Yuan dated April 8, 2005 

Note 8: Approval letter (91) Tai-Cai-Zheng (3) No. 0910168570 of FSC, Executive Yuan dated December 31, 2002 

Note 9: Approval letter Tai-Cai-Zheng (3) No. 0930125271 of FSC, Executive Yuan dated June 3, 2004 

Note 10: Approval letter Fu-Chan-Yeh-Shang-Zi No. 09689497700 of Taipei City Government dated September 17, 2007 

Note 11: Approval letter Fu-Chan-Yeh-Shang-Zi No. 09780522700 of Taipei City Government dated January 18, 2008 

Note 12: Approval letter Fu-Chan-Yeh-Shang-Zi No. 09791266800 of Taipei City Government dated November 13, 2008 

Note 13: Approval letter Fu-Chan-Yeh-Shang-Zi No. 10287922800 of Taipei City Government dated September 16, 2013 

Note 14: Approval letter Fu-Chan-Yeh-Shang-Zi No. 10487038200 of Taipei City Government dated August 12, 2015 

Note 15: Approval letter Jin-Guan-Zheng-Fa-Zi No. 1090350817 of FSC, Executive Yuan dated August 3, 2020 

3. Information on the self-registration system: None 
 

64



 

(2) Shareholder Structure 
March 31, 2024 

Shareholder 
Structure

Quantity 

Government 
agencies 

Financial 
institutions

Other 
juristic 
persons 

Foreign 
institutions 

and foreigners
Individuals

Treasury 
shares 

Total 

Number of 
Shareholders 0 0 41 19 3,294 0 3,354 

Shares held 0 0 14,958,493 725,022 25,925,300 0 41,608,815

Shareholding
ratio 

0.00% 0.00% 35.95% 1.74% 62.31% 0.00% 100.00%

(3) Shareholding Distribution Status 

1. Common share 

Distribution of equity of common shares 
 

March 31, 2024 

Range of shares 
Number of 

shareholders 
Shares Shareholding ratio 

1 ~ 999 1,268 278,944 0.67%

1,000 ~ 5,000 1,598 2,972,920 7.14%

5,001 ~ 10,000 192 1,424,558 3.42%

10,001 ~ 15,000 69 848,640 2.04%

15,001 ~ 20,000 41 715,712 1.72%

20,001 ~ 30,000 50 1,253,553 3.01%

30,001 ~ 40,000 26 936,290 2.25%

40,001 ~ 50,000 14 631,910 1.52%

50,001 ~ 100,000 40 2,963,513 7.12%

100,001 ~ 200,000 18 2,324,439 5.59%

200,001 ~ 400,000 18 5,045,223 12.13%

400,001 ~ 600,000 6 3,005,068 7.22%

600,001 ~ 800,000 4 2,856,838 6.87%

800,001 ~ 1000,000 5 4,597,000 11.05%

More than 1,000,001 shares 5 11,754,207 28.25%

Total 3,354 41,608,815 100.00%

 

2. Preferred share: No preferred shares are issued by the company. 
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(4) Major shareholders 
March 31, 2024 

No. Name of Major Shareholder Shares Shareholding ratio 

1 Multiple Investment Corp. 3,230,779 7.76% 

2 Rui Hua Investment Co., Ltd. 2,714,264 6.52% 

3 Lucent Source., Ltd. 2,492,464 5.99% 

4 CHANITEX Co, Ltd. 2,079,000 5.00% 

5 Dian Jiang Jia Investment Co., Ltd. 1,237,700 2.97% 

6 Hsieh Ming-Yuan 1,000,000 2.40% 

7 Hsieh Yi-Ping 1,000,000 2.40% 

8 Chen Jing-Song 970,000 2.33% 

9 Chuang Chu-Wei 817,000 1.96% 

10 Lin Ta-Chun 810,000 1.95% 

 

(5) Market price, net worth, earnings, dividends and related information in the most recent two years  

Unit: NT$ 
Year

Item 
2022 2023 Until March 31, 2024 

Market 
price per 

share 

Highest 59.90 57.00 99.40

Lowest 41.60 47.45 53.80

Average 49.48 51.04 65.13

Net worth 
per share 

Before distribution 33.09 39.71 - 

After distribution 30.29 37.11 - 

EPS 

Weighted average 
shares 

41,538,130 shares 41,608,815 shares - 

Basic 
EPS 

Before 
adjustment

4.22 6.52 - 

After 
adjustment

4.22 6.52 - 

Dividends 
per share 

Cash dividend 3.10 2.80 - 

Stock 
dividend 

- - - - 

- - - - 

Accumulated unpaid 
dividend 

- - - 

ROI 
analysis 

P/E ratio (Note 1) 11.73 7.83 - 

P/D ratio (Note 2) 15.96 18.23 - 

Cash dividend yield 
(Note 3) 

6.27% 5.49% - 

Note 1: P/E ratio = Average closing price per share for the year/Earnings per share. 

Note 2: P/D ratio = Average closing price per share for the year/Cash dividend per share. 

Note 3: Cash dividend yield = Cash dividend per share/Average closing price per share for the current year. 
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(6) Dividend policy and implementation thereof 

1. Dividend policy 

The Company’s business is at the stage of business growth. In consideration of the funding needs for 
future important investment plans and the Company’s long-term financial planning, as well as the 
stability of earnings and cash flows, the dividends to shareholders shall be allocated from accumulated 
distributable earnings, which shall be no less than 15% of the distributable earnings for the current 
year. The stock dividends shall be no more than 80% of the dividends distributable to shareholders. 

2. Proposed dividend distribution 

According to the motion for distribution of earnings 2023 passed by the Board of Directors on March 
15, 2024, the Company shall set aside the legal reserve pursuant to laws, and will distribute the cash 
dividend at NT$2.6 per share, stock dividend at NT$0.5 per share, totaling NT$128,987,319. The 
motion of stock dividend shall be submitted to a shareholder meeting for approval. 

(7) Impact on operating performance and EPS by stock dividend distribution proposed at the shareholders 

meeting: 

According to the official letter of Securities and Future Bureau under (89) Tai-Cai-Zheng (1)-Zi No. 

00371 dated February 1, 2000, as the Company never prepared or disclosed the financial forecast 2023, 

it is not necessary for the Company to disclose such information. 

(8) Remuneration to employees and directors 

1. The percentages and ranges of remuneration to employees and directors in the Company’s Articles of 

Incorporation: 
The remuneration to employees shall be no less than 1%, while the remuneration to directors shall be 
no more than 5%. 

2. The basis for estimating the amount of remuneration to employees and directors and for calculating 
the number of shares to be distributed as the remuneration to employees, and the accounting treatment 
of the discrepancy, if any, between the actual distribution and the estimated amount, for the current 
period:  
The discrepancy between the actual distribution approved by the Board of Directors and the estimated 
mount, if any, shall be considered as the change in accounting estimate and stated as the income for 
next year. 

3. The resolution of remuneration distribution approved by the Board of Directors 

The distribution of remuneration approved by the Board of Directors on March 15, 2024:  
(1) The remuneration to be distributed to employees totals NT$12,020,466, and the remuneration to 

directors NT$9,015,350, both of which are indifferent from those recognized for 2023. 

(2) Proposed distribution of remuneration to employees in the form of stock as a percentage to the 

income after tax plus remuneration to employees in the parent company only or separate 

financial statement for the current period: N/A. 

(3) The imputed basic earnings per share after distribution of the remuneration to employees and 

directors are NT$6.52. 

4. The actual distribution of remuneration to employees, directors and supervisors in the previous year 

(including allocated shares, amount and price per share), and the accounting disclosures, treatments 

and explanations if a discrepancy exists: 

The actual remuneration to employees was NT$7,933,009, and that to directors NT$5,949,757, in 

2022. There is no difference from the original intended distribution decided by the Board of Directors. 

  

(9) Repurchase of the Company’s Shares: None.  
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II.  Corporate bond status: None. 

III.  Preferred stock status: None. 

IV.  Overseas depository receipt status: None. 

V.  Employee stock option status: None. 

VI.  Restricted employee stocks status: None.  

VII.  Mergers and acquisitions status: None.  

VIII.  Implementation of capital utilization plan: None. 
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Five. Overview of Operation 

I. Business Activities 

(I) Business Scope 
1. The contents of business conducted by the company and its affiliates 

(1) CB01010 Mechanical Equipment Manufacturing. 
(2) CC01010 Manufacture of Power Generation, Transmission, and Distribution 

Machinery. 
(3) CC01060 Wired Communication Mechanical Equipment Manufacturing. 
(4) CC01080 Electronics Components Manufacturing.  
(5) CC01110 Computer and Peripheral Equipment Manufacturing. 
(6) CE01010 General Instrument Manufacturing. 
(7) E501011 Tap Water Pipelines Contractors. 
(8) E599010 Piping Engineering. 
(9) E601010 Electric Appliance Construction. 
(10) E603010 Cable Installation Engineering. 
(11) E603050 Automatic Control Equipment Engineering. 
(12) E604010 Machinery Installation. 
(13) E605010 Computer Equipment Installation. 
(14) E701010 Telecommunications Engineering. 
(15) E701030 Controlled Telecommunications Radio-Frequency Devices 

Installation Engineering. 
(16) EZ05010 Instrument and Meters Installation Engineering. 
(17) EZ07010 Drilling Engineering. 
(18) EZ99990 Other Engineering. 
(19) F113030 Wholesale of Precision Instruments. 
(20) F113050 Wholesale of Computers and Clerical Machinery Equipment. 
(21) F113070 Wholesale of Telecommunication Apparatus. 
(22) F213030 Retail Sale of Computers and Clerical Machinery Equipment. 
(23) F213040 Retail Sale of Precision Instruments 
(24) F213060 Retail Sale of Telecommunication Apparatus. 
(25) F218010 Retail Sale of Computer Software 
(26) F219010 Retail Sale of Electronic Materials 
(27) F401010 International Trade 
(28) G801010 Warehousing  
(29) H703090 Real Estate Business. 
(30) I301010 Information Software Services. 
(31) IF04010 Non-destructive Testing. 
(32) IZ99990 Other Industrial and Commercial Services. 
(33) J101050 Environmental Testing Services. 
(34) C801010 Basic Chemical Industrial. 
(35) C801030 Precision Chemical Material Manufacturing. 
(36) H701010 Housing and Building Development and Rental. 
(37) ZZ99999 All business activities that are not prohibited or restricted by law, 

except those that are subject to special approval. 
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2. Primary product (service) lines 

Primary  
business lines Primary product Major purpose or function 

Measurement 
engineering 

Measurement 
engineering safety 
monitoring 

1. Public constructions, geotechnical 
engineering and urban civil engineering 
construction safety monitoring 

2. Natural disaster early warning monitoring 
3. Old structural and bridge enforcement and 

monitoring 
4. Pile test: load test and completeness test 
5. Civil engineering monitoring instrument and 

material production, sale and import & 
export 

6. Plant micro-tremor monitoring 

Automated 
equipment 

Industrial automation 
and sensor-related 
equipment 

1. Proface and PATLITE products 
2. Weather sensors 
3. Plant and equipment automation and control
4. Wireless sensor module 
5. Machine electrical control system design 

and development 
6. Power equipment, system and quality 

testing and monitoring management system
7. Electromechanical system technical 

consulting, engineering and system 
integration services

Semiconductor 
equipment and 
material supply and 
technical service 

1. Semiconductor equipment and material 
supply 

2. Technical services including ultrasonic 
cleaning machine procurement, installation, 
commissioning, maintenance & repair and 
education & training of ultrasonic cleaning 
machine 

3. Semiconductor related machine remodeling 
services.

IC and LED packaging 
equipment technical 
services 

1. Technical services including IC, LED and Tr 
packaging equipment OEM die bonding 
machine procurement consulting, 
remodeling, adjustment, maintenance & 
repair, care, and education & training 

2. Used and customized equipment trading 
service

Provision of 
vibration-related 
solutions

Vibration and earthquake early warning 
monitoring equipment sale  

Peripheral 
devices 

Computer cutting 
machine, scanner and 
gas detection 

1. Plane material automated and 
semi-automated processing production and 
testing equipment. 

2. Various air-quality monitoring sensors

Sensor services 

Industrial sensor 
instrument, equipment, 
special sensor 
production and force 
sensor calibration 
services 
 

1. Academic R&D and testing 
2. Industrial product R&D and production 

process quality testing 
3. Automobile (motor) R&D performance test
4. Handcar relevant operation safety and 

maintenance testing 
5. Automated software and hardware system 

planning services 
6. Industrial special-purpose sensor 

development 
7. Electronic product process testing 
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Primary  
business lines Primary product Major purpose or function 

8. Health management sensor manufacturing
9. Plant environment testing 
10. Bridge monitoring system installation, 

testing service and equipment maintenance
11. Structure safety monitoring 

Electronic 
materials 

High-purity quality 
special-purpose 
materials for the 
semiconductor 
industry and 
optoelectronics 
industry 

1. Semiconductor industry special-purpose 
chemical manufacturing and sale 

2. Optoelectronics industry special-purpose 
chemical manufacturing and sale 

3. Agency and sale of ultra-purity reagent for 
analysis  

4. Testing and analysis services of certification 
labs providing special-purpose chemicals

 
3. Business proportion of primary products 

                                                Unit: NT$ thousand 

Item 
Net operating revenue 

2023 
Business proportion

Sales revenue 3,485,830 94.2%
System integration revenue 86,291 2.3%

Engineering revenue 59,479 1.6%
Other operating revenue 70,471 1.9%

Total 3,702,071 100.0%

4. New products/services planned to be developed: 
(1) NB-IoT rain gauge 
(2) NB-IoT IPI datalogger  
(3) PX01 Lite computing unit 
(4) Monitoring instruments and services for old buildings 

(II) Industry Overview 

1. Industry Overview and Development 

A. Measurement engineering 
The impact posed by COVID-19 to the global economy and construction development 
persisted, but the economy was recovering gradually. The continuing volatility in 
the commodity price and international financial market posed different impacts to 
the neighboring countries’ finance and foreign exchange rate. Domestically, the 
economy has been growing remarkably. In order to take advantage of the chance to 
recover economy, the government has accelerated the adjustment on domestic 
economic structures, kept boosting various construction projects, and proactively 
promoted and practiced forward-looking infrastructure development program, 
hoping to drive domestic industrial upgrading and create the opportunity to 
compete with others globally, thereby upgrading the nation’s competitiveness.  
Meanwhile, Sanlien launched its own brand geotechnics products in 2020, which 
adopted the latest NB-IoT wireless transmission VWdot and VWdot 4, and 
continued to launch WBdot in 2021. The existing equipment covers the VW and 
WB sensors most commonly used in the geotechnics monitoring industry. The 
marketing and promotion of such sensors has achieved specific results 
domestically and globally in 2023. Such products also drive the sales of various 
instruments produced by Sanlien. With the launch of TILTdot wireless tiltmeters 
at the end of 2023, Adot analog dataloggers, RAINdot rain gauges, VWdot16 and 
other related NB-IoT products are expected to be launched in 2024, which will 
bring greater development opportunities for the monitoring engineering business. 
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B. Automated equipment 
Taiwan's industrial demand continued to rise in the post-pandemic era of 2023, 
despite destocking, the ongoing US-China trade war, and geopolitical consequences. 
In addition to a surge in semiconductor demand, the machinery and automation 
industry is experiencing significant growth momentum. Remarkable progress in 
de-stocking has been made in the second half of 2023. Overseas sales of 
disaster-prevention-related products were lifted due to the pandemic, and orders in 
most countries have resumed. The shipment of self-made products has grown, and 
internal production operations have been ongoing since the third quarter. For domestic 
demand, some technology and the traditional sectors are gradually recovering, and 
the number of construction projects has also increased significantly. Earthquake 
early warning with structured health inspection systems have increasingly become 
the market standard. 

C. Peripheral devices 
Housing safety is gradually gaining attention. Although the number of orders for 
carbon monoxide gas detectors in 2023 has been postponed, new air quality 
application advancements are still underway, and some air purifier manufacturers 
are continuing their development. The cutting equipment has made breakthroughs 
in applications. In addition to the original livelihood applications, new applications 
in temple-related have been added. The development of new applications, such as 
semiconductors and special processing, has also yielded good results. Car body 
wraps is all the rage. It wasn't always the case that only imported cars had body 
wraps. Domestic cars are also being wrapped now. One factor contributing to the 
growing prevalence of vehicle body wrapping is the evolution of the wrapping 
itself, which occurs concurrently with the escalation of vehicle prices. For instance, 
a cutting machine is only required to remove the coating for the interior of the 
vehicle body, the headlamps, and the windward sides. As a result, cutting machine 
sales were stimulated. 

D. Sensor services 
It was a challenging year for the machine tool and bicycle industries in 2023. In 
the face of fierce competition from Japan for machine tool products of the same 
quality, the domestic traders will be greatly impacted. Bicycle-related companies 
will not be able to destock as expected, which will affect their willingness to invest. 
However, strengthening flexibility and automated manufacturing capabilities, and 
implementing Industry 4.0 and IoT platforms to naturally form a cycle between 
design, production and sales are still key projects that can break through, and they 
are also the key to future market opportunities. 
As the AI server industry matures, the demand for PCB-related testing will increase. 
How to meet customer testing and analysis needs in the testing of software and 
hardware is the focus of this year's business. 

E. Electronic materials 
Inflation in 2023 persisted at elevated levels observed in the latter part of 2022. 
Sluggish demand in the end market, and the supply chain's constant adjustment of 
inventory status, combined with the impact of the Ukraine-Russian War, the 
Israel-Palestine War, and the China-US trade war, have suppressed consumption, 
causing PCs, mobile phones, as well as shipments of other terminal electronic 
products shipments to drop. Gartner, a market research institution, pointed out that 
due to factors such as lower-than-expected demand for smartphones, PCs, and 
servers, coupled with excess inventory, the global semiconductor market sales fell 
by 11.1% to US$533 billion in 2023. As the market for end products such as 
smartphones gradually stabilizes, and the demand for AI applications such as 
high-performance computing increases, the overall semiconductor industry is 
expected to rebound in 2024. Communication and AI will both experience remarkable 
growth in 2024, impacting the consumer market as a whole. Among them, 
generative AI technology will move from theory to commercial application, 
propelling demand not only for infrastructure-related products like cloud computing 
but also for end-user products like personal computers and office equipment. 
Furthermore, 5G commercialization is gradually complete, and many countries 
that have begun to plan 6G communication technology preparing to promote various 
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2. The Correlation of Upstream, Midstream, and Downstream

A. Measurement engineering: 

Upstream     Midstream    Downstream 

 

 

B-1. Industrial Automated Control Equipment and C. Peripheral devices 

Upstream     Midstream    Downstream 

B-2. Precision automated equipment 

Upstream    Midstream    Downstream 

 

 

 

 

Drilling industry 

Petrochemical materials 

Hardware products 

Electric wires and cables

Measuring equipment 

Monitoring 
system 

integration/Elect
romechanical 

industry 

Engineering 

Academic 
research 

institution 

Engineering 
consulting 
company 

Manufacturing 

Manufacturer 

Agent 

Industrial Automated 
Control Equipment  

Distributor/Retailer 

User 

Mold/spare part materials:
1. General steel materials
2. Tool steel electrical
controls 
3. Hardware
4. Laser
5. Oil pressure

R&D, and design 
(Mechatronics) 

Semiconductor 
producer 

Precision automated equipment 
manufacturer 

Brokerage, trade, service and 
maintenance 
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E. Electronic materials: 

Upstream    Midstream    Downstream 

3. Product development trends, and competition status:

A. Measurement engineering 
In order to boost domestic economic development, the government has accelerated 
the implementation of existing engineering projects, and planned and promoted 
forward-looking infrastructure development program. The forward-looking 
infrastructure development program focuses on railway construction and water 
environment construction to speed up various industries’ development domestically. 
The private construction industry is expected to drive various investment projects 
through the various construction projects executed by the government. As a result, 
the public and private construction projects would be developed altogether. 
Considering that the engineering projects are developing oriented toward the 
large-scale and complicated projects. As a result, the ability of planning, management 
and integration required by execution of the projects is improved relatively. The 
Company invests considerable capital in R&D of products and development of 
real-time monitoring software, in order to provide customers with the one-stop 
services. Meanwhile, the Company researches and develops new instruments and 
improves the real-time monitoring programs, in order to enable customers to 
verify the latest structural status in any new construction project or service life 
extension project, and to eliminate any potential hazard in advance to improve the 
early warning timeliness. The Company adopts the project model emphasizing the 
design and construction integration work, focusing on the interface integration 
management between activities, pursuing the professional development of expertise 
or development of integrated engineering services to accumulate competitive 
strengths. 

B. Automated equipment 
The shortage of industrial products eased in the first half of the year. Together 
with the advanced purchase and delivery in the previous year, the problem of late 
deliveries no longer occurred in the second half. The delivery speed increased in 
the second half of the year. Except for the human-machine interfaces, the 
inventory of other purchased products and most of the self-made products nearly 
sold out. 

C. Peripheral devices 
Cutting machines are imported from Japan. Competing manufacturers have replaced 
OEMs or switched to Chinese brand OEMs to reduce costs, but the quality is not 
as good as previous standards, and in addition, Chinese brands cutting machines 
are coming to Taiwan for sale. It creates potential for clients with high-quality 
expectations to acquire customers from other Japanese brands while maintaining 
a distribution relationship with domestic companies, winning the possibility to 

Domestic/ 
foreign 

manufacturer 

Agent 

R&D and testing 
equipment 

Processing and assembly 

Manufacturing 

Academic 
research 

institution 

Domestic/ 
foreign 

manufacturer 

OEM 

Special-purpose chemicals 
supplier 

Semiconductor 
fabrication plant 

Academic research 
unit 

TFT production plant 
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D. Sensor services: 

Upstream      Midstream    Downstream 

swap models at a lower cost and developing new applications. 



D. Sensor services 
In the future, in response to the global Industry 4.0 and IoT development, the 
sensor development will be oriented toward the IC model, so that the IC sensor 
may be equipped with multiple sensing functions and data computing ability helping 
users access the data needed by them rapidly. Upon miniaturization of IC sensors, 
these sensors may be applied to each corner of people’s life to improve living 
quality and make living environment more comfortable, healthy and safe. 
Development of new technology and integration of intelligence accumulated in 
the past life help create new products that change our life style. The smart phone 
is considered as the best representative work in the recent years. It integrates the 
past technologies in PC data computing, navigation system, sensor, network 
communication and database management. Eventually, almost each one has one 
smart phone. The way people get along with each other and shop is changed 
thoroughly. In order to make the sensor services more valuable, the sensor must 
be equipped with wireless data transmission and wireless receiver power supply. 

E. Electronic materials 
Special chemicals for the semi-conductor industry also play an important role in 
the explosive demand for semi-conductors. Currently, many foreign manufacturers 
have set up branches in Taiwan to produce locally or are seeking Taiwanese 
factories to operate as professional OEM models to serve the end customers 
nearby and shorten inventory time. Aligned with the worldwide trend toward 
energy conservation and carbon reduction, the objective is to reduce the carbon 
emissions produced during the cross-border transportation of chemicals while 
satisfying the demand of consumers for independent local supply. 
In order to gain a foothold in the independent semiconductor supply chain, in 
addition to long-term collaboration with partners in the United States and Japan in 
planning assembly lines and mass production until 2030, respond to the high 
demand of special chemicals for advanced manufacturing processes in advance. 
Furthermore, partners in the U.S. and Japan have increased their expenditure of 
equipment. They have even established cutting-edge R&D laboratories in various 
fabs and purchased unique chip testing devices in order to reduce response time 
for the creation of sophisticated production processes and improve development 
competence. 

(III) Technology and R&D Status 

1. R&D expenses invested in the most recent year until March 31, 2024
Unit: NT$ thousand 

Item Until March 31, 
2024 

2023 

R&D expenses 5,331 22,006

Net operating revenue 1,047,813 3,702,071
R&D expenses to net operating 
revenue % 0.5% 0.6%

2. R&D focus and results in 2023
(1) Successfully developed the force balance accelerometer FA135. 
(2) Successfully developed the distributed high-speed synchronization signal datalogger 

DATUM EF410 for application in the bridge safety monitoring system. 
(3) Successfully developed the SS300 earthquake switch for application in the elevator 

emergency shutdowns during earthquakes. 
(4) Successfully developed the TILTdot tiltmeter with NB-IoT transmission function. 
(5) Completes the Sanlien dot cloud service, providing users with real-time monitoring 

of current data, historical curves and reports on the dot cloud. 

(IV) Long-Term/Short-Term Business Development Plan 
1. Short-term business development plan
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(1) Research and develop monitoring and investigation technologies for public 
facilities, and improve the application range of monitoring equipment. 

(2) Improve the cooperation between engineering units and academic research units 
to engage in the academia-industry R&D. 

(3) Integrate, plan and research & develop the monitoring equipment and system 
adapted to domestic/foreign environment, and practice the monitoring technology. 

(4) Continue to develop the earthquake testing instrument and peripheral application 
systems, and develop earthquake early warning and disaster prevention and relief 
markets. 

(5) Develop the cloud monitoring system and continue promoting the same to the 
customers in Malaysia, Vietnam, Thailand and Myanmar. 

(6) Develop the earthquake monitoring and structural health monitoring related markets 
(7) Continue to upgrade the specifications of special-purpose chemical products in 

response to the new-generation process. 
(8) Continue to improve the process and analysis ability to secure the stable quality 

required by the Company voluntarily. 

2. Long-term business development plan 

(1) International strategic alliance, cooperative development and monitoring of related 
research projects, production & manufacturing, and international marketing. 

(2) Strengthen the academia-industry cooperation in various industries. 
(3) Train all-round successor talents in response to the long-term industrial development. 
(4) Continue to develop the special-purpose chemical raw materials needed by the 

semiconductor next generation advanced process. 
(5) Develop new partners proactively to pursue local production of more chemical 

materials in Taiwan, so as to expand the special-purpose chemical market services 
in Taiwan. 

II. Overview of Market and Production & Marketing 

(I) Market analysis 

1. Territories where the primary products are sold 
Unit: NT$ thousand 

Territories 2023 Percentage 

Domestic marketing 3,468,517 93.7% 

Asia-Pacific 201,907 5.4% 

Others (ASEAN and Europe, et al.) 31,647 0.9% 

Total 3,702,071 100.0% 

2. Future demand & supply and growth in the market 
A. Measurement engineering 

Large-scale projects and service life extension projects will drive the development 
of measurement engineering business. Meanwhile, the real-time automated 
monitoring also plays a very important role. Under the reasonable slope land 
development management, with respect to the specific areas to be safeguarded, 
permanent management and monitoring plays a very important role in the 
homeland monitoring from now on. At present, governments worldwide are attaching 
great importance to the disaster prevention industry and IoT smart cities. This 
trend gives Sanlien's NB-IoT monitoring instrument and equipment brand a 
significant niche. The measurement engineering market is expected to grow stably 
in next few years. 

B. Automated equipment   
Following the semiconductor costs declining and the function demand increasing 
year by year, various monitoring equipment models will be introduced successively 
for innovative technologies. For a long term, high CP instruments are expected to 
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keep pace up with the trend. Besides, due to the maturing cloud technology, M2M 
and M2C (Machine to Cloud) will play a third eye to help human beings 
understand the machine and nature, while the vibration testing equipment cost and 
price will decline sharply and the business owners’ willingness to invest capital in 
upgrading of equipment will increase accordingly.  
Due to the mass production of automated equipment and increasing machine units, 
the demand for integration of machine is increasing. The utilization rate, operating 
mode and process & formula management of the machine become the key factors 
to manufacturing management; therefore, the demand thereof is expected to 
develop optimistically.  
In the recent years, the Company has continued to invest capital in the structural 
health monitoring market, and introduce the earthquake early warning, in addition 
to the structural health checkup and solution, to experts and the general public through 
presentations and exhibitions, which are valued and recognized increasingly. The 
market is also expected to grow stably.  

C. Peripheral devices 
Due to special regulatory conditions, the public sector must replace old plotters 
each year. However, it is difficult for the only brand of Sanlien to compete due to 
the interface programs required for system connection. In response to diverse 
market demands, we will continue to develop new applications and seek new 
opportunities as a machine tool developer instead of just a cutting machine maker 
and also the roll to roll cutter will add power-saving motor switches to explore 
new opportunities. The development of gas detectors is aimed at assisting students 
and research institutes. The technology transfer after successful development is 
expected to bring orders from technology companies. 

D. Sensor services 
In response to the Industry 4.0 and IoT development trend, the sensor demand by 
various industries and people’s livelihood is booming increasingly. The Company 
works with customers and suppliers proactively to develop the cheapest and 
convenient services available to users, in line with the demand for the trend 
products and tied in with a management system package integrating the current 
communication technology. Innovative products will be the key to the Company’s 
survival in the future. High quality and streamlining are considered as the minimum 
product requirements. Therefore, new products keep integrating the technologies 
including sensor, communication and information. As a result, the products 
appear to be more humanized and diversified to drive customers’ consumption 
and create more profit. In response to the monitoring trend of disaster prevention 
market, the Company has invested relevant software and hardware resources in 
the structural safety monitoring business such as buildings and bridges. In line 
with the development of national disaster prevention policies, the Company will 
gradually be paid off in the infrastructure and private enterprise sectors in the 
future, and the revenue increase. 

              E. Electronic materials 
In 2024, it is expected that the economy of the semiconductor industry will be 
able to shake off the recession of 2023. Some products' inventory adjustments are 
now nearing completion. It seems unlikely that the economies of these industries 
will rebound significantly in the second half of 2024. It is currently affirmed that 
memory will be the first semiconductor product to recover in 2024, with high 
bandwidth memory (HBM) products experiencing the greatest growth potential 
due to artificial intelligence. 
Looking ahead to 2024, with the explosive increase in demand for AI and 
high-performance computing (HPC), combined with the gradual recovery of 
demand for smart phones, personal computers, automobiles, and other terminals, 
it is expected that the semiconductor sales market will once again grow in 2024, 
ushering in a new wave of expansion. 
The Company entered the advanced process semiconductor market with success 
following a number of years of active deployment. As foundry customers expand 
their factories, the Company not only maintains current production capacity but 
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also responds to the strong demand for advanced processes from foundry customers. 
Since 2022, the company has gradually planned the expansion of production lines. 
The cleanrooms required for testing new high-purity products were completed in 
2023. The new production line will go into full production in 2024, and it is 
expected to drive another wave of revenue growth in the future.   

3. Positive and negative factors for future development, and responsive measures 

A. Measurement engineering 
Positive factors: 
 Integrated management technology. 
 The product development is oriented toward the customer-oriented vertical and 

horizontal integration. 
 Technical and digital applications yield higher added value. 
 Vertical and horizontal strategic alliances. 
 South East Asia, Europe and the USA markets. 
 Introduction the IoT real-time monitoring technology and equipment. 
 One-stop model for R&D and production/software/hardware. 
Negative factors: 
 Mature industry. 
 Intensive low-price competition in the domestic market. 
 M-shaped development in the construction industry. 
 Low threshold for launch into the measurement industry. 
Responsive measures: 

In response to the owner’s strict control over the engineering quality to satisfy the 
quality requirements, the Company will develop and introduce new technologies, 
new materials and new methods that conserve energy and provide comfort, 
expand the utilization of real-time monitoring systems and IoT wireless remote 
testing technology, and construct the monitoring cloud and smart cities, hoping to 
expand and deepen the service range to create added value for the owner. 
Meanwhile, the Company will promote the technology and equipment applied 
domestically to the territories of South East Asia, and make adjustment in a timely 
manner to satisfy the local norms and customs, hoping to expand the scope of 
application and increase the market niche.  

B. Automated equipment 

Positive factors: 
 Complete solutions for monitoring systems. 
 Complete achievements, including the IoT monitoring technology and reservoir 

safety monitoring, comprehensive environmental monitoring, et al. 
 Fair organizational communication and professional training to provide planning 

and service of consistent quality. 
 Provision of real-time local technological service consulting service to solve 

any problems in the application for customers in a timely manner. 
 Instrument development projects and quality. 
 Matured EEW technology, complete SHD solutions, and increasing expanded 

applications.  
 Strong members and teams. 
 Completed marketing resources and increased social media exposure. 
 Close cooperation with the R&D team to provide the complete vertical technology 

integration ability. 
Negative factors: 
 Low repeatability of certain projects makes it difficult to control costs. 
 The short supply of automated equipment poses negative impacts to operating 

revenue. 
 Despite the own brand product lines increasing year by year, the business proportion 

by department still needs to be improved. 
Responsive measures: 
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 Improve the information sharing and management to enhance the project management 
and cost & effect. 

 Strengthen cooperation with the academic circle to improve the theoretical basis. 
 Actively organized large-scale seminars and participated in various exhibitions 

to increase exposure and product visibility. 
 Improve the regional cooperation to shorten the lead time before any product 

hits the market. 
 Provide overseas distributors with testing and enhanced technology services to 

improve the business positivity. 
 Upgrade the product sale to provision of solutions. 
 Strengthen the control over foreign exchange rate. 
 Strengthen the control over inventory of the products requiring long lead time 

for delivery. 

C. Peripheral devices 
Positive factors: 
 Fair brand identity. 
 Wide application range and knowledge. 
 Complete pre-sale and after-sale services. 
Negative factors: 
 Prolonged procedure for customers’ evaluation on procurement of machine. 
 Low-price machine derives low gross profit. 
Responsive measures: 
 Make good use of multimedia to improve the information sharing and increase 

the exposure frequency. 
 Integrated sale and customized value-added services. 
 Lease and equipment experience without compensation. 
 Solve the problem of cash flows for consumables and small-amount installment 

payment via e-commerce platforms. 

D. Sensor services 
Given the rapid global technical development and data processing, the sensor application 
technology has aroused a new industrial revolution that makes multiple life 
products humanized and intelligent, and also integrates the past technologies to 
create new life products. The current R&D testing equipment and measurement 
technology development needs to meet the international testing norms and satisfy 
the future technological development. Meanwhile, in order to respond to the future 
market trend, the Company introduces foreign renowned testing equipment and 
works with domestic suppliers to provide customers with high-tech testing equipment 
and measurement technology services to satisfy customers’ new demand. The 
Company also allies with customers to develop new products jointly to create new 
business opportunities. 

            E. Electronic materials 
Positive factors: 
 As experienced in working with the leading chemical manufacturers based in 

Japan and the USA under the technology transfer agreement, the Company may 
build its good chemical OEM identity. 

 High-quality and stable mass production technology. 
 Analysis and testing ability improving increasingly. 
 Sound quality management system. 
 Fair educational training system. 
 The flat organization is able to respond to the industrial changes rapidly. 
 Satisfy customers’ needs for advanced process quality management need. 
 Expand the establishment of new production lines to satisfy the production 

capacity needed by independent supply of the advanced process materials. 
 The US-China trade restrictions allow Taiwanese factories to increase their 

supply export opportunities to mainland China. 
 Some specific materials must be directly exported and supplied from Taiwan to 

meet the clients' demands for U.S. and Japan expansions, and it is unlikely for 
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us to be replaced by other suppliers in the near future. 
 The latest R&D products related to testing instruments are installed on-site to 

provide customers with the most real-time test results. 
Negative factors: 
 Under unfavorable market conditions, customers no longer give priority to quality, 

and instead speed up the evaluation of low-priced China-Made products. 
 The semiconductor supply chain expansion is getting sound in China. The 

market is limited in Taiwan and the same trade might engage in the price war, 
and intensive competition. 

 End users pose stricter requirements about the product specifications. 
 As no localization factory premises available in Mainland China, it is impossible 

to meet the strong demand in Mainland China for the time being. 
 The severe short of workers in the whole industries in Taiwan affects the 

recruitment of talents with expertise in chemistry. 
 Threats to network security are growing by the day. 

Responsive measures: 

 Upgrade the testing ability and improve product quality to satisfy the stricter 
requirements needed by advanced process. 

 Develop diversified products proactively. 
 Implement the cloud system to manage various data to monitor any abnormality 

in the production and analysis data. 
 Introduced production automation equipment and digital forms to reduce labor 

costs while improving operational efficiency and precision.  
 Expand production lines for advanced production processes, participate in the 

development of materials for advanced production processes, and provide 
customers with advanced technical consultation. 

 Increase the R&D room directly beneath the OEM factory to reduce the development 
time of advanced manufacturing processes. 

 Increase employee awareness of information security, and strengthen the server 
information security network. 

(II) For the important purpose and production process of primary products, please refer to 
Page 70-71 of the annual report. 

(III) Supply of main raw materials 
Name of Raw Material Supplier Status of Supply
Proface touch screen Schneider Fair 

Sensing elements/instruments KYOWA Fair 
Computer plotter and cutting machine GRAPHTEC Fair 

Civil engineering sensing 
elements/instruments 

DGSI/Worldsensing Fair 

Gas sensor FIGARO Fair 
Automated equipment ICPDAS Fair 

Power monitoring equipment KINKEI 
Extended 

delivery period 
Seismograph GURALP/GeoSIG Fair 

Astronomical and sea weather 
monitoring 

SIAP Fair 

Raw materials for developer MLI Fair 
Raw materials for slurry and developer TAMA Fair 
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(V) Production volume/value during the most recent two years 
Unit: As stated below 

 Year 

Production 
volume/value 

Primary product 
(or by department) 

2022 2023 

Production 
capacity 

Production 
volume 

Production 
value 

Production 
capacity 

Production 
volume 

Production value

Developer (including 
cleaning solution) 

25,569 tons 11,742 tons NT$393,780
thousand

23,508 tons 8,746 tons NT$271,382
thousand

Slurry 
21,409 tons 14,160 tons NT$2,241,499

thousand
21,843 tons 12,104 tons NT$2,078,364

thousand

inclinometer casing 31,300 pcs 30,107 pcs
NT$14,741

thousand
31,300 pcs 20,221 pcs

NT$10,997
thousand

Strain gauge 2,000 pcs 1,276 pcs
NT$665

thousand
2,000 pcs 985 pcs 

NT$500
thousand

Water pressure gage 600 pcs 139 pcs
NT$1,230
thousand

600 pcs 346 pcs 
NT$2,582
thousand

VW rebar stress meter 3,500 pcs 2,640 pcs
NT$2,498
thousand

3,500 pcs 2,370 pcs 
NT$2,252
thousand

PX-01 CUBE 
100 units 82 units NT$4,082

thousand
130 units 113 units NT$5,163

thousand

Total 
NT$2,658,495

thousand
NT$2,371,240

thousand
    Note 1: The production capacity refers to the quantity to be produced by the existing production equipment under normal operation, 

after the factors, including lockout and holidays, are taken into account. 
    Note 2: If production of various products is replaceable with each other, the production capacity may be consolidated into the calculation 

and explained in a note. 
    Note 3: Due to the different units and irreplaceability, no data about the total of production capacity and production volume are available. 

(VI) Sale volume/value during the most recent two years 

Quantity Unit: As stated below 

Value Unit: NT$ thousand 
year 

Sale 
volume/ 

value 

Primary  
product 
(or by department) 

2022 2023 

Domestic marketing Export Domestic marketing Export 

Volume Value Volume Value Volume Value Volume Value 

Developer 8,926 tons 522,439 214 tons 18,590 6,268 tons 323,288 34 tons 2,495
Slurry1. 6,585 tons 697,923 - - 5,947 tons 847,382 - - 
Slurry2. 6,226 tons 1,009,556 - - 5,393 tons 917,336 - - 
Copper plating 
solution 

884 tons 796,225 20 tons 1,887 975tons 848,434 17 tons 1,598

System integration 
revenue 

- 74,138 - - - 86,291 - - 

Engineering revenue - 44,501 - - - 59,479 - - 
Upper panel sets 6,922sets 30,201 - - 1,550sets 7,775 - - 
Smart panel 5,030 units 79,306 - - 3,848 units 56,720 - - 
Others - 366,403 - 182,231 - 321,812 - 229,461
Total - 3,620,692 - 202,708 - 3,468,517 - 233,554
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distribution ratio of employees in the most recent two years and up to the date of publication 
of the annual report 

Year 2022 2023 Until March 31, 2024 

Number of 
employees 

Manager 67 73 72

Officer 259 264 261

Total 326 337 333

Average age 39.8 40.6 40.6

Average year of service 9.0 9.5 9.4

Academic 
background 
distribution 

ratio (%) 

PhD degree 0% 0% 0%

Master degree 8% 9% 9%

College 79% 79% 81%

Senior high school 12% 11% 9%

Below senior high 1% 1% 1%

IV. Information about environment protection expenditure

(I) Describing any losses suffered by the Company in 2023 and up to March 31, 2024 due 
to environmental pollution (including any damages and violations of the environmental 
protection laws found in the environmental protection inspection, specifying the 
disposition dates, disposition reference numbers, the articles of law violated, the 
substance of the legal violations, and the contents of the dispositions), and disclosing 
an estimate of possible expenses that could be incurred currently and in the future and 
measures being or to be taken: None. 

(II) Estimated environmental protection expenses in the future: None. 
(III) RoHS information: All of the products managed by the Company comply with the 

RoHS requirements. 

V. Labor-management relations 

(I) List the Company's employee welfare measures, continuing education, training, retirement 
system, and their implementation status, and labor agreements as well as the various 
employee rights protection measures 

1. Employee welfare measures
(1)After the new employees report on for their duty, the Company will enroll them

into the labor insurance and national health insurance programs. The claims for 
benefits of childbirth, injury and sickness, disability, old-age pension or death, et 
al., if any, will be submitted by the Company to the Bureau of Labor Insurance 
for payment in accordance with the Labor Insurance Act and Enforcement Rules 
of Labor Insurance Act promulgated by the government. 

(2)The life insurance for the Company’s employees is maintained based on the 
employees’ job ranks or functions. The insurance program consists of term life 
insurance, accidental injury insurance, accidental medical insurance and occupational 
disaster insurance, et al. 

(3)The overseas travel insurance for the employees sent by the Company to take 
internship or visit clients overseas is maintained based on the job ranks. The 
insurance program consists of death and disability benefits in addition to medical 
treatment expenses, hospitalization for sickness in the overseas travel, and relief 
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expenses in the overseas travel. 
(4) The Company establishes the Employee Welfare Committee in accordance with 

the Employee Welfare Fund Act, in order to contribute the employee welfare 
fund to cover the employee welfare payment. The Company’s Employee Welfare 
Committee shall be responsible for keeping and disbursing the employee welfare 
fund with authorization. The employee welfare fund is contributed in the 
following manners: 
1%~5% of the capital increase at the time of foundation or capital increase. 
0.05%~0.15% of monthly operating revenue. 
0.5% of each employee’s salary withheld on a monthly basis.
20% of the proceeds from sale of scraps. 

(5) Subsidies for wedding, funeral, celebration and other customs: 
Applicable to the employees officially hired by the Company and under an 

official project of the Company only, while the subsidies shall be cut by 50% 
in the case of temporary workers or training students. 

Where more than two employees involved in the same wedding or funeral and 
held satisfying the requirements, gifts or white envelope with money is alternative. 

A pair of flower baskets or wreaths.
The Company enacts the enforcement rules governing the subsidies for weddings, 

childbirth and funerals separately. Please claim them in accordance with the 
rules, if necessary. 

(6) The Company offers the gift money for birthday, Dragon Boat Festival and 
Moon Festival, year-end bonus, and subsidies for the year-end party (spring party). 

(7) The Employee Welfare Committee organizes the company trips, year-end party 
(spring party), fellowship campaign and birthday party. 

(8) Bonus point exchange, social welfare allowance (allowance for wedding and childcare), 
employment promotion allowance, self-health management incentives, and job 
plan incentives. 

(9) The Company has been awarded the exercise enterprise certification by Sports 
Administration consecutively from 2018 to 2022, and received the subsidies 
granted by Sports Administration, Ministry of Education from 2018 to 2021, 
which support the Company’s organization of various sports and recreational 
activities to improve the employees’ physical fitness and care the employees’ 
mental and physical health. 

2. Continuing education and training system
In response to the rapid transformation of industrial technology and in order to
ensure employees’ talent development to achieve the Company’s common goals, education
and training is identified as one of the Company’s HR management priorities. The
Company's training policy claims “adoption of both external and internal training,
and internal training as the first priority.” The Company also establishes various
talent training regulations and related enforcement rules to be followed by all
employees, hoping to improve the employees’ competency and provide them with
the functions that may help them do what they are good at internally, and also
improve the enterprise’s competitiveness and create the overall profit externally.

(1) [Industry Classroom (internal training)] In order to signify the Company’s
professional services and technological level, assist customers to realize the 
products and cut after-sale service costs. In 2023, the Industry Classroom has 
been organized for a total of 253 sessions, attended by 9,148 trainees. 

84



  

(2) [Self-Growth] In order to encourage the employees to practice self-inspiration 
and self-actualization, the voluntary continuing education program is planned. In 
2023, a total of 37 employees have applied for the program. 

(3) [External training] In order to improve the employees’ skills and the Company’s 
competitiveness, the Company encourages all colleagues to attend the training 
programs, seminars and exhibits organized by any professional institution to 
learn any new knowledge and improve their competency. In 2023, a total of 364 
employees have attended the same. 

(4) [Sanlien E-Learning Platform] The teaching program combining multimedia 
serves as a carrier for the organizational learning to record and transfer various 
annual activities and training programs, so as to make the management model 
more flexible and resilient. The Platform has been implemented since 2014. In 
2023, the trainees learning via the Platform have accumulated to be 328,199 
persons. Despite the impact posed by Covid-19, the Company still encourages 
colleagues to learn and grow, and creates a learning atmosphere to help various 
departments upgrade their human resources to improve their competitiveness.  

(5) The Company’s expenditure in employees’ continuing education and training 
programs totaled NT$2,800,700 in 2023. In order to deal with the changeable 
environment, Sanlien management team integrates the Industry Classroom and 
e-learning materials, in order to enable colleagues to control their self-learning 
and cross-industry innovative thoughts and skills from different points of view. 
Meanwhile, the team upholds the spirit pursuing “project-based management 
team, streamlining procedures and job enrichment” and combines it with the 
future learning development trends, namely micro-learning, mobile learning, 
adaptive learning and diverse learning, also linking the point redemption scheme, 
in order to feed the training results back to the workplace. 

(6) Each training program proportion in 2023 is stated as following: 

 

 

Proportion of trainees in 2023

External training Self-growth

Internal 
training

Self-growth

External 
training

Internal 
training 

Proportion of training expenses in 2023 
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(7) Framework Chart of Sanlien Academy 2023: 

 
(8)Board of Directors and key senior management succession planning: Under the 

Company's succession planning, the successors must hold excellent competency 
and personality of supervisor, and also uphold the values and concepts consistent 
with the Company’s. The senior management successors shall elect directors. The 
supervisor’s successor training model consists of the management meeting 
(management associate conference), management function program, work rotation, 
EMBA credit program, personal career development plan, language learning, and 
overseas assignment. The planning is expected to extend for 3~5 years. Trainees 
are expected to integrate their abilities through the diversified channels and 
professional competency training programs and then exercise the abilities, so as to 
training their leadership and ability to make decision. Board of Directors and key 
senior management succession planning: For example, attending NCCU 
Department of Business Administration, in order to train the ability to make 
policies and key successors’ management ability. The management have attended 
the continuing education programs, including Executive MBA Program of 
National Taiwan University of Science and Technology, in the recent years, in 
order to continue strengthening their expertise. Meanwhile, the management are 
also asked to take work rotation or serve as key managers’ functionary substitutes.  

3. Retirement system  
The company complies with the Labor Pension Act. 
(1) For employees subject to the Labor Pension Act, pensions are paid monthly and 

deposited in the individual labor pension account established by the Bureau of 
Labor Insurance. 

(2) An employee may be forced by the Company to retire under any of the following 
circumstances: 
 Where the employee attains the age of sixty-five. 
Where the employee is unable to perform his/ her duties due to physical or 

mental disability. 
The Company may report to the central competent authority to adjust the age 
prescribed in Subparagraph 1 of the preceding paragraph if the specific job entails 
risk, requires substantial physical strength or otherwise of a special nature; 
provided, however, that the age shall not be reduced below fifty-five. 

(3) Employee pension payment standards: 
The years of service for those subject to the Labor Pension Act: 

For the years of service after July 2005, the employees may apply for the pension 
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fund with Bureau of Labor Insurance on a monthly basis or in a lump sum. 
The application for retirement, if any, shall be filed one month ago. The 

retirement may not sustain until the primary handler approves the application. 
(4)Employees who comply with the pension payment standards and regulations of 

the Labor Standards Act (old system) have completed their retirement procedures 
in 2022. The current full-time employees are all under the Labor Pension Act (new 
system), and 6% of the total salary is withheld monthly for employee pension. 

(5)Contributed pension: There is no the old system from 2023, and the amount 
contributed under the new system NT$ 3,424,225 in 2023. 

4. Measures for preserving employees' rights and interests 
In addition to upgrading the employees’ competency development, the Company 
also ensures the workplace quality for employees, hoping to achieve mutual respect, 
work safety, and physical and mental health. In addition to following the Labor 
Standards Act, the Company also establishes its own employees reward and 
punishment regulations, labor safety and health principle, workplace sexual harassment 
prevention policy, and grievance and disciplinary regulations in order to improve the 
workplace environment and practice employees’ safety requirements, and deepen the 
basic value about work ethics. 

(1) Employees reward & punishment regulations 
Subject to the level of contribution, the reward is divided into commendation, 

minor merit and major merit. 
Subject to the severity of the misconduct, the punishment is divided into 

reprimand, minor demerit, major demerit, and termination of employment if 
the case is considered material. 

(2) Working environment and employees’ personal safety protection policy 
In order to take care of the whole labors’ work safety, prevent any occupational 

disaster and protect current employees’ health, the Company establishes the 
labor safety and health principle consisting of 14 chapters and 42 clauses, 
which is approved by Taipei City Labor Inspection Office, Department of 
Labor, Taipei City Government via the approval letter under Bei-Shih-Lao-Jian-1-Zi 
No. 09230521200. 

In order to prevent any disaster, or in order that, upon occurrence of any 
disaster, the Company may immediately mobilize personnel to relieve the 
disaster to mitigate the hazard caused by the disaster and restore the normal 
operation throughout the Company promptly, the Company establishes the 
emergency preparedness and response policy management procedure. 

According to the “Labor Safety and Health Principle”, the Company performs 
the health checkup for new employees, and periodic health checkups (general 
health inspection and the health checkup for managers), and advise the 
checkup results to colleagues via physicians. 

According to the Occupational Safety and Health Education and Training 
Rules, an employer shall have any new employee, or current employees before 
they change their jobs, undergo the safety and health education and training 
needed by the relevant jobs, and take refresher training periodically. For the 
in-service labor safety and health education and training for the general 
workers, EHS Committee will arrange the promotional campaign at the weekly 
meeting for once per six months to promote the occupational safety and health 
related laws and practices to the whole workers. Meanwhile, it would produce 
the digital promotional film to provide the workers with continuing education 
channels. 

The Company establishes the Company’s “Workplace” Sexual Harassment 
Prevention Measures, and Grievance and Disciplinary Regulations in accordance 
with Paragraph 1 of Article 13 of the Act of Gender Equality in Employment, 
and “Regulations for Establishing Measures of Prevention, Correction, 
Complaint and Punishment of Sexual Harassment at Workplace” promulgated 
by Ministry of Labor. 
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The Company cooperated with the office building conducts the fire protection 
inspection once a year, and has the EHS Committee perform the audit on 
environmental safety and health in each office area (four times a year), in order 
to keep the workplace safe. Meanwhile, in order to maintain the air quality and 
environmental sanitation in the office, the Company would also clean the 
air-conditioning equipment, disinfect environmental and landscape office 
periodically, and install additional sensor faucets, soap dispensers and hand 
dryers successively. Meanwhile, the optimized environmental facilities, such 
as disinfecting alcohol, are always available to take care of all colleagues’ 
safety and health. 

The Company retains professional trainers to teach colleagues the knowledge 
about first aid and prevention of disaster, and also installs AED devices to 
protect all colleagues’ safety and health. 

5. Labor agreements 

The Company prepares the “Non-Disclosure Agreement for Employees,” “Work 
Instructions,” “Ethical Management Best-Practice Principles,” “Procedures for Ethical 
Management and Guidelines for Conduct” and “Code of Ethics” as the criteria to be 
followed by the Company’s managers and employees: 

(1) The employees shall execute the “Non-Disclosure Agreement for Employees” 
primarily stating that: 
Any confidential information of the Company or its affiliates, or a third party 

known or accessed by an employee shall not be disclosed to any person 
outside the Company or used for any business other than the Company’s 
without the Company’s prior written consent. The non-disclosure obligation 
shall survive expiration or termination of the employment period. 

The employee shall not disclose another person’s confidential information to 
the Company, or use, or urge another person to use, the confidential information 
in the Company’s business affairs. 

The employee shall comply with any laws and regulations promulgated by 
governments, or the clauses related to protection of intellectual property rights 
or data referred to in the contracts between the Company or its affiliates. 

The employee agrees to transfer any rights in the ideas, inventions and design 
conceived by him/her personally (hereinafter referred to as the “creation”) to 
the Company or its designee. 

(2) The “Work Instructions” defined by the Company refers to:  
Value Customers and Respect Co-Workers 
Active Reform and Pursuit of Efficiency 
Training of Talents and Deep-Rooted 
Work Planning and Feeling of Competence  

(3) The Company establishes the “Ethical Management Best-Practice Principles” and 
“Procedures for Ethical Management and Guidelines for Conduct”. In order to 
practice the enterprise culture of ethical management and robust development, and 
build the fair business operations, the Company establishes the “Ethical Management 
Best-Practice Principles.” In order to uphold the engagement in business activities 
based on the principles of fairness, honest, integrity and transparency, practice the 
ethical management policy and prevent unethical conduct proactively, the 
Company establishes the related procedures and guidelines of conduct to specify 
the instructions to the Company when performing their duties. 

(4) The Company establishes the “Code of Ethics” to guide the Company’s managers 
to act in line with the ethical standards. The managers shall perform their obligations 
honestly and in line with the professional standards, including resolution of the 
factual or apparent conflict of interest between them and their job duties in a fair 
manner. 

(II) Any loss sustained as a result of labor disputes in 2023 and up to March 31, 2024 
(including the violations of Labor Standards Act found in the labor inspection result)  
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1. Labor dispute 
The Company’s labor-management relations are considered fair. Since the Company 
was founded, the Company has never suffered any labor dispute which affects the 
Company’s operation. Meanwhile, for the time being, there is no potential factor 
likely to cause any labor dispute. Therefore, the Company is expected to have few 
chances to suffer any losses caused by labor dispute in the future.  

2. Incurred losses: None. 

3. Losses expected to be incurred 

The Company upholds the philosophy claiming that employees are the lifeline of an 
enterprise’s management, and the enterprise shall be responsible for taking care of 
employees, and creating the rational management model allowing to share profit 
with employees. The Company is used to caring employee benefits and workloads, 
and applying the two-way communication channel when assigning job duties to the 
employees. Therefore, the management-labor relations are considered amicable 
throughout the Company. The Company has never suffered any labor dispute or 
losses derived from such dispute in the past years. 

4. Responsive measures 

(1) Strengthen the employee benefit policy superior than those provided under the 
labor laws and regulations. 

(2) Add the channels for communication and negotiation between the management 
and labors. 

(3) Strengthen the ethical concept between the management and labors. 

VI. Information Security Management 

(I) Information security risk management framework 

In order to strengthen the information security risk management, the Company 
establishes the Information Security Committee. Upon occurrence of any information 
security problem, such as the cyber attack, the problem shall be reported to the chief 
information officer immediately. The loss or theft of loss, if any, shall be reported to 
General manager. Upon occurrence of any information security incident, the 
information security personnel need to resolve it promptly and report the resolution. 
The information security incident shall be recorded in the weekly work report once it 
is resolved, as the proof or for future reference. 

(II) Information security policy 

In order to prevent computer viruses or hackers from intruding into the Company’s 
website and database to ruin the normal data transmission, the Company establishes 
the computer internal control cycle - information security inspection operating procedures. 
All of the Company’s intranet and Internet information systems require that the 
various server systems shall be equipped with anti-virus software and updated 
periodically, in order to prevent intrusion of computer virus and install the firewall 
system to stop hackers from ruining the computer systems’ operations, thereby 
ensuring the confidentiality, completeness and availability of data. The Company also 
promotes various information security duties periodically, builds the colleagues’ 
“concept about practicing of information security,” and improves the enterprise’s 
overall information security protection. The Company’s employees are not allowed to 
send the confidential information related to the Company to outsiders via email 
without the responsible supervisor’s authorization. Any important software and files 
shall be encrypted in transmission to prevent them from being plagiarized. Meanwhile, 
the Company appoints competent information personnel to check periodically whether 
the software used by the employees is duly authorized, and includes the information 
security check into the annual audit plan. The audit execution result shall be reported 
to the Board of Directors to provide a full picture of the compliance with rules and 
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completeness of the report as prepared. Meanwhile, the personnel shall verify, follow 
up and review the correction of any findings and defects proposed in the check. The 
Company also evaluates its information equipment and assets periodically, and 
establishes the information equipment availability and disaster recovery plan to ensure 
the Company’s business continuity. 

(III) Specific management programs, and resources invested in the information security 
management 

The General Manager, who serves the convener of the Cyber Security Committee, and 
the Information Manager is in charge of the information and communication problems, 
divided into the cyber security policy enactment team, cyber security promotion 
training team, cyber security internal audit team, and cyber security incident management 
team. The Committee consists of 7 members with the expertise in information, HR 
and internal audit. At the management decision-making meeting in 2023, the 
Company has discussed the overall cyber security policy implementation status for 
five times. As a result, it was found that no cyber security incident harmful to the 
Committee has taken place in the current year. The Company has promoted and 
trained the whole employees’ “email security” and “social engineering prevention” 
once and conducted the random check on backup files in the recovery drill for 8 times, 
in order to ensure the availability of recovered backup data. Meanwhile, the Company 
has also performed 2 social engineering drills to strengthen the employees’ immediate 
response to and vigilance toward the information security risk. 

The Company adopts the backup system with respect to the operating assets, such as 
servers and network equipment, in order to prevent the damage to equipment from 
causing any interruption in the business information. Meanwhile, with respect to the 
information security, such as APT, DDos, ransomware, social engineering attack and 
theft of data, et al., the Company has adopted the following strategies: the information 
personnel need to keep concerning the information security issues and participating 
the information security conference to verify the environmental changes. The 
Company improves the colleagues’ awareness toward information security risk and 
self-protection through periodic information security promotional activities and social 
engineering drills, hoping to help the colleagues prevent and stop the basic information 
security attacks. 

The cyber security management is an important issue which cannot be ignored within 
an enterprise. For the information asset risk analysis, the Company selects a total of 
15 representative information assets within seven categories from the information 
asset inventory for the risk analysis to analyze the individual risk level, proposes the 
scope of risks over the information assets, and quantifies the importance, vulnerability 
and potential attacks of the information assets, and impact posed by the attacks, and 
eventually determines the information asset risk levels. The estimated value at risk 
(VaR) in the risk analysis consists of five parts, namely A~G, and the elements stated 
as following: 
(1) Importance of information assets: Confidentiality (A), Completeness(B), Availability 

(C) and Dependence (D). 
(2) Threat to information assets: Explain the source and possibility of the threat (E). 
(3) Investigation on vulnerability of the information assets: Explain the weakness and 

level (F). 
(4) Impact: Severity of the impact posed by the threat (G). 
(5) Estimated VaR and risk level: The VaR is determined based on the product of said 

four items, and then the risk level is defined based on the product value subject to 
the risk level criteria (represented by H). The formula is Value＝MAX{A，B，C} 
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× D × E × F × G. Estimated VaR and the risk level criteria. 
Estimated 
VaR 

0~ 
99 

100~
199 

200~
299 

300~
399 

400~
499 

500~
599 

600~ 
699 

700~ 
799 

More 
than 
800 

Risk level 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 
The risk analysis is conducted against a total of 15 information assets, including 
MRP server, ERP server, network router, firewall, UPS, NAS host, program 
design information personnel, control room personnel, system administrator, 
personal computer, printer, copy machine, air conditioner in the control room, 
Windows software, database and anti-virus software. As a result, there is one 
information assets with the risk level 4, three with the risk level 3, and three with 
the risk level 2, and the others with the risk level 1. The estimated VaR and risk 
levels are quantified based on the risk level quantification criteria to range from 1 
to 9, averagely divided into the low risk (1~3), middle risk (4~6) and high risk 
(7~9). Based on the principles for continued improvement, the following 
correction policies are proposed with respect to the information assets with VaR 4 
or more. Please see the following table. 
Suggestions and correction policies for the assets with the risk level 4 or more 

Name of 
Asset 

Category 
of Asset 

Threat Vulnerability 
Value 

of 
Asst

Level 
of 

Threat

Level of 
Vulnerability 

Risk 
level 

Suggestions 
and correction 

polices 

ERP 
server

Hardware 
Asset 

Interruption 
of service

Exceeded the 
customized 
service life

2 3 3 7 
Replacement 

of server 

Email 
security 
gateway

System 
Asset 

Virus Threat
Halt 

production
2 3 2 6 

Renewal of 
antivirus for 

email 
protection 

(IV) Describing any losses suffered by the Company in the most recent fiscal year and up to 
the date of publication of the annual report due to any material cyber security incident, 
an estimate of possible losses that could be suffered and measures being or to be taken. 
If a reasonable estimate cannot be made, an explanation of the facts of why it cannot 
be made shall be provided: None.  

VII. Important contracts: Any supply/distribution contracts, technical cooperation contracts, engineering/ 
construction contracts, long-term loan contracts, and other contracts that would affect 
shareholders' equity, which are still effective by March 31, 2024. 

Nature of Contract
Contracting 

Parties 
Term  Main Contents 

Restrictive 
Clauses

Engineering Contract 
(N15A0006) 

Continental 
Engineering 
Corp. 

From March 16, 2015, and 
scheduled to be completed 

in December 2025. 

Taipei Metropolitan Area 
MRT Wanda Line CQ842 
Contract 

Overdue 
fine 

Engineering Contract 
(N17A0009) 

Radium Life 
Tech Co., Ltd. 

From June 13, 2017, and 
scheduled to be completed 

in June 2028. 

Long-term real-time 
monitoring at the operation 
and maintenance stage of 
Fuzhou Affordable 
Housing Project 

Overdue 
fine 

Long-term/mid-term 
loan contract 

Bank of Taiwan
October 2022 ~  
October 2024 

To enrich the working 
capital 

None

Long-term/mid-term 
loan contract 

First Commercial 
Bank 

November 2023 ~ 
November 2025 

To enrich the working 
capital 

None

Long-term/mid-term 
loan contract 

Far Eastern 
International 
Bank 

February 2024 ~  
February 2026 

To enrich the working 
capital 

None
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Six. Overview of Finance 

I. Condensed Balance Sheet and Consolidated Income Statement for the latest five years 

(I) Condensed Balance Sheet and Consolidated Income Statement 

1. Condensed Balance Sheet- Consolidated  

Unit: NT$ thousand 
      Year

 
Item 

Financial information for the latest 5 (Note 1) 

2020 2021 2022 2022 2023 

Current assets 1,778,907 1,971,592 2,366,760 3,012,271 2,911,187
Property, plant and 
equipment 

984,197 932,033 943,447 1,006,761 1,017,290

Intangible assets 19,121 18,626 19,081 26,164 27,392
Other assets 689,726 829,296 875,975 822,577 1,162,186
Total assets 3,471,951 3,751,547 4,205,263 4,867,773 5,118,055

Current 
liabilities 

Before 
distribution

1,234,909 1,275,484 1,728,207 2,178,646 2,260,654

After 
distribution

1,435,093 1,469,893 1,989,468 2,425,395 Note 2

Non-current liabilities 77,422 183,783 71,558 260,930 112,962

Total 
liabilities 

Before 
distribution

1,312,331 1,459,267 1,799,765 2,439,576 2,373,616

After 
distribution

1,512,515 1,653,676 2,061,026 2,686,325 Note 2

Equity attributable to 
owners of the parent 

1,253,418 1,338,206 1,413,018 1,376,794 1,652,080

  Capital stock 442,646 416,088 416,088 416,088 416,088
  Capital surplus 43,339 43,285 43,311 44,195 44,189

Retained 
earnings 

Before 
distribution

608,364 617,298 714,047 748,494 933,892

After 
distribution

497,702 535,199 585,060 631,989 Note 2

  Other equity 178,281 284,395 252,092 168,017 257,911
  Treasury shares (19,212) (22,860) (12,520) - -
Non-controlling equity 906,202 954,074 992,480 1,051,403 1,092,359

Total equity 

Before 
distribution

2,159,620 2,292,280 2,405,498 2,428,197 2,744,439

After 
distribution

1,959,436 2,097,871 2,144,237 2,181,448 Note 2

Note 1: The above financial information has been audited and certified by the CPAs. 
Note 2: By the publication date of the annual report, it has not been approved by the shareholders' 

meeting. 
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2. Condensed Consolidated Income Statement- Consolidated 

Unit: NT$ thousand 
      Year

 
 

Item 

Financial information for the latest 5 (Note 1) 

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 

Operating revenue 2,497,934 2,753,038 3,120,815 3,823,400 3,702,071
Gross profit 430,756 461,606 545,229 650,284 551,291
Operating profit 176,872 219,077 292,591 323,241 244,985
Non-operating income 
and expense 

170,368 103,165 139,203 136,976 
241,280

Net profit before tax 347,240 322,242 431,794 460,217 486,265
Current net income 
from continuing 
operations 

300,746 259,839 359,778 372,015 422,512

Loss from discontinued 
operations 

- - - - 
-

Current net income 300,746 259,839 359,778 372,015 422,512
Current other 
comprehensive income 
(net after tax) 

(1,341) 102,700 (29,797) (77,284) 120,935

Current total 
comprehensive income 

299,405 362,539 329,981 294,731 
543,447

Net income attributable 
to owners of the parent 

190,399 121,661 191,051 175,259 271,466

Net income attributable 
to non-controlling 
interests 

110,347 138,178 168,727 196,756 
151,046

Total comprehensive 
income attributable to 
owners of the parent 

189,259 225,833 162,234 93,747 391,802

Total comprehensive 
income attributable to 
non-controlling 
interests 

110,146 136,706 167,747 200,984 151,645

EPS (NT$) 4.32 2.85 4.65 4.22 6.52

Note 1: The above financial information has been audited and certified by the CPAs. 
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3. Condensed Balance Sheet - Parent Company Only 

Unit: NT$ thousand 
      Year 

 
 
Item 

Financial information for the latest 5 (Note 1) 

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 

Current assets 443,126 411,369 436,738 512,179 525,729
Property, plant and 
equipment 

182,952 180,131 178,075 176,000 174,272

Intangible assets 416 966 677 601 188
Other assets 1,131,661 1,295,560 1,390,853 1,400,278 1,698,530
Total assets 1,758,155 1,888,026 2,006,343 2,089,058 2,398,719

Current 
liabilities 

Before 
distribution 

438,304 375,745 534,375 467,574 654,866

After 
distribution 

548,966 457,844 663,362 584,079 763,049

Non-current liabilities 66,433 174,075 58,950 244,690 91,773

Total 
liabilities 

Before 
distribution 

504,737 549,820 593,325 712,264 746,639

After 
distribution 

615,399 631,919 722,312 828,769 854,822

  Capital stock 442,646 416,088 416,088 416,088 416,088
  Capital surplus 43,339 43,285 43,311 44,195 44,189

Retained 
earnings 

Before 
distribution 

608,364 617,298 714,047 748,494 933,892

After 
distribution 

497,702 535,199 585,060 631,989 825,709

  Other equity 178,281 284,395 252,092 168,017 257,911
  Treasury shares (19,212) (22,860) (12,520) - -

Total equity 

Before 
distribution 

1,253,418 1,338,206 1,413,018 1,376,794 1,652,080

After 
distribution 

1,142,756 1,256,107 1,284,031 1,260,289 1,543,897

Note 1:  The above financial information has been audited and certified by the CPAs. 

Note 2:  The amount resolved by the Board of Directors on March 15, 2024, haven’t been discussed by 
shareholders’ meeting. 
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4. Condensed Consolidated Income Statement - Parent Company Only 

Unit: NT$ thousand 
      Year 

 
 

Item 

Financial information for the latest 5 (Note 1) 

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 

Operating revenue 471,212 382,002 417,295 463,451 440,831
Gross profit 147,901 131,405 141,130 158,416 171,019
Operating profit(loss) (4,650) (8,694) 16,194 (16,609) 14,280
Non-operating income 
and expenses  

197,828 139,389 184,558 201,051 265,196

Net profit before tax 193,178 130,695 200,752 184,442 279,476
Current net income from 
continuing operations 

190,399 121,661 191,051 175,259 271,466

Loss from discontinued 
operations 

- - - - -

Net profit  190,399 121,661 191,051 175,259 271,466
Current other 
comprehensive income 

(1,140) 104,172 (28,817) (81,512) 120,336

Current total 
comprehensive income 

189,259 225,833 162,234 93,747 391,802

EPS (NT$) 4.32 2.85 4.65 4.22 6.52

Note 1: The above financial information has been audited and certified by the CPAs. 

(II) Name of CPA and the audit opinion on the consolidated company’s financial statements the 
latest five years 

 

Year Name of CPA Firm Name of CPA Audit opinion 

2019 UHY L&C Company Chang Chun-Teh/Lin Lai-Fu 
Unmodified opinion with an 
explanatory paragraph 

2020 UHY L&C Company Chang Chun-Teh/Lin Lai-Fu 
Unmodified opinion with an 
explanatory paragraph 

2021 PwC Taiwan Thomas Lee/Tsai Yi-Tai 
Unmodified opinion with an 
explanatory paragraph 

2022 PwC Taiwan Tsai Yi-Tai/Thomas Lee 
Unmodified opinion with an 
explanatory paragraph 

2023 PwC Taiwan Gregory Kuo/ Tsai Yi-Tai 
Unmodified opinion with an 
explanatory paragraph 
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II. Financial analysis for the latest five years  

(I) Financial Analysis 

1. Analysis on consolidated major financial ratios 
             Year (Note 1)

Analysis items (Note 2) 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 

Financial 
structure 

(%) 

Liability to asset ratio 37.8 38.9 42.8 50.1 46.4
Ratio of long-term capital 
to property, plant and 
equipment 

227.3 265.7 262.6 267.1 280.9

Solvency 
(%) 

Current ratio 144.1 154.6 137.0 138.3 128.8
Quick ratio 95.9 101.3 90.8 81.4 80.5
Interest coverage ratio 5,482.7 5,642.5 6,840.5 4,549.6 2,597.3

Operational 
ability 

Receivables turnover 
(times) 

3.8 4.1 4.0 4.1 3.9

Average cash collection 
days 

97 89 91 88 93

Inventory turnover (times) 4.8 4.8 4.0 3.3 2.8
Payable turnover (times) 2.9 2.9 3.1 3.4 2.4
Average inventory 
turnover days 

77 77 91 112 130

Property, plant and 
equipment (times) 

2.5 2.9 3.3 3.9 3.7

Total assets turnover 
(times) 

0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7

Profitability 

ROA (%) 9.1 7.3 9.2 8.4 8.8
ROE (%) 14.3 11.7 15.3 15.4 16.3

To 
paid-in 
capital 

ratio (%) 

Operating income 40.0 52.7 70.3 77.7 58.9

Income before 
tax 

78.5 77.5 103.8 110.6 116.9

Net profit margin (%) 12.0 9.4 11.5 9.7 11.4
EPS (NT$) (retroactively) 4.32 2.85 4.65 4.22 6.52

Cash flow 

Cash flow ratio (%) 32.6 27.2 15.9 12.9 22.5

Cash flow adequacy ratio 
(%) 

78.5 77.7 75.1 61.4 72.3

Cash reinvestment ratio 
(%) 

10.5 5.9 3.3 0.6 7.8

Leverage 
Operating leverage 3.4 2.9 2.6 2.6 3.3
Financial leverage 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1

The reasons for changes in each financial ratio during the most recent two years by more than 20%: 
1. Solvency: Interest expense increased significantly, resulting in lower times interest earned. 
2. Operational capability: Due to the significant increase in revenue in the same period last year, the amount of 

purchases was higher, and the lower beginning accounts payable, the accounts payable turnover ratio was higher 
than that of the current period, and the average inventory turnover days were lower than that of the current period. 

3. Profitability and leverage: Due to the slight decrease in revenue and operating income in the current period compared 
with the same period last year, the ratio of operating income to paid-in capital decreased and the operating leverage 
increased. 

4. Cash flow: In response to revenue growth and materials shortages around the world in the same period last year, the 
amount of inventory increased, resulting in a decrease in net cash inflow from operating activities, and the lower 
cash flow ratio and cash reinvestment ratio in the current period. 

Generally speaking, the consolidated company’s major financial ratios are considered stable. 
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Note 1: The above financial information has been audited and certified by the CPAs. 
Note 2: The formula about the analysis items are stated as following: 

1. Financial structure 
(1) Ratio of liabilities to assets=Total liabilities/Total Assets. 
(2) Ratio of long-term capital to property, plant and equipment=(Total equity+Non-current 

liabilities)/Property, plant and equipment, net. 
2. Solvency 

(1) Current ratio=Current assets/Current liabilities. 
(2) Quick ratio=(Current assets-Inventory-Prepaid expenses)/Current liabilities. 
(3) Interest coverage ratio=Income tax and income before interest expenses/Current interest 

expenses. 

3. Operational ability 
(1) Receivables (including accounts receivable and notes receivable resulting from operation) 

turnover = net sales / balance of average accounts receivable (including accounts receivable 
and notes receivable resulting from operation). 

(2) Average cash collection days=365/Receivables turnover. 
(3) Inventory turnover=Cost of goods sold/Average inventory. 
(4) Payables (including accounts payable and notes payable resulting from operation) turnover = 

net sales / balance of average accounts payable (including accounts payable and notes payable 
resulting from operation). 

(5) Average inventory turnover days=365/Inventory turnover. 
(6) Property, plant and equipment turnover=net sales/average property, plant and equipment, net. 
(7) Total assets turnover=Net sales/Average total assets. 

4. Profitability 
(1) ROA=[Profit or loss after tax+interest expenses × (1- tax rate)]/average total assets. 
(2) ROE=Profit or loss after tax/Average total equity. 
(3) Net profit margin=Profit or loss after tax/Net sales. 
(4) Earnings per share=(Income attributable to owners of the parent-Preferred stock 

dividend)/Weighted average number of outstanding shares. 

5. Cash flow 
(1) Cash flow ratio =Net cash flow from operating activities/Current liabilities. 
(2) Net cash flow adequacy ratio=Net cash flow from operating activities during the most recent 

five years/(Capital expenses+Increase in inventory+Cash dividends) during the most recent 
five years. 

(3) Cash reinvestment ratio=(Net cash flow from operating activities-Cash dividends)/(Gross 
property, plant and equipment+Long-term investments+Other non-current assets+working 
capital). 

6. Leverage: 
(1) Operating leverage=(Net operating revenues-Variable operating costs and expenses)/Operating 

profit 
(2) Financial leverage=Operating profit/(Operating profit-Interest expenses). 
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2. Analysis on major financial ratios - Parent Company Only
Year (Note 1)

Analysis items 
(Note 4) 

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 

Financial 
structure 

(%) 

Liability to asset ratio 28.7 29.1 29.6 34.1 31.1
Ratio of long-term capital to 
property, plant and equipment 

721.4 839.6 826.6 921.3 1,000.7

Solvency 
(%) 

Current ratio 101.1 109.5 81.7 109.5 80.3
Quick ratio 78.4 78.1 59.8 81.1 54.3
Interest coverage ratio 3,746.0 2,720.2 3,870.9 2,726.6 2,490.7

Operational 
ability 

Receivables turnover (times) 4.9 4.7 4.9 4.9 5.2
Average cash collection days 75 78 74 74 70
Inventory turnover (times) 5.1 3.2 3.1 3.4 2.4
Payable turnover (times) 6.0 4.9 5.6 7.4 5.1
Average inventory turnover 
days 

72 114 117 109 150

Property, plant and equipment 
(times) 

2.5 2.1 2.3 2.6 2.5

Total assets turnover (times) 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

Profitability 

ROA (%) 11.5 6.9 10.0 8.8 12.5
ROE (%) 15.8 9.4 13.9 12.6 17.9
To paid-in 

capital 
ratio (%) 

Operating income (1.1) (2.1) 3.9 (4.0) 3.4

Income before tax 43.6 31.4 48.3 44.3 67.2

Net profit margin (%) 40.4 31.9 45.8 37.8 61.6
EPS (NT$) (retroactively) 4.32 2.85 4.65 4.22 6.52

Cash flow 
Cash flow ratio (%) 33.8 20.2 23.1 30.8 21.9
Cash flow adequacy ratio (%) 78.8 68.5 72.2 77.9 81.0
Cash reinvestment ratio (%) 5.2 Note 2 2.6 0.9 1.4

Leverage 
Operating leverage Note 3 Note 3 8.5 Note 3 11.3
Financial leverage Note 3 Note 3 1.5 Note 3 5.5

The reasons for changes in each financial ratio during the most recent two years by more than 20%: 
1. Solvency: Current ratio and quick ratio decreased as long-term borrowings due within one year were reclassified to

current liabilities. 
2. Operational capability: In response to the sales in Q1 2024, the ending inventory of prepared materials was higher,

resulting in the decrease in payable turnover and inventory turnover, and an increase in the average inventory turnover. 
3. Profitability: Due to the higher evaluation amount of financial assets in the current period, the net income of the current

period increased. In addition, due to the participation in government subsidies in the same period last year, the operating 
expenses were higher and the operating profits were lower, resulting in an increase in the ratios related to profitability in
the current period. 

4. Cash flow: Due to that the long-term borrowings due within one year were reclassified as current liabilities, the cash
flow ratio decreased. In addition, as the amount of cash dividends paid this year was lower, the cash reinvestment ratio 
increased. 

5.Leverage: Stable profit for the period, so the ratios related to leverage were positive.
Generally speaking, the Company’s major financial ratios are considered stable. 

Note 1: The above financial information has been audited and certified by the CPAs. 

Note 2: The net cash flow from operating activities was excluded, as it was a negative figure. 

Note 3: The operating income was excluded, as it was a negative figure. 

Note 4: The formula about the analysis items is stated as following:  
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1. Financial structure 
(1) Ratio of liabilities to assets=Total liabilities/Total Assets. 
(2) Ratio of long-term capital to property, plant and equipment = (Total equity+Non-current 

liabilities)/Property, plant and equipment, net. 

2. Solvency 
(1) Current ratio=Current assets/Current liabilities. 
(2) Quick ratio=(Current assets-Inventory-Prepaid expenses)/Current liabilities. 
(3) Interest coverage ratio=Income tax and income before interest expenses/Current interest 

expenses. 

3. Operational ability 
(1) Receivables (including accounts receivable and notes receivable resulting from operation) 

turnover = net sales / balance of average accounts receivable (including accounts receivable 
and notes receivable resulting from operation). 

(2) Average cash collection days=365/Receivables turnover. 
(3) Inventory turnover=Cost of goods sold/Average inventory. 
(4) Payables (including accounts payable and notes payable resulting from operation) turnover = 

net sales / balance of average accounts payable (including accounts payable and notes payable 
resulting from operation). 

(5) Average inventory turnover days=365/Inventory turnover. 
(6) Property, plant and equipment turnover=net sales/average property, plant and equipment, net. 
(7) Total assets turnover=Net sales/Average total assets. 
 

4. Profitability 
(1) ROA=[Profit or loss after tax+interest expenses × (1- tax rate)]/average total assets. 
(2) ROE=Profit or loss after tax/Average total equity. 
(3) Net profit margin=Profit or loss after tax/Net sales. 
(4) Earnings per share=(Income attributable to owners of the parent-Preferred stock dividend)/ 

Weighted average number of outstanding shares. 

5. Cash flow 
(1) Cash flow ratio =Net cash flow from operating activities/Current liabilities. 
(2) Net cash flow adequacy ratio=Net cash flow from operating activities during the most recent 

five years/(Capital expenses+Increase in inventory+Cash dividends) during the most recent 
five years. 

(3) Cash reinvestment ratio=(Net cash flow from operating activities-Cash dividends)/(Gross 
property, plant and equipment+Long-term investments+Other non-current assets+working 
capital). 

6. Leverage: 
(1) Operating leverage=(Net operating revenues-Variable operating costs and expenses)/ Operating 

profit 
(2) Financial leverage=Operating profit/(Operating profit-Interest expenses). 

(II) Other information material to understanding of the Company's financial position, financial performance, 
cash flow and changes: None. 
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III. Audit Committee’s Review Report

Audit Committee’s Review Report 

The Board of Directors prepared the Company's 2023 business report, financial statements 

(including parent company only and consolidated financial statements) and proposal for 

distribution of earnings. Among them, the financial statements (including parent 

company only and consolidated financial statements) have been audited by Gregory Kuo, 

CPA and Tsai Yi-Tai, CPA of PwC Taiwan and an audit report with unmodified opinion 

with an explanatory paragraph has been issued. Said business report, financial statements 

and proposal for distribution of earnings have been reviewed by the Audit Committee 

and found to have no inconsistencies.  This report is issued in accordance with the 

Securities and Exchange Act and Company Act.   

Please review it accordingly. 

To: 

2024 Annual General Meeting of Sanlien Technology Corp. 

Convener of Audit Committee: Ke Yen-Huei 

March 15 2024 
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Representation Letter

In connection with the Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated Enterprises of Sanlien 
Technology Corp. (the “Consolidated FS of the Affiliates”), we represent to you that, the entities required 
to be included in the Consolidated FS of the Affiliates as of and for the year ended December 31, 2023 
in accordance with the “Criteria Governing Preparation of Affiliation Reports, Consolidated Business 
Reports and Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated Enterprises” are the same as those required 
to be included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of Sanlien Technology Corp. and its subsidiaries 
(the “Consolidated FS of the Group”) in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standard 10. 
Additionally, the information required to be disclosed in the Consolidated FS of Affiliates is disclosed 
in the Consolidated FS of the Group. Consequently, Sanlien Technology Corp. does not prepare a 
separate set of Consolidated FS of Affiliates.

Very truly yours,
Sanlien Technology Corp.
By

Ta-Chun Lin, Chairman
March 15, 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TRANSLATED FROM CHINESE

PWCR23000554

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Sanlien Technology Corp.

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Sanlien Technology 
Corp. and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) as at December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the related 
consolidated statements of comprehensive income, of changes in equity and of cash flows 
for the years then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a 
summary of material accounting policies.

In our opinion, based on our audits and the reports of other auditors (refer to the Other 
matter section), the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all 
material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 
2023 and 2022, and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows 
for the years then ended in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of 
Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and the International Financial Reporting 
Standards, International Accounting Standards, IFRIC Interpretations, and SIC 
Interpretations that came into effect as endorsed by the Financial Supervisory Commission.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Financial 
Statement Audit and Attestation Engagements of Certified Public Accountants and 
Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China. Our responsibilities under those standards 
are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated 
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance 
with the Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified Public Accountant of the Republic of 
China, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
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requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the Group’s 2023 consolidated financial statements.  These 
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements 
as a whole and, in forming our opinion thereon, we do not provide a separate opinion on 
these matters.

Key audit matters for the Group’s 2023 consolidated financial statements are stated as 
follows:

Fair value measurement of investments in unlisted stocks without active market

Description

Refer to Notes 4(7) and (8) for accounting policies on unlisted stocks (accounted as 
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and financial assets at fair value through 
other comprehensive income), Note 5 for uncertainty of accounting estimates and 
assumptions in relation to the fair value of unlisted stocks, Notes 6(2) and (6) for details 
of unlisted stocks.  As at December 31, 2023, the Group’s investments in unlisted stocks 
without active market amounted to NT$651,358 thousand.

The unlisted stocks held by the Group has no quoted price in an active market. 
Management estimates the fair value of unlisted stocks using a valuation method, which 
involves various assumptions and significant unobservable inputs, including the valuation 
method, identifying similar and comparable companies, price-to-book ratio and discount 
on liquidity.  As the determination of models and parameters used in the estimation of 
fair value is subject to significant judgement and high uncertainty, we considered the fair 
value measurement of unlisted stocks as a key audit matter.
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How our audit addressed the matter

We performed the following audit procedures in respect of the above key audit matter:

1. Obtained an understanding of the Group’s valuation procedures on the unlisted stocks.

2. Assessed whether the valuation methods used by management were reasonable.

3. Assessed the degree of comparability between the comparable companies identified
by management and the investee being valued in the market approach.

4. Sampled and verified the price-to-book ratio and the input value of discount on
liquidity used in the valuation method and reviewed related information and
supporting documents.

Cut-off of sales revenue from distribution warehouse

Description

Refer to Note 4(26) for accounting policy on revenue recognition.

The sales revenue of the Group mainly arises from sales revenue from distribution 
warehouse, constituting 47.98% of operating revenue for the year.  The sales revenue 
from distribution warehouse is recognised when the goods are dispatched from the 
warehouses (transfer of control).  The Group’s revenue recognition is based on inventory 
movement records of warehouses supported by the reports from warehouse custodians or 
bill of lading reports recorded on its customers’ network platform. As the frequency and 
timing of reports provided by warehouse custodians vary and the process of revenue 
recognition involves manual procedures, these factors may lead to improper timing of 
revenue recognition.  Thus, we considered the cut-off of sales revenue from distribution 
warehouse as a key audit matter.
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How our audit addressed the matter

We performed the following audit procedures in respect of the above key audit matter:

1. Obtained an understanding and evaluated the Group’s procedures for sales revenue
from distribution warehouse and internal controls over revenue recognition.

2. Assessed the internal controls over warehouse distribution (checked the terms of
transaction timing of control transfer and dates of supporting documents and
ascertained whether the transactions were recognised in the proper period) to confirm
the accuracy of the timing of revenue recognition.

3. Performed cut-off procedures on sales revenue from distribution warehouses
recognised during a specific period before and after the period-end, including
verifying delivery schedule of distribution warehouses and ensuring the movements
of inventories contained in the statements and cost of goods sold recognised in the
proper period.

4. Performed physical inventory count observation with significant hub custodians and
agreed the results to accounting records.

Other matter - Reference to the audits of other auditors
We did not audit the financial statements of certain subsidiaries and investments accounted 
for under the equity method which were audited by other auditors. Therefore, our opinion 
expressed herein, insofar as it relates to the amounts included in respect of these 
subsidiaries and associates, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors. Total assets 
of these subsidiaries and the balances of these investments accounted for under the equity 
method amounted to NT$367,055 thousand and NT$221,742 thousand, constituting 
7.17% and 4.56% of the consolidated total assets as at December 31, 2023 and 2022, 
respectively, and operating revenue amounted to NT$4,455 thousand, constituting 0.12% 
of the consolidated total operating revenue for the year then ended December 31, 2023. If 
the recognized comprehensive income of investments accounted for under the equity 
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method is material, please consider disclosing the impact of total comprehensive income. 
For example: The comprehensive income recognized from these associates and joint 
ventures accounted for under the equity method amounted to NT$54,033 thousand and 
NT$51,810 thousand, constituting 9.94% and 17.58% of the consolidated total 
comprehensive income for the years then ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, 
respectively.

Other matter - Parent company only financial reports
We have audited and expressed an unmodified opinion with an explanatory paragraph on 
the parent company only financial statements of Sanlien Technology Corp. as at and for 
the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the 
financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated 
financial statements in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of 
Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and the International Financial Reporting 
Standards, International Accounting Standards, IFRIC Interpretations, and SIC 
Interpretations that came into effect as endorsed by the Financial Supervisory Commission, 
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the 
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for 
assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so.
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Those charged with governance, including audit committee, are responsible for 
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial 
statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the 
Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, 
we exercise professional judgment and professional skepticism throughout the audit. We 
also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.
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2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements.

We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We 
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with 
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 

matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements 

of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.  We describe these matters 

in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the 

matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not 

be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 

reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Gregory Kuo Tsai, Yi-Tai

For and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers, Taiwan
March 15, 2024

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
The accompanying financial statements are not intended to present the financial position and results of 
operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in countries and 
jurisdictions other than the Republic of China. The standards, procedures and practices in the Republic of 
China governing the audit of such financial statements may differ from those generally accepted in countries 
and jurisdictions other than the Republic of China. Accordingly, the accompanying financial statements and 
independent auditors’ report are not intended for use by those who are not informed about the accounting 
principles or auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China, and their applications in 
practice.
As the financial statements are the responsibility of the management, PricewaterhouseCoopers cannot 
accept any liability for the use of, or reliance on, the English translation or for any errors or 
misunderstandings that may derive from the translation.
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SANLIEN TECHNOLOGY CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Assets Notes AMOUNT % AMOUNT %

Current assets
1100 Cash and cash equivalents 6(1)
1110 Financial assets at fair value through 

profit or loss - current
6(2)

1136 Financial assets at amortised cost - 
current

6(3) and 8

1140 Contract assets - current 6(21)
1150 Notes receivable, net 6(4)
1160 Notes receivable due from related 

parties
6(4) and 7

1170 Accounts receivable, net 6(4)
1180 Accounts receivable due from related 

parties
6(4) and 7

1197 Finance lease receivable, net 6(10)
1200 Other receivables
1210 Other receivables due - related parties 7
130X Inventories 6(5)
1410 Prepayments 7
11XX Total current assets

Non-current assets
1510 Financial assets at fair value through 

profit or loss - non-current
6(2)

1517 Financial assets at fair value through 
other comprehensive income - non-
current

6(6) and 7

1535 Financial assets at amortised cost - 
non-current

6(3) and 8

1550 Investments accounted for using 
equity method

6(7) and 7

1600 Property, plant and equipment 6(8), 7 and 8
1755 Right-of-use assets 6(9)
1780 Intangible assets 6(11)
1840 Deferred tax assets 6(28)
1920 Guarantee deposits paid
1930 Long-term notes and accounts 

receivable
194D Long-term finance lease receivable, 

net
6(10)

1960 Prepayments for investments
1980 Other non-current financial assets
1990 Other non-current assets
15XX Total non-current assets
1XXX Total assets

(Continued)
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SANLIEN TECHNOLOGY CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Liabilities and Equity Notes AMOUNT % AMOUNT %

Current liabilities
2100 Short-term borrowings 6(12)
2110 Short-term notes and bills payable 6(12)
2130 Contract liabilities - current 6(21) and 7
2150 Notes payable
2170 Accounts payable
2180 Accounts payable - related parties 7
2200 Other payables 6(13)
2220 Other payables - related parties 7
2230 Current income tax liabilities
2280 Liabilities - current 7
2320 Long-term liabilities, current portion 6(14)
2399 Other current liabilities
21XX Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
2540 Long-term borrowings 6(14)
2570 Deferred tax liabilities 6(28)
2580 Lease liabilities non-current 7
2640 Net defined benefit liability, non-

current
6(15)

2645 Guarantee deposits received
25XX Total non-current liabilities
2XXX Total liabilities

Equity
Share capital 6(17)

3110 Common stock
Capital surplus 6(18)

3200 Capital surplus
Retained earnings 6(19)

3310 Legal reserve
3350 Unappropriated retained earnings

Other equity interest 6(20)
3400 Other equity interest
31XX Equity attributable to owners of 

parent
36XX Non-controlling interests 4(3)
3XXX Total equity

Significant contingent liabilities and 
unrecognised commitments

9

Significant events after the balance 
sheet date

11

3X2X Total liabilities and equity
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SANLIEN TECHNOLOGY CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars, except earnings per share amounts)

Year ended December 31
2023 2022

Items Notes AMOUNT % AMOUNT %

4000 Operating revenue 6(21) and 7

5000 Operating costs 6(5)(26)(27) and 7

5900 Gross profit from operations

Operating expenses 6(26)(27) and 7

6100 Selling expenses

6200 Administrative expenses

6300 Research and development expenses

6450 Expected credit loss

6000 Total operating expenses

6900 Operating income

Non-operating income and expenses

7100 Interest income 6(22)

7010 Other income 6(23) and 7

7020 Other gains and losses 6(24)

7050 Finance costs 6(25) and 7

7060 Share of profit of associates and 

joint ventures accounted for using 

equity method

6(7)

7000 Total non-operating income and 

expenses

7900 Profit before income tax

7950 Income tax expense 6(28)

8200 Profit for the year

(Continued)
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SANLIEN TECHNOLOGY CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars, except earnings per share amounts)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Year ended December 31
2023 2022

Items Notes AMOUNT % AMOUNT %
Other comprehensive income
Components of other comprehensive 
income that will not be reclassified to 
profit or loss

8311 Gains on remeasurements of defined 
benefit plans

8316 Unrealised gains (losses) from 
investments in equity instruments 
measured at fair value through other 
comprehensive income

6(6)

8320 Share of other comprehensive 
income of associates and joint 
ventures accounted for using equity 
method, components of other 
comprehensive income that will not 
be reclassified to profit or loss

8349 Income tax related to components of 
other comprehensive income that 
will not be reclassified to profit or 
loss

6(28)

8310 Other comprehensive income 
(loss) that will not be reclassified 
to profit or loss

Other comprehensive income that 
will be reclassified to profit or loss

8361 Exchange differences on translation 
of foreign operations

8399 Income tax related to components of 
other comprehensive income that 
will be reclassified to profit or loss

6(28)

8360 Other comprehensive income that 
will be reclassified to profit or loss

8300 Other comprehensive income (loss)
8500 Total comprehensive income

Profit attributable to:
8610 Owners of parent
8620 Non-controlling interests

Comprehensive income attributable to:
8710 Owners of parent
8720 Non-controlling interests

Earnings pre share (in dollars) 6(29)
9750 Basic earnings per share
9850 Diluted earnings per share
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SANLIEN TECHNOLOGY CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

Year ended December 31
Notes 2023 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments

Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss)
Loss on inventory valuation 6(5)
Expected credit loss
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 6(8)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 6(9)
Amortization 6(27)
Interest income 6(22)
Dividend income 6(23)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and 
equipment

6(24)

Net loss (gain) on financial assets at fair value 
through profit or loss

6(24)

Interest expense 6(25)
Share of profit of associates and joint ventures 
accounted for using equity method

6(7)

Share-based payments
Gain of bargain purchase 6(23)
Increase in life insurance surrender value

Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Changes in operating assets

Contract assets current
Notes receivable, net
Notes receivable - related parties
Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable - related parties
Other receivables
Other receivables - related parties
Inventory
Prepayments
Long-term notes and accounts receivable
Net defined benefit asset, non-current
Decrease (increase) in other non-current assets

Changes in operating liabilities
Contract liabilities - current
Notes payable
Accounts payable
Accounts payable - related parties
Other payables
Other payables - related parties
Other current liabilities
Net defined benefit liabilities

Cash inflow generated from operations
Interest received
Dividends received
Income taxes paid
Interest paid

Net cash flows from operating activities

(Continued)
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SANLIEN TECHNOLOGY CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

Year ended December 31
Notes 2023 2022

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit 
or loss
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value 
through profit or loss
Acquisition of financial assets at amortised cost
Acquisition of financial assets at fair value through other 
comprehensive income
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at amortised 
cost
Acquisition of investments accounted for under the equity 
method
Increase in prepayments for investments
Proceeds from capital reduction of investments accounted 
for using equity method
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 6(31)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Acquisition of intangible assets
Decrease in finance lease receivables
Decrease in other non-current financial assets
(Increase) decrease in guarantee deposits paid

Net cash flows used in investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Increase in long-term borrowings 6(32)
Decrease in long-term borrowings 6(32)
Increase in short-term borrowings 6(32)
Decrease in short-term borrowings 6(32)
Payments of lease liabilities 6(32)
Increase in guarantee deposits received
Proceeds from sale of treasury shares
Non-payment of expired cash dividends from prior year
Change in non-controlling interests
Acquisition of ownership interests in subsidiaries 6(30)
Proceeds from disposal of ownership interests in 
subsidiaries

6(30)

Increase in short-term notes and bills payable 6(32)
Cash dividends paid 6(32)

Net cash flows used in financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash 
equivalents

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 
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SANLIEN TECHNOLOGY CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars, except as otherwise indicated)

1. History and Organization

Sanlien Technology Corp. (the “Company”) was established on February 20, 1967. The Company's stock
has been approved for trading on the Taipei Exchange since May 3, 2001. The Company and subsidiaries
(the “Group”) are primarily engaged in the design, manufacturing, sales and system syndication of
factory automation machinery and environmental protection facilities; design, equipment manufacturing,
installation, sales and system syndication of remote sensing, power monitoring, ocean monitoring,
meteorological observation and navigation system; installation, sales and maintenance of semiconductor
equipment of plant; installation and sales of civil engineering safety monitoring technology service and
geotechnical engineering safety monitoring technology service, related sensor and metering instruments;
manufacturing and sales of specialty chemical.  Refer to Notes 4 and 14 for the Group’s primary
operating activities and operating segments information.

2. The Date of Authorisation for Issuance of the Financial Statements and Procedures for Authorisation

These consolidated financial statements were authorised for issuance by the Board of Directors on March
15, 2024.

3. Application of New Standards, Amendments and Interpretations

(1) Effect of the adoption of new issuances of or amendments to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS®”) Accounting Standards that came into effect as endorsed by the Financial 
Supervisory Commission (“FSC”)

New standards, interpretations and amendments endorsed by the FSC and became effective from 

2023 are as follows:
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The above standards and interpretations have no significant impact to the Group’s financial condition 
and financial performance based on the Group’s assessment.

(2) Effect of new issuances of or amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards as endorsed by the FSC but 
not yet adopted by the Group

New standards, interpretations and amendments endorsed by the FSC and will become effective from 
2024 are as follows:

The above standards and interpretations have no significant impact to the Group’s financial condition 
and financial performance based on the Group’s assessment.

(3) IFRS Accounting Standards issued by IASB but not yet endorsed by the FSC

New standards, interpretations and amendments issued by IASB but not yet included in the IFRS 
Accounting Standards as endorsed by the FSC are as follows:

 New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments

 Effective date by
International
Accounting

Standards Board

Amendments to IAS 1, ‘Disclosure of accounting policies’ January 1, 2023
Amendments to IAS 8, ‘Definition of accounting estimates’ January 1, 2023
Amendments to IAS 12, ‘Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities
arising from a single transaction’

January 1, 2023

Amendments to IAS 12, ‘International tax reform - pillar two model
rules’

May 23, 2023

 New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments

 Effective date by
International Accounting

Standards Board

Amendments to IFRS 16, ‘Lease liability in a sale and leaseback’ January 1, 2024
Amendments to IAS 1, ‘Classification of liabilities as current or non-
current’

January 1, 2024

Amendments to IAS 1, ‘Non-current liabilities with covenants’ January 1, 2024
Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7, ‘Supplier finance arrangements’ January 1, 2024
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The above standards and interpretations have no significant impact to the Group’s financial condition 
and financial performance based on the Group’s assessment.

4. Summary of Material Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below.  These policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless
otherwise stated.

(1) Compliance statement

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the 
“Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers”, International 
Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards, IFRIC Interpretations, and SIC 
Interpretations as endorsed by the FSC (collectively referred herein as the “IFRSs”).

(2) Basis of preparation

A. Except for the following items, the consolidated financial statements have been prepared under 
the historical cost convention:

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

(b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income.

(c) Defined benefit assets and liabilities recognised based on the net amount of pension fund assets 
less present value of defined benefit obligation.

B. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires the use of certain 
critical accounting estimates.  It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the 
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.  The areas involving a higher degree of 
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the 
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 5.

 New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments

 Effective date by
International Accounting

Standards Board

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28, ‘Sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture’

To be determined by
International Accounting

Standards Board
IFRS 17, ‘Insurance contracts’ January 1, 2023
Amendments to IFRS 17, ‘Insurance contracts’ January 1, 2023
Amendment to IFRS 17, ‘Initial application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 –
comparative information’

January 1, 2023

Amendments to IAS 21, ‘Lack of exchangeability’ January 1, 2025
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(3) Basis of consolidation

A. Basis for preparation of consolidated financial statements:

(a) All subsidiaries are included in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.  Subsidiaries 
are all entities (including structured entities) controlled by the Group. The Group controls an 
entity when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with 
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.  
Consolidation of subsidiaries begins from the date the Group obtains control of the subsidiaries 
and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiaries.

(b) Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains or losses on transactions between 
companies within the Group are eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been 
adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

(c) Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners 
of the parent and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income is attributed to 
the owners of the parent and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

(d) Changes in a parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in the parent losing 
control of the subsidiary (transactions with non-controlling interests) are accounted for as 
equity transactions, i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity as owners.  Any difference 
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of 
the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity.

(e) When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the Group remeasures any investment retained 
in the former subsidiary at its fair value. That fair value is regarded as the fair value on initial 
recognition of a financial asset or the cost on initial recognition of the associate or joint venture. 
Any difference between fair value and carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss. All 
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary 
are reclassified to profit or loss on the same basis as would be required if the related assets or 
liabilities were disposed of.  That is, when the Group loses control of a subsidiary, all gains 
or losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary 
should be reclassified from equity to profit or loss, if such gains or losses would be reclassified 
to profit or loss when the related assets or liabilities are disposed of.

120



B. Subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements:

Note 1: The Company has control over the subsidiary.

Note 2: The Group sold its 9.2% equity interest in Gee Lien Resource Development Corp. to

entities on July 20, 2023. As the Group did not lose its control over the subsidiary, the

subsidiary was included in the consolidated financial statements.

Note 3: DFOST Corp. was established by the Company in July 2022.

Note 4: Rift Holdings Inc. was established by the Company and invested in a subsidiary, Rift 

Systems Inc. in February 2023.

C. Subsidiaries not included in the consolidated financial statements: None.

D. Adjustments for subsidiaries with different balance sheet dates: None.

E. Significant restrictions: None.

F. Subsidiaries that have non-controlling interests that are material to the Group:

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the non-controlling interest amounted to $1,092,359 and 
$1,051,403, respectively. The information on non-controlling interest and respective subsidiaries 

Ownership (%) Ownership (%)

December 31,
2023

December 31,
2022

 Description 

Sanlien
Technology
Corp.

Kemitek
Industrial Corp.

Manufacturing and sales of
specialty chemical

                37.24                 37.24 Note 1

Santek
Technology, Inc.

Installation, sales and
maintenance of
semiconductor equipment
of plant

100.00 100.00 -

Gee Lien
Resource
Development
Corp.

Geotechnical engineering
safety monitoring
technology service

60.00 69.20 Note 2

DFOST Corp. R&D and sales of fiber
optic sensor monitors

51.00 51.00 Note 3

Rift Holdings Inc. Overseas holding company 100.00 - Note 4

Santek
Technology,
Inc.

Timlien Trading
(Shanghai) Co.,
Ltd.

Wholesale, import and
export of electronic
products, machinery and
equipment

100.00 100.00 -

Rift Holdings
Inc.

Rift Systems Inc. Sales of equipment
(sensors), electrical
materials

90.00 - Note 4

 Name of
investor

 Name of
subsidiary

 Main business activities
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is as follows:

Summarised financial information of the subsidiary:

Balance sheets

Statements of comprehensive income

Name of Principal place Ownership Ownership

subsidiary of business Amount (%) Amount (%) Description

Kemitek
Industrial
Corp.

Taiwan 1,073,600$ 62.76 1,041,548$ 62.76 -

December 31, 2022December 31, 2023

Non-controlling interest

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Current assets 2,242,481$  2,400,865$  

Non-current assets 1,052,961 954,985

Current liabilities 1,565,219)(  1,682,044)(  

Non-current liabilities 19,578)(     14,232)(   

Total net assets 1,710,645$  1,659,574$  

Kemitek Industrial Corp.

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Revenue 3,180,388$  3,279,415$  

Profit before income tax 309,050 391,980
Income tax expense 53,614)( 77,010)( 

Profit for the year 255,436 314,970
Other comprehensive income, net of tax 965 6,547

Total comprehensive income 256,401$  321,517$  

Comprehensive income attributable to
  non-controlling interest 160,910$  205,847$  

Dividends paid to non-controlling interest 128,858$  131,434$  

Kemitek Industrial Corp.
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Statements of cash flows

(4) Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the 
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional 
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in New Taiwan dollars, which is the 
Company’s functional currency and the Group’s reporting currency.

A. Foreign currency transactions and balances

(a) Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange 
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are remeasured. 
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions are 
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

(b) Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the period end are re-
translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date.  Exchange differences 
arising upon re-translation at the balance sheet date are recognised in profit or loss.

(c) Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies held at fair value 
through profit or loss are re-translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet 
date; their translation differences are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary assets and 
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies held at fair value through other comprehensive 
income are re-translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date; their 
translation differences are recognised in other comprehensive income. However, non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are not measured at fair 
value are translated using the historical exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

(d) All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of comprehensive income 
within ‘other gains and losses’.

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Net cash provided by operating activities 500,840$  217,962$  

Net cash used in investing activities 277,375)(  137,955)(  
Net cash used in financing activities 186,100)(  45,765)( 

Increase in cash and cash equivalents 37,365 34,242

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 432,631 398,389

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 469,996$  432,631$  

Kemitek Industrial Corp.
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B. Translation of foreign operations

The operating results and financial position of all the group entities, associates and joint 
arrangements that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are 
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(a) Assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing exchange 
rate at the date of that balance sheet;

(b) Income and expenses for each statement of comprehensive income are translated at average 
exchange rates of that period; and

(c) All resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income (loss).

(5) Classification of current and non-current items

Some operating cycles of the Company’s construction contracts are longer than one year, thus, the 
related assets and liabilities are divided into current and non-current based on its normal operating 
cycle.
For all other assets and liabilities, they are classified as current and non-current based on the following:
A. Assets that meet one of the following criteria are classified as current assets; otherwise they are 

classified as non-current assets:

(a) Assets arising from operating activities that are expected to be realised, or are intended to be 
sold or consumed within the normal operating cycle;

(b) Assets held mainly for trading purposes;

(c) Assets that are expected to be realised within twelve months from the balance sheet date;

(d) Cash and cash equivalents, excluding restricted cash and cash equivalents and those that are 
to be exchanged or used to settle liabilities more than twelve months after the balance sheet 
date.

B. Liabilities that meet one of the following criteria are classified as current liabilities; otherwise they 
are classified as non-current liabilities:

(a) Liabilities that are expected to be settled within the normal operating cycle;

(b) Liabilities arising mainly from trading activities;

(c) Liabilities that are to be settled within twelve months from the balance sheet date;

(d) Liabilities for which the repayment date cannot be extended unconditionally to more than 
twelve months after the balance sheet date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the 
counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its 
classification.
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(6) Cash equivalents

Cash equivalents refer to short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known 
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Time deposits that 
meet the definition above and are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments in 
operations are classified as cash equivalents.

(7) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets that are not measured at 
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income.

B. On a regular way purchase or sale basis, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are 
recognised and derecognised using trade date accounting.

C. At initial recognition, the Group measures the financial assets at fair value and recognises the 
transaction costs in profit or loss. The Group subsequently measures the financial assets at fair 
value, and recognises the gain or loss in profit or loss.

D. The Group recognises the dividend income when the right to receive payment is established, future 
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the 
dividend can be measured reliably.

(8) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

A. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income comprise equity securities 
which are not held for trading, and for which the Group has made an irrevocable election at initial 
recognition to recognise changes in fair value in other comprehensive income.

B. On a regular way purchase or sale basis, financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive 
income are recognised and derecognised using trade date accounting.

C. At initial recognition, the Group measures the financial assets at fair value plus transaction costs.

The Group subsequently measures the financial assets at fair value:

The changes in fair value of equity investments that were recognised in other comprehensive 
income are reclassified to retained earnings and are not reclassified to profit or loss following the 
derecognition of the investment. Dividends are recognised as revenue when the right to receive 
payment is established, future economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the 
Company and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.
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(9) Financial assets at amortised cost

A. Financial assets at amortised cost are those that meet all of the following criteria:

(a) The objective of the Group’s business model is achieved by collecting contractual cash flows.

(b) The assets’ contractual cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest.

B. On a regular way purchase or sale basis, financial assets at amortised cost are recognised and 
derecognised using trade date accounting.

C. The Group’s time deposits which do not fall under cash equivalents are those with a short maturity 
period and are measured at initial investment amount as the effect of discounting is immaterial.

(10) Accounts and notes receivable

A. Accounts and notes receivable entitle the Group a legal right to receive consideration in exchange 
for transferred goods or rendered services.

B. The short-term accounts and notes receivable without bearing interest are subsequently measured 
at initial invoice amount as the effect of discounting is immaterial.

(11) Impairment of financial assets

For financial assets at amortised cost and contract assets at each reporting date, the Group recognises 
the impairment provision for 12 months expected credit losses if there has not been a significant 
increase in credit risk since initial recognition or recognises the impairment provision for the lifetime 
expected credit losses (ECLs) if such credit risk has increased since initial recognition after taking 
into consideration all reasonable and verifiable information that includes forecasts. On the other 
hand, for accounts receivable or contract assets that do not contain a significant financing component, 
the Group recognises the impairment provision for lifetime ECLs.

(12) Leasing arrangements (lessor) - lease receivables/ operating leases

A. Based on the terms of a lease contract, a lease is classified as a finance lease if the lessee assumes 
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the leased asset.
(a) At commencement of the lease term, the lessor should record a finance lease in the balance 

sheet as ‘lease receivables’ at an amount equal to the gross investment in the lease (including 
initial direct costs).  The difference between gross lease receivable and the present value of 
the receivable is recognised as ‘unearned finance income of finance lease’.

(b) The lessor should allocate finance income over the lease term based on a systematic and 
rational basis reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the lessor’s net investment in the 
finance lease.
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(c) Lease payments (excluding costs for services) during the lease term are applied against the 
gross investment in the lease to reduce both the principal and the unearned finance income.

B. Lease income from an operating lease (net of any incentives given to the lessee) is recognised in 
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(13) Inventories

Inventories including merchandise, construction materials, raw materials, materials, work in 
progress and finished goods.Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 
Cost is determined using the weighted-average method. The cost of finished goods and work in 
progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production overheads 
(allocated based on normal operating capacity).  It excludes borrowing costs.  The item by item 
approach is used in applying the lower of cost and net realisable value.  Net realisable value is the 
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated cost of completion and 
applicable variable selling expenses.

(14) Investments accounted for using equity method / associates

A. Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control. In 
general, it is presumed that the investor has significant influence, if an investor holds, directly or 
indirectly 20 percent or more of the voting power of the investee. Investments in associates are 
accounted for using the equity method and are initially recognised at cost.

B. The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in profit or 
loss, and its share of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive income is recognised 
in other comprehensive income.  When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or 
exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does 
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made 
payments on behalf of the associate.

C. When changes in an associate’s equity do not arise from profit or loss or other comprehensive 
income of the associate and such changes do not affect the Group’s ownership percentage of the 
associate, the Group recognises the Group’s share of change in equity of the associate in ‘capital 
surplus’ in proportion to its ownership.

D. Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent 
of the Group’s interest in the associates.  Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the 
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.  Accounting policies 
of associates have been adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted 
by the Group.

E. When the Group disposes its investment in an associate and loses significant influence over this 
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associate, the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the 
associate, are reclassified to profit or loss, on the same basis as would be required if the relevant 
assets or liabilities were disposed of. If it retains significant influence over this associate, the 
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the associate are 
reclassified to profit or loss proportionately in accordance with the aforementioned approach.

F. When the Group disposes its investment in an associate and loses significant influence over this 
associate, the amounts previously recognised as capital surplus in relation to the associate are 
transferred to profit or loss. If it retains significant influence over this associate, the amounts 
previously recognised as capital surplus in relation to the associate are transferred to profit or 
loss proportionately.

(15) Property, plant and equipment

A. Property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. 

B. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, 
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item 
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.  The carrying amount 
of the replaced part is derecognised.  All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or 
loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

C. Land is not depreciated. Other property, plant and equipment apply cost model and are 
depreciated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost over their estimated useful lives. 
Each part of an item of property, plant, and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation 
to the total cost of the item must be depreciated separately.

D. The assets’ residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if 
appropriate, at each financial year-end. If expectations for the assets’ residual values and useful 
lives differ from previous estimates or the patterns of consumption of the assets’ future economic 
benefits embodied in the assets have changed significantly, any change is accounted for as a 
change in estimate under IAS 8, ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and 
Errors’, from the date of the change. The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment 
are as follows:

Buildings and structures 15 ~ 61 years

Machinery and equipment 2 ~ 11 years

Transportation equipment 5 ~ 6 years

Pollution control equipment 5 years

Office equipment 3 ~ 20 years
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Other equipment 3 ~ 15 years

(16) Leasing arrangements (lessee) - right-of-use assets/lease liabilities

A. Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability at the date at 
which the leased asset is available for use by the Group. For short-term leases or leases of low-
value assets, lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease 
term.

B. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the remaining lease payments at the 
commencement date, discounted using the incremental borrowing interest rate.

Lease payments are comprised of the following:
(a) Fixed payments, less any lease incentives receivable; and

(b) Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate.

The Group subsequently measures the lease liability at amortised cost using the interest method 
and recognises interest expense over the lease term. The lease liability is remeasured and the 
amount of remeasurement is recognised as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset when there are 
changes in the lease term or lease payments and such changes do not arise from contract 
modifications.

C. At the commencement date, the right-of-use asset is stated at cost comprising the following:

(a) The amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

(b) Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date; and

(c) An estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying 
asset, restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition 
required by the terms and conditions of the lease.

The right-of-use asset is measured subsequently using the cost model and is depreciated from the 
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the asset’s useful life or the end of the lease term. 
When the lease liability is remeasured, the amount of remeasurement is recognised as an 
adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

D. For lease modifications that decrease the scope of the lease, the lessee shall decrease the carrying 
amount of the right-of-use asset and remeasure the lease liability to reflect the partial or full 
termination of the lease, and recognise the difference in profit or loss.

(17) Intangible assets

A. Computer software
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Computer software is stated at cost and amortised on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful 
life of 3 years.

B. Goodwill

Goodwill arises in a business combination accounted for by applying the acquisition method.

C. Trademark right

Trademark right is stated at cost and which have finite useful life are amortised on a straight-line 
basis over the estimated useful lives of 10 years.

(18) Impairment of non-financial assets

A. The Company assesses at each balance sheet date the recoverable amounts of those assets where 
there is an indication that they are impaired. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount 
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount 
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell or value in use. Except for goodwill, when 
the circumstances or reasons for recognising impairment loss for an asset in prior years no longer 
exist or diminish, the impairment loss is reversed. The increased carrying amount due to reversal 
should not be more than what the depreciated or amortised historical cost would have been if 
the impairment had not been recognised.

B. The recoverable amounts of goodwill, intangible assets with an indefinite useful life and 
intangible assets that have not yet been available for use shall be evaluated periodically. An 
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its 
recoverable amount. Impairment loss of goodwill previously recognised in profit or loss shall 
not be reversed in the following years.

C. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated 
to each of the cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that is/are expected to 
benefit from the synergies of the business combination. Each unit or group of units to which the 
goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill is 
monitored for internal management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment 
level.

(19) Borrowings

Borrowings comprise long-term and short-term bank borrowings. Borrowings are recognised 
initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at 
amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption 
value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest 
method.
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(20) Notes and accounts payable

A. Accounts payable are liabilities for purchases of raw materials, goods or services and notes 
payable are those resulting from operating and non-operating activities.

B. The short-term notes and accounts payable without bearing interest are subsequently measured 
at initial invoice amount as the effect of discounting is immaterial.

(21) Employee benefits

A. Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected 
to be paid in respect of service rendered by employees in a period and should be recognised as 
expense in that period when the employees render service.

B. Pensions

(a) Defined contribution plans

For defined contribution plans, the contributions are recognised as pension expense when 
they are due on an accrual basis.  Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the 
extent of a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments.

(b) Defined benefit plans

i. Net obligation under a defined benefit plan is defined as the present value of an amount
of pension benefits that employees will receive on retirement for their services with the
Group in current period or prior periods. The liability recognised in the balance sheet in
respect of defined benefit pension plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the balance sheet date less the fair value of plan assets. The net defined
benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit
credit method. The rate used to discount is determined by using interest rates of
government bonds (at the balance sheet date) of a currency and term consistent with the
currency and term of the employment benefit obligations.

ii. Remeasurements arising on defined benefit plans are recognised in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they arise and are recorded as retained earnings.

iii. Past service costs are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

C. Termination benefits

Termination benefits are employee benefits provided in exchange for the termination of 
employment as a result from either the Group’s decision to terminate an employee’s employment 
before the normal retirement date, or an employee’s decision to accept an offer of redundancy 
benefits in exchange for the termination of employment. The Group recognises expense as it can 
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no longer withdraw an offer of termination benefits or it recognises relating restructuring costs, 
whichever is earlier. Benefits that are expected to be due more than 12 months after balance sheet 
date shall be discounted to their present value.

D. Employees’ compensation and directors remuneration

Employees’ compensation and directors remuneration are recognised as expense and liability, 
provided that such recognition is required under legal or constructive obligation and those 
amounts can be reliably estimated. Any difference between the resolved amounts and the 
subsequently actual distributed amounts is accounted for as changes in estimates. If employee 
compensation is paid by shares, the Group calculates the number of shares based on the fair value 
per share estimated using a valuation technique specified in IFRS 2, ‘Share-based Payment’.

(22) Employee share-based payment

For the equity-settled share-based payment arrangements, the employee services received are 
measured at the fair value of the equity instruments granted at the grant date, and are recognised as 
compensation cost over the vesting period, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.  The fair 
value of the equity instruments granted shall reflect the impact of market vesting conditions and 
non-vesting conditions. Compensation cost is subject to adjustment based on the service conditions 
that are expected to be satisfied and the estimates of the number of equity instruments that are 
expected to vest under the non-market vesting conditions at each balance sheet date. Ultimately, the 
amount of compensation cost recognised is based on the number of equity instruments that 
eventually vest. The grant date is the date when the employee subscribes the shares.

(23) Income tax

A. The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.  Tax is recognised in profit 
or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or 
items recognised directly in equity, in which cases the tax is recognised in other comprehensive 
income or equity.

B. The current income tax expense is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively 
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries where the Company and its subsidiaries operate 
and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns 
with respect to situations in accordance with applicable tax regulations. It establishes provisions 
where appropriate based on the amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities. An additional 
tax is levied on the unappropriated retained earnings and is recorded as income tax expense in 
the year the stockholders resolve to retain the earnings.
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C. Deferred tax is recognised, using the balance sheet liability method, on temporary differences 
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the 
consolidated balance sheet. However, the deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial 
recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business 
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or 
loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. Deferred tax 
is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries , except where the 
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable 
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax is 
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the 
balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the 
deferred tax liability is settled.

D. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit 
will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.  At each balance sheet 
date, unrecognised and recognised deferred tax assets are reassessed.

E. Current income tax assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance 
sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an 
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset on the balance sheet when the entity has the legally 
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and they are levied by 
the same taxation authority on either the same entity or different entities that intend to settle on 
a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

F. A deferred tax asset shall be recognised for the carryforward of unused tax credits resulting from 
acquisitions of equipment or technology, research and development expenditures and equity 
investments to the extent that it is possible that future taxable profit will be available against 
which the unused tax credits can be utilised.

(24) Share capital

A. Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of 
new shares or stock options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

B. Where the Company repurchases the Company’s equity share capital that has been issued, the 
consideration paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes) is 
deducted from equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders.  Where such shares are 
subsequently reissued, the difference between their book value and any consideration received, 
net of any directly attributable incremental transaction costs and the related income tax effects, 
is included in equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders.
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(25) Dividends

Dividends are recorded in the Company’s financial statements in the period in which they are 
resolved by the Company’s shareholders.  Cash dividends are recorded as liabilities.

(26) Revenue recognition

A. Sales of goods

Sales of goods arise from manufacturing and sales of chemical materials and related products, 

and sales of automated machinery, monitoring equipment, electronic equipment and other 

products. Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped to the specific location, the risks 

of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the client, and either the client has accepted 

the products in accordance with the sales contract, or the Group has objective evidence that all 

criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

B. Sales of services

Sales of services arise from the maintenance and repair services of monitoring equipment and 
electronic equipment and related technical services.
Revenue from providing services is recognised in the accounting period in which the service is

rendered.

C. Revenue from system integration

Revenue from system integration arise from providing system integration services for industrial 

sensor, equipment, power monitoring, production of special-purpose sensor and calibration 

service of force sensor. The Group and customers entered into a system integration revenue 

contract, all committed equipment and integration service has separate price. However, the 

Group’s revenue from system integration services primarily arise from providing significant 

services for equipment integration and related services, whereby the control right over the

equipment is transferred to customers and net revenue is recognised when there are no subsequent 

obligations.

D. Construction revenue

The Group’s construction contract primarily provides for the installation technique of high 

technology production machinery (instrument) and civil engineering or provides for professional 

technique service for safety monitoring on main building in the construction process of private 

enterprise to generate income. 

In building process, the Group recognised revenue over time for building contracts which were 

controlled by customers. Because the input costs for building were directly related with the 

completion degree of performance obligation, the Company assesses the completion degree 

based on the proportion of actual input costs to the expected total costs. The Group progressively 
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recognises contract assets during the construction process which is transferred to accounts 

receivable at the time of billing. If the collected proceeds from construction exceeded the amount 

of revenue recognised, the difference is recognised as contract liabilities. The purpose of 

retention for construction contracts which is retained by customers is to ensure that the Group

fulfills all contractual obligations, and is recognised as contract assets until the construction is 

completed.

If the result of performance obligation cannot be reliably measured, construction revenue is

recognised only to the extent of contract costs incurred that is expected to be recoverable.

(27) Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value only when there is reasonable assurance that 
the Group will comply with any conditions attached to the grants and the grants will be received. 
Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which 
the Group recognises expenses for the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.

(28) Operating segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the 
chief operating decision - maker.  The Group’s chief operating decision - maker, who is responsible 
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified 
as the Board of Directors that makes strategic decisions.

5. Critical Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Key Sources of Assumption Uncertainty

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements requires management to make critical
judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies and make critical assumptions and estimates
concerning future events. Assumptions and estimates may differ from the actual results and are
continually evaluated and adjusted based on historical experience and other factors.  Such assumptions
and estimates have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year; and the related information is addressed below:

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

Financial assets - fair value measurement of unlisted stocks without active market

The fair value of unlisted stocks held by the Group that are not traded in an active market is determined
considering those companies’ recent fund raising activities and technical development status, fair value
assessment of other companies of the same type, market conditions and other economic indicators
existing on balance sheet date.  Any changes in these judgements and estimates will impact the fair
value measurement of these unlisted stocks.  Refer to Note 12(3) for the financial instruments fair value
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information.

As of December 31, 2023, the carrying amount of unlisted stocks without active market was $651,358.

6. Details of Significant Accounts
(1) Cash and cash equivalents

A. The Group transacts with a variety of financial institutions all with high credit quality to disperse 
credit risk, so it expects that the probability of counterparty default is remote. The Group’s 
maximum exposure to credit risk at balance sheet date is the carrying amount of all cash and cash 
equivalents.

B. The Group has no cash and cash equivalents pledged to others.

(2) Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Cash on hand and revolving funds 5,817$ 5,521$
Demand deposits 385,021 398,573
Demand deposits with foreign currency 264,086 150,733
Checking accounts 3,428 1,530
Time deposits 55,981 100,288

714,333$  656,645$  

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Current items:
 Financial assets mandatorily measured at fair

 value through profit or loss

 Listed stocks 97,293$  127,979$  
 Forward foreign exchange contracts 150 2,772

97,443 130,751

 Valuation adjustment 34,511 7,380)( 

131,954$  123,371$  

Non-current items:

 Financial assets mandatorily measured at fair
 value through profit or loss

 Emerging stocks 2,318$ 2,318$

 Unlisted stocks 57,085 57,085

59,403 59,403

 Valuation adjustment 96,961 18,034

156,364$  77,437$  
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A. Amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to financial assets at fair value through profit or 
loss are listed below:

B. The Group has no financial assets at fair value through profit or loss pledged to others as collateral.
C. The Group entered into contracts relating to derivative financial assets which were not accounted 

for under hedge accounting. The information is listed below:

The Group entered into forward foreign exchange contracts to buy Japanese Yen to hedge 
exchange rate risk of import proceeds. However, these forward foreign exchange contracts are not 
accounted for under hedge accounting.

D. The Company recognised net (loss) gain of ($2,622) and $2,772 on financial assets held for trading 
for the year ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

2023 2022

Net gain (loss) on financial assets mandatorily
  measured at fair value through profit or loss 121,009$  17,935)($  

2023 2022

Dividends 7,137$ 8,365$

Derivative Book Balance Notional 

 financial instruments Value principal (in thousands) Contract period

Current items:

 Forward foreign
     exchange

150$   JPY$  171,150 December 19, 2023 to February
7, 2024

December 31, 2023

Derivative Book Balance Notional 

 financial instruments Value principal (in thousands) Contract period

Current items:

 Forward foreign
     exchange

2,772$ JPY$  250,000 October 17, 2022 to February
15, 2023

December 31, 2022
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(3) Financial assets at amortised cost

A. As at December 31, 2023 and 2022, without taking into account any collateral held or other credit 
enhancements, the maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of the amount that best represents 
the financial assets at amortised cost held by the Group was its book value.

B. Part of the Group’s offshore funds was restricted under the Management, Utilization, and Taxation 
of Repatriated Offshore Funds Act, and was classified as ‘financial assets at amortised cost - 
current’.

C. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Group had time deposits and reserve accounts amounting 
to $19,083 and $26,808, respectively, which were pledged as collateral and were recognised as 
financial assets at amortised cost - current. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Group's 
financial assets at amortised cost - non-current amounted to $21,311 and $21,138, respectively. 
Refer to Note 8 for details.

D. Information relating to credit risk of financial assets at amortised cost is provided in Note 12(2).

(4) Accounts receivable, net

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Time deposits with maturity over three months 22,151$   21,978$   

Deposits in reserve account 18,243 25,968 
Earmarked repatriated funds - 105

40,394$  48,051$  

Current items:     19,083$   26,913$   
Non-current items: 21,311 21,138

40,394$  48,051$  

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Accounts receivable 892,698$  954,451$  
Less: Allowance for uncollectible accounts 1,330)( 1,361)( 

891,368$  953,090$  
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A. The ageing analysis of accounts receivable and notes receivable that were past due but not 
impaired is as follows:

The above ageing analysis was based on past due date.

B. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, accounts receivable and notes receivable were all from 
contracts with customers. As of January 1, 2022, the balance of receivables from contracts with 
customers amounted to $870,778.

C. As at December 31, 2023 and 2022, without taking into account any collateral held or other credit 
enhancements, the maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of the amount that best represents 
the Group’s accounts receivable was its book value.

D. Information relating to credit risk of accounts receivable and notes receivable is provided in Note 
12(2).

(5) Inventories

Accounts Accounts
receivable Notes receivable receivable Notes receivable

Not past due 893,313$   13,002$   954,206$   16,564$   

Up to 30 days 796 - 1,012 - 

31 to 90 days 578 - 890 - 

91 to 180 days 319 - 81 - 
Over 180 days 480 - 987 -

895,486$  13,002$  957,176$  16,564$  

December 31, 2022December 31, 2023

Allowance for

Cost valuation loss Book value

Commodity and engineering materials 373,252$   5,352)($  367,900$   

Raw materials 463,128 789)(  462,339 

Work in progress 19,606 323)(  19,283 
Finished goods 189,039 1)(  189,038

1,045,025$  6,465)($ 1,038,560$  

December 31, 2023
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The cost of inventories recognised as expense for the year:

(6) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

A. The Group has elected to classify equity investments that are considered to be strategic 
investments as financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income. The fair value 
of such investments was its value as at December 31, 2023 and 2022.

B. Amounts recognised in profit or loss and other comprehensive income in relation to the financial 
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are listed below:

Allowance for

Cost valuation loss Book value

Commodity and engineering materials 321,982$   4,553)($  317,429$   

Raw materials 621,696 1,260)(  620,436 

Work in progress 27,145 323)(  26,822 
Finished goods 223,918 - 223,918

1,194,741$  6,136)($ 1,188,605$  

December 31, 2022

2023 2022

Cost of goods sold 3,036,719$  3,080,200$  
Other operating costs 105,589 90,396
Loss on disposal of inventorits 8,139 2,609

Loss (gain on reversal of ) on decline in market
 value 333 89)(   

3,150,780$  3,173,116$  

 Items December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Non-current items:

 Equity instruments

 Unlisted stocks 236,332$   271,346$   
 Valuation adjustment 259,804 176,581

496,136$  447,927$  

2023 2022

Equity instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income

 Fair value change recognised in other
 comprehensive income 114,227$  96,279)($  

 Dividend income recognised in profit or loss 19,392$  55,010$  
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C. The Group has no financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income pledged to 
others.

(7) Investments accounted for using equity method

A. Associates

(a) The basic information of the associates that are material to the Group is as follows:

(b) The summarised financial information of the associates that are material to the Group is as 
follows:

2023 2022

At January 1 233,913$  191,843$  
Addition of investments accounted for using
  equity method 108,514 -
Share of profit or loss of investments accounted
  for using equity method 44,336 47,795
Earnings distribution of investments accounted
  for using equity method 35,323)( 23,324)(  
Changes in other equity items 8,452 17,599
Proceeds from capital reduction of investments
  accounted for using equity method 9,101)( -

At December 31 350,791$  233,913$  

Percentage Percentage
Associates: Balance ownership Balance ownership

Siap+Micros Holding S.r.l. 135,896$   49.00 118,524$   49.00 

Agnos Chemicals Pte. Ltd. 102,639 31.25 103,217 31.25 

Billion Corporation 10,926 35.10 12,172 35.10 

Trisco Technology Corporation 101,330 22.53 - - 

350,791$  233,913$  

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Principal place December 31, December 31, Nature of Method of
Company name of business 2023 2022 relationship measurement

Siap+Micros Holding S.r.l. Italy 49.00 49.00 Strategic
investment

Equity method

Agnos Chemicals Pte. Ltd. Singapore 31.25 31.25 Strategic
investment

Equity method

Billion Corporation Samoa 35.10 35.10 Strategic
investment

Equity method

Trisco Technology
 Corporation

Taiwan 22.53 - Strategic
investment

Equity method

Shareholding ratio

141



Balance sheet

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Current assets 10,702$   10,298$   

Non-current assets 4,287 4,352 

Current liabilities 4,110)( 4,045)(   

Non-current liabilities 1,829)( 2,290)(   

Total net assets 9,050$ 8,315$

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Share in associate's net assets 135,896$  118,524$  

Carrying amount of the associate 135,896$  118,524$  

Siap+Micros Holding S.r.l. 

Siap+Micros Holding S.r.l.
(Expressed in thousands of Euro)

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Current assets 16,773$ 18,076$  

Non-current assets 2,598 3,668 

Current liabilities 3,950)(   5,154)(   

Non-current liabilities 1,275)( 2,108)( 

Total net assets 14,146$ 14,482$

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Share in associate's net assets 102,639$ 103,217$

Carrying amount of the associate 102,639$ 103,217$

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Current assets 171$   171$   

Non-current assets 881 997 

Current liabilities 38)(   38)(   

Non-current liabilities - -

Total net assets 1,014$ 1,130$

Agnos Chemicals Pte. Ltd.
(Expressed in thousands of Singapore dollar)

Agnos Chemicals Pte. Ltd.

Billion Corporation
(Expressed in thousands of United States dollar)
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Statement of comprehensive incomet

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Share in associate's net assets 10,926$ 12,172$

Carrying amount of the associate 10,926$ 12,172$

Billion Corporation

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Current assets 144,892$  -$   

Non-current assets 425,352 - 

Current liabilities 39,567)( - 

Non-current liabilities 80,920)( -

Total net assets 449,757$ -$

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Share in associate's net assets 101,330$ -$

Carrying amount of the associate 101,330$ -$

Trisco Technology Corporation

Trisco Technology Corporation
(Expressed in thousands of NTD)

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Revenue 11,929$  10,962$  

Profit for the year from continuing
  operations 1,269 1,325
Other comprehensive income, net of tax 34)( 83

Total comprehensive income 1,235$ 1,408$

Siap+Micros Holding S.r.l.
(Expressed in thousands of Euro)

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Revenue 14,797$ 16,271$

Profit for the year from continuing
  operations 3,465 4,082 
Other comprehensive income, net of tax - -

Total comprehensive income 3,465$ 4,082$

Agnos Chemicals Pte. Ltd.
(Expressed in thousands of Singapore dollar)

143



B. For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Group recognised dividends from associates, 
Agnos Chemicals Pte. Ltd. and Siap+Micros Holding S.r.l., in the amounts of $35,323 and $23,324, 
respectively.

C. In 2023 and 2022, certain investments of the Group were accounted for based on the financial 
statements audited by other auditors. Information on share of profit recognised based on the 
Group's shareholding ratio is as follows:

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Revenue -$ -$

Loss for the year from continuing
  operations 97)( 16)( 
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax 18)( 94)( 

Total comprehensive loss 115)($ 110)($

Billion Corporation
(Expressed in thousands of United States dollar)

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Revenue 84,086$ -$

Profit for the year from continuing
  operations 22,805 -
Other comprehensive income, net of tax 36,368 -

Total comprehensive income 59,173$ -$

Trisco Technology Corporation
(Expressed in thousands of NTD)

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Share of profit of associates and joint ventures
  accounted for using equity method 45,397$  47,954$  

Investments accounted for using equity method
 - Gain (loss)  on remeasurements of defined

  benefit plans 562)($ 1,291$

Investments accounted for using equity method
 - Exchange difference from translation of
 foreign operations 6,634$ 2,565$
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D. The Company increased its investment in Trisco Technology Corporation for the amount of 
NT$11,486 thousand on September 8, 2023, which resulted in gain recognized in bargain purchase 
transaction of NT$11,009 thousand, the percentage of ownership increasing from 18.35% to 
22.53%. Consequently, the investment, as a whole, was transferred from financial assets at fair 
value through other comprehensive income - non-current to investments accounted for using equity 
method.

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Investments accounted for using equity method
 - Unrealised gains from investments in
 equity instruments measured at fair value
 through other comprehensive income 2,564$ -$

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Investments accounted for using equity method 339,865$  221,742$  
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(9) Leasing arrangements - lessee

A. The Group’s leased assets include office, employees’ dormitory, machinery and corporate vehicles 
and the software of 3D design.  The lease period was 1 to 5 years. Lessees had no bargain 
purchase option on aforementioned assets at the end of the lease period.

B. The movements of right-of-use assets of the Group during 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

C. For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the additions to right-of-use assets were 
$16,678 and $10,370, respectively.

D. The information on profit and loss accounts relating to lease contracts is as follows:

E. For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Group’s total cash outflow for leases were 
$11,143 and $8,191, respectively.

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Book value Book value

Buildings and structures 9,404$ 2,182$

Machinery 1,091 1,476

Transportation equipment 11,656 10,310
Other assets 460 -

22,611$  13,968$  

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Depreciation charge Depreciation charge

Buildings and structures 1,928$ 1,677$

Machinery 385 385 

Transportation equipment 5,039 4,056 
Other assets 20 -

7,372$ 6,118$

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Items affecting profit or loss

Interest expense on lease liabilities 363$ 321$

Expense on short-term lease contracts 3,074$ 1,263$

Expense on leases of low-value assets 339$ 290$
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(10) Leasing arrangements - lessor

A. The Group leased buildings and structures in operating leases. The lease period was 1 to 5 years, 
and there were no options to extend the lease period.  All operating lease contracts were 
individually negotiated and the rent and related terms were adjusted according to the market 
during the lease renewal. Lessees had no bargain purchase option on these assets at the end of 
the lease period.

B. For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Group recognised rent income in the 
amounts of $8,860 and $7,515, respectively, based on the operating lease agreement, which does 
not include variable lease payments.

C. The maturity analysis of the lease receivables under the operating leases is as follows:

D. The Group leases machinery and other equipment under a finance lease. According to the 
provisions of the lease agreement, the handling of the leased asset upon expiration will be 
mutually agreed upon by both parties. Information on profit or loss in relation to lease contracts 
is as follows:

E. The maturity analysis of the undiscounted lease payments in the finance lease is as follows:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

2023  $  -  $  7,005

2024 5,617 3,644 
After 2025 1,256 1,391

6,873$ 12,040$  

Year ended December 31, 2023

Finance income from the net investment in the finance lease 1,436$

December 31, 2023

2024  $  35,627

2025 35,627 

2026 35,627 

2027 35,627 
2028 32,657

Total 175,165$  
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F. Reconciliation of the undiscounted lease payments and the net investment in the finance lease is 

provided as follows:

(11) Intangible assets

A. The Group increased investment and acquisition of subsidiary, Kemitek Industrial Corp. 
Goodwill primarily arose from the benefit of expecting the operating revenue growth of the 
subsidiary.

B. The Group measures the impairment of goodwill per cash generating unit annually. To conduct 
test and assessment, the recoverable amount is based on value in use calculated using the 
budgeted cash flows prepared by management. The discount rate is calculated using the weighted 
average cost of capital ratio. The pre-tax discount rates used in the main assessment were 13.68% 
and 15.63% as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

C. The goodwill of the Group has not been impaired since the recoverable amount based on value 
in use exceeds the carrying value.

D. Refers to Note 6 (27) for the details of amortization charges for the intangible assets.
(12) Short-term borrowings

Current Non-currrent

Undiscounted lease payments 35,627$   139,538$   
Unearned finance income 16,698)( 55,040)( 

Net investment in the lease 18,929$  84,498$  

December 31, 2023

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Goodwill 16,552$   16,552$   
Software 9,890 9,612 
Trademark Rights 779 - 
Other 171 -

27,392$  26,164$  

 Type of borrowings December 31, 2023 Interest rate range Collateral

Bank borrowings 

 Unsecured borrowings 530,000$  1.60% ~ 2.19% None

 Secured borrowings 156,425 1.90% ~ 2.02%
Deposits in reserve

 account

686,425$  

Short-term notes and
 bills payable 29,985$  1.50% None
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A. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the amounts of undrawn short-term borrowing facilities 
were $347,567 and $270,317, respectively.

B. As of December 31, 2023, the amounts of undrawn short-term notes and bills payable facilities 
were $20,000.

C. Refer to Note 8 for the details of collateral for the abovementioned borrowing.
(13) Other payables

(14) Long-term borrowings

 Type of borrowings December 31, 2022 Interest rate range Collateral

Bank borrowings 

 Unsecured borrowings 450,000$  1.27% ~ 1.96% None

 Secured borrowings 235,454 1.65% ~ 1.99%
Deposits in reserve

 account

685,454$  

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Accrued salaries and bonuses 204,524$   194,844$   

Payable on maintenance fees 14,031 16,028 

Payable on equipment 18,607 36,117 

Others 66,383 65,200

303,545$  312,189$  

Borrowing period

Type of borrowings and repayment term December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Secured borrowings Borrowing period is from
November 10, 2021 to November
21, 2025; borrowing maturity to
payment; interest is payable 60,000$ 60,000$

Secured borrowings Borrowing period is from October
21, 2020 to October 6, 2024;
borrowing maturity to payment;
interest is payable monthly

90,000 90,000
Secured borrowings Borrowing period is from February

15, 2022 to February 15, 2024;
borrowing maturity to payment;
interest is payable monthly 50,000 70,000

200,000 220,000
Less: Current portion 140,000)(       -

60,000$ 220,000$

Interest rate range 1.78% ~ 2.34% 1.28% ~ 2.06%
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A. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the amounts of undrawn long-term borrowing facilities were 
$70,000 and $50,000, respectively.

B. Refer to Note 8 for the details of collateral for the abovementioned borrowing.

(15) Pensions

A. Defined benefit plans

(a) All formal employees were included in the Company’s pension plan. Under the pension plan, 
two units are accrued for each year of service for the first 15 years and one unit for each 
additional year thereafter, subject to a maximum of 45 units. Pension benefits are based on 
the number of units accrued and the average monthly salaries and wages of the last 6 months 
prior to retirement. An additional 20% on top of the amount shall be given to workers forced 
to retire due to insanity or physical disability incurred from the execution of their duties.

(b) Directors who were on the job and managers who were commissioned according to Company 
Act and were approved by the Board of Directors were included in the Company’s pension 
plan for the Company’s directors and managers. Under the pension plan, directors and general 
manager who had serviced for over 3 years and are older than 55, two units are accrued for 
each year of service for the first 15 years and one unit for each additional year thereafter, 
subject to a maximum of 45 units. Pension benefits are based on the number of units accrued 
and the average monthly salaries and wages of the last 6 months prior to retirement. The 
length of service is calculated as half year when it is less than six months and as one year 
when it is more than six months. An additional 20% on top of the amount shall be given to 
workers forced to retire or terminate due to insanity or physical disability incurred from the 
execution of their duties.

(c) The Group's domestic entities have defined benefit plans for qualified employees in 
accordance with the Labor Standards Act.  Each consolidated company shall provide for 
pension at a fixed distribution rate of total monthly salary payments and had the Business 
Entity Supervisory Committee of Labor Retirement Reserve managed the pension which 
shall be deposited in the designated account of each consolidated company in the Bank of 
Taiwan under the name of the committee. Before the end of each year, employers shall assess 
the balance in the designated labor pension reserve funds account. If the amount is 
inadequate to pay pensions for workers retiring in the same year, the employer is required to 
make up the difference in one appropriation before the end of March in the following year. 
The designated accounts were commissioned to be managed by the Bureau of Labor Funds, 
and the Group had no rights to influence the investment management strategy. In December 
2021, the Group has applied for the settlement of the retirement benefits of qualified 
employees under the defined benefit plan with the Department of Labor, Taipei City 
Government. The Company has fully settled the retirement benefits of qualified employees 
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in 2022.
(d) Due to business requirement, the subsidiary, Kemitek Industrial Corp., has a retirement 

regulation on directors, supervisors and commissioned managers, it is applicable for directors, 
supervisors and commissioned manager who were on the job and were labours but did not 
distribute to retirement fund according to Labor Pension Act.

(e) The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:

(f) Movements in net defined benefit liabilities are as follows:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Present value of defined benefit obligations 5,290$ 4,381$

Fair value of plan assets - 2,292)( 

Net defined benefit liability 5,290$ 2,089$

Present value of

defined benefit Fair value of Net defined
obligations plan assets benefit liability

At January 1 4,381$   2,292)($   2,089$   
Current service cost 826 - 826
Settlement profit or loss 83 2,292 2,375

At December 31 5,290$  -$  5,290$  

2023
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(g) The Bank of Taiwan was commissioned to manage the Fund of the Company’s and domestic 
subsidiaries’ defined benefit pension plan in accordance with the Fund’s annual investment 
and utilisation plan and the “Regulations for Revenues, Expenditures, Safeguard and 
Utilisation of the Labor Retirement Fund” (Article 6: The scope of utilisation for the Fund 
includes deposit in domestic or foreign financial institutions, investment in domestic or 
foreign listed, over-the-counter, or private placement equity securities, investment in 
domestic or foreign real estate securitisation products, etc.). With regard to the utilisation of 
the Fund, its minimum earnings in the annual distributions on the final financial statements 
shall be no less than the earnings attainable from the amounts accrued from two-year time 
deposits with the interest rates offered by local banks. If the earnings is less than 
aforementioned rates, government shall make payment for the deficit after being authorised 
by the Regulator. The Company and domestic subsidiaries have no right to participate in 
managing and operating that fund and hence the Company and domestic subsidiaries are 
unable to disclose the classification of plan assets fair value in accordance with IAS 19 
paragraph 142. The composition of fair value of plan assets as of December 31, 2022 is given 
in the Annual Labor Retirement Fund Utilisation Report announced by the government.

Present value of

defined benefit Fair value of Net defined
obligations plan assets benefit liability

At January 1 60,756$  68,322)($  7,566)($  
Current service cost 1,935 - 1,935
Interest expense (income) 196 181)(  15
Past service cost 330)(  - 330)(  
Settlement profit or loss 24,913)(  34,852 9,939

37,644 33,651)(  3,993

Remeasurements:

Return on plan assets (excluding amounts
  included in interest income or expense) - 2,257)(   2,257)(   
Change in financial assumptions 506)(   - 506)(   
Experience adjustments 1,170 - 1,170

664 2,257)(  1,593)(  

Pension fund contribution - 311)(   311)(   
Paid pension 33,927)(  33,927 -

At December 31 4,381$  2,292)($  2,089$  

2022

154



(h) The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are set based on improved Taiwan 
Annuity Insurance Life Table.

Because the main actuarial assumption changed, the present value of defined benefit 
obligation is affected. The analysis was as follows:

The sensitivity analysis above is based on one assumption which changed while the other 
conditions remain unchanged. In practice, more than one assumption may change all at once. 
The method of analysing sensitivity and the method of calculating net pension liability in the 
balance sheet are the same.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not 
change compared to the previous period. 

B. Defined contribution plans

(a) The Group’s domestic entities have established defined contribution plans managed by the 

government under the Labor Pension Act. The Group contributes 6% of the employees' 
monthly salaries and wages to the individual designated account of the Bureau of Labor 
Insurance as pensions.

(b) Certain subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic of China (PRC.) have a defined 
contribution plan. Monthly contributions to an independent fund administered by the 
government in accordance with the pension regulations in the People’s Republic of China 
(PRC) are based on certain percentage of employees’ monthly salaries and wages. Other than 
the monthly contributions, the Group has no further obligations.

Year ended
December 31, 2022

Discount rate 1.25%

Future salary increases 3.00%

Increase 0.25% Decrease 0.25% Increase 1% Decrease 1%

December 31, 2022

Effect on present value
 of defined benefit
 obligation 186)($  200$  870$  663)($  

Discount rate Future salary increases

155



C. The Group recognised pension cost:

For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the amounts of directors’ remuneration 

recognised in pension cost were $826 and $126, respectively.

(16) Share-based payment

A. The Group’s share-based payment arrangements were as follows:

On March 25, 2020, the Board of Directors of the Company resolved to repurchase shares to be 
transferred to the Company’s employees totaling 660 thousand shares during the period from 
March 26, 2020 to May 25, 2020. The actual number of shares repurchased was 595 thousand 
shares, and the capital reduction was conducted in 2020 with a capital reduction ratio of 6%. For 
shares under this repurchase, the Company will set grant date and transfer price based on the 
changes of share price and volume before transferring to employees. The Company expected to 
transfer shares to employees in one or many times within two years starting from the repurchase 
date. 1 thousand common shares can be purchased for 1 unit. The number of shares that an 
employee can acquire was calculated based on the standards, such as employee’s seniority, 
position, job and special contributions to the Company. After transferring those shares to 
employees and registering a transfer of shares, unless stated otherwise, other rights and 
obligations of those shares are the same as original shares.

Vesting conditions: Regular employees who were employed before the subscription effective 
date or who have special contribution to the Company as recommended by management at or 
above the vice general manager level.

As of December 31, 2022, all shares had been transferred to the employees. 1 thousand common 
shares can be purchased for 1 unit. The number of shares that an employee can acquire is 
calculated based on a certain criteria, such as employee’s experience, position, job and special 

contributions to the Company. After the shares are transferred to employees and related 

registration has been completed, the rights and obligations of the shares transferred to employees 

are the same as the original shares unless stated otherwise.

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Net retirement cost recognised according to
 Actuaries’ Report on pensions and recognised
 according to Labor Standards Act of R.O.C.
 by consolidated company 826$ 219$

Recognised according to Labor Pension Act of
 R.O.C. and recognised according to local
 regulation by overseas consolidated company 13,095 11,500

13,921$  11,719$  
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B. Details of the share-based payment arrangements are as follows:

C. The fair value of stock options granted on grant date is measured using the Black-Scholes option-
pricing model or other.  Relevant information is as follows:

Note: The expected price volatility was based on the historical volatility of share price in the 

past 5 years.

D. The compensation cost on stock options amounted to $919 in 2022, respectively.

(17) Share capital

A. As of December 31, 2023, the Company has authorised capital in the amount of $1,050,000,

consisting of 105,000 thousand shares (including convertible corporate bonds of 30,000 thousand 

shares, corporate bonds with warrant of 20,000 thousand shares and warrant certificates of 4,000 

thousand shares) with a par value of $10. All proceeds from shares issued have been collected. 

The number of the Company’s ordinary shares outstanding are as follows:

No. of Weighted-average

options exercise price
(in thousands) (in dollars)

Options outstanding  at January 1 - -$   
Options granted 306 40.87 
Options exercised 306)(  40.87 

Options outstanding at December 31 -

Options exercisable at December 31 -

2022

Stock Exercise Expected Expected Fair value

Type of price price price Expected dividends Risk-free  per unit
arrangement Grant date (in dollars) (in dollars) volatility option life rate interest rate (in dollars)

Employee stock
options

February, 2022  $        44.00  $  40.87 16%  (Note) February 7 to
February 18, 2022

5.91% 0.755%  $        3.0

2023 2022
(in thousands) (in thousands)

At January 1 41,608.82 41,302.52 
Employee stock options exercised - 306.30

At December 31 41,608.82$  41,608.82$  
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B. Treasury shares

(a) Reason for share reacquisition and movements in the number of the Company’s treasury 
shares are as follows:

(b) On March 25, 2020, the Board of Directors of the Company approved to repurchase common 

shares in the number of 660 thousand shares to be transferred to employees according to 

Securities and Exchange Act Article 28-2 and ‘Regulations Governing Share Repurchase by 

Exchange-Listed and OTC-Listed Companies’ published by the authority, during the period 

from March 26, 2020 to May 25, 2020, at a repurchase price ranging from $28 to $50. The 

Company repurchased common shares totaling 595 thousand shares. For the year ended 

December 31, 2020, the Company decreased cash capital at a ratio of 6%, and transferred 

253 and 306 thousand shares to employees on September 7, 2021 and March 3, 2022. The 

difference between the transfer price and repurchase price was $349 and $880 which was 

recognised as capital surplus - treasury shares. As of December 31, 2022, the number of 

treasury shares was 0 thousand shares.

(c) Pursuant to the R.O.C. Securities and Exchange Act, the number of shares bought back as 
treasury share should not exceed 10% of the number of the Company’s issued and outstanding 
shares and the amount bought back should not exceed the sum of retained earnings, paid-in 
capital in excess of par value and realised capital surplus.

(d) Pursuant to the R.O.C. Securities and Exchange Act, treasury shares should not be pledged 
as collateral and is not entitled to dividends before it is reissued.

(e) Pursuant to the R.O.C. Securities and Exchange Act, treasury shares should be reissued to the 
employees within five years from the reacquisition date and shares not reissued within the 
five-year period are to be retired.  Treasury shares to enhance the Company’s credit rating 
and the stockholders’ equity should be retired within six months of acquisition.

Number of shares as of Number of shares as of

Reason for January 1, 2022 December 31, 2022

share reacquisition (in thousands) Increase Transfer Decrease (in thousands)

To be reissued to
 employees 306 - 306)(  - -
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(18) Capital surplus

Pursuant to the R.O.C. Company Act, capital surplus arising from paid-in capital in excess of par 
value on issuance of common stocks and donations can be used to cover accumulated deficit or to 
issue new stocks or cash to shareholders in proportion to their share ownership, provided that the 
Company has no accumulated deficit.  Further, the R.O.C. Securities and Exchange Act requires 
that the amount of capital surplus to be capitalised mentioned above should not exceed 10% of the 
paid-in capital each year.  Capital surplus should not be used to cover accumulated deficit unless 
the legal reserve is insufficient.

(19) Retained earnings

A. On June 26, 2019, the shareholders of the Company approved to amend the Company’s Articles 
of Incorporation. Under the amended Articles of Incorporation, the Company shall distribute 
earnings every half fiscal year and authorised the Board of Directors to resolve the distribution 
of dividends and bonus in cash which shall be reported to the shareholders.

In accordance with the earnings distribution policies in the Company’s amended Articles of 
Incorporation, the current earnings in every half fiscal year, if any, shall first be used to pay all 
taxes and offset prior years’ accumulated deficit, retaining estimated employees’ compensation 
and directors’ remuneration and then 10% of the remaining amount shall be set aside as legal 
reserve until the legal reserve equals the paid-in capital. In addition, special reserve is set aside 
or reversed in accordance with regulations. The appropriation of the remainder along with the 
unappropriated earnings adjustments in prior half fiscal year, shall be proposed by the Board of 
Directors and approved by the shareholders if the dividends will be distributed in the form of 
shares.  If the dividends will be distributed in cash, the appropriation shall be resolved by the 
Board of Directors and reported to the shareholders.

The current year’s earnings, if any, shall first be used to pay all taxes and offset prior years’ 
operating losses and then 10% of the remaining amount shall be set aside as legal reserve until 
the legal reserve amount is equal to the paid-in capital. In addition, special reserve is set aside or 
reversed in accordance with regulations, the appropriation of the remainder along with the 
unappropriated earnings adjustments in prior half fiscal year, shall be proposed by the Board of 
Directors. The Board of Directors is authorised by the Company to resolve the distribution of 
dividends and bonuses or legal reserve and capital reserve, in whole or in part, in accordance 
with Paragraph 1 of Article 241 of the Company Act in the form of cash by the resolution adopted 
by the majority vote at its meeting attended by two-thirds of the total number of directors, and 
then reported it to the shareholders.
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B. Except for covering accumulated deficit or issuing new stocks or cash to shareholders in 
proportion to their share ownership, the legal reserve shall not be used for any other purpose. 
The use of legal reserve for the issuance of stocks or cash to shareholders in proportion to their 
share ownership is permitted, provided that the distribution of the reserve is limited to the portion 
in excess of 25% of the Company’s paid-in capital.

C. In accordance with the regulations, the Company shall set aside special reserve from the debit 
balance on other equity items at the balance sheet date before distributing earnings.  When debit 
balance on other equity items is reversed subsequently, the reversed amount could be included 
in the distributable earnings.

D. The appropriations of 2022 and 2021 earnings had been approved by the shareholders during 

their meeting on May 24, 2023 and June 23, 2022, respectively. Details are summarised below:

E. The appropriations of 2023 earnings had been approved by the Board of Directors during its
meeting on March 15, 2024. Details are summarised below:

As of March 15, 2024, the appropriations of 2023 earnings have not been resolved at the

stockholders’ meeting.

Dividends Dividends

per share per share
Amount (in dollars) Amount (in dollars)

Legal reserve 16,343$   -$  19,444$   -$  
Cash dividends 116,505 2.8 128,987 3.1

2.8$  3.1$  

Year ended December 31, 2022 Year ended December 31, 2021

Dividends

per share
Amount (in dollars)

Legal reserve 30,190$   -$  

Stock dividends 20,804 0.5 
Cash dividends  108,183 2.6

3.1$  

Year ended December 31, 2023
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(20) Other equity items

Unrealised gains

Currency (losses) on
translation valuation Total

At January 1 8,564)($  176,581$  168,017$     

Currency translation differences:

- Group 4,461 - 4,461

- Associates 586 - 586

- Tax 940)(  - 940)(  

Valuation

- Group - 116,791 116,791
- Valuation adjustments transferred to retained
     earnings - 31,004)(  31,004)(  

At December 31 4,457)($  262,368$  257,911$     

2023

Unrealised gains

Currency (losses) on
translation valuation Total

At January 1 20,768)($  272,860$  252,092$     

Currency translation differences:

- Group 13,547 - 13,547

- Associates 1,128 - 1,128 

- Tax 2,471)(   - 2,471)(   

Valuation
- Group - 96,279)(  96,279)(  

At December 31 8,564)($  176,581$  168,017$     

2022
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(21) Operating revenue

A. Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers 

The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods and services over time and at a point in 
time in the following major product lines and geographical regions:

B. Contract assets and liabilities

(a) The Group has recognised the following revenue-related contract assets and liabilities:

Sensing and

Automatic equipment

monitoring Electronic business overseas Other 
2023 business material business segment segments Total

Revenue from external
 customer contracts 413,679$ 3,180,388$  66,324$  41,680$  3,702,071$

Timing of revenue recognition

 At a point in time 387,942$ 3,180,388$   66,324$   7,938$     3,642,592$
 Over time 25,737 - - 33,742 59,479

413,679$ 3,180,388$  66,324$  41,680$  3,702,071$

Sensing and

Automatic equipment

monitoring Electronic business overseas Other 
2022 business material business segment segments Total

Revenue from external
 customer contracts 434,322$ 3,279,415$  74,358$  35,305$  3,823,400$

Timing of revenue recognition

 At a point in time 417,951$ 3,279,415$   74,358$   7,175$     3,778,899$
 Over time 16,371 - - 28,130 44,501

434,322$ 3,279,415$  74,358$  35,305$  3,823,400$

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 January 1, 2022

Contract assets:

Construction 11,840$  5,417$  5,357$  
Loss: Allowance 85)( 39)( 35)( 

Total 11,755$  5,378$  5,322$  

Contract liabilities:

Construction 17,201$  10,927$  7,187$  

System integration 6,422 17,875 19,144
Sales of goods 4,543 6,148 7,810

Total 28,166$  34,950$  34,141$  
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(b) Revenue recognised that was included in the contract liability balance at the beginning of 
the year

C. Uncompleted contracts

The transaction price is allocated to unsatisfied performance obligations under the contract, and 

the expected recognition timing are as follows. The amounts disclosed do not include variable 

consideration.

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Revenue recognised that was included in
 the contract liability balance at the

  beginning of the year
Construction 9,409$ 6,408$
System integration 17,027 13,866
Sales of goods 5,360 3,297

31,796$  23,571$  

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Construction contracts

Executory in 1 year 76,595$   65,772$   
Executory in 1 to 3 years 18,790 23,731 
Executory over 3 years 103,029 44,914

198,414$  134,417$  

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

System integration contracts

Executory in 1 year 6,422$ 12,483$   
Executory in 1 to 3 years - 5,392 
Executory over 3 years - -

6,422$ 17,875$  

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Sales contracts

Executory in 1 year 4,543$ 6,148$
Executory in 1 to 3 years - - 
Executory over 3 years - -

4,543$ 6,148$
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(22) Interest income

(23) Other income

(24) Other gains and losses

(25) Finance costs

(26) Employee benefit expense

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Interest income from bank deposits 3,907$ 2,456$
Other interest income 460 -

4,367$ 2,456$

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Rent income 8,860$ 7,515$

Dividend income 26,529 63,375

Gain recognized in bargain purchase transation 11,009 -

Other income, others 24,701 33,239

71,099$  104,129$  

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Gain on disposal of property, plant and
 equipment

515$ 938$

Foreign exchange gains 19,451 9,994

Gains (losses) on financial assets at fair value
 through profit or loss

121,009 17,935)( 

Other gains and losses 25)( 58)( 

140,950$  7,061)($

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Interest expense 19,109$   10,022$   

Interest expense on lease liability 363 321

19,472$  10,343$  

Operating cost Operating expense Total

Wages and salaries 206,064$  168,329$  374,393$

Labour and health insurance fees 18,370 9,301 27,671
Pension costs 8,769 5,152 13,921 
Other personnel expenses 11,258 6,202 17,460

244,461$  188,984$  433,445$

Year ended December 31, 2023
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A. In accordance with the Articles of Incorporation of the Company, a ratio of distributable profit 

of the current year shall be distributed as employees’ compensation and directors’ remuneration. 

The ratio shall not be lower than 1% for employees’ compensation and shall not be higher than 

5% for directors’ remuneration. However, when the Company has accumulated deficit, no 

employees' compensation and directors' remuneration shall be distributed.

B. For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, employees’ compensation was accrued at 
$12,020 and $7,933, respectively; while directors’ remuneration was accrued at $9,015 and 
$5,950, respectively. The aforementioned amounts were recognised in salary expenses. 

The employees’ compensation and directors’ remuneration were estimated and accrued based on 
4% and 3%, respectively, of distributable profit for the year ended December 31, 2023.

Employees’ compensation and directors’ remuneration for 2022 as resolved by the Board of 
Directors were in agreement with those amounts recognised in the 2022 financial statements.

Information about employees’ compensation and directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration of the 
Company as resolved by the Board of Directors will be posted in the “Market Observation Post 
System” at the website of the Taiwan Stock Exchange.

(27) Expenses by nature

Operating cost Operating expense Total

Wages and salaries 202,377$  160,312$  362,689$

Labour and health insurance fees 16,442 7,636 24,078
Pension costs 7,938 3,781 11,719 
Other personnel expenses 11,054 5,280 16,334

237,811$  177,009$  414,820$

Year ended December 31, 2022

Operating cost Operating expense Total

Employee benefit expense 244,461$  188,984$  433,445$
Depreciation charges 95,408 17,620 113,028
Amortisation charges 4,360 219 4,579

344,229$  206,823$  551,052$

Year ended December 31, 2023
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(28) Income tax

A. Income tax expense

(a) Components of income tax expense:

(b)The income tax (charge)/credit relating to components of other comprehensive income is as 
follows:

Operating cost Operating expense Total

Employee benefit expense 237,811$  177,009$  414,820$
Depreciation charges 99,773 13,970 113,743
Amortisation charges 2,322 80 2,402

339,906$  191,059$  530,965$

Year ended December 31, 2022

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Current tax:

Current tax on profits for the year 60,079$  86,096$  
Tax on undistributed surplus earnings 2,284 2,340
Prior year income tax overestimation 1,818)( 1,815)( 

Total current tax 60,545 86,621

Deferred tax:

Origination and reversal of temporary
  differences 3,208 1,581

Income tax expense 63,753$  88,202$  

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Currency translation differences 1,818$   4,108$   
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation - 321

1,818$ 4,429$
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B. Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting profit

C. Amounts of deferred tax assets or liabilities as a result of temporary differences are as follows:

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Tax calculated based on profit before tax and
 statutory tax rate 114,888$  116,739$  

Tax exempt income by tax regulation 49,705)( 30,534)( 
Expenses disallowed by tax regulation 12 -
Taxable loss not recognised as deferred tax
  assets 4,418 -
Effect from investment tax credits 6,867)( -

Prior year income tax overestimation 1,818)( 1,815)( 

Effect from Alternative Minimum Tax - 964

Tax on undistributed earnings 2,284 2,340 
Others 541 508

Income tax expense 63,753$  88,202$  

Recognised

in other

Recognised in comprehensive

January 1 profit or loss income December 31

- Deferred tax assets:

 Unrealised expenses 11,163$      3,624$   -$   14,787$   

 Unrealised pension contributions 1,989 1,989)(  - - 

 Remeasurement of defined benefit plans 894 - - 894 

 Cumulative translation adjustments 526 - 526)(  - 
 Others 4,835 4,511)(   - 324

19,407$     2,876)($ 526)($ 16,005$

- Deferred tax liabilities:

 Investment income 23,802)($  1,884)($  -$   25,686)($  

 Unrealised pension contributions 2,028)(   292)(   - 2,320)(   

 Cumulative translation adjustments 1,637)(   - 655)(  2,292)(   
 Others 2,899)(  1,917 - 982)(  

30,366)($ 259)($ 655)($ 31,280)($

10,959)($ 3,135)($ 1,181)($  15,275)($

2023
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D. The Company’s income tax returns through 2022 have been assessed and approved by the Tax 
Authority.

(29) Earnings per share

A. Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 
of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the period.

B. Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share is calculated as the profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the 
parent company, based on the effect from dilutive potential ordinary shares, divided by the 
weighted-average number of current outstanding ordinary shares.

Recognised

in other

Recognised in comprehensive

January 1 profit or loss income December 31

- Deferred tax assets:

 Unrealised expenses 7,216$   3,947$   -$   11,163$   

 Unrealised pension contributions - 1,989 - 1,989 

 Remeasurement of defined benefit plans 1,215 - 321)(  894 

 Cumulative translation adjustments 2,997 - 2,471)(  526 
 Others 6,770 1,935)( - 4,835

18,198$ 4,001$ 2,792)($  19,407$

- Deferred tax liabilities:

 Investment income 17,416)($  6,386)($  -$   23,802)($  

 Unrealised pension contributions 1,960)(   68)(   - 2,028)(   

 Cumulative translation adjustments - - 1,637)(  1,637)(   
 Others 3,773)(  874 - 2,899)(  

23,149)($ 5,580)($ 1,637)($  30,366)($

4,951)($  1,579)($ 4,429)($  10,959)($

2022
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(30) Transactions with non-controlling interest

A. Acquisition of additional equity interest in a subsidiary

In November 9, 2022 and November 30, 2022, the Group acquired an additional 1.01% and 
0.24% equity interest in its subsidiary - Kemitek Industrial Corp., respectively. The cash 

Weighted average

number of ordinary Earnings

Amount shares outstanding per share
after tax (shares in thousands) (in dollars)

Basic earnings per share

 Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders
 of the parent 271,466$   41,609 6.52$

Diluted earnings per share

 Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders
 of the parent 271,466$   41,609

 Assumed conversion of all dilutive potential
   ordinary shares
 Employees' compensation - -
 Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders

 of the parent plus assumed conversion of
 all dilutive potential ordinary shares 271,466$   41,609 6.52$

Year ended December 31, 2023

Weighted average

number of ordinary Earnings

Amount shares outstanding per share
after tax (shares in thousands) (in dollars)

Basic earnings per share

 Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders
 of the parent 175,259$   41,538 4.22$

Diluted earnings per share

 Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders
 of the parent 175,259$   41,538

 Assumed conversion of all dilutive potential
   ordinary shares
 Employees' compensation - -
 Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders

 of the parent plus assumed conversion of
 all dilutive potential ordinary shares 175,259$   41,538 4.22$

Year ended December 31, 2022
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consideration for the said acquisition amounted on 2022, and amounted to $27,659 and $7,531 
which was paid on November 9, 2022 and November 30, 2022, respectively. The effect of 
changes in equity interest in Kemitek Industrial Corp. on the equity attributable to owners of the 
parent for the years ended December 31, 2022 is shown below:

B. Disposal of equity interest in a subsidiary (that did not result in a loss of control)

The Group disposed its 9.2% and 6.8% equity interest in its subsidiary - Gee Lien Resource 

Development Corp on July 20, 2023 and July 15, 2022, respectively. The effect of changes in

equity interest in Gee Lien Resource Development Corp. on the equity attributable to owners of 

the parent for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 is shown below:

(31) Supplemental cash flow information

Investing activities with partial cash payments

Year ended
December 31, 2022

Carrying amount of non-controlling interest
 acquired 20,805$  

Consideration paid to non-controlling interest 35,190)( 
Other equity -

14,385)($  

Capital surplus - difference between proceeds
 on actual acquisition of or disposal of equity
 interest in a subsidiary and its carrying amount -$

Undistributed earnings 14,385)($  

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Carrying amount of non-controlling interest
  disposed 1,776)($ 1,219)($
Consideration received from non-controlling
 interest 1,771 1,216

5)($ 3)($

Undistributed earnings 5)($ 3)($
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(32) Changes in liabilities from financing activities

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 265,990$  173,255$  

Add: Opening balance of payable on equipment 36,117 7,565
Less: Ending balance of payable on equipment 18,607)( 36,117)( 

Cash paid during the year 283,500$  144,703$  

 Long-term

 Short-term borrowings 

notes (including Liabilities from

 Short-term and bills current Lease Dividends financing
borrowings  payables  portion) liability payable activities

At January 1 685,454$   -$  220,000$   14,207$ -$ 919,661$     

Changes in cash flow from financing
  activities 971 29,985 20,000)(  7,367)(    116,505)( 112,916)(

Interest paid - - - 363)(  - 363)(  

Increase in lease liability for the year - - - 16,198 - 16,198

Interest expense from amortisation - - - 363 - 363

Declared cash dividends - - - - 116,505 116,505

Other non-cash fluctuations - - - 666)(  - 666)(  
Impact of changes in foreign exchange
  rate - - - 7)(            - 7)(  

At December 31 686,425$   29,985$   200,000$    22,365$ -$  938,775$     

Year ended December 31, 2023

 Long-term

borrowings 

(including Liabilities from

 Short-term current Lease Dividends financing
borrowings  portion) liability payable activities

At January 1 495,845$   140,000$   10,093$  -$  645,938$     

Changes in cash flow from financing
  activities 189,609 80,000 6,317)( 128,897)( 134,395

Interest paid - - 321)( - 321)(  

Increase in lease liability for the year - - 10,370 - 10,370

Interest expense from amortisation - - 321 - 321

Declared cash dividends - - - 128,897 128,897
Impact of changes in foreign exchange
  rate - - 61 - 61

At December 31 685,454$   220,000$   14,207$  -$   919,661$     

Year ended December 31, 2022
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7. Related Party Transactions
(1) Names of related parties and relationship

 Names of related parties  Relationship with the Company

Tama Chemicals Co,. Ltd.  (Tama) Entity that has significant influence
 over a consolidated subsidiary

Agnos Chemicals Pte. Ltd. Associate

Siap+Micros Holding S.r.l. Associate

Siap+Micros S.p.a. Associate

BILLION CORPORATION Associate

Trisco Technology Corporation (Note) Associate

Trisco Technology Corporation (Shenzhen) Associate

Mose lake Industries Inc. Related party in substance

Sanlien Education Foundation Related party in substance

Meteorological Application & Development
  Foundation

Related party in substance

Sino-Geotechnics Research and Development
 Foundation

Related party in substance

Taiwan Cimate Services Partnership Related party in substance

PUJEN Land Development Co., Ltd. Related party in substance

Rui Hua Investment Co., Ltd. Related party in substance

China Metal Products Co., Ltd. Related party in substance

The Hotel National Company Limited Related party in substance

Xiao Bu Dian Company Limited Related party in substance

Yan Lien Technology Corp. Related party in substance

Asia World Engineering & Constraction Co. Related party in substance

P.Waver Inc., Related party in substance

Chinese Taipei Ski Association Related party in substance

Lucent Source., Ltd. Related party in substance
Lin Ta-Chun The Group's key management

Lin Ting-Fung The Group's key management

Lin Chia-Ching The Group's key management

Lin Ta-Hsum The Group's key management

Wu Chi-Wei The Group's key management

Zhu Min,Gao The Group's key management

Peng Chih-Hui The Group's key management

Cagatay Koksal The Group's key management
Patrice Marc PELLETIER The Group's key management

it become an Associate from September 2023.

Note1: The Company increased its investment in Trisco Technology Corporation, therefore,
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(2) Significant related party transactions

A. Operating revenue:

The consolidated company, Kemitek Industrial Corp., sold goods at a price based on the mutual 

agreement, and the credit terms were 30 to 120 days after monthly billing to related parties and 

30 to 180 days after monthly billing to non-related parties. Other consolidated companies’
transaction amounts and conditions with related parties were in agreement with third parties.

B. Purchases:

The consolidated company, Kemitek Industrial Corp., purchased goods at a price based on the 

mutual agreement, and the payment terms were 30 to 120 days after monthly billing which was 

the same with non-related parties. Other consolidated companies’ transaction amounts and 

conditions with related parties were in agreement with third parties.

C. Notes receivables from related parties:

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Sales of goods:

 Tama -$ 1,111$

 Related party in substance 12,307 9,334
 Associates 1,598 3,297

13,905$  13,742$  

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Purchases of goods:

 Tama 1,472,013$  2,043,295$  

 Related party in substance - 33,709
 Associates 11,009 1,039

1,483,022$  2,078,043$  

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Notes receivable:
 Related party in substance 38$ 250$
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D. Accounts receivable from related parties:

E. Other receivables from related parties:

F. Accounts payable to related parties:

G. Other payables to related parties:

H. Prepayments

I. Contract liabilities

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Accounts receivable:
 Related party in substance 2,788$ 2,725$

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Other receivables:
 Tama -$ 23$
 Related party in substance 211 -

211$ 23$

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Accounts payable:

 Tama 615,972$  710,592$  
 Associates 3,429 -
 Related party in substance - 6,968

619,401$  717,560$  

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Other payables:
 Tama 17,574$  20,969$  
 Related party in substance 1,138 1,045
 Associates 116 -

18,828$  22,014$  

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Prepayments:
 Related party in substance -$ 207$

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Related party in substance 2,475$ 414$
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J. Property transactions:

(a) Acquisition of property, plant equipment:

(b) Acquisition of financial assets:

(c) Disposal of property, plant and equipment:

(d) Disposal of financial assets:

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

The Group's key management -$     968$

No. of Year ended
shares December 31, 2022

Accounts (in thousands) Objects Consideration

Related party
 in substance

Financial assets at fair
 value through other

  comprehensive income

1,000 P.Waver Inc. (Cash
capital increase)

12,000$  

Investment accounted for
 using equity method

216 Kemitek Indastrial
 Corp.

8,621

20,621$  

Disposal
proceeds

Gain (loss) on
disposal

Disposal
proceeds

Gain (loss) on
disposal

Related party
 in substance

629$  9)($  720$  -$  

 Year ended December 31, 2023  Year ended December 31, 2022

Year ended
 No. of shares December 31, 2023

Accounts (in thousands) Objects Proceeds Proceeds

The Group's key
 management

Investment accounted
 for using equity
 method

35 Gee Lien Resource
 Development Corp.

674$

Year ended
 No. of shares December 31, 2022

Accounts (in thousands) Objects Proceeds Proceeds

The Group's key
 management

Investment accounted
 for using equity
 method

35 Gee Lien Resource
 Development Corp.

626$
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K. Lease transactions - lessee

(a) Lease liabilities

(b) Interest expense

(c) Rent expense

L. Leasing arrangements - lessor

(a) The Group leased buildings and structures in operating leases, with a lease period of 1 to 5 

years. The amount of lease is determined based on the local rental level and used area, and is 
paid by the lessee on a monthly basis.

(b) Rent income:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Lease liabilities - current

  Related party in substance 12$ 27$

Lease liabilities - non-current

 Related party in substance - 12

12$ 39$

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Related party in substance 1$     3$     

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Related party in substance 220$ -$

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Related party in substance 367$ 705$
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M. Others

In order to assist Sanlien Education Foundation in promoting each project and the development of 
science popularization education, the Company, for the year ended December 31, 2023, gave grants 
amounting to $1,700.

N. Endorsements and guarantees provided to related parties:

Refer to Note 9 for details of endorsements and guarantees provided to related parties.

(3) Key management compensation

Note: The related expenses and depreciation pertaining to the official cars used by the main 
management were included in key management compensation.

8. Pledged Assets

The Group’s assets pledged as collateral are as follows:

Realationship Year ended Year ended
with the Group Account December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Tama Indirect materials  $  30,733  $  33,064
Royalty expense 12,930 13,765

Other operating expenses 6 17

Other income 39 3,607

Related party
 in substance

Other operating expenses 4,549 20

Other income 363 -

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Salaries and other short-term employee
 benefits (Note) 29,705$  21,337$  

Post-employment benefits 653 436
Share-based payment transaction - 133

30,358$  21,906$  

Book value Book value

Pledged asset December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 Purpose

Land 47,279$  47,279$  Long-term borrowings
Buildings and structures - net 14,026 14,588

Time deposits 22,151 21,978 Pledged as collateral
 for tariff and
 construction

Deposits in reserve   account 18,244 25,968 Short-term borrowings
101,700$  109,813$  
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9. Significant Contingent Liabilities and Unrecognised Contract Commitments

(1) Contingencies:

None.

(2) Commitments

A. Capital expenditures contracted for at the balance sheet date but not yet incurred are as follows:

B. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the amounts of refundable deposit notes issued by the Group 
for undertaking each construction and bank financing facilities were $125,455 and $117,438, 
respectively.

C. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Group had guarantee notes issued by financial institutions 
for customs duty in the amounts of $5,000 and $10,000, respectively.

D. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Group had repaid the prepayment for undertaking 
construction which were guaranteed by banks in the amounts of $5,009 and $4,229, respectively.

E. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the consolidated subsidiary, Gee Lien Resource Development 

Corp., provided guarantee for the Company to undertake constructions in the amount of $50,000

for both years. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Group has used $20,632 and $22,023,

respectively.

F. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Group's outstanding letters of credit but not yet drawn 
amounted to $16,000 and $10,000, respectively.

G. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company provided guarantee for the consolidated 

subsidiary, Gee Lien Resource Development Corp, to undertake constructions, amounting to 

$40,000 for both years.  As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the consolidated subsidiary has

used $21,408 and $17,327, respectively.

10. Significant Disaster Loss

None

11. Significant Events after the Balance Sheet Date

(1) On March 15, 2024, the Board of Directors approved the appropriations of 2023 earnings. Details
of resolution by the Board of Directors are provided in Note 6(19).

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Property, plant and equipment 4,455$                     182,937$                  
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12. Others

(1) Capital management

The Group’s goal of capital management was to secure the Group’s going concern and to maintain 
a healthy capital basis in order to keep the confidence of investor, debtor and market and to support 
the development of future operations. Capital included the Group’s share capital, capital surplus, 
retained earnings and non-controlling interests. The Board of Directors controlled and managed the 
return on capital and dividends standard of common share simultaneously. For the year ended 
December 31, 2023, the Group’s capital management was the same as usual and did not change.

(2) Financial instruments

A. Financial instruments by category

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Financial assets

 Financial assets at fair value through profit or
 loss

 Financial assets designated as at fair value
 through profit or loss on initial recognition 288,318$  200,808$  

 Financial assets at fair value through other
 comprehensive income

   Qualifying equity instruments 496,136$  447,927$  

 Financial assets at amortised cost

 Cash and cash equivalents 714,333$  656,645$  

 Financial assets at amortised cost 40,394 48,051

 Notes receivable 13,002 16,564

 Accounts receivable 894,156 955,815

 Financial lease receivable net 18,929 -

 Other receivables 46,455 21,604

 Other financial assets - 1,133

 Guarantee deposits paid 10,179 6,178

 Long-term notes and accounts receivable 525 -

 Long-term finance lease receivable net 84,498 -

1,822,471$  1,705,990$  
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B. Financial risk management policies

The Group had adopted overall risk management and control system to identify all risks 

including market risk, credit risk, liquidity risks and cash flow risks in order for the management 

to control and evaluate these risks effectively. The Group’s objectives on market risk 

management are to achieve the optimal risk position, maintain an optimal level of liquidity and 

centralise risk management operations, with consideration of the economic environment, 

competitive status and market value risk.

C. Significant financial risks and degrees of financial risks

(a) Market risk

Foreign exchange risk

i. The Group’s sales and purchases are primarily denominated in NTD, JPY and USD. The
fair value of financial assets and liabilities which were denominated in foreign currency
changed according to the fluctuations in market exchange rates. As the Group offsets
these market risks by matching the foreign currency assets and liabilities positions and
their payment periods, it does not expect significant market risk due to exchange rate.

ii. Gains or losses from exchange rate changes of the Group’s forward foreign exchange
contracts will approximately offset by gains or losses from exchange rate changes of
foreign currency claims and debts.  Thus, the Group does not expect significant market
risk.

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Financial liabilities

 Financial liabilities at amortised cost

 Short-term borrowings 686,425$  685,454$  

 Short-term notes and bills payable 29,985 -

 Notes payable 1,977 1,286

 Accounts payable 1,012,119 1,042,060

 Other accounts payable 322,373 334,203

 Long-term borrowings (including current
   portion)

200,000 220,000

 Guarantee deposits received 2,094 -

2,254,973$  2,283,003$  

 Lease liability 22,365$      14,207$  
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iii. The Group’s businesses involve some non-functional currency operations (the
Company’s and certain subsidiaries’ functional currency: NTD; other certain subsidiaries’
functional currency: HKD, RMB and USD). The information on assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies whose values would be materially affected by the
exchange rate fluctuations is as follows:

Foreign currency 

amount Book value
(In thousands) Exchange rate (NTD)

(Foreign currency: functional currency)

Financial assets

Monetary items

 JPY:NTD 2,115,518$  0.215 454,836$  

 USD:NTD 10,067 30.66 308,654

 RMB:NTD 2,509 4.302 10,794

 CHF:NTD 125 36.36 4,454

 SGD:NTD 272 23.20 6,310

 EUR:NTD 202 33.78 6,824

Investments accounted for using equity method

 SGD:NTD 4,421$ 23.22 102,639$  

 EUR:NTD 3,999 33.98 135,896

 USD:NTD 356 30.71 10,926

Financial liabilities

Monetary items

 JPY:NTD 2,794,299$   0.219 611,951$   

 USD:NTD 10,825 30.76 332,977 

 EUR:NTD 21 34.18 718 

December 31, 2023
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iv. The Group is primarily affected by the exchange rate fluctuation of JPY and USD.
Foreign exchange risk between JPY, USD and NTD arose primarily from gains or losses
on foreign currency exchange from translating JPY and USD denominated cash, cash
equivalents, accounts receivable and other receivables, accounts payable and other
payables. When the Group’s functional currency, NTD, fluctuated 1% against JPY and
USD, the sensitivity analysis were as follows:

When the Group’s foreign currency assets position is higher than foreign currency liabilities, 
a positive number above indicates an increase in net profit and equity associated with New 
Taiwan dollars decreasing 1% against the relevant currency. For a 1% increase in New 
Taiwan dollars against the relevant currency, the amount of impact on net profit and equity 
would be the same but negative.

Foreign currency 

amount Book value
(In thousands) Exchange rate (NTD)

(Foreign currency: functional currency)

Financial assets

Monetary items

 JPY:NTD 2,194,835$  0.230 505,690$  

 USD:NTD 8,971 30.66 275,050

 RMB:NTD 307 4.383 1,344

 CHF:NTD 5 33.08 154

 SGD:NTD 8 22.79 186

 EUR:NTD 244 32.52 7,939

Investments accounted for using equity method

 SGD:NTD 4,525$ 22.81 103,217$  

 EUR:NTD 3,622 32.72 118,524

 USD:NTD 396 30.74 12,172

Financial liabilities

Monetary items

 JPY:NTD 3,153,956$   0.234 739,287$   

 USD:NTD 8,614 30.76 264,958 

 EUR:NTD 244 32.92 8,041 

December 31, 2022

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Effect on profit after tax and equity 1,451)($ 1,788)($
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(b) Credit risk

i. The Group’s policy is to trade only with counterparties with rating of investment level,
and if necessary, the Group requires for sufficient collaterals to reduce the financial loss
risk from past due accounts. The Group assesses credit rating of major customers by
using public financial information and historical transaction records. The Group
continuously monitors its credit exposure and the credit rating of counterparties, and
allocates the total transaction amount to different customers with qualified credit rating.
In addition, the Group manages credit exposures through proper review and approval to
the credit facility of counterparties by key management annually.

ii. In order to reduce credit risk, the Group’s management appointed an exclusive group to
be in charge of the decision of credit facilities, approval of credit and other monitoring
procedures to ensure adequate action is taken on the collection of the past due accounts
receivable. In addition, on the balance sheet date, the Group will review the recoverable
amount of each accounts receivable to ensure the unrecoverable accounts receivable had
been properly provisioned impairment loss. Based on the above information, the
management believes the credit risk of the Group has significantly decreased.

iii. The expected credit losses on accounts receivable are estimated by using the lifetime
expected losses. The lifetime expected losses are calculated based on the provision matrix,
taking into consideration that past default experience of the customer, an analysis of the
customer’s current financial position, industrial economic situation, GDP forecast and
the future conditions of the industry in which the customers operate.

iv. As the Group’s historical credit loss experience does not show significantly different loss
patterns for different customer segments, the provision matrix is not further distinguished
according to the Group’s different customer base and the expected credit losses were
calculated from the past due date of accounts receivable.

v. The Group has internal credit risk management, without consideration of the collaterals
held, default has occurred under the following conditions:

(i) Internal or external information indicates that it is impossible for the creditors to 
repay its obligations.

(ii) Past due over 181 days, except when there was a reasonable explanation and 
supporting documentation that the delay shall not be considered a default.

vi. The Group adopts following assumptions under IFRS 9 to assess whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk on that instrument since initial recognition:

If the contract payments are past due in accordance with the contract terms,
counterparties have serious financial difficulties and the Group cannot reasonably
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estimate the recoverable amount, there has been a significant increase in credit risk on 
that instrument since initial recognition.

vii. If there is evidence to prove that counterparties have a material financial difficulty and
the recoverable amount cannot be estimated reliably, for example, when counterparties
are processing the liquidation, the Group will directly write off related accounts
receivable. However, the Company will continue executing the recourse procedures to
secure their rights, and the recovered amount arising from the recourse procedures will
be recognised in profit or loss.

viii.The Group’s provision matrix of accounts receivable and contract assets is as follows:

ix. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the expected credit loss rates of contract assets were

0.2% - 1.902% and 0.2% - 0.779%, respectively.

x. Movements in relation to the Group applying the modified approach to provide loss
allowance for accounts receivable and contract assets are as follows:

Up to 30 days 31~90 days 91~180 days Over Overdue
Not past due past due past due past due 180 days receivables  Total 

At December 31, 2023

Expected credit loss rate 0.2% ~ 1.902% 1.902% ~ 11% 1.902% ~ 81% 1.902% ~ 86% 100% 100%

Book value 905,153$   796$   578$   319$   341$   139$   907,326$   

Allowance 421)(  9)( 275)(  230)(  341)(  139)(  1,415)(  

Amortised cost 904,732$  787$  303$  89$  -$  -$   905,911$  

At December 31, 2022

Expected credit loss rate 0.2% ~ 0.779% 0.779% ~ 6.5% 0.779% ~ 71.5% 0.779% ~80% 100% 100%

Book value 959,623$   1,012$   890$   81$   312$   675$   962,593$   

Allowance 267)(  21)(  77)(  48)(  312)(  675)(  1,400)(  

Amortised cost 959,356$  991$  813$  33$  -$  -$   961,193$  

Accounts receivable Contract assets

At January 1 1,361$ 39$

Provision for impairment 412 46

Write-offs during the year 442)( - 
Effect of foreign exchange 1)( -

At December 31 1,330$ 85$

2023

Accounts receivable Contract assets

At January 1 974$ 35$

Provision for impairment 375 4 
Effect of foreign exchange 12 -

At December 31 1,361$ 39$

2022
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(c) Liquidity risk

i. For the Group’s financial assets and liabilities that will mature in one year, the working
capital of the Group is sufficient, therefore there is no liquidity risk from the inability to
raise capital for fulfilling contractual obligations.

ii. The Group invested surplus cash in interest bearing time deposits and marketable
securities, choosing instruments with appropriate maturities or sufficient liquidity to
provide sufficient headroom as determined by the abovementioned forecasts. As for the
held monetary market fund, refer to Note 6 for details of financial assets. The Group
expects to timely generate cash flows to manage liquidity risk.

iii. Refer to Notes 6(12) and 6(14) for details of undrawn borrowing facility of the Group.

iv. The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities and net-settled
or gross-settled derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date for non-
derivative financial liabilities and to the expected maturity date for derivative financial
liabilities. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Except as stated above, the Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities are due within the 
following year.

(3) Fair value information

A. The different levels that the inputs to valuation techniques are used to measure fair value of 
financial and non-financial instruments have been defined as follows:

Level 1: Inputs that are quoted prices unadjusted in active markets for identical assets or 

liabilities. A market is regarded as active if it meets all the following conditions: the 

items traded in the market are homogeneous; willing buyers and sellers can normally 

Less than Between Over
December 31, 2023 1 year 1 and 5 years 5 years Total

Non-derivative financial liabilities

 Long-term borrowings (including
   current portion) 140,000$ 60,000$  -$  200,000$ 
 Lease liability 8,490$     14,800$  -$  23,290$   

Less than Between Over
December 31, 2022 1 year 1 and 5 years 5 years Total

Non-derivative financial liabilities

 Long-term borrowings (including
   current portion) -$   220,000$    -$  220,000$ 
 Lease liability 6,291$     8,361$  -$  14,652$   
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be found at any time; and prices are available to the public. The fair value of the 

Group’s investment in listed stocks is included in Level 1.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset 

or liability, either directly (e.g., as prices) or indirectly (e.g., derived from prices).

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data.

B. The related information on financial and non-financial instruments measured at fair value by 
level on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the assets is as follows:

C. The methods and assumptions the Group used to measure fair value are as follows:

The instruments the Group used market quoted prices as their fair values (that is, Level 1) are 
listed below by characteristics:

D. Forward exchange contracts are usually valued based on the current forward exchange rate.

December 31, 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Recurring fair value measurements

Financial assets at fair value through
 profit or loss

 Listed stocks 132,946$  -$  -$  132,946$  

 Unlisted stocks - - 155,222 155,222

 Forward foreign exchange contracts - 150 - 150

Financial assets at fair value through
 other comprehensive income

 Unlisted stocks - - 496,136 496,136

132,946$  150$   651,358$  784,454$  

December 31, 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Recurring fair value measurements

Financial assets at fair value through
 profit or loss

 Listed stocks 121,614$  -$  -$  121,614$  

 Unlisted stocks - - 76,422 76,422

 Forward foreign exchange contracts - 2,772 - 2,772

Financial assets at fair value through
 other comprehensive income

 Unlisted stocks - - 447,927 447,927

121,614$  2,772$  524,349$  648,735$  

Listed shares

Market quoted price Closing price
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E. For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, there was no transfer between Level 1 and 
Level 2.

F. The valuation procedures for fair value measurements being categorised within Level 3, which 
is to verify independent fair value of financial instruments. Such assessment is to ensure the 
valuation results are reasonable by applying independent information to make results close to 
current market conditions, confirming the resource of information is independent, reliable and in 
line with other resources and represented as the exercisable price, and periodically valued any 
other necessary adjustments to the fair value.

G. The following chart is the movement of Level 3 for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 
2022:

(a) Financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income- Equity instrument

(b) Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss - Equity instrument

2023 2022

At January 1 447,927$  532,206$  

Increase during the year 20,000 12,000
 Recorded as unrealised gains (losses) on

 valuation of investments in equity
 instruments measured at fair value
 through other comprehensive income 114,227 96,279)( 

 Reduse during the year 86,018)( -

At December 31 496,136$  447,927$  

2023 2022

At January 1 76,422$  81,399$  
 Recorded as unrealised gains (losses)
 on valuation of investments in equity
 instruments measured at fair
 value through profit or loss 78,800 4,977)( 

At December 31 155,222$  76,422$  
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H. The following is the qualitative information of significant unobservable inputs and sensitivity 
analysis of changes in significant unobservable inputs to valuation model used in Level 3 fair 
value measurement:

 Fair value at  Significant

 December 31,  Valuation  unobservable  Relationship of inputs

2023  technique input  Range  to fair value

Non-derivative
 equity

  instrument:
Unlisted shares 617,518$  Market

comparable
companies

Price-Book Ratio 4.27 ~ 40.91

Price to book
ratio multiple

1.42 ~ 2.82

Discount for lack
of marketability

20% ~ 50%

Unlisted shares 33,840$ Net asset
value

Net asset value - The higher the net asset
value, the higher the
fair value

Discount for lack
of marketability

10% The higher the discount
for lack of
marketability, the lower
the fair value

The higher the multiple
and control premium,
the higher the fair
value; the higher the
discount for lack of
marketability, the lower
the fair value

 Fair value at  Significant

 December 31,  Valuation  unobservable  Relationship of inputs

2022  technique input  Range  to fair value

Non-derivative
 equity

  instrument:
Unlisted shares 498,729$  Market

comparable
companies

Price-Book Ratio 3.37 ~ 40.95

Price to book
ratio multiple

0.92 ~ 2.33

Discount for lack
of marketability

20% ~ 50%

Unlisted shares 25,620$ Net asset
value

Net asset value - The higher the net asset
value, the higher the
fair value

Discount for lack
of marketability

10% The higher the discount
for lack of
marketability, the lower
the fair value

The higher the multiple
and control premium,
the higher the fair
value; the higher the
discount for lack of
marketability, the lower
the fair value
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13. Supplementary Disclosures

(1) Significant transactions information

A. Loans to others: None.

B. Provision of endorsements and guarantees to others: Refer to table 1.

C. Holding of marketable securities at the end of the period (not including subsidiaries, associates 

and joint ventures): Refer to table 2.

D. Acquisition or sale of the same security with the accumulated cost exceeding $300 million or 

20% of the Company’s paid-in capital: None.

E. Acquisition of real estate reaching $300 million or 20% of paid-in capital or more: None.

F. Disposal of real estate reaching $300 million or 20% of paid-in capital or more: None.

G. Purchases or sales of goods from or to related parties reaching $100 million or 20% of paid-in

capital or more: Refer to table 3.

H. Receivables from related parties reaching $100 million or 20% of paid-in capital or more: None.

I. Trading in derivative instruments undertaken during the reporting periods: Refer to Note 6(2).

J. Significant inter-company transactions during the reporting periods: Refer to table 4.

(2) Information on investees

Names, locations and other information of investee companies (not including investees in Mainland 
China): Refer to table 5.

(3) Information on investments in Mainland China

A. Basic information: Refer to table 6.

B. Significant transactions, either directly or indirectly through a third area, with investee companies 

in the Mainland Area: None.

(4) Major shareholders information

Major shareholders information: Refer to table 7.
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14. Segment Information

(1) General information

A. The Group reports segment information as follows:

i. Automatic monitoring business: Automated business segment, peripheral business segment,
measurement engineering segment and sensing business segment.

ii. Electronic material business: Manufacturing and sales of specialty chemical in the
semiconductor industry.

iii. Sensing and equipment business overseas segment: Overseas technical services and
manufacturing and sales of electronic material.

iv. Other segments: other subsidiary company.

B. The Group’s reportable segment belongs to strategical business unit to provide different products 

and services. Because each strategical business unit required different techniques and marketing 

strategies, they have to be separately managed.

(2) Information about segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities

The segment information provided to the chief operating decision-maker for the reportable segments 
is as follows:

 Sensing and

 Automaic Electronic  equipment Adjustment

Monitoring material business overseas Other and
business business segment segments elimination Total

Revenue:

Revenue from external
  customers

413,680$ 3,180,388$ 66,324$  39,804$   -$  3,700,196$

Inter-segment revenue 26,141 - 4,165 1,592 31,898)(    -

Total segment revenue 439,821$ 3,180,388$ 70,489$  41,396$   31,898)($ 3,700,196$

Segment income and
   loss including:

Depreciation and
  amortisation

6,319$      103,882$    771$   7,140$   505)($   117,607$    

Segment income (loss): 27,252$   309,050$   4,416$  7,999$  85,669)($ 263,048$   

Segment assets 5,118,055$ 

2023
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(3) Reconciliation for segment income (loss)

A. Revenue:

B. Income (loss):

 Sensing and

 Automaic Electronic  equipment Adjustment

Monitoring material business overseas Other and
business business segment segments elimination Total

Revenue:

Revenue from external
  customers

434,322$ 3,279,415$ 74,358$  33,519$   -$  3,821,614$

Inter-segment revenue 23,170 - 2,757 2,682 28,609)(    -

Total segment revenue 457,492$ 3,279,415$ 77,115$  36,201$   28,609)($ 3,821,614$

Segment income and
   loss including:

Depreciation and
  amortisation

5,154$      103,080$    696$   7,761$   546)($   116,145$    

Segment income (loss): 42,719$   391,980$   8,004$  7,275$   118,572)($   331,406$   

Segment assets 4,867,773$ 

2022

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Reportable segments revenue 3,700,196$   3,821,614$   

Other business revenue 1,875 1,786

Business revenue 3,702,071$  3,823,400$  

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Reportable segments income 263,048$  331,406$  

Other segments income 223,217 128,811

Income before tax from continuing
 operations 486,265$  460,217$  
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(4) Information on products and services

Details of revenue are as follows:

(5) Geographical information

Geographical information for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 is as follows:

(6) Major customer information

Major customer information of the Group for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 is as 
follows:

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Sales of goods 3,485,830$   3,623,098$   

Revenue from system integration 86,291 74,138 

Construction revenue 59,479 44,501 

Others 70,471 81,663

3,702,071$  3,823,400$  

 Non-current  Non-current 
 Revenue assets  Revenue assets 

Taiwan 3,468,517$   1,265,824$   3,620,692$   1,053,905$   

Asia 201,907 103,950 189,320 103,859

Others 31,647 147,278 13,388 130,696

3,702,071$  1,517,052 3,823,400$  1,288,460$  

Year ended December 31, 2023 Year ended December 31, 2022

 Percentage  Percentage
Revenue  of revenue Revenue  of revenue

Client A from the
 Electronic material
 business 917,336$  24.78 1,009,556$  26.4

Client B from the
 Electronic material
 business 847,382 22.89 697,923 18.3

Client C from the
 Electronic material
 business 553,503 14.95 534,499 14.0

2,318,221$  62.62 2,241,978$  58.7

Year ended December 31, 2023 Year ended December 31, 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TRANSLATED FROM CHINESE

PWCR23000524

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Sanlien Technology Corp.

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying parent company only balance sheets of Sanlien 
Technology Corp. (the “Company”) as at December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the related 
parent company only statements of comprehensive income, of changes in equity and of 
cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to the parent company only financial 
statements, including a summary of material accounting policies.

In our opinion, based on our audits and the reports of other auditors (refer to the Other 
matter section), the accompanying parent company only financial statements present fairly, 
in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2023 
and 2022, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the years then ended in 
accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by 
Securities Issuers and the International Financial Reporting Standards, International 
Accounting Standards, IFRIC Interpretations, and SIC Interpretations that came into effect 
as endorsed by the Financial Supervisory Commission.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Financial 
Statement Audit and Attestation Engagements of Certified Public Accountants and 
Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China. Our responsibilities under those standards 
are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the parent company 
only financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified Public Accountant of the 
Republic of China, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the Company’s 2023 parent company only financial statements. 
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the parent company only 
financial statements as a whole and, in forming our opinion thereon, we do not provide a 
separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters for the Company’s 2023 parent company only financial statements are 
stated as follows:

Fair value measurement of investments in unlisted stocks without active market

Description

Refer to Notes 4(5) and (6) for accounting policies on unlisted stocks (accounted as 
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and financial assets at fair value through 
other comprehensive income), Note 5 for uncertainty of accounting estimates and 
assumptions in relation to the fair value of unlisted stocks, Notes 6(2) and (6) for details 
of unlisted stocks. As at December 31, 2023, the Company’s investments in unlisted stocks 
without active market amounted to NT$651,358 thousand.

The unlisted stocks held by the Company has no quoted price in an active market. 
Management estimates the fair value of unlisted stocks using a valuation method, which 
involves various assumptions and significant unobservable inputs, including the valuation 
method, identifying similar and comparable companies, price-to-book ratio and discount 
on liquidity. As the determination of models and parameters used in the estimation of fair 
value is subject to significant judgement and high uncertainty, we considered the fair value 
measurement of unlisted stocks as a key audit matter.

How our audit addressed the matter

We performed the following audit procedures in respect of the above key audit matter:

1. Obtained an understanding of the Company’s valuation procedures on the unlisted
stocks.
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2. Assessed whether the valuation methods used by management were reasonable.

3. Assessed the degree of comparability between the comparable companies identified
by management and the investee being valued in the market approach.

4. Sampled and verified the price-to-book ratio and the input value of discount on
liquidity used in the valuation method and reviewed related information and
supporting documents.

Valuation of investments accounted for using the equity method

Refer to Note 4(12) for accounting policy and Note 6(7) for the details of investments 
accounted for using the equity method.

As at December 31, 2023, the balance of the Company’s investment in Kemitek Industrial 
Corp., a subsidiary accounted for using the equity method, amounted to NT$651,970 
thousand, constituting 27.18% of the Company’s total assets. As the investment is 
considered significant to the financial statements of the Company, the valuation of the 
investment accounted for using the equity method has been identified as one of the key 
areas of focus for this year’s audit, hence, the key audit matter reported in the financial 
statements of the subsidiary is also included as one of the key audit matters in our audit 
of the Company’s parent company only financial statements. The key audit matter of the 
subsidiary is as follows:

Cut-off of sales revenue from distribution warehouse

Description

The sales revenue of Kemitek Industrial Corp. mainly arises from sales revenue from 
distribution warehouse, constituting 47.98% of operating revenue for the year. The sales 
revenue from distribution warehouse is recognised when the goods are dispatched from 
the warehouses (transfer of control). Kemitek Industrial Corp.’s revenue recognition is 
based on inventory movement records of warehouses supported by the reports from 
warehouse custodians or bill of lading reports recorded on its customer’s network platform. 
As the frequency and timing of reports provided by warehouse custodians vary and the 
process of revenue recognition involves manual procedures, these factors may lead to 
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improper timing of revenue recognition. Thus, we considered the cut-off of sales revenue 
from distribution warehouse as a key audit matter.

How our audit addressed the matter

We performed the following audit procedures in respect of the above key audit matter:

1. Obtained an understanding and evaluated the Company’s procedures for sales
revenue from distribution warehouse and internal controls over revenue recognition.

2. Assessed the internal controls over warehouse distribution (checked the terms of
transaction / timing of control transfer and dates of supporting documents) and
ascertained whether the transactions were recognised in the proper period to confirm
the accuracy of the timing of revenue recognition.

3. Performed cut-off procedures on sales revenue from distribution warehouses
recognised during a specific period before and after the period-end, including
verifying delivery schedule of distribution warehouses and ensuring the movements
of inventories contained in the statements and cost of goods sold recognised in the
proper period.

4. Performed physical inventory count observation with significant hub custodians and
agreed the results to accounting records.

Other matter - Reference to the audits of other auditors
We did not audit the financial statements of certain investments accounted for under the 
equity method which were audited by other auditors. Therefore, our opinion expressed 
herein, insofar as it relates to the amounts included in respect of these associates, is based 
solely on the reports of the other auditors. The balance of these investments accounted for 
under the equity method amounted to NT$362,160 thousand and NT$221,742 thousand, 
constituting 15.10% and 10.61% of the total assets as at December 31, 2023 and 2022, 
respectively, and the comprehensive income recognised from associates and joint ventures 
accounted for under the equity method amounted to NT$46,758 thousand and NT$51,810 
thousand, constituting 11.93% and 55.27% of the total comprehensive income for the 
years then ended, respectively.
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Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the 
financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the parent company 
only financial statements in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation 
of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and the International Financial Reporting 
Standards, International Accounting Standards, IFRIC Interpretations, and SIC 
Interpretations that came into effect as endorsed by the Financial Supervisory Commission, 
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the 
preparation of the parent company only financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the parent company only financial statements, management is responsible for 
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance, including the audit committee, are responsible for 
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the parent company only financial 
statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the parent company only 
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these parent company 
only financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, 
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we exercise professional judgment and professional skepticism throughout the audit. We 
also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the parent company only
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.  The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.  If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related
disclosures in the parent company only financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the parent company only
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the parent company only
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
the entities or business activities within the Company to express an opinion on the
parent company only financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
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supervision and performance of the audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit 
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with 
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the parent company only financial 
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these 
matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about 
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should 
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Gregory Kuo Tsai, Yi-Tai

For and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers, Taiwan
March 15, 2024
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
The accompanying parent company only financial statements are not intended to present the financial 
position and results of operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than the Republic of China. The standards, procedures and 
practices in the Republic of China governing the audit of such financial statements may differ from those 
generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than the Republic of China. Accordingly, the 
accompanying parent company only financial statements and independent auditors’ report are not intended 
for use by those who are not informed about the accounting principles or auditing standards generally 
accepted in the Republic of China, and their applications in practice.
As the financial statements are the responsibility of the management, PricewaterhouseCoopers cannot 
accept any liability for the use of, or reliance on, the English translation or for any errors or 
misunderstandings that may derive from the translation.
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SANLIEN TECHNOLOGY CORP.
PARENT COMPANY ONLY BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Assets Notes AMOUNT % AMOUNT %

Current assets

1100 Cash and cash equivalents 6(1)

1110 Financial assets at fair value through 

profit or loss  current

6(2)

1136 Financial assets at amortised cost  

current

6(3) and 8

1140 Contract assets  current 6(20)

1150 Notes receivable, net 6(4)

1160 Notes receivable  related parties 7

1170 Accounts receivable, net 6(4)

1180 Accounts receivable  related parties 7

130X Inventories 6(5)

1410 Prepayments 7

11XX Total current assets

Non-current assets

1510 Financial assets at fair value through 

profit or loss  non-current

6(2)

1517 Financial assets at fair value through 

other comprehensive income  non-

current

6(6) and 7

1550 Investments accounted for using 

equity method

6(7) and 7

1600 Property, plant and equipment 6(8), 7 and 8

1755 Right-of-use assets 6(9)

1780 Intangible assets

1840 Deferred tax assets 6(27)

1920 Guarantee deposits paid

1930 Long-term notes and accounts 

receivable

1960 Non-current prepayments for 

investments

1980 Other financial assets  non-current

1990 Other non-current assets

15XX Total non-current assets

1XXX Total assets

(Continued)
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SANLIEN TECHNOLOGY CORP.
PARENT COMPANY ONLY BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these parent company only financial statements.

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Liabilities and Equity Notes AMOUNT % AMOUNT %

Current liabilities
2100 Short-term borrowings 6(11)
2110 Short-term notes and bills payable 6(11)
2130 Contract liabilities  current 6(20) and 7
2150 Notes payable
2160 Notes payable  related parties 7
2170 Accounts payable
2180 Accounts payable  related parties 7
2200 Other payables 6(12)
2220 Other payables  related parties 7
2230 Current income tax liabilities
2280 Lease liabilities  current
2320 Long-term liabilities, current portion 6(13)
2399 Other current liabilities
21XX Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
2540 Long-term borrowings 6(13)
2570 Deferred tax liabilities 6(27)
2580 Lease liabilities  non-current
2640 Net defined benefit liability  non-

current
6(14)

2645 Guarantee deposits received
2670 Other non-current liabilities
25XX Total non-current liabilities
2XXX Total liabilities

Equity
Share capital 6(16)

3110 Common stock
Capital surplus 6(17)

3200 Capital surplus
Retained earnings 6(18)

3310 Legal reserve
3350 Unappropriated retained earnings

Other equity interest 6(19)
3400 Other equity interest
3XXX Total equity

Significant contingent liabilities and 
unrecognised commitments

9

Significant events after the balance 
sheet date

11

3X2X Total liabilities and equity
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SANLIEN TECHNOLOGY CORP.
PARENT COMPANY ONLY STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars, except for earnings per share amount)

Year ended December 31
2023 2022

Items Notes AMOUNT % AMOUNT %

4000 Operating revenue 6(20) and 7

5000 Operating costs 6(5)(25)(26) and 

7

5900 Gross profit from operations

5920 Realized profit from inter-

affiliate accounts

5950 Gross profit from operations

Operating expenses 6(14)(25)(26) 

and 7

6100 Selling expenses

6200 Administrative expenses

6300 Research and development 

expenses

6450 (Expected credit loss) 

impairment gain

6000 Total operating expenses

6900 Operating (loss) income

Non-operating income and 

expenses

7100 Interest income 6(21)

7010 Other income 6(22) and 7

7020 Other gains and losses 6(23)

7050 Finance costs 6(24)

7070 Share of profit of associates and 

joint ventures accounted for 

using equity method

7000 Total non-operating income 

and expenses

7900 Profit before income tax

7950 Income tax expense 6(27)

8200 Profit for the year

(Continued)
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SANLIEN TECHNOLOGY CORP.
PARENT COMPANY ONLY STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars, except for earnings per share amount)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these parent company only financial statements.

Year ended December 31
2023 2022

Items Notes AMOUNT % AMOUNT %
Other comprehensive income
Components of other 
comprehensive income that will 
not be reclassified to profit or 
loss

8311 Gains on remeasurements of 
defined benefit plan

8316 Unrealised gains (losses) from 
investments in equity 
instruments measured at fair 
value through other 
comprehensive income

6(6)

8330 Share of other comprehensive 
income of associates and joint 
ventures accounted for using 
equity method, components of 
other comprehensive income that 
will not be reclassified to profit 
or loss

8349 Income tax related to 
components of other 
comprehensive income that will 
not be reclassified to profit or 
loss

6(27)

8310 Other comprehensive income 
(loss) that will not be 
reclassified to profit or loss

Components of other 
comprehensive income that will 
be reclassified to profit or loss

8361 Exchange differences on 
translation of foreign operations

8380 Share of other comprehensive 
income of associates and joint 
ventures accounted for using 
equity method, components of 
other comprehensive income that 
will be reclassified to profit or 
loss

8399 Income tax related to 
components of other 
comprehensive income that will 
be reclassified to profit or loss

6(27)

8360 Other comprehensive income 
that will be reclassified to 
profit or loss

8300 Other comprehensive income 
(loss)

8500 Total comprehensive income

Earnings per share (in dollars) 6(28)
9750 Basic earnings per share
9850 Diluted earnings per share
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SANLIEN TECHNOLOGY CORP.
PARENT COMPANY ONLY STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

Year ended December 31
Notes 2023 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments

Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss)
Loss on inventory valuation and physical inventory (gain on 
reversal of decline in market)

6(5)

Expected credit loss
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 6(8)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 6(9)
Amortization 6(26)
Interest income 6(21)
Interest expense 6(24)
Dividend income 6(22)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 6(23)
Net (gain) loss on financial assets at fair value through profit 
or loss

6(23)

Share of profit of associates and joint ventures accounted for 
using equity method
Share-based payments
Gain recognised in bargain purchase transaction 6(7)
Increase in life insurance surrender value

Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Changes in operating assets

Contract assets  current
Notes receivable, net
Notes receivable  related parties
Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable  related parties
Other receivables
Inventories
Prepayments
Long-term notes and accounts receivable

Changes in operating liabilities
Contract liabilities
Notes payable
Notes payable  related parties
Accounts payable
Accounts payable  related parties
Other payables
Other payables  related parties
Other liabilities  current
Net defined benefit liabilities
Other liabilities  non-current

Cash inflow generated from operations
Interest received
Dividends received
Income taxes paid
Interest paid

Net cash flows from operating activities

(Continued)
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SANLIEN TECHNOLOGY CORP.
PARENT COMPANY ONLY STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

Year ended December 31
Notes 2023 2022

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these parent company only financial statements.

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value through 

profit or loss

Acquisition offinancial assets at fair value through other 

comprehensive income

Acquisition of financial assets at amortized cost

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 6(29)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

Acquisition of intangible assets

Increase in refundable deposits

Proceeds from capital reduction of investments accounted for 

using equity method

Acquisition of investments accounted for using equity method

Increase in prepayments for investments

Increase in other financial assets - non-current

Net cash flows used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Increase in short-term borrowings 6(30)

Decrease in short-term borrowings 6(30)

Increase in short-term notes and bills payable 6(30)

Increase in long-term borrowings 6(30)

Repayments of long-term borrowings 6(30)

Payments of lease liabilities 6(30)

Proceeds from sale of treasury shares

Cash dividends paid 6(30)

Non-payment of expired cash dividends from prior year

Acquisition of ownership interests in subsidiaries

Proceeds from disposal of ownership interests in subsidiaries

Decrease in guarantee deposits received

Net cash flows used in financing activities

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
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SANLIEN TECHNOLOGY CORP.
NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY ONLY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars, except as otherwise indicated)

1. History and Organization
Sanlien Technology Corp. ("the Company") was established on February 20, 1967. The Company's stock
has been approved for trading on the Taipei Exchange since May 3, 2001. The Company is primarily
engaged in the design, manufacturing, sales and system syndication of factory automation machinery
and environmental protection facilities; design, equipment manufacturing, installation, sales and system
syndication of remote sensing, power monitoring, ocean monitoring, meteorological observation and
navigation system; installation, sales and maintenance of semiconductor equipment of plant; installation
and sales of civil engineering safety monitoring technology service and geotechnical engineering safety
monitoring technology service, related sensor and metering instruments.

2. The Date of Authorisation for Issuance of the Financial Statements and Procedures for Authorisation
These parent company only financial statements were authorised for issuance by the Board of Directors
on March 15, 2024.

3. Application of New Standards, Amendments and Interpretations
(1) Effect of the adoption of new issuances of or amendments to International Financial Reporting

Standards (“IFRS®”) Accounting Standards that came into effect as endorsed by the Financial 
Supervisory Commission (“FSC”)
New standards, interpretations and amendments endorsed by the FSC and became effective from 
2023 are as follows:

The above standards and interpretations have no significant impact to the Company’s financial 
condition and financial performance based on the Company’s assessment.

 New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments

 Effective date by
International
Accounting

Standards Board

Amendments to IAS 1, ‘Disclosure of accounting policies’ January 1, 2023
Amendments to IAS 8, ‘Definition of accounting estimates’ January 1, 2023
Amendments to IAS 12, ‘Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities
arising from a single transaction’

January 1, 2023

Amendments to IAS 12, ‘International tax reform - pillar two model
rules’

May 23, 2023
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(2) Effect of new issuances of or amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards as endorsed by the FSC but 
not yet adopted by the Company
New standards, interpretations and amendments endorsed by the FSC and will become effective from 
2024 are as follows:

The above standards and interpretations have no significant impact to the Company’s financial 
condition and financial performance based on the Company’s assessment. 

(3) IFRS Accounting Standards issued by IASB but not yet endorsed by the FSC
New standards, interpretations and amendments issued by IASB but not yet included in the IFRS 
Accounting Standards as endorsed by the FSC are as follows:

The above standards and interpretations have no significant impact to the Company’s financial 
condition and financial performance based on the Company’s assessment.

4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these parent company only financial
statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented,
unless otherwise stated.

(1) Compliance statement
The parent company only financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance 
with the “Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers”.

 New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments

 Effective date by
International Accounting

Standards Board

Amendments to IFRS 16, ‘Lease liability in a sale and leaseback’ January 1, 2024
Amendments to IAS 1, ‘Classification of liabilities as current or non-
current’

January 1, 2024

Amendments to IAS 1, ‘Non-current liabilities with covenants’ January 1, 2024
Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7, ‘Supplier finance arrangements’ January 1, 2024

 New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments

 Effective date by
International Accounting

Standards Board

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28, ‘Sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture’

To be determined by
International Accounting

Standards Board
IFRS 17, ‘Insurance contracts’ January 1, 2023
Amendments to IFRS 17, ‘Insurance contracts’ January 1, 2023
Amendment to IFRS 17, ‘Initial application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 –
comparative information’

January 1, 2023

Amendments to IAS 21, ‘Lack of exchangeability’ January 1, 2025
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(2) Basis of preparation
A. Except for the following items, the parent company only financial statements have been prepared 

under the historical cost convention:

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

(b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income.

(c) Defined benefit liabilities recognised based on the net amount of pension fund assets less 
present value of defined benefit obligation.

B. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with International Financial Reporting 
Standards, International Accounting Standards, IFRIC Interpretations, and SIC Interpretations as 
endorsed by the FSC (collectively referred herein as the “IFRSs”) requires the use of certain 
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process 
of applying the Company’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement 
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the parent company 
only financial statements are disclosed in Note 5.

(3) Foreign currency translation
Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The parent company only 
financial statements are presented in New Taiwan dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.
A. Foreign currency transactions and balances

(a) Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange 
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are remeasured. 
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions are 
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

(b) Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the period end are re-
translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences 
arising upon re-translation at the balance sheet date are recognised in profit or loss.

(c) Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies held at fair value 
through profit or loss are re-translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet 
date; their translation differences are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary assets and 
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies held at fair value through other comprehensive 
income are re-translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date; their 
translation differences are recognised in other comprehensive income. However, non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are not measured at fair 
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value are translated using the historical exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

(d) All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of comprehensive income 
within ‘other gains and losses’.

B. Translation of foreign operations

(a) The operating results and financial position of all the group entities, associates and joint 
arrangements that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are 
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

i. Assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing
exchange rate at the date of that balance sheet;

ii. Income and expenses for each statement of comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates of that period; and

iii. All resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income (loss).

(4) Classification of current and non-current items
Some operating cycles of the Company’s construction contracts are longer than one year, thus, the 
related assets and liabilities are divided into current and non-current based on its normal operating 
cycle.
For all other assets and liabilities, they are classified as current and non-current based on the following:
A. Assets that meet one of the following criteria are classified as current assets; otherwise they are 

classified as non-current assets:

(a) Assets arising from operating activities that are expected to be realised, or are intended to be 
sold or consumed within the normal operating cycle;

(b) Assets held mainly for trading purposes;

(c) Assets that are expected to be realised within twelve months from the balance sheet date;

(d) Cash and cash equivalents, excluding restricted cash and cash equivalents and those that are 
to be exchanged or used to settle liabilities more than twelve months after the balance sheet 
date.

B. Liabilities that meet one of the following criteria are classified as current liabilities; otherwise they 
are classified as non-current liabilities:

(a) Liabilities that are expected to be settled within the normal operating cycle;

(b) Liabilities arising mainly from trading activities;

(c) Liabilities that are to be settled within twelve months from the balance sheet date;

(d) Liabilities for which the repayment date cannot be extended unconditionally to more than 
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twelve months after the balance sheet date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the 
counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its 
classification.

(5) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
A. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets that are not measured at 

amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income.

B. On a regular way purchase or sale basis, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are 
recognised and derecognised using trade date accounting.

C. At initial recognition, the Company measures the financial assets at fair value and recognises the 
transaction costs in profit or loss. The Company subsequently measures the financial assets at fair 
value, and recognises the gain or loss in profit or loss.

D. The Company recognises the dividend income when the right to receive payment is established, 
future economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company and the amount 
of the dividend can be measured reliably.

(6) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
A. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income comprise equity securities 

which are not held for trading, and for which the Company has made an irrevocable election at 
initial recognition to recognise changes in fair value in other comprehensive income.

B. On a regular way purchase or sale basis, financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive 
income are recognised and derecognised using trade date accounting.

C. At initial recognition, the Company measures the financial assets at fair value plus transaction 
costs.The Company subsequently measures the financial assets at fair value:

The changes in fair value of equity investments that were recognised in other comprehensive 
income are reclassified to retained earnings and are not reclassified to profit or loss following the 
derecognition of the investment. Dividends are recognised as revenue when the right to receive 
payment is established, future economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the 
Company and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

(7) Financial assets at amortised cost
A. Financial assets at amortised cost are those that meet all of the following criteria:

(a) The objective of the Company’s business model is achieved by collecting contractual cash 
flows.
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(b) The assets’ contractual cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest.

B. On a regular way purchase or sale basis, financial assets at amortised cost are recognised and 
derecognised using trade date accounting.

C. The Company’s time deposits which do not fall under cash equivalents are those with a short 
maturity period and are measured at initial investment amount as the effect of discounting is 
immaterial.

(8) Accounts and notes receivable
A. Accounts and notes receivable entitle the Company a legal right to receive consideration in 

exchange for transferred goods or rendered services.

B. The short-term accounts and notes receivable without bearing interest are subsequently measured 
at initial invoice amount as the effect of discounting is immaterial.

(9) Impairment of financial assets
For financial assets at amortised cost and contract assets at each reporting date, the Company 
recognises the impairment provision for 12 months expected credit losses if there has not been a 
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition or recognises the impairment provision for 
the lifetime expected credit losses (ECLs) if such credit risk has increased since initial recognition 
after taking into consideration all reasonable and verifiable information that includes forecasts. On 
the other hand, for accounts receivable or contract assets that do not contain a significant financing 
component, the Company recognises the impairment provision for lifetime ECLs.

(10) Leasing arrangements (lessor) - operating leases
Lease income from an operating lease (net of any incentives given to the lessee) is recognised in 
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(11) Inventories
Inventories including merchandise, construction materials, raw materials, materials, work in 
progress and finished goods. Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 
Cost is determined using the weighted-average method. The cost of finished goods and work in 
progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production overheads 
(allocated based on normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. The item by item 
approach is used in applying the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is the 
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated cost of completion and 
applicable variable selling expenses.
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(12) Investments accounted for using equity method / associates
A. Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities) over which the Company has the 

power to govern the financials and operating policies. In general, it is presumed that the parent 
has the power to govern the financials and operating policies, if a parent holds, directly or 
indirectly, more than half of the voting power of an entity. Investments in subsidiaries are 
accounted for using the equity method in these parent company only financial statements.

B. Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains or losses on transactions between 
subsidiaries and the Company are eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been 
adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Company.

C. The Company’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in profit 
or loss, and its share of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive income is recognised 
in other comprehensive income. When the Company’s share of losses in an associate equals or 
exceeds its interest in the subsidiary, the Company continues to recognise the losses in propotion 
to the ownership.

D. Changes in a parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in the parent losing 
control of the subsidiary (transactions with non-controlling interests) are accounted for as equity 
transactions, i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity as owners. Any difference between 
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the 
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity.

E. Associates are all entities over which the Company has significant influence but not control. In 

general, it is presumed that the investor has significant influence, if an investor holds, directly or 

indirectly 20 percent or more of the voting power of the investee. Investments in associates are 

accounted for using the equity method and are initially recognised at cost. The excess of the 

acquisition cost over the Company’s share in the net fair value of the associates’ and joint 
ventures’ identifiable assets and liabilities at the acquisition date is recognised as goodwill. 
Such goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is not amortised..

F. The Company’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in profit 
or loss, and its share of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive income is recognised 
in other comprehensive income. When the Company’s share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Company 

does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made 

payments on behalf of the associate.

G. When changes in an associate’s equity do not arise from profit or loss or other comprehensive 
income of the associate and such changes do not affect the Company’s ownership percentage of 
the associate, the Company recognises the Company’s share of change in equity of the associate 
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in ‘capital surplus’ in proportion to its ownership.

H. Unrealised gains on transactions between the Company and its associates are eliminated to the 
extent of the Company’s interest in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless 
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies 
of associates have been adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted 
by the Company.

I. When the Company disposes its investment in an associate and loses significant influence over 
this associate, the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to 
the associate, are reclassified to profit or loss, on the same basis as would be required if the 
relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of. If it retains significant influence over this associate, 
the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the associate 
are reclassified to profit or loss proportionately in accordance with the aforementioned approach.

(13) Property, plant and equipment
A. Property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost.

B. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, 
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item 
will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount 
of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or 
loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

C. Land is not depreciated. Other property, plant and equipment apply cost model and are 
depreciated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost over their estimated useful lives. 
Each part of an item of property, plant, and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation 
to the total cost of the item must be depreciated separately.

D. The assets’ residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if 
appropriate, at each financial year-end. If expectations for the assets’ residual values and useful 
lives differ from previous estimates or the patterns of consumption of the assets’ future economic 
benefits embodied in the assets have changed significantly, any change is accounted for as a 
change in estimate under IAS 8, ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and 
Errors’, from the date of the change. The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment 
are as follows:
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Buildings and structures 36 ~ 61 years

Machinery and equipment 2 ~ 11 years

Transportation equipment  6 years

Office equipment 3 ~ 20 years

Other equipment 3 ~ 10 years

(14) Leasing arrangements (lessee) - right-of-use assets/lease liabilities
A. Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability at the date at 

which the leased asset is available for use by the Company. For short-term leases or leases of 
low-value assets, lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term.

B. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the remaining lease payments at the 
commencement date, discounted using the incremental borrowing interest rate.

Lease payments are comprised of the following:

(a) Fixed payments, less any lease incentives receivable; and

(b) Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate.

The Company subsequently measures the lease liability at amortised cost using the interest 
method and recognises interest expense over the lease term. The lease liability is remeasured and 
the amount of remeasurement is recognised as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset when there 
are changes in the lease term or lease payments and such changes do not arise from contract 
modifications.

C. At the commencement date, the right-of-use asset is stated at cost comprising the following:

(a) The amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

(b) Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date; and

(c) An estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying 
asset, restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition 
required by the terms and conditions of the lease.

The right-of-use asset is measured subsequently using the cost model and is depreciated from the 
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the asset’s useful life or the end of the lease term. 
When the lease liability is remeasured, the amount of remeasurement is recognised as an 
adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

D. For lease modifications that decrease the scope of the lease, the lessee shall decrease the carrying 
amount of the right-of-use asset and remeasure the lease liability to reflect the partial or full 
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termination of the lease, and recognise the difference in profit or loss.

(15) Intangible assets
Computer software is stated at cost and amortised on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful 
life of 3 years.

(16) Impairment of non-financial assets
A. The Company assesses at each balance sheet date the recoverable amounts of those assets where 

there is an indication that they are impaired. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by 
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is 
the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell or value in use. Except for goodwill, when the 
circumstances or reasons for recognising impairment loss for an asset in prior years no longer 
exist or diminish, the impairment loss is reversed. The increased carrying amount due to reversal 
should not be more than what the depreciated or amortised historical cost would have been if the 
impairment had not been recognised.

B. The recoverable amounts of goodwill, intangible assets with an indefinite useful life and 
intangible assets that have not yet been available for use are evaluated periodically. An 
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its 
recoverable amount. Impairment loss of goodwill previously recognised in profit or loss shall 
not be reversed in the following years.

C. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated 
to each of the cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that is/are expected to 
benefit from the synergies of the business combination. Each unit or group of units to which the 
goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill is 
monitored for internal management purposes.  Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment 
level.

(17) Borrowings
Borrowings comprise long-term and short-term bank borrowings. Borrowings are recognised 
initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at 
amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption 
value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest 
method.

223



(18) Notes and accounts payable
A. Accounts payable are liabilities for purchases of raw materials, goods or services and notes 

payable are those resulting from operating and non-operating activities.

B. The short-term notes and accounts payable without bearing interest are subsequently measured 
at initial invoice amount as the effect of discounting is immaterial.

(19) Employee benefits
A. Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected 
to be paid in respect of service rendered by employees in a period and should be recognised as 
expense in that period when the employees render service.

B. Pensions

(a) Defined contribution plan

For defined contribution plan, the contributions are recognised as pension expense when they 
are due on an accrual basis. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent of 
a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments.

(b) Defined benefit plan

i. Net obligation under a defined benefit plan is defined as the present value of an amount
of pension benefits that employees will receive on retirement for their services with the
Company in current period or prior periods. The liability recognised in the balance sheet
in respect of defined benefit pension plan is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the balance sheet date less the fair value of plan assets. The net defined
benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected
unit credit method. The rate used to discount is determined by using interest rates of
government bonds (at the balance sheet date) of a currency and term consistent with the
currency and term of the employment benefit obligations.

ii. Remeasurements arising on defined benefit plan are recognised in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they arise and are recorded as retained earnings.

iii. Past service costs are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

C. Termination benefits

Termination benefits are employee benefits provided in exchange for the termination of 
employment as a result from either the Company’s decision to terminate an employee’s 
employment before the normal retirement date, or an employee’s decision to accept an offer of 
redundancy benefits in exchange for the termination of employment. The Company recognises 
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expense as it can no longer withdraw an offer of termination benefits or it recognises relating 
restructuring costs, whichever is earlier. Benefits that are expected to be due more than 12 months 
after balance sheet date shall be discounted to their present value.

D. Employees’ compensation and directors’ remuneration

Employees’ compensation and directors’ remuneration are recognised as expense and liability, 
provided that such recognition is required under legal or constructive obligation and those 
amounts can be reliably estimated. Any difference between the resolved amounts and the 
subsequently actual distributed amounts is accounted for as changes in estimates. If employee 
compensation is paid by shares, the Company calculates the number of shares based on the fair 
value per share estimated using a valuation technique specified in IFRS 2, ‘Share-based Payment’.

(20) Employee share-based payment
For the equity-settled share-based payment arrangements, the employee services received are 
measured at the fair value of the equity instruments granted at the grant date, and are recognised as 
compensation cost over the vesting period, with a corresponding adjustment to equity. The fair value 
of the equity instruments granted shall reflect the impact of market vesting conditions and non-
vesting conditions. Compensation cost is subject to adjustment based on the service conditions that 
are expected to be satisfied and the estimates of the number of equity instruments that are expected 
to vest under the non-market vesting conditions at each balance sheet date. Ultimately, the amount 
of compensation cost recognised is based on the number of equity instruments that eventually vest. 
The grant date is the date when the employee subscribes the shares.

(21) Income tax
A. The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit or 

loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or 
items recognised directly in equity, in which cases the tax is recognised in other comprehensive 
income or equity.

B. The current income tax expense is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively 
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries where the Company and its subsidiaries operate 
and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns 
with respect to situations in accordance with applicable tax regulations. It establishes provisions 
where appropriate based on the amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities. An additional 
tax is levied on the unappropriated retained earnings and is recorded as income tax expense in 
the year the stockholders resolve to retain the earnings.
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C. Deferred tax is recognised, using the balance sheet liability method, on temporary differences 
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the 
consolidated balance sheet. However, the deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial 
recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business 
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or 
loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. Deferred tax 
is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where the 
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Company and it is probable 
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.  Deferred tax is 
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the 
balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the 
deferred tax liability is settled.

D. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit 
will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. At each balance sheet 
date, unrecognised and recognised deferred tax assets are reassessed.

E. Current income tax assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance 
sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an 
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset on the balance sheet when the entity has the legally 
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and they are levied by 
the same taxation authority on either the same entity or different entities that intend to settle on 
a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

F. A deferred tax asset shall be recognised for the carryforward of unused tax credits resulting from 
acquisitions of equipment or technology, research and development expenditures and equity 
investments to the extent that it is possible that future taxable profit will be available against 
which the unused tax credits can be utilised.

(22) Share capital
A. Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new 

shares or stock options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
B. Where the Company repurchases the Company’s equity share capital that has been issued, the 

consideration paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes) is 
deducted from equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders. Where such shares are 
subsequently reissued, the difference between their book value and any consideration received, 
net of any directly attributable incremental transaction costs and the related income tax effects, 
is included in equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders.
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(23) Dividends
Dividends are recorded in the Company’s financial statements in the period in which they are 
resolved by the Company’s shareholders. Cash dividends are recorded as liabilities.

(24) Revenue recognition
A. Sales of goods

Sales of goods arise from sales of automated machinery, monitoring equipment, electronic 

equipment and other products. Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped to the 

specific location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the client, and either 

the client has accepted the products in accordance with the sales contract, or the Company has 

objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

B. Sales of services

Sales of services arise from the maintenance and repair services of monitoring equipment and 

electronic equipment and related technical services.

Revenue from providing services is recognised in the accounting period in which the service is

rendered.

C. Revenue from system integration

Revenue from system integration arise from providing system integration services for industrial 

sensor, equipment, power monitoring, production of special-purpose sensor and calibration 

service of force sensor. The Company and customers entered into a system integration revenue 

contract, all committed equipment and integration service has separate price. However, the 

Company’s revenue from system integration services primarily arise from providing significant 

services for equipment integration and related services, whereby the control right over the

equipment is transferred to customers and net revenue is recognised when there are no subsequent 

obligations.

D. Construction revenue

The Company’s construction contract primarily provides for the installation technique of high 

technology production machinery (instrument) and civil engineering or provides for professional 

technique service for safety monitoring on main building in the construction process of private 

enterprise to generate income.

In building process, the Company recognised revenue over time for building contracts which 

were controlled by customers. Because the input costs for building were directly related with the 

completion degree of performance obligation, the Company assesses the completion degree 

based on the proportion of actual input costs to the expected total costs. The Company

progressively recognises contract assets during the construction process which is transferred to
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accounts receivable at the time of billing. If the collected proceeds from construction exceeded 

the amount of revenue recognised, the difference is recognised as contract liabilities. The purpose

of retention for construction contracts which is retained by customers is to ensure that the 

Company will complete all contractual obligations, and is recognised as contract assets until the 

construction is completed.

If the result of performance obligation cannot be reliably measured, construction revenue is 
recognised only to the extent of contract costs incurred that is expected to be recoverable.

(25) Government grants
Government grants are recognised at their fair value only when there is reasonable assurance that 
the Company will comply with any conditions attached to the grants and the grants will be received. 
Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which 
the Company recognises expenses for the related costs for which the grants are intended to 
compensate.

5. Critical Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Key Sources of Assumption Uncertainty
The preparation of these parent company only financial statements requires management to make critical
judgements in applying the Company’s accounting policies and make critical assumptions and estimates
concerning future events. Assumptions and estimates may differ from the actual results and are
continually evaluated and adjusted based on historical experience and other factors. Such assumptions
and estimates have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year; and the related information is addressed below:

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

Financial assets - fair value measurement of unlisted stocks without active market

The fair value of unlisted stocks held by the Company that are not traded in an active market is
determined considering those companies’ recent fund raising activities and technical development status,
fair value assessment of other companies of the same type, market conditions and other economic
indicators existing on balance sheet date. Any changes in these judgements and estimates will impact the
fair value measurement of these unlisted stocks. Refer to Note 12(3) for the financial instruments fair
value information.

As of December 31, 2023, the carrying amount of unlisted stocks without active market was $651,358.
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6. Details of Significant Accounts
(1) Cash and cash equivalents

A. The Company transacts with a variety of financial institutions all with high credit quality to 
disperse credit risk, so it expects that the probability of counterparty default is remote. The 
Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date is the carrying amount of 
all cash and cash equivalents.

B. The Company has no cash and cash equivalents pledged to others.

(2) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A. Amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to financial assets at fair value through profit or 
loss are listed below:

B. The Company has no financial assets at fair value through profit or loss pledged to others as 
collateral.

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Cash on hand and revolving funds 339$ 808$
Demand deposits 110,527 111,669
Demand deposits with foreign currency 36,139 52,930
Checking accounts 444 480

147,449$  165,887$  

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Current items:
 Financial assets mandatorily measured at

 fair value through profit or loss
  Listed stocks 97,293$  127,979$  
 Valuation adjustment 34,511 7,380)( 

131,804$  120,599$  

Non-current items:

 Financial assets mandatorily measured at
 fair value through profit or loss
 Emerging stocks 2,318$ 2,318$
 Unlisted stocks 57,085 57,085

59,403 59,403

 Valuation adjustment 96,961 18,034

156,364$  77,437$  

2023 2022

Net gain (loss) on financial assets mandatorily
measured at fair value through profit or loss 123,631$  20,601)($  

Dividends 7,137$ 8,365$
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(3) Financial assets at amortised cost

A. As at December 31, 2023 and 2022, without taking into account any collateral held or other credit 
enhancements, the maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of the amount that best represents 
the financial assets at amortised cost held by the Company was its book value.

B. Details of the Company’s financial assets at amortised cost pledged to others as collateral are 
provided in Note 8.

C. Information relating to credit risk of financial assets at amortised cost is provided in Note 12(2). 

(4) Accounts receivable, net

A. The ageing analysis of accounts receivable and notes receivable that were past due but not 
impaired is as follows:

The above ageing analysis was based on past due date.

B. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, accounts receivable and notes receivable were all from 
contracts with customers. As of January 1, 2022, the balance of receivables from contracts with 
customers amounted to $93,744.

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Financial assets at amortised cost- current

Time deposits with maturity over three months 840$ 840$
Deposits in reserve account 18,243 25,968

19,083$  26,808$  

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Accounts receivable 63,573$  74,430$  
Less: Allowance for uncollectible accounts 643)(     968)(   

62,930$  73,462$  

Accounts Accounts
receivable Notes receivable receivable Notes receivable

Not past due 65,864$   9,832$   76,872$   14,915$   
Up to 30 days 83 - 323 - 
31 to 90 days 551 - 668 - 
91 to 180 days 319 - 63 - 
Over 180 days - - 675 -

66,817$  9,832$  78,601$  14,915$  

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
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C. As at December 31, 2023 and 2022, without taking into account any collateral held or other credit 
enhancements, the maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of the amount that best represents 
the Company’s accounts receivable was its book value.

D. Information relating to credit risk of accounts receivable and notes receivable is provided in Note 
12(2).

(5) Inventories

The cost of inventories recognised as expense for the year:

Allowance for

Cost valuation loss Book value

Commodity and engineering material 112,966$   2,642)($  110,324$   

Raw materials 8,391 83)( 8,308 

Work in progress 100 - 100
Finished goods 8,177 1)( 8,176

129,634$  2,726)($ 126,908$  

December 31, 2023

Allowance for

Cost valuation loss Book value

Commodity and engineering material 74,104$   2,711)($  71,393$  

Raw materials 8,098 554)(  7,544 

Work in progress 109 - 109
Finished goods 10,472 - 10,472

92,783$  3,265)($ 89,518$

December 31, 2022

2023 2022

Cost of goods sold 223,928$  269,896$  

Other operating costs 46,069 34,530

Loss on physical inventory 405 750
Loss (gain on reversal of) on decline in
 market value 539)( 89)( 

269,863$  305,087$  
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(6) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

A. The Company has elected to classify equity investments that are considered to be strategic 
investments as financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income. The fair value 
of such investments was its value as at December 31, 2023 and 2022.

B. Amounts recognised in profit or loss and other comprehensive income in relation to the financial 
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are listed below:

C. The Company has no financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income pledged 
to others.

(7) Investments accounted for using equity method

 Items December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Non-current items:

 Equity instruments

 Unlisted stocks 236,332$   271,346$   
 Valuation adjustment 259,804 176,581

496,136$  447,927$  

2023 2022

Equity instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income

 Fair value change recognised in other
 comprehensive income 114,227$  96,279)($  

 Dividend income recognised in profit or loss 19,392$  55,010$  

Percentage Percentage
Investees Balance ownership Balance ownership

Subsidiaries:

 Kemitek Industrial Corp. 651,970$ 37.24 632,533$ 37.24

 Santek Technology, Inc. 81,536 100.00 77,229 100.00

 Gee Lien Resource Development Corp. 15,677 60.00 16,488 69.20
 DFOST Corporation 7,650 51.00 3,614 51.00
 RIFT HOLDINGS INC. 22,295 100.00 - -

779,128 729,864

Associates:

 Siap+Micros Holding S.r.l. 135,896 49.00 118,524 49.00
 Trisco Technology Corporation 101,330 22.53 - - 

237,226 118,524

1,016,354$  848,388$

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
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A. Subsidiaries

For information relating to the Company’s subsidiaries, refer to Note 4(3) of consolidated financial 
statements for the year ended December 31,2023.

B. Associates

(a) The basic information of the associates that are material to the Company is as follows:

(b) The summarised financial information of the associate that is material to the Company is as 
follows:

Principal place December 31, December 31, Nature of Method of
Company name of business 2023 2022 relationship measurement

Siap+Micros Holding S.r.l. Italy 49.0 49.0 Strategic
investment

Equity method

Trisco Technology
Corporation

Taiwan 22.53 - Strategic
investment

Equity method

Shareholding ratio

Balance Sheet

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Current assets 10,702$   10,298$   

Non-current assets 4,287 4,352 

Current liabilities 4,110)( 4,045)(   

Non-current liabilities 1,829)( 2,290)(   

Total net assets 9,050$ 8,315$

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Share in associate's net assets 135,896$  118,524$  

Carrying amount of the associate 135,896$  118,524$  

Siap+Micros Holding S.r.l.
(Expressed in thousands of Euro)

Siap+Micros Holding S.r.l. 
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C. Cash dividends from investments accounted for using the equity method for the years ended 
December 31, 2023 and 2022 amounted to $87,573 and $76,556, respectively.

D. In 2023 and 2022, certain investments of the Company were accounted for based on the financial 
statements audited by other auditors. Information on share of profit (loss) recognised based on the 
Company's shareholding ratio is as follows:

Balance Sheet

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Current assets 144,892$   -$   

Non-current assets 425,352 - 

Current liabilities 39,567)( - 

Non-current liabilities 80,920)(   -

Total net assets 449,757$  -$

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Share in associate's net assets 101,330$  -$

Carrying amount of the associate 101,330$  -$

Trisco Technology Corporation
(Expressed in thousands of NTD)

Trisco Technology Corporation

Statement of comprehensive income

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Revenue 11,929$ 10,962$                  

Profit for the year from continuing operations 1,269 1,325
Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of tax 34)( 83

Total comprehensive income 1,235$ 1,408$

Siap+Micros Holding S.r.l.
(Expressed in thousands of Euro)

Statement of comprehensive income

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Revenue 84,086$                  -$                            

Profit for the year from continuing operations 22,805 -
Other comprehensive income, net of tax 36,368 -

Total comprehensive income 59,173$                  -$                            

Trisco Technology Corporation
(Expressed in thousands of NTD)
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Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Share of profit of associates and joint ventures
  accounted for using equity method 38,444$  47,954$  

Investments accounted for using equity
 method - Gain (loss) on remeasurements of

  defined benefit plan 562)($ 1,291$

Investments accounted for using equity
 method - Exchange difference from
 translation of foreign operations 6,312$ 2,565$

Investments accounted for using equity
 method - Unrealised gains from
 investments in equity instruments
 measured at fair value through other
 comprehensive income 2,564$ -$

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Investments accounted for using equity method 362,160$  221,742$  
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E. The Company increased its investment in Trisco Technology Corporation for the amount of 
NT$11,486 thousand on September 8, 2023, which resulted in gain recognized in bargain purchase 
transaction of NT$11,009 thousand, the percentage of ownership increasing from 18.35% to 
22.53%. Consequently, the investment, as a whole, was transferred from financial assets at fair 
value through other comprehensive income - non-current to investments accounted for using 
equity method.
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(9) Leasing arrangements - lessee
A. The Company’s leased assets include office, corporate vehicles and the software of 3D design. 

The lease period was 1 to 5 years. Lessees had no bargain purchase option on aforementioned 
assets at the end of the lease period.

B. The movements of right-of-use assets of the Company during 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

C. For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the additions to right-of-use assets were $4,495 
and $7,382, respectively.

D. The information on profit and loss accounts relating to lease contracts is as follows:

E. For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company’s total cash outflow for leases 
were $5,467 and $4,479, respectively.

(10) Leasing arrangements - lessor
A. The Company leased buildings and structures in operating leases. The lease period was 1 to 3 

years, and there were no options to extend the lease period. All operating lease contracts were 
individually negotiated and the rent and related terms were adjusted according to the market 
during the lease renewal. Lessees had no bargain purchase option on these assets at the end of 

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Book value Book value

Buildings and structures 672$ 1,344$

Transportation equipment 7,963 7,937
Other equipment 460 -

9,095$ 9,281$

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Depreciation charge Depreciation charge

Buildings and structures 672$ 672$

Transportation equipment 3,949 3,311 
Other equipment 20 -

4,641$ 3,983$

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Items affecting profit or loss

Interest expense on lease liabilities 153$ 136$

Expense on short-term lease contracts 488$ 163$

Expense on leases of low-value assets 219$ 219$
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the lease period.

B. For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company recognised rent income in the 
amounts of $801 and $551, respectively, based on the operating lease agreement, which does not 
include variable lease payments.

C. The maturity analysis of the lease receivables under the operating leases is as follows:

(11) Short-term borrowings and short-term notes and bills payable

A. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the amounts of undrawn short-term borrowing facilities 
were $227,567 and $130,318, respectively.

B. As of December 31, 2023, the amount of undrawn short-term notes and bills payable facilities 
was $20,000.

C. Refer to Note 8 for the details of collateral for the abovementioned borrowing.

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

2023  $  -  $  780

2024 352 77
After 2025 - -

352$ 857$

 Type of borrowings  December 31, 2023 Interest rate range Collateral

Bank borrowings 

 Unsecured borrowings 150,000$  1.96% 2.19% None

 Secured borrowings 156,425 1.90% 2.02%
Deposits in reserve

 account

306,425$  

Short-term notes and bills
 payable 29,985$                 1.50% None

 Type of borrowings December 31, 2022 Interest rate range Collateral

Bank borrowings 

 Unsecured borrowings 90,000$  1.71% 1.94% None

 Secured borrowings 235,454 1.65% 1.99%
Deposits in reserve

 account

325,454$  
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(12) Other payables

(13) Long-term borrowings

A. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the amounts of undrawn long-term borrowing facilities were 
$70,000 and $50,000, respectively.

B. Refer to Note 8 for the details of collateral for the abovementioned long-term borrowing.

(14) Pensions
A. Defined benefit plan

(a) All formal employees were included in the Company’s pension plan. Under the pension plan, 
two units are accrued for each year of service for the first 15 years and one unit for each 
additional year thereafter, subject to a maximum of 45 units. Pension benefits are based on 
the number of units accrued and the average monthly salaries and wages of the last 6 months 

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Accrued salaries and bonuses 72,614$ 55,616$
Payable on equipment - 3,785
Others 11,076 13,745

83,690$ 73,146$

Borrowing period December 31, December 31,
 Type of borrowings and repayment term 2023 2022

Secured borrowings Borrowing period is from
November 10, 2021 to
November 21, 2025; borrowing
maturity to payment; interest is
payable monthly 60,000$ 60,000$

Secured borrowings Borrowing period is from
October 21, 2020 to October 6,
2024; borrowing maturity to
payment; interest is payable
monthly 90,000 90,000

Secured borrowings Borrowing period is from
February 15, 2022 to February
15, 2024; borrowing maturity to
payment; interest is payable
monthly 50,000 70,000

200,000 220,000
 Less: Current portion 140,000)( -

60,000$ 220,000$  

Interest rate range 1.78% ~ 2.34% 1.28% ~ 2.06%
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prior to retirement. An additional 20% on top of the amount shall be given to workers forced 
to retire due to insanity or physical disability incurred from the execution of their duties.

(b) Directors who were on the job and managers who were commissioned according to Company 
Act and were approved by the Board of Directors were included in the Company’s pension 
plan for the Company’s directors and managers. Under the pension plan, directors and general 
manager who had serviced for over 3 years and are older than 55, two units are accrued for 
each year of service for the first 15 years and one unit for each additional year thereafter, 
subject to a maximum of 45 units. Pension benefits are based on the number of units accrued 
and the average monthly salaries and wages of the last 6 months prior to retirement.  The 
length of service is calculated as half year when it is less than six months and as one year 
when it is more than six months. An additional 20% on top of the amount shall be given to 
workers forced to retire or terminate due to insanity or physical disability incurred from the 
execution of their duties.

(c) The Company's domestic entities have defined benefit plans for qualified employees, in 
accordance with the Labor Standards Act. The Company shall provide for pension at a fixed 
distribution rate of total monthly salary payments and had the Business Entity Supervisory 
Committee of Labor Retirement Reserve managed the pension which shall be deposited in 
the designated account of the Company in the Bank of Taiwan under the name of the 
committee. Before the end of each year, employers shall assess the balance in the designated 
labor pension reserve funds account. If the amount is inadequate to pay pensions for workers 
retiring in the same year, the employer is required to make up the difference in one 
appropriation before the end of March in the following year. The designated accounts were 
commissioned to be managed by the Bureau of Labor Funds, and the Company had no rights 
to influence the investment management strategy. In December 2021, the Company has 
applied for the settlement of the retirement benefits of qualified employees under the defined 
benefit plan with the Department of Labor, Taipei City Government. The Company has fully 
settled the retirement benefits of qualified employees in August 2022.

(d) The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Present value of defined benefit obligations 3,280$ 2,731$

Fair value of plan assets - 2,292)( 

Net defined benefit liability 3,280$ 439$
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(e) Movements in net defined benefit liabilities are as follows:

(f) The Bank of Taiwan was commissioned to manage the Fund of the Company’s defined 
benefit pension plan in accordance with the Fund’s annual investment and utilisation plan 
and the “Regulations for Revenues, Expenditures, Safeguard and Utilisation of the Labor 
Retirement Fund” (Article 6: The scope of utilisation for the Fund includes deposit in 
domestic or foreign financial institutions, investment in domestic or foreign listed, over-the-
counter, or private placement equity securities, investment in domestic or foreign real estate 
securitisation products, etc.). With regard to the utilisation of the Fund, its minimum earnings 
in the annual distributions on the final financial statements shall be no less than the earnings 
attainable from the amounts accrued from two-year time deposits with the interest rates 
offered by local banks. If the earnings is less than aforementioned rates, government shall 

Present value of

defined benefit Fair value of Net defined
obligations plan assets benefit liability

At January 1 2,731$   2,292)($   439$   
Current service cost 466 - 466
Settlement profit or loss 83 2,292 2,375

At December 31 3,280$  -$  3,280$  

2023

Present value of

defined benefit Fair value of Net defined
obligations plan assets benefit liability

At January 1 35,843$  33,471)($  2,372$  
Current service cost 285 - 285
Interest expense (income) 196 181)(  15
Past service cost 330)(  - 330)(  

35,994 33,652)(  2,342

Remeasurements:

Return on plan assets (excluding amounts
  included in interest income or expense) - 2,257)(   2,257)(   
Change in financial assumptions 506)(   - 506)(   
Experience adjustments 1,170 - 1,170

664 2,257)(  1,593)(  

Pension fund contribution - 310)(   310)(   
Paid pension 33,927)(  33,927 -

At December 31 2,731$  2,292)($  439$  

2022
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make payment for the deficit after being authorised by the Regulator. The Company has no 
right to participate in managing and operating that fund and hence the Company is unable to 
disclose the classification of plan assets fair value in accordance with IAS 19 paragraph 142. 
The composition of fair value of plan assets as of December 31, 2022 is given in the Annual 
Labor Retirement Fund Utilisation Report announced by the government.

(g) The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are set based on actuarial advice in 
accordance with published statistics and experience in each territory.

Because the main actuarial assumption changed, the present value of defined benefit 
obligation is affected.  The analysis was as follows:

The sensitivity analysis above is based on one assumption which changed while the other 
conditions remain unchanged.  In practice, more than one assumption may change all at 
once. The method of analysing sensitivity and the method of calculating net pension liability 
in the balance sheet are the same.
The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not 
change compared to the previous period.

B. Defined contribution plan

The Company has established a defined contribution plan managed by the government under the

Labor Pension Act. The Company contributes 6% of the employees' monthly salaries and wages 
to the individual designated account of the Bureau of Labor Insurance as pensions.

C. The Company recognised pension cost:

Year ended
December 31, 2022

Discount rate 1.25%

Future salary increases 3.00%

Increase 0.25% Decrease 0.25% Increase 1% Decrease 1%

December 31, 2022

Effect on present value
 of defined benefit
 obligation 186)($ 200$  870$ 663)($  

Discount rate Future salary increases
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For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the amounts of directors’ remuneration 
recognised in pension cost were $466 and $126, respectively.

(15) Share-based payment
A. The Company’s share-based payment arrangements were as follows:

On March 25, 2020, the Board of Directors of the Company resolved to repurchase shares to be 
transferred to the Company’s employees totaling 660 thousand shares during the period from 
March 26, 2020 to May 25, 2020. The actual number of shares repurchased was 595 thousand 
shares, and the capital reduction was conducted in 2020 with a capital reduction ratio of 6%. For 
shares under this repurchase, the Company will set grant date and transfer price based on the 
changes of share price and volume before transferring to employees. The Company expected to 
transfer shares to employees in one or many times within two years starting from the repurchase 
date. 1 thousand common shares can be purchased for 1 unit. The number of shares that an 
employee can acquire was calculated based on the standards, such as employee’s seniority, 
position, job and special contributions to the Company. After transferring those shares to 
employees and registering a transfer of shares, unless stated otherwise, other rights and 
obligations of those shares are the same as original shares.

Vesting conditions: Regular employees who were employed before the subscription effective 
date or who have special contribution to the Company as recommended by management at or 
above the vice general manager level.

As of December 31, 2022, all employees’ share options were exercised, 1 thousand common 
shares can be purchased for 1 unit, the number of shares that an employee can acquire were 
calculated based on the standards, such as employee’s seniority, position, job and special 

contributions to the Company. After the transfer of shares to employees and the registration of 

the change has been completed, other rights and obligations are the same as the original shares.

B. Details of the share-based payment arrangements are as follows:

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Net retirement cost recognised according to
  Actuaries’ Report on pensions 466$ 30)($
Recognised according to Labor Pension Act of
 R.O.C. 3,424 3,187

3,890$ 3,157$
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C. The fair value of stock options granted on grant date is measured using the Black-Scholes option-
pricing model or other.  Relevant information is as follows:

Note: The expected price volatility was based on the historical volatility of share price in the past 
5 years.

D. The compensation costs recognised for the year ended December 31, 2022 amounted to $919.

(16) Share capital
A. As of December 31, 2023, the Company has authorised capital in the amount of $1,050,000,

consisting of 105,000 thousand shares (including convertible corporate bonds of 30,000 thousand 

shares, corporate bonds with warrant of 20,000 thousand shares and warrant certificates of 4,000 

thousand shares) with a par value of $10.  All proceeds from shares issued have been collected. 

The number of the Company’s ordinary shares outstanding are as follows:

B. Treasury shares

(a) Reason for share reacquisition and movements in the number of the Company’s treasury 
shares are as follows:

No. of Weighted-average

options exercise price
(in thousands) (in dollars)

Options outstanding  at January 1 - -$   
Options granted 306 40.87 
Options exercised 306)( 40.87 

Options outstanding at December 31 -

Options exercisable at December 31 -

2022

Stock Exercise Expected Fair value

Type of price price price Expected Expected Risk-free  per unit

arrangement Grant date (in dollars) (in dollars) volatility option life dividends interest rate (in dollars)

Employee
stock options

February,
2022

 $    44.00  $    40.87 16%  (Note) February 7,
2022 to
February 18,
2022

5.91% 0.755%  $      3.00

2023 2022
(in thousands) (in thousands)

At January 1 41,608.82 41,302.52 
Employee stock options exercised - 306.30

At December 31 41,608.82 41,608.82
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(b) On March 25, 2020, the Board of Directors of the Company approved to repurchase common 

shares in the number of 660 thousand shares to be transferred to employees according to 

Securities and Exchange Act Article 28-2 and ‘Regulations Governing Share Repurchase by 
Exchange-Listed and OTC-Listed Companies’ published by the authority, during the period

from March 26, 2020 to May 25, 2020, at a repurchase price ranging from $28 to $50. The 

Company repurchased common shares totaling 595 thousand shares. For the year ended

December 31, 2020, the Company decreased cash capital at a ratio of 6%. On September 7, 

2021 and March 3, 2022, the Company transferred 253 thousand shares and 306 thousand 

shares to employees, respectively, and the differences between the transfer price and 

repurchase price were $349 and $880, respectively, which were recognised as capital surplus 

- treasury shares. As of December 31, 2022, the Company had no treasury stocks.

(c) Pursuant to the R.O.C. Securities and Exchange Act, the number of shares bought back as 
treasury share should not exceed 10% of the number of the Company’s issued and outstanding 
shares and the amount bought back should not exceed the sum of retained earnings, paid-in 
capital in excess of par value and realised capital surplus.

(d) Pursuant to the R.O.C. Securities and Exchange Act, treasury shares should not be pledged 
as collateral and is not entitled to dividends before it is reissued.

(e) Pursuant to the R.O.C. Securities and Exchange Act, treasury shares should be reissued to the 
employees within five years from the reacquisition date and shares not reissued within the 
five-year period are to be retired.  Treasury shares to enhance the Company’s credit rating 
and the stockholders’ equity should be retired within six months of acquisition.

(17) Capital surplus
Pursuant to the R.O.C. Company Act, capital surplus arising from paid-in capital in excess of par 
value on issuance of common stocks and donations can be used to cover accumulated deficit or to 
issue new stocks or cash to shareholders in proportion to their share ownership, provided that the 
Company has no accumulated deficit.  Further, the R.O.C. Securities and Exchange Act requires 
that the amount of capital surplus to be capitalised mentioned above should not exceed 10% of the 
paid-in capital each year.  Capital surplus should not be used to cover accumulated deficit unless 
the legal reserve is insufficient.

Number of shares as of Number of shares as of

Reason for January 1, 2022 December 31, 2022
share reacquisition (in thousands) Increase Transfer Decrease (in thousands)

To be reissued to
employees 306 - 306)(  - -
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(18) Retained earnings
A. On June 26, 2019, the shareholders of the Company approved to amend the Company’s Articles 

of Incorporation. Under the amended Articles of Incorporation, the Company shall distribute 
earnings every half fiscal year and authorised the Board of Directors to resolve the distribution 
of dividends and bonus in cash which shall be reported to the shareholders.

In accordance with the earnings distribution policies in the Company’s amended Articles of 
Incorporation, the current earnings in every half fiscal year, if any, shall first be used to pay all 
taxes and offset prior years’ accumulated deficit, retaining estimated employees’ compensation 
and directors’ remuneration and then 10% of the remaining amount shall be set aside as legal 
reserve until the legal reserve equals the paid-in capital. In addition, special reserve is set aside 
or reversed in accordance with regulations. The appropriation of the remainder along with the 
unappropriated earnings adjustments in prior half fiscal year, shall be proposed by the Board of 
Directors and approved by the shareholders if the dividends will be distributed in the form of 
shares. If the dividends will be distributed in cash, the appropriation shall be resolved by the 
Board of Directors.

The current year’s earnings, if any, shall first be used to pay all taxes and offset prior years’ 
operating losses and then 10% of the remaining amount shall be set aside as legal reserve until 
the legal reserve amount is equal to the paid-in capital.  In addition, special reserve is set aside 
or reversed in accordance with regulations, the appropriation of the remainder along with the 
unappropriated earnings adjustments in prior half fiscal year, shall be proposed by the Board of 
Directors.  The Board of Directors is authorised by the Company to resolve the distribution of 
dividends and bonuses or legal reserve and capital reserve, in whole or in part, in accordance 
with Paragraph 1 of Article 241 of the Company Act in the form of cash by the resolution adopted 
by the majority vote at its meeting attended by two-thirds of the total number of directors, and 
then reported it to the shareholders.

B. Except for covering accumulated deficit or issuing new stocks or cash to shareholders in 
proportion to their share ownership, the legal reserve shall not be used for any other purpose. 
The use of legal reserve for the issuance of stocks or cash to shareholders in proportion to their 
share ownership is permitted, provided that the distribution of the reserve is limited to the portion 
in excess of 25% of the Company’s paid-in capital.

C. In accordance with the regulations, the Company shall set aside special reserve from the debit 
balance on other equity items at the balance sheet date before distributing earnings.  When debit 
balance on other equity items is reversed subsequently, the reversed amount could be included 
in the distributable earnings.

D. The appropriations of 2022 and 2021 earnings had been approved by the shareholders during 

their meeting on May 24, 2023 and June 23, 2022, respectively. Details are summarised below:
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E. The appropriations of 2023 earnings had been approved by the Board of Directors during its
meeting on March 15, 2024. Details are summarised below:

As of March 15, 2024, the appropriations of 2023 earnings have not been resolved at the 
shareholders’ meeting.

(19) Other equity items

Dividends Dividends

per share per share
Amount (in dollars) Amount (in dollars)

Legal reserve 16,343$     -$   19,444$   -$   
Cash dividends 116,505 2.8 128,987 3.1

2.8$  3.1$  

Year ended December 31, 2022 Year ended December 31, 2021

Dividends

per share
Amount (in dollars)

Legal reserve 30,190$   -$   

Stock dividends 20,804 0.5 

Cash dividends  108,183 2.6

3.1$  

Year ended December 31, 2023

Unrealised gains

Currency (losses) on
translation valuation Total

At January 1 8,564)($  176,581$ 168,017$

Currency translation differences:

- The Company 4,461 - 4,461

- Associates 586 - 586
- Tax 940)(  - 940)(  

Valuation

- Group - 116,791 116,791
- Valuation adjustments transferred to retained
   earnings - 31,004)(  31,004)(  

At December 31 4,457)($  262,368$ 257,911$

2023
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(20) Operating revenue
A. Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers 

The Company derives revenue from the transfer of goods and services over time and at a point 
in time in the following major product lines and geographical regions:

B. Contract assets and liabilities

(a) The Company has recognised the following revenue-related contract assets and liabilities:

Unrealised gains

Currency (losses) on
translation valuation Total

At January 1 20,768)($  272,860$ 252,092$

Currency translation differences:

- The Company 13,547 - 13,547

- Associates 1,128 - 1,128
- Tax 2,471)(  - 2,471)(  
Valuation - 96,279)(  96,279)(  

At December 31 8,564)($  176,581$ 168,017$

2022

Automatic monitoring

2023 segment Other segments Total

Revenue from external customer
 contracts 435,366$  5,465$  440,831$  

Timing of revenue recognition

At a point in time 409,629$   5,465$   415,094$   
Over time 25,737 - 25,737

435,366$  5,465$  440,831$  

Automatic monitoring

2022 segment Other segments Total

Revenue from external customer
 contracts 457,492$  5,959$  463,451$  

Timing of revenue recognition

At a point in time 441,121$   5,959$   447,080$   
Over time 16,371 - 16,371

457,492$  5,959$  463,451$  
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(b) Revenue recognised that was included in the contract liability balance at the beginning of the 

year

C. Uncompleted contracts

The transaction price is allocated to unsatisfied performance obligations under the contract, and 

the expected recognition timing were as follows. The amounts disclosed do not include variable 

consideration.

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 January 1, 2022

Contract assets:

Construction 10,440$  3,934$  3,304$  
Loss: Allowance 21)( 8)( 1)( 

Total 10,419$  3,926$  3,303$  

Contract liabilities:

Construction 5,049$  4,658$  2,999$  

System integration 6,422 17,875 19,144
Sales of goods 877 1,930 4,440

Total 12,348$  24,463$  26,583$  

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Construction 3,349$ 2,215$
System integration 17,027 13,866 
Sales of goods 1,790 748

22,166$  16,829$  

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Construction contracts

Executory in 1 year 26,618$   14,597$   
Executory in 1 to 3 years 10,140 14,967 
Executory over 3 years 18,252 30,004

55,010$  59,568$  

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

System integration contracts

Executory in 1 year 6,422$ 12,483$   
Executory in 1 to 3 years - 5,392 
Executory over 3 years - -

6,422$ 17,875$  
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(21) Interest income

(22) Other income

(23) Other gains and losses

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Sales contracts

Executory in 1 year 877$ 1,930$
Executory in 1 to 3 years - - 
Executory over 3 years - -

877$ 1,930$

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Interest income from bank deposits 821$ 257$

Other interest income 26 10

847$ 267$

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Rent income 801$ 551$

Dividend income 26,529 63,375

Gain recognized in bargain purchase transaction 11,009 -

Other income, others 6,810 23,317

45,149$  87,243$  

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Gains (losses) on financial assets at fair
 value through profit or loss

123,631$  20,601)($  

Foreign exchange gains 777 1,107

Gains on disposals of property, plant and
 equipment

524 413

Other gains and losses 25)( 58)( 

124,907$  19,139)($  
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(24) Finance costs

(25) Employee benefit expense

A. In accordance with the Articles of Incorporation of the Company, a ratio of distributable profit

of the current year shall be distributed as employees’ compensation and directors’ remuneration.

The ratio shall not be lower than 1% for employees’ compensation and shall not be higher than
5% for directors’ remuneration. However, when the Company has accumulated deficit, no
employees' compensation and directors' remuneration shall be distributed.

B. For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, employees’ compensation was accrued at 
$12,020 and $7,933, respectively; while directors’ remuneration was accrued at $9,015 and 
$5,950, respectively. The aforementioned amounts were recognised in salary expenses. 

The employees’ compensation and directors’ remuneration were estimated and accrued based on 
4% and 3%, respectively, of distributable profit for the year ended December 31, 2023.
Employees’ compensation and directors’ remuneration for 2022 as resolved by the Board of 

Directors were in agreement with those amounts recognised in the 2022 financial statements.

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Interest expense 11,537$   6,886$   

Interest expense on lease liability 153 136

11,690$  7,022$

Operating cost Operating expense Total

Wages and salaries 25,616$ 75,305$ 100,921$

Directors' remuneration - 18,041 18,041
Labour and health insurance fees 2,184 5,102 7,286
Pension costs 1,294 2,130 3,424
Other personnel expenses 902 4,494 5,396

29,996$ 105,072$ 135,068$

Operating cost Operating expense Total

Wages and salaries 22,393$ 70,006$ 92,399$

Directors' remuneration - 10,907 10,907
Labour and health insurance fees 1,992 4,943 6,935
Pension costs 1,217 1,814 3,031 
Other personnel expenses 864 3,587 4,451

26,466$ 91,257$ 117,723$

Year ended December 31, 2023

Year ended December 31, 2022
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Information about employees’ compensation and directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration of the 

Company as resolved by the Board of Directors will be posted in the “Market Observation Post 

System” at the website of the Taiwan Stock Exchange.

(26) Expenses by nature

(27) Income tax
A. Income tax expense

(a) Components of income tax expense:

(b) The income tax relating to components of other comprehensive income is as follows:

Operating cost Operating expense Total

Employee benefit expense 29,996$ 105,072$ 135,068$
Depreciation charges 2,387 8,660 11,047
Amortisation charges - 413 413

32,383$ 114,145$ 146,528$

Operating cost Operating expense Total

Employee benefit expense 26,466$ 91,257$ 117,723$
Depreciation charges 2,262 8,769 11,031
Amortisation charges - 356 356

28,728$ 100,382$ 129,110$

Year ended December 31, 2023

Year ended December 31, 2022

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Current tax:

Current tax on profits for the year 5,195$ 1,861$
Tax on undistributed surplus earnings 2,249 2,301
Prior year income tax (overestimation)
underestimation 429)( 223)( 

Total current tax 7,015 3,939

Deferred tax:

Origination and reversal of temporary
  differences 995 5,244

Income tax expense 8,010$ 9,183$
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B. Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting profit

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Currency translation differences 940$ 2,471$
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation - 321

940$ 2,792$

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Tax calculated based on profit before tax and
 statutory tax rate 55,895$  36,888$  

Tax exempt income by tax regulation 49,705)( 30,746)( 
Prior year income tax (overestimation)
underestimation 429)( 223)( 

Effect from Alternative Minimum Tax - 964

Tax on undistributed earnings 2,249 2,301 
Others - 1)( 

Income tax expense 8,010$ 9,183$
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C. Amounts of deferred tax assets or liabilities as a result of temporary differences are as follows:

D. The Company’s income tax returns through 2022 have been assessed and approved by the Tax 
Authority.

Recognised

in other

Recognised in comprehensive

January 1 profit or loss income December 31

- Deferred tax assets:

 Unrealised expenses 7,708$   1,259$   -$   8,967$   

 Remeasurement of defined benefit plan 880 - - 880 

 Cumulative translation adjustments 291 - 291)(   - 
 Others 1,055 137)(  - 918

9,934 1,122 291)(  10,765

- Deferred tax liabilities:

 Investment income 18,008)(   2,217)(  - 20,225)(  

 Unrealised pension contributions 834)(   93 - 741)(   

 Unrealized exchange gain 7)(   7 - - 
 Cumulative translation adjustments - - 649)(  649)(  

18,849)(  2,117)( 649)(  21,615)(

8,915)($  995)($ 940)($ 10,850)($

2023

Recognised

in other

Recognised in comprehensive

January 1 profit or loss income December 31

- Deferred tax assets:

 Unrealised expenses 7,146$   562$   -$   7,708$   

 Remeasurement of defined benefit plan 1,201 - 321)(   880 

 Cumulative translation adjustments 2,762 - 2,471)(  291 
 Others 1,135 80)(  - 1,055

12,244 482 2,792)( 9,934

- Deferred tax liabilities:

 Investment income 12,330)(   5,678)(  - 18,008)(  

 Unrealised pension contributions 766)(   68)(   - 834)(   
 Unrealized exchange gain 29)(  22 - 7)(  

13,125)(  5,724)( - 18,849)(

881)($  5,242)($ 2,792)($ 8,915)($

2022
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(28) Earnings per share
A. Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 
of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the period.

B. Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share is calculated as the profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the 
parent company, based on the effect from dilutive potential ordinary shares, divided by the 
weighted-average number of current outstanding ordinary shares.

Weighted average

number of ordinary Earnings

Amount shares outstanding per share
after tax (shares in thousands) (in dollars)

Basic earnings per share

 Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of
 the parent 271,466$   41,609 6.52$

Diluted earnings per share

 Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of
 the parent 271,466$    41,609

 Assumed conversion of all dilutive potential
   ordinary shares
 Employees' compensation - -
 Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of

 the parent plus assumed conversion of all
 dilutive potential ordinary shares 271,466$   41,609 6.52$

Year ended December 31, 2023
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(29) Supplemental cash flow information
Investing activities with partial cash payments

Weighted average

number of ordinary Earnings

Amount shares outstanding per share
after tax (shares in thousands) (in dollars)

Basic earnings per share

 Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of
 the parent 175,259$   41,538 4.22$

Diluted earnings per share

 Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of
 the parent 175,259$   41,538

 Assumed conversion of all dilutive potential
   ordinary shares
 Employees' compensation - -
 Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of

 the parent plus assumed conversion of all
 dilutive potential ordinary shares 175,259$   41,538 4.22$

Year ended December 31, 2022

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 4,336$ 6,772$
Add: Opening balance of payable on equipment 3,785 -
Less: Ending balance of payable on equipment - 3,785)( 

Cash paid during the year 8,121$ 2,987$
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(30) Changes in liabilities from financing activities

 Long-term

 Short-term borrowings 

notes (including Liabilities from

 Short-term and bills current Lease Dividends financing
borrowings payables portion) liability payable activities

At January 1 325,454$  -$  220,000$  9,368$   -$  554,822$

Changes in cash flow from financing
  activities 19,029)(   29,985 20,000)(   4,607)(      116,505)( 130,156)(   

Interest paid - - - 153)(  - 153)(   

Increase in lease liability for the year - - - 4,015 - 4,015 

Interest expense from amortisation - - - 153 - 153 

Declared cash dividends - - - - 116,505  116,505
Other non-cash fluctuations - - - 41)( - 41)(  

At December 31 306,425$  29,985$   200,000$  8,735$   -$   545,145$

2023

 Long-term

borrowings 

(including Liabilities from

 Short-term current Lease Dividends financing
borrowings portion) liability payable activities

At January 1 295,845$      140,000$      5,946$  -$   441,791$  

Changes in cash flow from financing
  activities 29,609 80,000 3,961)(   128,987)(  23,339)(   

Interest paid - - 136)(   - 136)(   

Increase in lease liability for the year - - 7,383 - 7,383 

Interest expense from amortisation - - 136 - 136
Declared cash dividends - - - 128,987 128,987

At December 31 325,454$     220,000$     9,368$ -$   554,822$

2022
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7. Related Party Transactions
(1) Names of related parties and relationship

 Names of related parties  Relationship with the Company

Kemitek Industrial Corp. Subsidiary
Santek Technology, Inc. Subsidiary
Gee Lien Resource Development Corp. Subsidiary
DFOST Corporation Subsidiary
RIFT HOLDINGS INC. Subsidiary
RIFT SYSTEMS INC. Subsidiary
Siap+Micros Holding S.r.l. Associate

Siap+Micros S.p.a. Associate

Trisco Technology Corporation (Notes1) Associate

Trisco Technology Corporation (Shenzhen) Associate
Sanlien Education Foundation Related party in substance

Meteorological Application & Development
  Foundation

Related party in substance

Sino-Geotechnics Research and Development
  Foundation

Related party in substance

Taiwan Climate Services Partnership Related party in substance

Chinese Taipei Ski Association Related party in substance

PUJEN Land Development Co., Ltd. Related party in substance

Rui Hua Investment Co., Ltd. Related party in substance

Lucent Source., Ltd. Related party in substance

China Metal Products Co., Ltd. Related party in substance
The Hotel National Company Limited Related party in substance

Xiao Bu Dian Company Limited Related party in substance

Asia World Engineering & Construction Corp. Related party in substance
Yan Lien Technology Corp. Related party in substance

P-Waver Inc. Related party in substance

Wu Chi-Wei Related party in substance

Ta-Chun Lin The Company's key management

Lin Ting-Fung (Note2) The Company's key management

Lin Chia-Ching The Company's key management 

Zhu Min,Gao The Company's key management

Note1: The Company increased its investment in Trisco Technology Corporation, therefore,

 it became an associate starting from September 2023.

Note2: Mr. Lin Ting-Fung has retired effective December 31, 2022, but remained as part of 

the key management of the Company's subsidiary.
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(2) Significant related party transactions
A. Operating revenue:

The Company’s transaction amounts and conditions with related parties were in agreement with 

third parties.

B. Purchases:

The Company’s transaction amounts and conditions with related parties were in agreement with 

third parties.

C. Notes receivable from related parties:

D. Accounts receivable from related parties:

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Sales of goods:

 Subsidiaries 28,051$  27,343$  

 Associates - 1,410
 Related party in substance 11,394 5,317

39,445$  34,070$  

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Purchases of goods:

 Related party in substance 5,662$ 33,014$  

 Associates 5,348 1,039
 Subsidiaries 1,960 572

12,970$  34,625$  

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Notes receivable:

  Related party in substance 38$ 93$

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Accounts receivable:
 Subsidiaries 2,588$ 3,828$
 Associates - -
 Related party in substance 656 343

3,244$ 4,171$
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E. Prepayments to related parties:

F. Notes payable to related parties:

G. Accounts payable to related parties:

H. Other payables to related parties:

I. Contract liabilities to related parties:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Prepayments

 Subsidiaries -$ 16$

 Related party in substance - 207

-$ 223$

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Notes payable:

  Subsidiaries -$ 16$

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Accounts payable:
 Related party in substance -$ 6,922$
 Associates 3,430 -
 Subsidiaries 205 188

3,635$ 7,110$

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Other payables:

 Related party in substance 162$ 13$

 Associates 115 -

277$ 13$

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Contract liabilities

 Related party in substance 2,475$ 414$
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J. Property transactions:

(a) Acquisition of financial assets:

(b) Disposal of financial assets:

No. of Year ended
shares December 31, 2023

Accounts (in thousnads) Objects Consideration

Subsidiary Investments accounted
for using equity method
(Issue of shares)

1,530 DFOST
Corporation

15,300$  

15,300$

No. of Year ended
shares December 31, 2022

Accounts (in thousnads) Objects Consideration

Related party
in substance

Financial assets at fair
value through other
comprehensive income

1,000 P-Waver Inc. 12,000$  

"
Investments accounted
for using equity method

216 Kemitek Industrial
Corp. 8,621

20,621$

No. of Year ended
shares December 31, 2023

Accounts (in thousnads) Objects Proceeds

Related party
in substance

Investments accounted
for using equity method 35

Gee Lien Resource
Development 674$  

No. of Year ended
shares December 31, 2022

Accounts (in thousnads) Objects Proceeds

Related party
in substance

Investments accounted
for using equity method 35

Gee Lien Resource
Development 626$  
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(c) Disposal of property, plant and equipment:

K. Lease transactions - lessee

Rent expense

L. Leasing arrangements - lessor

(a) The Company leased buildings and structures in operating leases, with a lease period of 1 to 3

years. The amount of lease is determined based on the local rental level and used area, and is 
paid by the lessee on a monthly basis.

(b) Rent income:

M. Others

(a) Others

Disposal
proceeds

Gain (loss) on
disposal

Related party in substance 720$ -$  

 Year ended December 31, 2022

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Subsidiaries 15$ 44$

Related party in substance 220 -

235$ 44$

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Subsidiaries 660$ 425$
Related party in substance 30 103

690$ 528$

Realationship Year ended Year ended
with the Group Account December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Subsidiaries Expenses for labour
dispatch

2,555$                  2,464$                  

Other income 4,718 4,372

Other operating expenses 801 1,016

Related party in
substance

Other operating expenses 1,494 859

Other income 4 - 
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In order to assist Sanlien Education Foundation in promoting each project and the development of 
science popularization education, the Company, for the year ended December 31, 2023, their 
grants amounted to $1,700.

N. Endorsements and guarantees provided to related parties:

Refer to Note 9 for details of endorsements and guarantees provided to related parties.

(3) Key management compensation

Note: The related expenses and depreciation pertaining to the official cars used by the main 
management were included in key management compensation.

8. Pledged Assets
The Company’s assets pledged as collateral are as follows:

9. Significant Contingent Liabilities and Unrecognised Contract Commitments
(1) Contingencies

None.

(2) Commitments
A. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the amounts of refundable deposit notes issued by the 

Company for undertaking each construction and bank financing facilities were $112,551 and 
$112,701, respectively.

B. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company had guarantee notes issued by financial 
institutions for customs duty in the amount of $5,000 and $10,000, respectively.

C. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company had repaid the prepayment for undertaking 

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Salaries and other short-term employee
 benefits (Note) 10,792$  13,366$  

Post-employment benefits 598 383

Share-based payment transaction - 133

11,390$  13,882$  

Pledged asset December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 Purpose

Land 47,279$  47,279$  Long-term borrowings

Buildings and
  structures - net 14,026 14,588
Time deposits 840 840 Pledged as collateral

  for tariff
Deposits in reserve   account 18,243 25,968 Short-term borrowings

80,388$  88,675$  

Book value
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construction which were guaranteed by banks in the amount of $5,009 and $4,229, respectively.
D. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the subsidiary, Gee Lien Resource Development Corp., 

provided guarantee for the Company to undertake constructions in the amount of $50,000 for both 
years. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company has used $20,632 and $22,023, 
respectively.

E. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company's outstanding letters of credit but not yet drawn 
amounted to $16,000 and $10,000, respectively.

F. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company provided guarantee for the subsidiary, Gee Lien 
Resource Development Corp., to undertake constructions, amounting to $40,000 for both years. 
As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the subsidiary, Gee Lien Resource Development Corp. has 
used $21,408 and $17,327, respectively.

10. Significant Disaster Loss
None.

11. Significant Events after the Balance Sheet Date
(1) On March 15, 2024, the Board of Directors approved the appropriations of 2023 earnings. Details 

of resolution by the Board of Directors are provided in Note 6(18).

12. Others
(1) Capital management

The Company’s goal of capital management was to secure the Company’s going concern and to 
maintain a healthy capital basis in order to keep the confidence of investor, debtor and market and 
to support the development of future operations. Capital included the Company’s share capital, 
capital surplus, retained earnings and non-controlling interests.  The Board of Directors controlled 
and managed the return on capital and dividends standard of common share simultaneously.  For 
the year ended December 31, 2023, the Company’s capital management was the same as usual and 
did not change.
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(2) Financial instruments

A. Financial instruments by category

B. Financial risk management policies

The Company had adopted overall risk management and control system to identify all risks 

including market risk, credit risk, liquidity risks and cash flow risks in order for the management 

to control and evaluate these risks effectively. The Company’s objectives on market risk 

management are to achieve the optimal risk position, maintain an optimal level of liquidity and 

centralise risk management operations, with consideration of the economic environment, 

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Financial assets

 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

 Financial assets designated as at fair value
 through profit or loss on initial recognition 288,168$  198,036$  

 Financial assets at fair value through other
 comprehensive income

   Qualifying equity instruments 496,136$  447,927$  

 Financial assets at amortised cost

 Cash and cash equivalents 147,449$  165,887$  

 Financial assets at amortised cost 19,083 26,808

 Notes receivable 9,832 14,915

 Accounts receivable 66,174 77,633

 Other financial assets - 1,134

 Guarantee deposits paid 7,591 5,047

 Long-term notes and accounts receivable 525 -

250,654$  291,424$  

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Financial liabilities

 Financial liabilities at amortised cost

 Short-term borrowings 306,425$  325,454$  

 Short-term notes and bills payable 29,985 -

 Notes payable 347 346

 Accounts payable 65,073 34,109

 Other accounts payable 83,967 73,159

 Long-term borrowings (including current portion) 200,000 220,000

685,797$  653,068$  

 Lease liability 8,735$  9,368$  
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competitive status and market value risk.

C. Significant financial risks and degrees of financial risks

(a) Market risk

Foreign exchange risk

i. The Company’s sales and purchases are primarily denominated in NTD, JPY and USD.
The fair value of financial assets and liabilities which were denominated in foreign
currency changed according to the fluctuations in market exchange rates. As the
Company offsets these market risks by matching the foreign currency assets and
liabilities positions and their payment periods, it does not expect significant market risk
due to exchange rate.

ii. The Company’s businesses involve some non-functional currency operations (the
Company’s functional currency: NTD). The information on assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies whose values would be materially affected by the
exchange rate fluctuations is as follows:

Foreign currency 

amount Exchange Book value
(In thousands) rate (NTD)

(Foreign currency: functional currency)

Financial assets

Monetary items

 USD:NTD 596$ 30.66$  18,276$

 JPY:NTD 63,250 0.215 13,611

 EUR:NTD 199 33.78 6,721
 CHF:NTD 125 36.36 4,541

Investments accounted for using equity method

 EUR:NTD 3,999$ 33.98 13,896$

 HKD:NTD 20,936 3.895 81,536

Financial liabilities

Monetary items

 USD:NTD 22$  30.76 673$  

 JPY:NTD 27,198 0.219 5,962 

 EUR:NTD 5 34.18 183 

 CHF:NTD 53 36.61 1,929 

 RMB:NTD 29 4.352 126 

December 31, 2023
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iii. The Company is primarily affected by the exchange rate fluctuation of JPY and USD.
Foreign exchange risk between JPY, USD and NTD arose primarily from gains or losses
on foreign currency exchange from translating JPY and USD denominated cash, cash
equivalents, accounts receivable and other receivables, accounts payable and other
payables. When the Company’s functional currency, NTD, fluctuated 1% against JPY
and USD, the sensitivity analysis were as follows:

When the Company’s foreign currency assets position is higher than foreign currency 
liabilities, a positive number above indicates an increase in net profit and equity 
associated with New Taiwan dollars decreasing 1% against the relevant currency.  For 
a 1% increase in New Taiwan dollars against the relevant currency, the amount of impact 
on net profit and equity would be the same but negative.

Foreign currency 

amount Exchange Book value
(In thousands) rate (NTD)

(Foreign currency: functional currency)

Financial assets

Monetary items

 USD:NTD 1,515$ 30.66$  46,460$

 JPY:NTD 16,207 0.230 3,734

 EUR:NTD 190 32.52 6,168

 CHF:NTD 4 33.08 138
 SGD:NTD 1 22.79 12

Investments accounted for using equity method

 EUR:NTD 3,622$ 32.72 118,524$

 HKD:NTD 19,764 3.908 77,229

Financial liabilities

Monetary items

 USD:NTD 54$  30.76 1,672$  

 JPY:NTD 12,671 0.234 2,970 

 EUR:NTD 169 32.92 5,557 

 CHF:NTD 7 33.33 299 

December 31, 2022

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Effect on profit after tax and equity 202$ 364$
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(b) Credit risk

i. The Company’s policy is to trade only with counterparties with rating of investment level,
and if necessary, the Company requires for sufficient collaterals to reduce the financial
loss risk from past due accounts. The Company assesses credit rating of major customers
by using public financial information and historical transaction records. The Company

continuously monitors its credit exposure and the credit rating of counterparties, and
allocates the total transaction amount to different customers with qualified credit rating.
In addition, the Company manages credit exposures through proper review and approval
to the credit facility of counterparties by key management annually.

ii. In order to reduce credit risk, the Company’s management appointed an exclusive group
to be in charge of the decision of credit facilities, approval of credit and other monitoring
procedures to ensure adequate action is taken on the collection of the past due accounts
receivable.  In addition, on the balance sheet date, the Company will review the
recoverable amount of each accounts receivable to ensure the unrecoverable accounts
receivable had been properly provisioned impairment loss. Based on the above
information, the management believes the credit risk of the Company has significantly
decreased.

iii. The expected credit losses on accounts receivable are estimated by using the lifetime
expected losses.  The lifetime expected losses are calculated based on the provision
matrix, taking into consideration that past default experience of the customer, an analysis
of the customer’s current financial position, industrial economic situation, GDP forecast
and the future conditions of the industry in which the customers operate.

iv. As the Company’s historical credit loss experience does not show significantly different
loss patterns for different customer segments, the provision matrix is not further
distinguished according to the Company’s different customer base and the expected
credit losses were calculated from the past due date of accounts receivable.

v. The Company has internal credit risk management, without consideration of the
collaterals held, default has occurred under the following conditions:

(i) Internal or external information indicates that it is impossible for the creditors to
repay its obligations.

(ii) Past due over 181 days, except when there was a reasonable explanation and 
supporting documentation that the delay shall not be considered a default.

vi. The Company adopts following assumptions under IFRS 9 to assess whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk on that instrument since initial recognition:
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If the contract payments are past due in accordance with the contract terms, 
counterparties have serious financial difficulties and the Company cannot reasonably 
estimate the recoverable amount, there has been a significant increase in credit risk on 
that instrument since initial recognition.

vii. If there is evidence to prove that counterparties have a material financial difficulty and
the recoverable amount cannot be estimated reliably, for example, when counterparties
are processing the liquidation, the Company will directly write off related accounts
receivable.  However, the Company will continue executing the recourse procedures to
secure their rights, and the recovered amount arising from the recourse procedures will
be recognised in profit or loss.

viii.The Company’s provision matrix of accounts receivable and contract assets is as follows:

ix. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the expected credit loss rates of contract assets were

0.2% and 0.2%, respectively.

x. Movements in relation to the Company applying the modified approach to provide loss
allowance for accounts receivable and contract assets are as follows:

Up to 30 days 31~90 days 91~180 days Over Overdue
Not past due past due past due past due 180 days receivables  Total 

At December 31, 2023

Expected credit loss rate 0.20% 11.00% 47%~81% 72%~86% - -

Book value 76,303$  83$ 551$ 319$ -$  -$  77,256$    

Allowance 150)(  9)(  274)( 230)( - - 663)(  

Amortised cost 76,153$  74$ 277$ 89$ -$  -$  76,593$    

At December 31, 2022

Expected credit loss rate 0.20% 6.50% 11.2%~71.5% 73%~80% - 100%

Book value 80,806$   323$  668$  63$  -$   675$   82,535$     

Allowance 159)(  21)(  74)(   47)(    - 675)(  976)(  

Amortised cost 80,647$  302$ 594$ 16$ -$  -$   81,559$    

Accounts receivable Contract assets

At January 1 968$ 8$
Provision for impairment 116 13
Write-offs during the years 441)( -

At December 31 643$ 21$

2023
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(c) Liquidity risk

i. For the Company’s financial assets and liabilities that will mature in one year, the
working capital of the Company is sufficient, therefore there is no liquidity risk from the
inability to raise capital for fulfilling contractual obligations.

ii. The Company invested surplus cash in interest bearing time deposits and marketable
securities, choosing instruments with appropriate maturities or sufficient liquidity to
provide sufficient headroom as determined by the abovementioned forecasts.  As for
the held monetary market fund, refer to Note 6 for details of financial assets. The
Company expects to timely generate cash flows to manage liquidity risk.

iii. Refer to Notes 6(11) and 6(13) for details of undrawn borrowing facility of the Company.

iv. The table below analyses the Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities and net-
settled or gross-settled derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date
for non-derivative financial liabilities and to the expected maturity date for derivative
financial liabilities.  The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted
cash flows.

Except as stated above, the Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities are due within 
the following year.

Accounts receivable Contract assets

At January 1 921$ 1$
Provision for impairment 47 7

At December 31 968$ 8$

2022

Less than Between Over
December 31, 2023 1 year 1 and 5 years 5 years Total

Non-derivative financial liabilities

 Long-term borrowings (including
   current portion) 140,000$ 60,000$   -$   200,000$ 
 Lease liability 4,140$     4,846$   -$   8,986$     

Less than Between Over
December 31, 2022 1 year 1 and 5 years 5 years Total

Non-derivative financial liabilities

 Long-term borrowings (including
   current portion) -$            220,000$  -$   220,000$ 
 Lease liability 4,196$     5,391$   -$   9,587$     
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(3) Fair value information

A. The different levels that the inputs to valuation techniques are used to measure fair value of 
financial and non-financial instruments have been defined as follows:

Level 1: Inputs that are quoted prices unadjusted in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities.  A market is regarded as active if it meets all the following conditions: the 

items traded in the market are homogeneous; willing buyers and sellers can normally 

be found at any time; and prices are available to the public.  The fair value of the

Company’s investment in listed stocks is included in Level 1.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset 

or liability, either directly (e.g., as prices) or indirectly (e.g., derived from prices).

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data.

B. The related information on financial and non-financial instruments measured at fair value by 
level on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the assets is as follows:

C. The methods and assumptions the Company used to measure fair value are as follows:

The instruments the Company used market quoted prices as their fair values (that is, Level 1) are 
listed below by characteristics:

December 31, 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Recurring fair value measurements

Financial assets at fair value through
 profit or loss

 Listed stocks 132,946$  -$  -$      132,946$  

 Unlisted stocks - - 155,222 155,222

Financial assets at fair value through
 other comprehensive income

 Unlisted stocks - - 496,136 496,136

132,946$  -$   651,358$  784,304$  

December 31, 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Recurring fair value measurements

Financial assets at fair value through
 profit or loss

 Listed stocks 121,614$  -$  -$      121,614$  

 Unlisted stocks - - 76,422 76,422

Financial assets at fair value through
 other comprehensive income

 Unlisted stocks - - 447,927 447,927

121,614$  -$   524,349$  645,963$  
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D. For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, there was no transfer between Level 1 and 
Level 2.

E. The valuation procedures for fair value measurements being categorised within Level 3, which 
is to verify independent fair value of financial instruments.  Such assessment is to ensure the 
valuation results are reasonable by applying independent information to make results close to 
current market conditions, confirming the resource of information is independent, reliable and in 
line with other resources and represented as the exercisable price, and periodically valued any 
other necessary adjustments to the fair value.

F. The following chart is the movement of Level 3 for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 
2022:
(a) Financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income- Equity instrument

(b) Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss - Equity instrument

G. The following is the qualitative information of significant unobservable inputs and sensitivity 
analysis of changes in significant unobservable inputs to valuation model used in Level 3 fair 
value measurement:

Listed shares

Market quoted price Closing price

2023 2022

At January 1 447,927$  532,206$  

Increase during the year 20,000 12,000

Decrease during the year 86,018)( -
Recorded as unrealised losses on

 valuation of investments in equity
 instruments measured at fair value
 through other comprehensive income 114,227 96,279)( 

At December 31 496,136$  447,927$  

2023 2022

At January 1 76,422$  81,399$  

Recorded as unrealised (losses) gains 79,942 4,977)( 

At December 31 156,364$  76,422$  
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13. Supplementary Disclosures
(1) Significant transactions information

A. Loans to others: None.

B. Provision of endorsements and guarantees to others: Refer to table 1.

C. Holding of marketable securities at the end of the period (not including subsidiaries, associates 

and joint ventures): Refer to table 2.

D. Acquisition or sale of the same security with the accumulated cost exceeding $300 million or 

20% of the Company’s paid-in capital: None.

Fair value at Significant

December 31, Valuation unobservable Relationship of inputs

2023 technique input Range to fair value

Non-derivative
  equity instrument:

Unlisted shares 617,518$   Market
comparable
companies

Price-Book Ratio 4.27~40.91

Price to book
ratio multiple

1.42~2.82

Discount for lack
of marketability

20%~50%

Unlisted shares 33,840$ Net asset
value

Net asset value -

Discount for lack
of marketability

10%

The higher the multiple
and control premium,
the higher the fair
value; the higher the
discount for lack of
marketability, the lower
the fair value

The higher the net asset
value, the higher the
fair value; the higher
the discount for lack of
marketability, the lower
the fair value

Fair value at Significant

December 31, Valuation unobservable Relationship of inputs

2022 technique input Range to fair value

Non-derivative
  equity instrument:

Unlisted shares 498,729$   Market
comparable
companies

Price-Book Ratio 3.37~40.95

Price to book
ratio multiple

0.92~2.33

Discount for lack
of marketability

20%~50%

Unlisted shares 25,620$ Net asset
value

Net asset value -

Discount for lack
of marketability

10%

The higher the multiple
and control premium,
the higher the fair
value; the higher the
discount for lack of
marketability, the lower
the fair value

The higher the net asset
value, the higher the
fair value; the higher
the discount for lack of
marketability, the lower
the fair value
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E. Acquisition of real estate reaching $300 million or 20% of paid-in capital or more: None.

F. Disposal of real estate reaching $300 million or 20% of paid-in capital or more: None.

G. Purchases or sales of goods from or to related parties reaching $100 million or 20% of paid-in

capital or more: Refer to table 3.

H. Receivables from related parties reaching $100 million or 20% of paid-in capital or more: None.

I. Trading in derivative instruments undertaken during the reporting periods: None.

J. Significant inter-company transactions during the reporting periods: Refer to table 4.

(2) Information on investees
Names, locations and other information of investee companies (not including investees in Mainland 
China): Refer to Note 5.

(3) Information on investments in Mainland China
A. Basic information: Refer to table 6.

B. Significant transactions, either directly or indirectly through a third area, with investee companies 

in the Mainland Area: None.

(4) Major shareholders information
Major shareholders information: Refer to table 7.

14. Segment Information
Not applicable.
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Seven. Review and Analysis of Financial Position and Financial Performance, and 
Risk Management 

I. Financial Position 

(I) Comparison and Analysis of Financial Position  
Unit: NT$ thousand 

               Year
 
Item 

2022 2023 
Increase 

(decrease) in 
amount 

Variance % 

Current assets 3,012,271 2,911,187 (101,084) -3.4%
Property, plant and equipment 1,006,761 1,017,290 10,529 1.0%
Intangible assets 26,164 27,392 1,228 4.7%
Other assets 822,577 1,162,186 339,609 41.3%
Total assets 4,867,773 5,118,055 250,282 5.1%
Current liabilities 2,178,646 2,260,654 82,008 3.8%
Non-current liabilities 260,930 112,962 (147,968) -56.7%
Total liabilities 2,439,576 2,373,616 (65,960) -2.7%
Capital stock 416,088 416,088 - -%
Capital surplus 44,195 44,189 (6) -%
Retained earnings 748,494 933,892 185,398 24.8%
Other equity 168,017 257,911 89,894 53.5%
Treasury shares - - - -
Total equity attributable to
wners of the parent 

1,376,794 1,652,080 275,286 20.0%

Non-controlling equity 1,051,403 1,092,359 40,956 3.9%
Total equity 2,428,197 2,744,439 316,242 13.0%
The reasons for significant changes in assets, liabilities and shareholders’ equity during 
the most recent two years (Change between the previous and current periods by more than 
20% and the amount of change amounting to more than NT$10 million):  

1. Other assets: Mainly due to increases in the amount of financial asset investment and 
valuation, and recognition of long-term financing lease receivables. 

2. Non-current liabilities: The decrease compared with the same period last year is mainly 
due to the reclassification of long-term borrowings due in one year to current liabilities. 

3. Retained earnings: The increase in the current period is mainly due to the increase in 
profit and the disposal of equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive 
income, and the valuation profit or loss of is reclassified to retained earnings. 

4. Other equities: Due to the market value of financial assets at fair value through other 

comprehensive income being increased during the period, the unrealized valuation gain 

was accounted for other equities, resulting in a increase in the valuation of other equities.

(II) Impact posed by changes in financial position: No material impact posed. 

(III) Measures to be taken in response: N/A.  

284



II. Financial Performance. 

(I) Comparison and Analysis of Financial Performance 

Unit: NT$ thousand 
Year 

 
Item 

2022 2023 
Increase 

(decrease) in 
amount 

Variance % 

Total operating revenue 3,826,654 3,706,353 (120,301) -3.1% 
Less: Sales return or 
allowance 

(3,254)   （4,282） 1,028 31.6% 

Net operating revenue 3,823,400 3,702,071 (121,329) -3.2% 
Operating cost 3,173,116 3,150,780 (22,336) -0.7% 
Operating profit 650,284 551,291 (98,993) -15.2% 
Operating expenses 327,043 306,306 (20,737) -6.3% 
Operating income 323,241 244,985 (78,256) -24.2% 
Non-operating income and 
expense 

136,976 241,280 104,304 76.1% 

Income before tax 460,217 486,265 26,048 5.7% 
Income tax expenses (88,202) (63,753) (24,449) -27.7% 
Current net income 372,015 422,512 50,497 13.6% 
Current other 
comprehensive income 
(net after tax) 

(77,284) 120,935 198,219 256.5% 

Current total 
comprehensive income 

294,731 543,447 248,716 84.4% 

The reasons for significant changes in operating revenue, operating profit and income 
before tax during the most recent two years (Change between the previous and current 
periods by more than 20% and the amount of change amounting to more than NT$10 
million): 
1. Operating profit: Due to the impact of the economic environment, the operating 

revenue and operating profit decreased slightly compared with the same period of last 
year. 

2. Net non-operating revenue and expenses: Due to the increase in the market price of 
financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss, which was recognized as 
valuation gain, the non-operating income increased. 

3. Income tax expenses: Due to the increase in the proportion of non-operating income in 
the current period to the amount of net profit before tax, which is mainly the valuation 
gain of tax exemption, the income tax expenses decreased compared with last year. 

4. Other comprehensive income for the period and total comprehensive income for the 
period: Due to the increase in the market price of financial assets measured at fair value 
through other comprehensive income, valuation gains were recognized, resulting in a 
significant increase in other comprehensive income and total comprehensive income in 
the period. 

       
(II)  For the sales volume forecast and supporting basis, and possible impacts on the Company's 

future financial business and its response plan, please refer to Pages 1~4 of the annual 
report, Message to Shareholders. 
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III. Cash Flow 
(I) Analysis on changes in 2023 cash flow 

                                                     Unit: NT$ thousand 

Balance of 
cash, 

beginning 

Net cash 
flow from 
operating 

activities for 
the year 

Net cash 
flows from 
investing 

activities and 
financing 

activities for 
the year 

Foreign 
exchange 

effects
Cash balance 

Corrective measures 
against insufficient 

cash position 

Investment 
plan 

Wealth 
management 

plan 

656,645 508,018 (448,170) (2,160) 714,333 - - 
1. Operating activities: The increase in inflow from the previous year is a result of more 

prepared materials in response to the global shortage of raw materials in the same 
period last year, resulting in a decrease in cash inflow from operating activities in the 
same period last year. 

2. Investing activities: The increase in the outflow from last year primarily resulted in 
the increase in capital expenditure in equipment in the current period. 

3. Financing activities: The increase in outflow from the previous year is due to the 
significant increase in borrowings and that the cash inflow was higher. 

 

(II) Corrective measures to be taken in response to illiquidity: None. 

(III) Cash flow analysis for next year 
       Unit: NT$ thousand 

Balance of 
cash, beginning 

Projected net 
cash flow from 

operating 
activities for 

the year (Note 
1) 

Projected net 
cash flows 

from investing 
activities and 

financing 
activities for 

the year 
(Notes 2 and 

3) 

Projected cash 
balance 
(deficit) 

Projected corrective 
measures against 
insufficient cash 

position 

(1) (2) (3) (1)+(2)+(3) 
Investment 

plan 

Wealth 
management 

plan 
714,333 380,652 (353,020) 741,965 - - 

Note 1. Operating activities: The consolidated company is expected to generate stable 
profits in 2024, and net cash inflow from operating activities is NTD 380,652 
thousand. 

Note 2. Investing activities: Due to equipment expenses and re-investment, the net 
cash outflow was about NT$127,643 thousand. 

Note 3. Financing activities: Due to stable operations, cash inflow is expected to be 
allocated to earnings distribution, which will result in a cash outflow of approximately 
NT$225,377 thousand. 
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IV. Impact posed by material capital expenditures to business and finance in the most recent 
year: 

The Consolidated company's major capital expenditures in 2023 were mainly for the 
acquisition of property, plant and equipment, which was mainly paid with its own funds. 
New equipment and new production lines will be launched in 2024, which is expected to 
drive revenue growth. 

V.  The investment policy for the most recent year, major causes for profit or loss thereof, 
corrective action plans, and investment plans for next year 

(I) Investment policy 

The Company adopts the investment policy upholding “focus on its core profession, 
forward-looking investment, rolling planning-based management and continuous 
transformation” in order to continue rooting its core technology, and expand the business 
domain and add the Company’s value by virtue of the Consolidated company’s 
innovation, mergers and acquisitions of startups, and the cross-industry business 
strategies with “cross-industry integration.” 
The Company’s management on invested enterprises is based on relevant regulations 
such as internal control system and “Procedure for Acquisition or Disposal of Assets”. 
In addition to regularly obtaining the financial information of important invested 
enterprises, it shall assign personnel to conduct on-site audits when needed, in order to 
keep track of the management of important invested enterprises.  

(II) Main reason for the investment gains or losses, and the improvement plan 

Unit: NT$ thousand 

Name of Investee Investment gain (loss) 
recognized in 2023 (Note 1)

Main reason for 
gains or losses 

Improvement 
plan 

Siap+Micros 
Holding S.r.l. 20,909 Normal operation  － 

Agnos Chemicals 
Pte. Ltd. 25,114 Normal operation  － 

Billion 
Corporation Samoa (1,061) Normal operation － 

Trisco Technology 
Corporation (626) Normal operation － 

Note 1: The amount listed in the 2023 financial report has been audited and certified 
by CPAs. 

(III) Investment plans for next year 
The Consolidated Company will continue to achieve more balanced long-term investment 
portfolio allocation, and provide customers with “complete solutions.”  Meanwhile, it aims 
at “strategic alliance” or “cross-industry integration” and engages in forward-looking 
investment in benchmark enterprises with competitiveness and development outlook in 
the industry. 
If other subsidiaries have a need for working capital, the Consolidated company will 
assess their future growth potential and then decide whether to increase investment in 
them. 

VI. Analysis and assessment of risk matters in the most recent year and up to the publication 
date of the annual report  

Risk management policy 
Since the Company was founded, it has been more than a half of decade.  The Company is 
committed to “stable operations.”  Even though the Company has gone through various 
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economic recessions and economic cycles, it keeps insisting on the basic policy upholding 
“focus on its core profession, forward-looking investment, rolling planning-based management 
and continuous transformation.” The Company deals with various risks based on the 
principles for professional division of labor.  The dedicated department is responsible for 
evaluating and executing the responsive strategies.  Meanwhile, a team is designated to 
promote the corporate social responsibility, corporate governance and ethical management 
practices. 

The market risk, strategies and business risk are assessed in a professional manner.  Meanwhile, 
the Company will convene the “Business Decision-Making Meeting” periodically, in order 
to consider the overall impact and decide the overall responsive strategies through 
discussion at meetings. 

For financial risk, liquidity risk and credit risk assessment and responsive measures thereof, 
the financial personnel shall feedback the most real-time financial income and expenditure, 
and assess the current and short-term/long-term conditions and set forth the responsive 
measures. 

Risk management organizational framework 

General Manager: Overall planning about the responsive measures against the Company’s 
entire risks. 
Business Dept.: Assess and respond to market risk. 
Financial Accounting Office: Financial risk and liquidity risk. 
General Manager Office: Legal risk, strategies and business risk.  
(I) Impacts of interest rate/foreign exchange rate fluctuation and inflation to the Company's 

income, and future responsive measures: 

1. Impacts of interest rate fluctuation to the Company's income, and future responsive 
measures 
The consolidated company has strengthened the receivable accounts and inventory 
turnover in the recent years and its interest expenses accounted for 0.5% of the 
operating revenue in 2023.  Therefore, no material impact has been posed by the 
interest rate fluctuation. 
The consolidated company’s interest expenses were primarily generated from the 
short-term working capital loaned from the bank.  The Company will continue to 
maintain fair relationship with the bank and keep noticing the interest rate fluctuation, 
in order to seek more preferential interest rate and cut the interest expenses. 

2. Impacts of foreign exchange rate fluctuation to the Company's income, and future 
responsive measures 

The foreign exchange rate risks arising from purchase and sale valued in currency 
offset against each other to a certain extent. In addition to the natural hedges 
through offset of revenue against expenditure mutually, the Company will maintain 
the close relationship with financial institutions, continue to monitor the foreign 
exchange rate fluctuation and assess the hedges periodically, in order to respond to 
the impact posed by significant foreign exchange rate fluctuation. The Company 
tries to mitigate the impact based on the following responsive measures: 

(1) The sales unit shall assess the foreign exchange rate trend carefully before providing 
the quotation to customers, and adopt the reasonable and stable foreign 
exchange rate as the basis of calculation to evade the risk over foreign exchange 
rate fluctuation. 

(2) Maintain the close relationship with the correspondent financial institutions to 
verify the international foreign exchange rate trend thoroughly, periodically 
review the foreign exchange rate fluctuation internally, assess the foreign fund 
position and set the specific need for hedges, and adopt the business strategies, 
such as pre-orders or forward exchange rates, in order to mitigate the impact 
posed by foreign exchange rate fluctuation to the Company’s income. 

3. Impacts of inflation to the Company's income, and future responsive measures: No 
material impact has been posed to the consolidated company. 

(II)  Policies on high-risk and highly leveraged investments, loans to third parties, endorsements/ 
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guarantees, and derivatives trading, main causes of gains or losses incurred and future 
responsive measures: 
1. The consolidated company controls the high-risk and high-leveraged financial 

investments in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations of the Securities 
& Futures Institute, and aims at attending to the robust finance and operations 
concurrently. 

2. The consolidated company’s short-term/long-term investments are handled in 
accordance with the “Procedure for Acquisition or Disposal of Assets” adopted by 
it, and executed upon careful evaluation. 

3. The consolidated company’s loaning of fund to another person follows the “Procedure 
for Loaning of Fund to Others.”  

4. The consolidated company’s making of endorsement/guarantee for others follows 
the “Regulations Governing Endorsements/Guarantees” adopted by it.   

5. The consolidated company engages in any derivative trading primarily in order to 
cut the operating costs and mitigate the financial risk, in accordance with the 
“Procedure for Derivatives Trading” adopted by it. 

(III) Future R&D plans and expected R&D expenditure: 

The Company will continue the R&D of technology and innovation and development 
of new technological applications to expand its business domain and generate stable 
operating profit. Meanwhile, the Company provides all colleagues with a wider career 
stage via the other investees, in order to cultivate the Company’s talent pool, grow the 
Company’s business team and expand the source of profit. 

R&D targets in 2024: Develop the products providing safety and comfort for cities, 
and assist civil engineering construction or environmental safety monitoring, in order 
to make more contribution. 

Future R&D plans and expected R&D expenditure: 
Item 

No. 
Item 

Year of 

R&D 

Expected R&D 

expenditure 

1. Old building monitoring service 2024 NT$300,000 

2. Advanced seismometer 2024 NT$500,000 

3. NB-IoT Rain gauge 2024 NT$300,000 

4. PX-01 Lite 2024 NT$500,000 

5. Ultrasound monitor  2024 NT$1 million 

(IV)   Impact on the Company’s business and finance due to changes in domestic or foreign 
policies and laws, and responsive measures:  

In response to the government’s development of the international competitiveness and 
promotion of connection with the world, and the competent authority’s amendments 
to corporate governance, Company Act, accounting standards and cross-strait 
economic and trading policies, the consolidated company will keep noticing the 
relevant messages and amend its internal control systems therefor, in order to ensure 
compliance with laws. 

(V)  Impact on the Company’s business and finance due to technological or industrial 
changes, and responsive measures: 

1. Cyber security risk and responsive measures 

The Company has implemented the relevant information security protection measures 
with respect to network, servers and PCs.  Notwithstanding, due to the ever-changing 
cyberattack methods, it is still impossible to guarantee that the Company may be 
protected from business loss and impairment on goodwill caused by network 
paralysis resulting from the external attack to the Company’s internal important 
servers, or from any stepping attacks, data theft or destruction. Notwithstanding, the 
Company still continues to assess and review the cyber security standards to 
improve the Company’s internal data security. 

In order to prevent and mitigate malware and external attacks, the Company adopts 
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the following responsive measures: 
(1) The Company will procure and use copyrighted software precisely in order to 

reduce and mitigate the opportunities for invasion of malware. 
(2) PCs and servers are installed with anti-virus software to mitigate the spreading 

of virus. 
(3) For the network, the Company will review and strengthen its firewall policy to 

ensure effective separation of LAN, WAN and DMZ, and reduce the external 
attacks from any third party. 

(4) The Company will join the “TWCERT/CSIRT” to strengthen the security 
information sharing and improve its ability to report and respond to information 
security incidents.  

(5) The Company performs the social engineering exercises and information 
security courses from time to time, in order to improve the internal staff’s 
knowledge about information security and mitigate the hazard caused by phishing 
emails. 

(6) Strengthen backup and backup mechanisms to prevent data from being damaged 
and affecting company operations and losses. 

2.Through the inter-department cooperation, the consolidated company keeps noticing 
the market development, laws & regulations and customers’ needs, integrates the 
Consolidated company’s resources and strengthen competitiveness to respond to the 
changes in the industry. 

(VI)  Impact on crisis management in the event of a change in corporate identity, and responsive 
measures: 

Since the consolidated company was founded, it has upheld the entrepreneurship for 
“finding the truth by verification” and the management philosophy about “stable 
growth,” to cope with the government’s development of the industry and fulfill its 
corporate social responsibility, and also work with its employees to create a win-win 
situation and protect investors’ interest and right.  In the future, the consolidated 
company will still keep insisting on the development strategy upholding “focus on its 
core profession, forward-looking investment, rolling planning-based management and 
continuous transformation.” 

(VII)  Expected benefits and possible risks of merger and acquisition, and responsive measures: 
No such circumstance has occurred to the consolidated company in the most recent 
year and until the date of publication of the annual report. 

(VIII)  Expected benefits and possible risks of facilities expansion, and responsive measures:  
Looking back on 2022 to 2023, it was the first wave of the largest capital equipment 
budgeting and the largest investment amount in Kemitek's Hsinchu Plant in 25 years. 
In addition to the expansion of new production lines and the replacement of old 
equipment, the ultra-clean dust-free laboratory, the most essential component for 
analysis and testing, was established, and its efficiently designed space is expected to 
be equipped with more advanced testing instruments required for clients' advanced 
manufacturing processes.  
The new production line completed at the end of 2023 will be put into production and 
contribute to the revenue starting in 2024. Since the overall design of the production 
line equipment is based on the needs of customers for different generations of 
processes, and as end customers have successively set up new plants in different 
countries around the world, the expansion of the plant capacity in Taiwan's cities and 
counties, and the demand for continuous refinement of the process, it is foreseeable 
that Kemitek, an important player in the supply chain of key chemicals used in 
semiconductors, will have its Hsinchu Plant running at full capacity as the demand in 
the semiconductor market booms. In addition, due to the difficulty in the acquisition 
of land designated for waste water discharge of chemical plants and the ever-increasing 
costs, we will re-examine our options related to utilizing our existing plant area, and 
will convert the current single-story building into a multi-story standard factory 
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building to increase the overall floor area ratio. 

According to the review, end customers have extended the demand forecast to 2030. 
In order to maintain the market share, Kemitek's Hsinchu Plant must begin early 
strategic planning and rebuild the South Plant No. 2 within the Hsinchu Plant in order 
to gain market advantages. It is expected that the biggest part of major capital 
expenditures in the next five years will be for the plant reconstruction and the budget 
for important plant equipment configuration. Although the progress of the economic 
recovery of the entire semiconductor market still needs to be monitored continuously, 
the plant expansion is tentatively estimated for 2026-2028 to overcome the issues of 
insufficient space available for expansion of new production lines at the existing 
Hsinchu Plant of the Company.  

(IX)  Risks and responsive measures associated with concentrated sales or purchases, and 
responsive measures:  

The consolidated company adopts the profit center system and manages multiple 
products as an agent.  Since it was founded, it has built fair goodwill with each of its 
suppliers.  Its supply was normal and no shortage or interruption of supply occurred 
in the most recent year and until the date of publication of the annual report. 

No such situation as overly concentrated customers occurred to the consolidated 
company.  Various business groups are using its best effort to expand their customer 
bases and also overseas sale & technology service locations. 

(X)  Impact and risk on the Company due to major transfer or conversion of equity by 
directors, supervisors, or shareholders with more than 10% ownership interest, and 
responsive measures: No such circumstances occurred to the Company in the most 
recent year and until the date of publication of the annual report. 

(XI)  Impact and risks on the Company due to a change of the right of management, and 
responsive measures: No such circumstance occurred to the Company in the most 
recent year and until the date of publication of the annual report. 

(XII)  For litigious and non-litigious matters, please list major litigious, non-litigious or 
administrative disputes that have been resolved or are still proceeding involving the 
Company and/or any director, supervisor, general manager, actual responsible person, 
and any major shareholder holding a more than 10% of the shares, and the affiliated 
companies. Moreover, where such a dispute could materially affect shareholders' 
equity or the prices of the securities, the annual report shall disclose the facts of the 
dispute, amount of money at stake in the dispute, the date of litigation commencement, 
the main parties to the dispute, and the status of the dispute as of the date of 
publication of the annual report: No such circumstances occurred to the Company in 
the most recent year and until the date of publication of the annual report. 

(XIII) Other important risks and responsive measures: None. 

VII. Other important matters: None. 
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(2) Relationship between the controlling company and associated companies: 

Name of Company Controlling company 
(associated company)

Controlling and associated company 
relationships 

Kemitek Industrial Corp. Associated company
The Company controls the personnel, 
finance and business operations 
directly or indirectly. 

SANTEK Technology, Inc. Associated company Wholly-owned subsidiary 
Timlien Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. Associated company Wholly-owned indirect subsidiary

Gee Lien Resource Development Corp. Associated company
Subsidiary of which 60% shares held 
by the Company 

DFOST Corporation Associated company
A subsidiary whereby 51% of shares 
are held by the company. 

Rift Holdings Inc. Associated company Wholly-owned subsidiary 

Rift Systems Inc. Associated company
Indirect subsidiary of which 90% 
shares held by the Company 

 
(3)  According to the “Criteria Governing Preparation of Affiliation Reports, Consolidated Business Reports and 

Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated Enterprises,” the Company shall disclose the following: 

1. Affiliated company profile:  
Unit: NT$ thousand/$ for foreign currency 

Company name Date of Establishment Address Paid-in capital (Note) Primary business 

Kemitek Industrial 
Corp. 

December 1996 

Rm. A6-1, 13F, No. 
168, Sec. 3, Nanjing E. 
Rd., Zhongshan Dist., 
Taipei City 

684,433 
Semiconductor-related 
chemicals manufacturing 
and sale 

SANTEK 
Technology, Inc. 

June 2000 

Flat B, 13F, Good Year 
Court, No. 59, Shun 
Ning Road, Cheung 
Sha Wan, Hong Kong

21,690 
(HKD 5,520,420) 

Sale of electronics and 
electrical products 

Timlien Trading 
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

March 2004 

Room 3114, No. 24, 
Guo Ding Zhi Rd., 
Yangpu Dist., 
Shanghai City, China

6,141 
(USD200,000) 

Hardware & electrical 
appliances, electronic 
products, electronic 
components, sensors, 
instruments, electric tools, 
electromechanical 
equipment, mechanical 
equipment and accessories, 
wholesale, import/export 
and commission agency of 
geotechnical construction 
safety equipment and 
materials (excluding 
auction) for provision of 
related alternate services 

Gee Lien Resource 
Development Corp.

January 1980 
5F, No. 87, Shuiyuan 
Rd., Zhongzheng Dist., 
Taipei City 

10,000 
Geotechnical engineering 
contract 

DFOST Corporation July 2022 
5-3F, No. 390, Fuxing 
S. Rd., Sec. 1, Daan 
Dist., Taipei City 

50,000 
R&D, sales and service of 
fiber optic sensor monitors

Rift Holdings 
Inc. 

November 2022 
(Capital injection in 
Feb. 2023) 

3524 Silver Road Suite 
35B, Wilmington 
Delaware USA 

29,170 
(USD950,000) 

Overseas holding company

Rift Systems Inc.
November 2022 
(Capital injection in 
Feb. 2023) 

16 Technology Drive 
Ste 144 Irvine, CA 
92618 

30,705 
(USD1,000,000) 

Sales of vibration, 
environment monitoring 
equipment; sales of 
geotechnical monitoring 
equipment. 

 
2. Information about the same shareholder presumed to have controlling and associate relationship: N/A. 
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3. Information about directors, supervisors and general manager of affiliate companies: 
 Unit: Share; % 

Name of Enterprise
Job Title 
(Note 1) 

Name or Representative 
Shares held (Notes 2 & 3) 

Number of 
shares (Note 4) 

Shareholding (%)

Kemitek Industrial 
Corp. 

Chairman 
TAMA Chemicals CO.  
Representative: Toshitsura Cho 

33,044,452 48.28%

Director 
TAMA Chemicals CO.  
Representative: Akira Iwashiro  

33,044,452 48.28%

Director 
Sanlien Technology Corp. 
Representative: Lin Ting-Fung 

25,490,748 37.24 %

Director 
Sanlien Technology Corp. 
Representative: Lin Chia-Ching 

25,490,748 37.24 %

Director 
TAMA Chemicals CO.  
Representative: Yoshikatsu Saito  

33,044,452 48.28%

Supervisor 
Trisco Technology Corporation 
Representative: Lin Ting-Hsiang 

7,570,758 11.06%

Supervisor Kazuo Kubokawa - -

General 
manager 

Lin Ting-Fung - -

SANTEK Technology, 
Inc. 

Director 
Sanlien Technology Corp. 
Representative: Lin Ting-Fung 

5,520,420 100.00%

Director 
Sanlien Technology Corp. 
Representative: Lin Chia-Ching 

5,520,420 100.00%

General 
manager 

Lin Ting-Fung 1 0.00%

Timlien Trading 
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

Director 
SANTEK Technology, Inc. 
Representative: Lin Chia-Ching 

200,000 100.00%

Gee Lien Resource 
Development Corp.

Chairman 
Sanlien Technology Corp. 
Representative: Lin Ta-Chun 

600,000    60.00%

Director 
Sanlien Technology Corp. 
Representative: Hsieh Chi-Lung 

600,000    60.00%

Director, 
General 
manager 

Wu Chi-Wei 141,100    14.11%

Supervisor Shih Wen-Ling -   -

DFOST Corporation

Chairman 
Sanlien Technology Corp. 
Representative: Lin Ta-Chun 

2,550,000 51.00%

Director 
Sanlien Technology Corp. 
Representative: Lin Chia-Ching 

2,550,000 51.00%

Director 
Sanlien Technology Corp. 
Representative: Kao Chu-Min 

2,550,000 51.00%

Director 
VOUNO S.a.r.l 
Representative: Pierre DAGALLIER 

2,450,000 49.00%

Director, 
General 
manager 

Patrice Marc PELLETIER - 
-

Supervisor Guo Jing-Ting  - -

Rift Holdings Inc. Director Lin Ta-Chun - -

Rift Systems Inc.

Director Lin Ta-Hsun - -
Director Yen Peng 50,000 5.00%
Director Ayse Koksal 50,000 5.00%
CEO Cagatay Koksal - -

Note 1: If the affiliated company is a foreign company, list the equivalent title. 

Note 2: If the investee is a company limited by shares, please fill in the number of shares and shareholding. 

For others, please indicate so, and fill in the invested capital and percentage thereof. 

Note 3: When the director or supervisor is a juristic person, please disclose the information about its representative. 

Note 4: List based on the information available to the Company until December 31, 2023. 
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II.  Private placement of securities in the most recent year up to the date of publication of the annual report: 
Disclose the date on which the placement was approved by a board of directors or by a shareholders meeting, 
the amount thus approved, the basis for and reasonableness of the pricing, the manner in which the specified 
persons were selected, the reasons why the private placement method was necessary, the targets of the 
private placement, their qualifications, subscription amounts, subscription price, relationship with the 
company, participation in the operations of the company, actual subscription (or conversion) price, the 
difference between the actual subscription (or conversion) price and the reference price, the effect of the 
private placement on shareholders' equity, and, for the period from receipt of payment in full to the 
completion of the related capital allocation plan, the status of use of the capital raised through the private 
placement of securities, the implementation progress of the plan, and the realization of the benefits of the 
plan: None. 

III.  Holding or disposal of the Company's shares by affiliates in the most recent year up to the date of 
publication of the annual report: None. 

IV.  Other supplementary notes 

(1) Impairment of assets 

The consolidated company’s impairment of assets was treated in accordance with IFRS 9 “Financial 
Instruments” and IAS 36 “Impairment of Assets.” 
1. There was no indication of impairment on any assets held by the consolidated company by 

December 31, 2023. Therefore, no impairment test was needed. 
2. An impairment test has been conducted against the difference between the investment cost and net 

worth of equity of the long-term equity investment, with respect to goodwill. Upon the consolidated 
company’s evaluation of the invested affiliated company, it recognized that there is no goodwill 
impairment loss. 

(2) Basis and ground for evaluation on the provision of allowance for bad debt 

1. Basis for evaluation on impairment of accounts receivable and contract assets 
(1) The consolidated company adopted IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”. 
(2) The allowance losses on accounts receivable and contract assets were all recognized based on 

the lifetime expected credit loss. The expected credit loss refers to the weighted average credit 
loss based on the default risk. 

2. According to said policy, the allowance for bad debt to be provided by the consolidated company on 
December 31, 2023 should be NT$1,415 thousand. 

(3) Basis and ground for provision of allowance for price decline in inventories 

1. Subsequent measurement on inventories 

(1) The basis for evaluating the ending inventories that are not updated within one year refers to the 
“lower of the cost and net realizable value”. The net realizable value means the balance after the 
latest selling price less the sales expenses under the normal condition. If no information about 
the selling price is available, the replacement cost shall apply and the evaluation shall be subject 
to item-by-item comparison. If the net realizable value is less than the book value, the 
allowance for price decline shall be provided item by item. If the net realizable value recovers 
subsequently based on re-measurement, the increase in net realizable value of the inventories 
should be reversed, insofar as it shall be no more than the original amount of write-down. 

(2) Provide 100% allowance for loss with respect to the inventory idle for more than one year. 
(3) The allowance for consignment inventories should be evaluated in the following manners: 

a. If no inspection and acceptance is conducted to close the case or no renewal of agreement is 
reached with the owner within one quarter (three months) upon expiration of any individual 
contract, the potential loss on price decline should be evaluated. 

b. If any unearned sales revenue is lower than the invested cost, the loss on price decline should be 
provided case by case. In any special case, a report may be submitted after the sales representative 
states the reason why the case is not closed, solutions, or allowance for loss thereof. 

2. Given this, the consolidated company should provide the allowance for loss on a price decline, 
NT$6,465 thousand, on December 31, 2023. 

 (4) Pending commitments for listing on TPEx: None. 

Nine.  Situations listed in Article 36, paragraph 3, subparagraph 2 of the Securities and Exchange 
Act, which might materially affect shareholders' equity or the price of the company's 
securities, has occurred during the most recent fiscal year or during the current fiscal 
year up to the date of publication of the annual report: None.  
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